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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

TUESDAY, DECEMBER, 13, 1983 LE MARDI 13 DECEMBRE 1983

(1) (D

[Text] [Texte]

The Standing Committee on Agriculture met at 3:37 o’clock
p.m., this day, for the purpose of organization in relation to
Standing Orders 69(2) and 69(4)(a).

Members of the Committee present: Messrs. Althouse,
Cardiff, Mrs. Coté, Messrs. Daudlin, Dubois, Ferguson,
Gustafson, Mayer, Ostiguy, Schellenberger and Veillette.

Alternates present: Messrs. Bockstael, Dion (Portneuf),
Hargrave, Leduc, McCain and Neil.

Other Member present: Mr. Bloomfield.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

Mr. Bockstael, seconded by Mr. McCain moved,—That Eva
Coté do take the Chair of this Committee as Chairman.

The question being put on the motion, it was agreed to.
The Chairman took the Chair.

On motion of Mr. Ostiguy, seconded by Mr. Neil, Mr.
Daudlin was elected Vice-Chairman of the Committee.

On motion of Mr. Dubois, it was agreed,—That the
Committee print 1,000 copies of its Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence.

On motion of Mr. Ferguson, it was agreed,—That the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure be composed of six (6)
members, three (3) members of the Liberal Party, two (2)
members of the Progressive Conservative Party and one (1)
member of the New Democratic Party, after the usual
consultation with the Whips of the different parties.

Mr. Ostiguy moved,—That the quorum for the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure be four (4) members, one
of which must be an Opposition member and that all Sub-
committee meetings, unless by unanimous consent, be called
on 24 hours notice.

Mr. Schellenberger moved,—That the motion be amended
by changing the word “Opposition” to “Official Opposition”.

By unanimous consent, after debate, the amendment was
withdrawn.

The question being put on the main motion, it was agreed to.

Mr. Dion (Portneuf) moved,—That the Chairman be
authorized to hold meetings, to receive and authorize the
printing of evidence when a quorum is not present, provided
that two (2) members of the Liberal Party and one (1)
member of the Opposition be present.

Mr. Schellenberger moved,—That the motion be amended
by changing the word “Oppostion” to “Official Opposition”.

After debate, the question being put on the amendment, it
was, by a show of hands, negatived: Yeas: 5; Nays: 8.

Le Comité permanent de 'agriculture se réunit aujourd’hui
a 15h37, pour sa séance d’organisation relative aux disposi-
tions des articles 69(2) et 69(4)a) du Réglement.

Membres du Comité présents: MM. Althouse, Cardiff, M™
Co6té, MM. Daudlin, Dubois, Ferguson, Gustafson, Mayer,
Ostiguy, Schellenberger et Veillette.

Substituts présents: MM. Bockstael, Dion (Portneuf),
Hargrave, Leduc, McCain et Neil.

Autre député présent: M. Bloomfield.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I’élection du président.

M. Bockstael, appuyé par M. McCain, propose,—Qu’Eva
C6té soit nommée présidente du Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
Le président prend place au fauteuil.

Sur motion de M. Ostiguy, appuyé par M. Neil, M. Daudlin
est élu vice-président du Comité.

Sur motion de M. Dubois, il est convenu,—Que le Comité
fasse imprimer 1,000 exemplaires de ses procés-verbaux et
témoignages.

Sur motion de M. Ferguson, il est convenu,—Que le Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure soit composé de six
(6) membres, trois (3) membres du parti Libéral, deux (2)
membres du parti Progressiste-Conservateur et un (1) membre
du Nouveau parti démocratique, aprés les consultations
habituelles avec les Whips des différents partis.

M. Ostiguy propose,—Que le quorum du Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure soit formé de quatre (4)
membres, dont un doit étre obligatoirement membre de
I’Opposition et que toutes les séances du Sous-comité, sauf
consentement unanime, soient convoquées sur préavis de 24
heures.

M. Schellenberger propose,—Que la motion soit modifiée en
remplagant le mot «Opposition» par «Opposition officielle».

Du consentement unanime, aprés débat, 'amendement est
retiré.

La motion principale, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

M. Dion (Portneuf) propose,—Que le président soit autorisé
a tenir des séances, a recevoir des témoignages et a en
autoriser I'impression, 4 défaut de quorum, pourvu que deux
(2) membres du parti libéral et un (1) membre de I’Opposition
soient présents.

M. Schellenberger propose,—Que la motion soit modifiée en
remplagant le mot «Opposition» par «Opposition officielle».

Aprés débat, 'amendement, mis aux voix est rejeté, par un
vote & mais levées: Yeas: 5; Nays: 8.
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Mr. Neil moved,—That the motion be amended by striking
out all words after “provided” and replacing them by “that
three members of the Committee are present”.

The question being put on the amendment, it was by a show
of hands, negatived: Yeas: 6; Nays: 7.

The question being put on the main motion, it was, by a
show of hands, agreed to: Yeas: 7; Nays: 6.

Mr. Dion (Portneuf) moved,—That, during the questioning
of witnesses on the first round of 10 minutes to each member,
the Chairman shall recognize the members in the following
order; one P.C., one N.D.P., one Liberal, one P.C., two
Liberals, one P.C., one N.D.P., and then alternate between a
Liberal and a P.C. member until all members have been
recognized on the first round before proceeding to the second
round of 5 minutes to each member who will be recognized in
the same order.

Mr. Schellenberger moved,—That the motion be amended
by changing “two Liberals, one P.C.” to “one Liberal, one
P.C., one Liberal”.

After debate, the question being put on the amendment, it
was agreed to.

The motion, as amended, was agreed to.

On motion of Mr. Bockstael, it was agreed,—That whenever
a quorum is not present, the Chairman may authorize the
payment of reasonable travelling and living expenses to
witnesses invited to appear before the Committee, if necessary.

On motion of Mr. Daudlin, it was agreed,—That the list of
documents permanently referred to the Committee pursuant to
S.0. 46(4) be referred to the Steering Committee for a
proposal to the full Committee for the order of hearings of all
or a portion of those orders referred to us for consideration.

At 4:29 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

TUESDAY, JANUARY 31, 1984
(2)

The S}anding Committee on Agriculture met at 3:37 o’clock
p.m., this day, for the purpose of electing a Chairman and
Vice-Chairman.

Members of the Committee present: Messrs. Althouse and
Cardiff, Mrs. Coté, Messrs. Daudlin, Dionne (Chicoutimi),
Dubois, Ferfuson, Gustafson, Hovdebo, Ostiguy and Schellen-
berger.

Alternates present: Messrs. Bloomfield, Bockstael, Dion
(Portneuf) and King.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

Mr. Dion (Portneuf), seconded by Mr. Ostiguy moved,—
That Eva Coté do take the Chair of this Committee as
Chairman.

M. Neil propose,—Que la motion soit modifiée en retran-
chant tous les mots aprés «pourvu que» et en les remplagant par
«trois membres du Comité soient présents».

L’amendement, mis aux voix, est rejeté par un vote 4 mains
levées: Yeas: 6; Nays 7.

La motion principale, mise aux voix, est adoptée, par un vote
a mains levées: Yeas: 7; Nays: 6.

M. Dion (Portneuf) propose,—Que, durant la période de
questions des témoins, au cours du premier tour de 10 minutes
accordées a chaque membre, la présidente donnera la parole
aux membres dans I’ordre suivant: un représentant du P.C., un
représentant du N.P.D., un représentant du parti libéral, un
représentant du P.C., deux représentants du parti libéral, un
représentant du P.C., un représentant du N.P.D. et ensuite on
alternera entre un représentant du parti libéral et un représen-
tant du P.C. jusqu’d ce que tous les membres aient été
reconnus au premier tour avant de procéder au deuxiéme tour
de 5 minutes 4 chaque membre durant lequel les membres
seront reconnus dans le méme ordre.

M. Schellenberger propose,—Que la motion soit modifiée en
remplagant ’expression «deux représentants du parti libéral,
un représentant du P.C.» par «un représentant du parti libéral,
un représentant du P.C., un représentant du parti libéral.

Aprés débat, 'amendement mis aux voix, est adopté.

La motion, telle que modifiée, est adoptée.

Sur motion de M. Bockstael, il est convenu,—Que lorsqu’il
n’y a pas quorum, le Président puisse autoriser le rembourse-
ment des frais raisonnables de déplacement et d’hébergement

aux témoins invités 4 comparaitre devant le Comité, si
nécessaire.

Sur motion de M. Daudlin, il est convenu,—Que la liste des
documents déférés en permanence au Comité, en vertu de
larticle 46(4) du Réglement, soit référée au Sous-comité
directeur pour recommandation au Comité permanent
concernant I’horaire des séances portant sur tous ou une partie
des références au Comité, pour sa considération.

A 16h29, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE MARDI 31 JANVIER 1984
2

Le Comité permanent de I’agriculture se réunit aujourd’hui
a 15h37, pour élire un président et vice-président.

Membres du Comité présents: MM. Althouse et Cardiff,
Mm Eva C6té, MM. Daudlin, Dionne (Chicoutimi), Dubois,
Ferguson, Gustafson, Hovdebo, Ostiguy et Schellenberger.

Substituts présents: MM. Bloomfield, Bockstael, Dion
(Portneuf) et King.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I’élection du président.

M. Dion (Portneuf), appuyé par M. Ostiguy, propose,—
Qu’Eva Cbté soit nommée président du Comité.
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The question being put on the motion, it was agreed to.
The Chairman took the Chair.

Mr. Ostiguy, seconded by Mr. Ferguson moved,—That Bob
Daudlin be elected Vice-Chairman of this Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was agreed to.

It was agreed,—That the Chairman write to the Minister of
Agriculture, the Hon. E. Whelan, on behalf of the Committee,
requesting that he tables in the House and send to this
Committee, for its consideration, the report by E.H. Anderson
and Henri Vandermeulin entitled “An evaluation of the cattle-
beef industry in Canada (concerning the stabilization in the
red meat industry)”; and that the letter be circulated to all
members of the Committee, at the earliest opportunity.

It was agreed,—That the first meeting of the Sub-commit-
tee on Agenda and Procedure, be scheduled for Thursday,
February 2, 1984.

At 3:55 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
Le président prend place au fauteuil.

M. Ostiguy, appuyé par M. Ferguson, propose,—Que Bob
Daudlin soit nommé vice-président du Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

11 est convenu,—Que le président, au nom du Comité, écrive
au Ministre de I’Agriculture, I’honorable Eugene Whelan, lui
demandant de déposer en Chambre I’étude de E. H. Anderson
et Henri Vandermeulin, intitulée «Une évaluation de I'indus-
trie du bétail au Canada (concernant la stabilisation dans
'industrie de la viande rouge)» et que le document soit envoyé

a ce Comité pour étude; et que la lettre du président soit
circulée a tous les membres du Comité.

Il est convenu,—Que la premiére réunion du Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure soit convoquée pour jeudi, le 2
février 1984.

A 15h55, le Comimté suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

Le greffier du Comité

Micheline Rondeau-Parent

Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus) (Enregistrement électronique)

[Texte] [Traduction]

Tuesday, December 13, 1983
® 1539

The Clerk of the Committee: Honourable Members, I see a
quorum. Your first item of business, pursuant to Standing
Order 69, is to elect a chairman, and I will now entertain
motions to that effect.

Mr. Bockstael.
Mr. Bockstael: I would propose Eva Coté.
Mr. McCain: I second that motion.

The Clerk: It is moved by Mr. Bockstael and seconded by
Mr. McCain that Mrs. Eva Coté do take the Chair of this
committee as chairman.

Motion agreed to.
The Clerk: Mrs. C6té has been duly elected.

® 1540

Le président: Si c’est le temps de faire un discours, je vais
vous en faire un beau grand pour vous remercier de la
confiance que vous me faites. J’espére que la durée du mandat
sera satisfaisante pour chacun des membres du Comité.

Maintenant, il y aurait lieu de procéder a I’élection d’un
vice-président. Je vous rappelle que le vice-président sortant
était M. Bob Daudlin. Si vous voulez laisser le poste ouvert, on
peut y revenir . ..

M. Ostiguy: Je propose la nomination de M. Daudlin
comme vice-président, méme s’il est absent.

M. Neil: J’appuie la motion.
La motion est adoptée.

Le président: Je déclare donc M. Daudlin élu vice-président
du Comité.

Monsieur Daudlin, je vous souhaite la bienvenue au Comité.
Il me fait plaisir de vous dire que vous venez d’étre élu vice-
président du Comité permanent de ’agriculture.

Je remercie tout le monde. Je pense qu’on vous a distribué
Pordre du jour de la réunion de cet aprés-midi. Il y a des
motions de routine dont nous devons disposer afin de fixer les
régles de fonctionnement du Comité pour la prochaine année.

Passons d’abord a I'impression des procés-verbaux et
témoignages du Comité. Il semble que cela fasse partie de
'organisation normale d’un comité.

Monsieur Dubois.

M. Dubois: Je propose que le Comité fasse imprimer 1,000
exemplaires de ses procés-verbaux et témoignages.

Mr. Bloomfield: Madam Chairman, do we always use those
1000 copies? If they are just sitting in a room somewhere, it
does not . . .

Le mardi 13 décembre 1983

Le greffier du Comité: Mesdames et messieurs les membres
du comité, je constate que nous avons le quorum. En vertu du
Réglement 69, le premier article a I'ordre du jour est I’élection
d’un président. Je suis prét a4 entendre des motions a cet effet.

Monsieur Bockstael.
M. Bockstael: Je propose M™ Eva Coté.
M. McCain: J’appuie la motion.

Le greffier: Il est proposé par M. Bockstael, appuyé par M.
McCain, que M™ Eva C6té soit €lue président du comité.

La motion est adoptée.
Le greffier: M™ Coté est diment élue président.

The Chairman: If it is speech-giving time, I shall give you a
great big one to thank you for the confidence you have shown
me. I trust that the length of the mandate satisfies all the
members of the Committee.

We should now proceed with the election of a vice-chair-
man. I would remind you that the outgoing vice-chairman is
Mr. Bob Daudlin. If you would prefer to leave the position
open, we could perhaps get back toiit . . .

Mr. Ostiguy: Even though he is absent, I propose Mr.
Daudlin as the vice-chairman.

Mr. Neil: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: I therefore declare Mr. Daudlin elected vice-
chairman of the committee.

Mr. Daudlin, welcome to the committee. I am very pleased
to inform you that you have just been elected vice-chairman of
the Standing Committee on Agriculture.

I would like to thank everyone. I believe the agenda for this
afternoon’s meeting has already been distributed. There are a
certain number of routine motions which we must deal with
before deciding on the rules according to which the committee
will function over the next year.

Let us first deal with the printing of the Minutes of Proceed-
ings and Evidence of the committee. That seems to come under
the regular organization work of committees.

Mr. Dubois.

Mr. Dubois: I propose that the committee print 1,000 copies
of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

M. Bloomfield: Madame le président, utilisons-nous
toujours ces 1,000 exemplaires? S’ils doivent tout simplement
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[Texte]

Le président: Monsieur Bloomfield, il semble qu’il soit dans
la tradition de faire imprimer 1,000 copies, peut-étre pas
nécessairement pour la Chambre, mais pour répondre a la
demande du public en général. Dans certains cas, lors de
résolutions spéciales de comités, compte tenu de I'importance
du sujet, on a dii en faire imprimer un nombre beaucoup plus
important. Mais il semble que le minimum vital soit de 1,000
exemplaires.

Monsieur Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: I think Mr. Bloomfield seeks some assurances
from the clerk, if no one else, that we do not have a room
somewhere where we have the balance of the difference
between what have been used and the 1000; that all of the
1000 are indeed being sought, or such reasonable proportion
thereof that we do not have a great surplus being stored
somewhere at the expense of the public purse.

Mr. McCain: The problem is that if you do not make them
initially, and if you cannot anticipate what each issue is going
to require, then you cannot get them; they are just not
available. They print once, period.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Neil.

Mr. Neil: The issue was raised in a previous committee, the
same point as Garnet raised. We were told by the clerk that
first of all there are 284 for the members of Parliament, then
there are 100-some-odd for the senators, and then there are
other places where they have to go; that generally speaking
nearly all the 1000 are used up.

Mr. Bloomfield: Thank you.
La motion est adoptée.

Le président: Passons a la deuxiéme motion. Monsieur
Ferguson.

M. Ferguson: Je propose que le Sous-comité du programme
et de la procédure soit composé de six membres, soit trois
membres du Parti libéral, deux membres du Parti progressiste-
conservateur et un membre du Nouveau parti démocratique,
aprés les consultations habituelles avec les whips des différents
partis.

La motion est adoptée.
® 1545

Le président: La troisiéme motion maintenant. Monsieur
Ostiguy.

M. Ostiguy: Je propose que le quorum du Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure soit formé de quatre membres
dont un doit étre obligatoirement membre de Iopposition et
que toutes les séances du Sous-comité, sauf consentement
unanime, soient convoquées sur préavis de 24 heures.

[Traduction]

rester entassés dans une piéce quelque part, il me semble que
cen’est pas. ..

The Chairman: Mr. Bloomfield, the tradition seems to be to
print 1,000 copies, perhaps not necessarily to cover the House’s
needs, but rather to satisfy the demand of the public at large.
In the case of certain special and important resolutions
adopted by committees, it has sometimes been necessary to
print an even greater number of copies. However, it seems to
me that the absolute minimum would be 1,000.

Mr. Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: Il me semble que tout ce que cherche a obtenir
M. Bloomfield de la part du greffier, ou de quelqu’un d’autre,
C’est une garantie qu'il n’y aura pas une salle, quelque part,
remplie de tout ce qui nous restera des 1,000 exemplaires; en
fait, que ces 1,000 exemplaires, ou du moins une part raisonna-
ble du total, soient nécessaires, et ce, afin d’éviter qu’un
énorme surplus soit entreposé quelque part aux frais des
contribuables.

M. McCain: Le probléme, c’est que si vous ne prévoyez pas
I'impression de ce nombre dés le départ, et si vous n’étes pas en
mesure de prévoir le nombre d’exemplaires de chaque fascicule
qui sera requis, alors, vous ne pourrez pas les obtenir apres. On
fait imprimer les procés-verbaux et les témoignages une seule
fois, un point, c’est tout.

Le président: Oui, monsieur Neil.

M. Neil: La question que vient de souligner Garnet a déja
été soulevée lors de la réunion d’un autre comité. Le greffier
nous a alors dit qu’il en fallait tout d’abord 284 pour les
députés, une centaine et quelques pour les sénateurs, et qu’il y
avait également d’autres personnes qui devaient les recevoir. Il
nous a dit qu’en régle générale, les 1,000 exemplaires sont
écoulés.

M. Bloomfield: Merci.
Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: Let us now go on to the second motion. Mr.
Ferguson.

Mr. Ferguson: I propose that the Subcommittee on Agenda
and Procedure be composed of six members to include three
Liberal members, two Progressive Conservative members and
one New Democractic Party member, to be appointed after the
usual consultations with the whips of the different parties.

Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: Third motion. Mr. Ostiguy.

Mr. Ostiguy: I propose that the quorum for the Subcommit-
tee on Agenda and Procedure be four members, one of which
must be a member of the opposition, and that all the meetings
of the subcommittee be announced 24 hours in advance, except
with unanimous consent.



K28

Agriculture

31-1-1984

[Text]
Le président: Monsieur Schellenberger.

Mr. Schellenberger: I would suggest that the term “opposi-
tion member” be changed to the term “Official Opposition
member”. If the mover will not accept that, I would move an
amendment to that extent.

Le président: Monsieur Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: Madam Chairman, this obviously raises the
same issue that was raised some four years ago, when we
constituted this committee in the first instance. I think we will
see from the procedure that has taken place over the last four
years that this, in fact, has not in any way been an abuse of
any party’s, or individual’s, rights, perceived or otherwise, but
has assured that in circumstances that all of us contemplate
that, in fact, steering committee meetings can indeed take
place. At the same time, all members, I think, worked
desperately to assure that the rights and obligations of any
individual party or member were safeguarded.

Given the history of this exact proposal, its having worked
over the last four years, I for one would ask Mr. Schellen-
berger to reconsider the necessity of having to move the
subamendment. But, should he want to, with a view to trying
to make the whole system work as well as it has over the last
four years, I would oppose the subamendment and support the
motion as it stands.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Daudlin.
Monsieur Schellenberger.

Mr. Schellenberger: It is my intention to move a subamend-
ment, as such, then. I think it is important that if this commit-
tee is to operate . . . I do not question that it has operated well
in the past, I am concerned that it may not in the future. We
have had examples of some contentious legislation and if, for
some reason, be it weather or whatever, the member of the
Official Opposition cannot be present, I do not think it is in
order that the steering committee make the decision.

I am not as firm on this motion, because it concerns the
steering committee, as I am on the next one. I would be
prepared to allow this one to stand, because all decisions by the
steering committee are subject to the full committee’s approv-
ing them. I will forgo that and give notice of my intention, on
the next motion, to move the amendment.

La motion, telle que proposée par M. Ostiguy, est adoptée.

Le président: Passons 4 la quatriéme motion. Monsieur
Dion.

M. Dion: Je propose que le président soit autorisé a tenir des
séances, a recevoir des témoignages et a en autoriser I'impres-
sion a défaut de quorum, pourvu que deux membres du Parti
libéral et un membre de 'opposition soient présents.

Le président: Monsieur Schellenberger.

[Translation]
The Chairman: Mr. Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Je propose que I’on remplace I’expres-
sion «membre de l'opposition» par «membre de I'Opposition
officielle». Si 'auteur de la motion veut bien accepter ce
changement, je suis prét a appuyer la motion.

The Chairman: Mr. Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: Madame le président, cela nous raméne a une
question qui a été soulevée il y a quatre ans, lorsque le Comité
a été créé. Je pense que l'expérience des quatre derniéres
années révele que cette formule n’a, en aucun cas, constitué un
abus des droits d’un parti ou d’une personne: plutét, elle a
garanti que des réunions du comité directeur puissent étre
tenues lorsque les circonstances I’exigent. En méme temps, il
me semble que tous les membres ont travaillé de fagon
acharnée pour veiller & ce que soient protégés les droits et
obligations de tous les partis et de tous les membres du
Comité.

Vu les antécédents et vu que cette formule a bien fonctionné
au cours des quatre derniéres années, je demanderais a M.
Schellenberger d’envisager de retirer son sous-amendement.
Mais s’il choisit de maintenir sa motion, dans I'intention de
veiller 4 ce que le systéme continue de fonctionner aussi bien
qu’il I'a fait pendant les quatre derniéres années, je m’oppose-
rai au sous-amendement et j’'appuierai la motion originale.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Daudlin.
Mr. Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Dans ce cas, c’est mon intention de
proposer un sous-amendement. Je pense qu’il est important, si
ce Comité doit fonctionner... Je ne prétends pas que la
formule ait mal fonctionné par le passé; tout ce qui me soucie,
c’est ce qui va se passer a I’avenir. Il y a plusieurs exemples de
textes législatifs contentieux que je pourrais citer, et si, pour
une raison quelconque, un membre de ’Opposition officielle ne
pouvait pas étre présent, je ne pense pas qu’il soit normal que
le comité directeur puisse prendre une décision.

Quoi qu’il en soit, ma position relativement a cette motion
n’est pas aussi ferme que celle que jai a l'endroit de la
prochaine. Celle-ci ne concerne que le comité directeur. Je
serais donc prét a accepter cette motion, parce que toutes les
décisions prises par le comité directeur doivent, de toute fagon,
étre approuvées par le comité plénier. Je vais donc laisser cela
de coté, mais je tiens 4 vous avertir que je vais proposer mon
amendement pour ce qui est de la motion suivante.

The motion, as proposed by Mr. Ostiguy, is agreed to.

The Chairman: Let us now go on to the fourth motion. Mr.
Dion.

Mr. Dion: I propose that the Chairman be authorized to
hold meetings, to receive and authorize the printing of
evidence when a quorum is not present, provided that two
Liberal members and one member of the opposition are
present.

The Chairman: Mr. Schellenberger.
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Mr. Schellenberger: 1 would like to move an amendment to
that motion, which would add the word “Official” in the last
sentence between the words “the” and “Opposition”.

The Chairman: Mr. Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: Again, Madam Chairman, I point to the
historical working of this particular agreement. I want only to
point out to the member the reason why I support the existence
of the motion as it stands. I wish only to point out to all the
members collected here today that no decision is going to be
taken by the committee in the absence of a voting quorum. As
a consequence, it seems to me that no prejudice can be
sustained by any individual party. What we in fact are doing, I
believe, is attempting to accommodate witnesses by assuring
that so long as three members can be present, in fact witnesses
will be heard; that individual witnesses who have been able to
come or groups of witnesses who have been able to come
before this committee will not be put through the inconven-
ience of attending, only to have themselves not heard by reason
of the inability of one particular party to attend.

41550

As a consequence thereof, I suggest that in fact the motion
stand as it is. My hon. friend says, why two members from the
government; that obviously is required so that in fact the chair
be present and one other person on each side of the table.

Le président: Monsieur Dubois.

M. Dubois: Madame le président, mes arguments sont
sensiblement les mémes que ceux de M. Daudlin. J'ai assisté ce
matin 4 une séance d’organisation du Comité de la justice et
des questions juridiques, et un de nos collégues de ’Opposition
officielle a proposé sensiblement la méme motion.

On parle de la tenue des séances et des témoignages. Autant
que je sache, dans le passé, il a été trés rare que I’'on commence
une séance en 'absence de I'un des deux partis de ’opposition.
Selon la tradition parlementaire, c’est ainsi que cela fonction-
nait. Il peut arriver qu'un parti ne veuille pas se présenter. Si
certains partis ne veulent pas se présenter aux audiences d’un
Comité, ce sont eux qui en subissent les conséquences.

Je pense qu’il y a toujours moins d’effervescence aux comités
qu'a la Chambre des communes. Nous sommes beaucoup
moins nombreux et, en conséquence, nous sommes capables,
malgré les divergences d’op!™Yns, de fonctionner avec la
motion telle qu’elle est présentement. Quant on dit «deux
membres du Parti libéral», cela inclut le président. Je ne pense
pas que l'on doive priver des témoins de la possibilité de
s’exprimer si 'Opposition officielle n’y est pas, comme le
propose mon collégue.

Pour ce qui est de la tenue des séances, c’est la méme chose.
Je pense que lorsqu'un comité est appelé a discuter d’un projet
de loi, il faut que les choses se fassent. Il y a toujours d’autres
procédures qui peuvent étre entreprises 4 une autre étape, a la
Chambre des communes, que ce soit en deuxiéme ou en
troisieme lecture. Le nombre réduit de membres permet
justement de discuter encore plus que dans le passé.

[Traduction]

M. Schellenberger: J'aimerais proposer un amendement
visant 4 ajouter le mot «officielle» dans la derniére phrase,
entre les mots «opposition» et «soient».

Le président: Monsieur Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: La encore, madame le président, j'invoquerai le
fonctionnement traditionnel de cette formule. Je tiens tout
simplement a souligner pourquoi j’appuie la motion telle que je
I'ai formulée. J'aimerais dire 4 tous les membres ici présents
qu'aucune décision ne sera prise par le Comité en I'absence
d’un quorum votant. Par conséquent, il me semble que cela ne
pourrait porter atteinte 4 aucun des partis. Notre objectif, en
fait, c’est de faciliter la tAche aux témoins en leur garantissant
qu’ils pourront étre entendus si trois députés au moins sont
présents; en effet, il faut éviter que des particuliers ou des
groupes, qui ont pris la peine de se déranger, ne puissent pas
étre entendus parce qu’un parti n’est pas représenté.

En conséquence, je propose que la motion reste telle quelle.
Mon collégue se demande pourquoi la motion prévoit la
présence de deux membres de la majorité; mais cela est
inévitable, puisqu’il s’agit du président et d’un représentant de
la majorité et de I’opposition.

The Chairman: Mr. Dubois.

Mr. Dubois: Madam Chairman, my arguments are pretty
much the same as Mr. Daudlin’s. This morning, I attended an
organization meeting of the Standing Committee on Justice
and Legal Affairs, and one of my colleagues of the Official
Opposition moved exactly the same motion.

We are talking about holding meetings and hearing
witnesses. As far as I know, in the past, we very seldom started
a meeting in the absence of one of the two opposition parties.
According to parliamentary tradition, that is how we worked.
It may happen that one party does not want to be represented,
but in that case, this party has to take its responsibilities and
assume the consequences of such a decision.

In my opinion, there is usually less excitement in committees
than in the House of Commons. The number of members of
Parliament is much lower and, consequently, we are able,
despite our different opinions, to work according to the motion
as it is. When it says “two members of the Liberal Party”, that
includes the chairman. We should not deny the witnesses the
opportunity to be heard if the Official Opposition is not
present, as it was proposed by my colleague.

As far as meetings are concerned, it is the same thing. In my
opinion, when a committee is requested to discuss a bill, this
has to be done. Other procedures can always be undertaken at
another stage, at the House of Commons, whether it is in
second or third reading. The reduced number of members
makes it easier, than in the past, to discuss that kind of thing.
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Pour ces raisons, j'appuierai la motion telle qu’elle est a
I’heure actuelle et non pas la motion de M. Schellenberger.

Le président: Merci. Monsieur Mayer.
Mr. Mayer: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

With regard to the point of the member from Essex—Kent
and Mr. Dubois, I guess if you are looking at past perform-
ance, you cannot but observe that we have been held up in the
past from hearing evidence and we have kept witnesses waiting
because there were no government people here.

That has been the experience in the past as far as my
recollection of how this committee proceeds. I wonder if I
could, Madam Chairman through you, ask the member from
Essex—Kent whether he would be prepared, since he is not
concerned about whether it is the Official Opposition or simply
the opposition, but what he is concerned about is that there be
members here, so that we do not keep witnesses waiting,
whether he would be in favour of simply saying that three
members be present, so that if in fact it happens again, as has
in the past, that there is no government member here other
than the chairman, that we could go ahead and hear witnesses.
If I take his point, that is really what he is concerned about. If
he is concerned about it and is sincere in the point he makes,
then I wonder whether he would be prepared to accept an
amendment that simply says that the committee can, for the
purposes of hearing evidence, proceed when there are three
members of the committee here. That is in effect what this
says if you strip away the two members from the government
party.

Mr. Schellenberger: I would agree to withdraw my amend-
ment, if that would be acceptable.

Mr. Mayer: 1 would like to have his comment on that
because really you cannot have it both ways. If you want to
have a minimum situation in terms of hearing evidence so that
we do not keep witnesses waiting; if that is your main concern
and you are not concerned about the Official Opposition, but
you are simply concerned about the opposition, let us really get
to the point of simply saying that we will hear evidence if there
are three members present, period.

155>

Le président: Merci, monsieur Mayer.
Monsieur Althouse.

Mr. Althouse: I would await the response, if that is the
preference.

Le président: Trés bien, merci, monsieur Althouse.
Monsieur Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: Thank you Madam Chairman, and thank you,
Mr. Althouse.

I think I can be very brief in that response. I think Mr.
Mayer takes the logic of my statement beyond where in fact it
need go.

[Translation)

For all these reasons, I will support the motion as it is, and
not Mr. Schellenberger’s motion.

The Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Mayer.
M. Mayer: Merci, madame le président.

En réponse aux arguments avancés par le député d’Essex—
Kent et par M. Dubois, je voudrais vous dire que, étant donné
notre expérience passée, force nous est de constater qu’il est
arrivé plusieurs fois que nous ne puissions pas entendre les
témoins parce que les représentants de la majorité n’étaient
pas la.

Je me souviens parfaitement de cas précis en ce qui concerne
les délibérations de ce Comité. J'aimerais donc, par votre
entremise, madame le président, demander au député
d’Essex—Kent de se préoccuper, non pas de la présence d’un
représentant de 1’Opposition officielle, ou simplement de
I’opposition, mais plutdt de la présence d’'un nombre suffisant
de membres de ce Comité, afin que nous n’obligions pas les
témoins 4 attendre pour rien. Donc, serait-il prét a accepter
que le texte de la motion exige simplement la présence de trois
membres du Comité, de sorte que s’il arrive, comme dans le
passé, qu’aucun membre de la majorité ne se présente en plus
du président, nous puissions quand méme entendre les
témoins? Si j’ai bien compris son argument, c’est ce qui
I’intéresse avant tout. S’il est vraiment sincére, il devrait
accepter ce que je lui propose, c’est-a-dire un amendement
stipulant que le Comité peut entendre des témoins pourvu que
trois membres du Comité soient présents. Ainsi, la présence de
deux membres de la majorité ne serait plus indispensable.

M. Schellenberger: Avec votre permission, je suis prét a
retirer mon amendement.

M. Mayer: J’aimerais savoir ce qu’il en pense, car il faut
faire la part des choses, on ne peut pas tout avoir. Si vous
voulez réduire au minimum le quorum nécessaire a ’audition
des témoins, pour éviter que nous ne les fassions attendre pour
rien, vous devez accepter cet amendement. Si c’est vraiment 1a
votre principal souci, et que c’est la présence d’'un membre de
I'opposition, plutdt que d’'un membre de I’Opposition officielle,
qui vous intéresse, allons jusqu’au bout en affirmant tout
simplement que nous pouvons entendre des témoins en
présence de trois députés, un point c’est tout.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
Mr. Althouse.

M. Althouse: Je préférerais attendre la réponse qui va €tre
donnée.

The Chairman: Very well, thank you, Mr. Althouse.
Mr. Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: Merci, madame le président, et merci aussi a
vous, monsieur Althouse.

Je serai trés bref. A mon avis, M. Mayer va beaucoup trop
loin avec mon argument.
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As I indicated to Mr. Schellenberger through you, Madam
Chairman, it seems to me that in fact the requirement that
there be two government members is a re-statement of the fact
that for us to hold legitimate hearing there has to be a
chairman in place, the chairman in fact being from the
government party—it seems to me that is reflected in putting
one person in the chair from the government party—and that
in fact we ensure that there would be a government member at
the table and an opposition member at the table, as a mere
balance and a bare minimum for starting the hearing.

I think what I am assuring is that in fact both sides of the
House and the chair be occupied in order that we proceed. I
am not suggesting that in fact a bare minimum from any side
of the House would be adequate and I do not think it would be
responsible on my part to suggest that three Liberal members’
being here would be adequate to hear any witness any more
than I am sure Mr. Mayer would be suggesting that three
Conservative or three NDP members being here would be
adequate.

I think we assure that we have some fairness and some
balance by having representations from both sides of the
House, while at the same time not tying ourselves to the
strictness of the Official Opposition versus the opposition
versus the government benches by suggesting that in fact all
must be present.

That is the logic of my statement. That is, I believe, a fair
and legitimate logic and that is from whence I come.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Daudlin.
Monsieur Althouse.

But Mr. Mayer would like to add something.
Mr. Althouse.

Mr. Althouse: It seems to me, through the experience that
we have had in the last three and a half years or so in this
committee, when we get to the point of holding meetings with
only authority to receive testimony that the few times we have
not been able to have meetings, have tended to be times when
we were short of government members, so it seems to me that
it really does not make too much difference whether we put
numbers to how many are available from either side; I think it
is probably adequate and suitable that we say something quite
general and simply word the motion to the effect that when a
quorum is not present—and this is quite flexible . . . members
of both the government party and of the opposition are to be
present. If we wish to put a minimum amount, that is fine, but
I think as long as there are members from both sides, we would
assume that someone would take the chair. We would assume
that the chairman or vice-chairman would be there to do that.
It is my responsibility as one of the parties in the opposition to
have a representative here. I assume the attitude taken by both
the Official Opposition and by the governing party would be
that if they thought the witnesses or the testimony was
important, they would make it a point of being there to hear
the testimony and to question the witnesses.

For that reason I think all the members on the committee
would make it a point to arrive at the committee. I think it

[Traduction]

Comme je I’ai dit & M. Schellenberger, par votre entremise,
madame le président, en exigeant que deux membres de la
majorité soient présents pour la tenue d’une réunion, on
reconnait que la présence du président est absolument
indispensable et que celui-ci fait automatiquement partie de la
majorité. Par conséquent, avec la motion, nous garantissons
qu’en plus du président, nous aurons un membre de la majorité
et un membre de I’opposition, pour faire équilibre, et c’est 1a le
strict minimum pour commencer la réunion.

Je cherche donc tout simplement & m’assurer que, pour
commencer une réunion, la table de I'opposition, celle de la
majorité et le fauteuil du président seront occupés. Je ne veux
certainement pas dire que la présence du minimum requis de
députés de 'opposition et de la majorité serait adéquate, et il
serait tout a fait irresponsable de ma part de suggérer que la
présence de trois membres de la majorité serait adéquate pour
entendre des témoins, pas plus que M. Mayer, j’en suis sir, ne
prétend que la présence de trois conservateurs ou de trois NPD
serait adéquate.

Nous devons nous assurer que la majorité et 'opposition
sont représentées de fagon équitable et équilibrée, sans pour
autant nous assujettir 4 des conditions trop strictes en ce qui
concerne la représentation de I’Opposition officielle par
rapport 4 'opposition tout court et par rapport aussi a la
majorité.

Voila donc mon raisonnement. A mon avis, il est tout a fait
légitime et logique.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Daudlin.
Mr. Althouse.

M. Mayer a quelque chose a ajouter.
Monsieur Althouse.

M. Althouse: Si je me souviens bien, lorsque nous n’avons
pas pu commencer une réunion, au cours des trois ou quatre
derniéres années, c’était souvent parce qu’il n’y avait pas assez
de membres de la majorité présents; par conséquent, il ne sert
pas a grand-chose, & mon avis, de fixer un nombre précis aux
représentants de l’opposition et de la majorité; on pourrait
certainement libeller la motion de fagon générale, mais
néanmoins adéquate, en stipulant qu’en ’absence de quorum,
et ce quorum devra rester trés souple, il faudra que la majorité
et 'opposition soient représentées. Si nous voulons fixer un
nombre minimum, parfait, mais du moment que I’opposition et
la majorité sont représentées, nous pouvons en déduire que le
fauteuil du président est occupé, par celui-ci ou par le vice-
président. En tant que représentant d’un parti de I'opposition,
je suis responsable de veiller & ce qu’'un membre de mon parti
assiste 4 la réunion. Si j’ai bien compris les arguments des
députés de I'Opposition officielle et de la majorité, s’ils
estiment que les témoins valent la peine qu’on se dérange, ils se
dérangeront.

Pour cette raison, j'estime que tous les membres du Comité
devraient s’efforcer d’assister aux réunions du Comité.
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would be adequate to simply make certain that there were
representatives from both sides of the House at the meeting.

We have already assured that those meetings be moderately
well publicized and that if there is a reason why one of the
parties cannot attend, I would hope we would try to make
arrangements in the sub-committee on agenda for the meeting
to be cancelled prior to its being initiated.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Althouse.

Monsieur Mayer.
® 1600

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, it is an interesting response
we have had from the member from Essex—Kent, because just
prior to the week that we adjourned, if I remember correctly,
we sat and waited for approximately half an hour before a
government member showed up. If we are looking at past
practices and if we are looking at doing something about
setting the rules of this committee in such a way that we can
hear evidence without causing undue waiting for witnesses who
travel here taking a great deal of their own personal time, and
in many cases their own expense, I do not see anything wrong
with having a situation where we can, in fact, hear evidence
without worrying about somebody from the government side, if
the government side is not prepared to see that there is
somebody here from the Official Opposition. I think you will
find, if you check into the way the House of Commons
operates, that the Official Opposition is accorded some special
recognition simply by reason of the fact that they are called
the Official Opposition. That is all we are asking for in terms
of this committee.

I find it rather strange that the government again shows a
willingness to stack the deck in its own favour, when the past
record is looked at; in fact, they have not lived up to some of
the things that were talked about when we went to the
experimental rules and to the smaller committee size. I can
give you some examples, if you want to get into it.

I would strongly urge the government members, in terms of
seeing that you have a healthy relationship as far as this
committee is concerned . . . If you look at past performance, as
the member from Essex-Kent pointed out when he initially
responded to my colleague from Wetaskiwin—he talked about
the past performance of this committee and how it has worked
and how well it has worked—if he looks at that and looks at
the attendance of the Official Opposition, he is going to find
that that has not been a problem as far as... witnesses
without a quorum is concerned.

I would strongly urge the government members to recon-
sider their opposition to this amendment and, in fact, to go for
it, because I think it would do a lot towards establishing some
goodwill on this committee. Let me tell you exactly what my
attitude would be—and I think that of all members would be
the same, regardless of what side you come from—that is, that
if we are forced in the future to wait for long periods of time
for government members to show up, that is not going to sit

[Translation]

Toutefois, en ce qui concerne la motion, il suffirait, 4 mon avis,
de s’assurer que la majorité et I'opposition sont représentées.

Nous nous sommes déja dotés de procédures adéquates en
matiére de convocation a ces réunions, de sorte que si I'un des
partis ne peut pas y envoyer de représentant, il s’efforcera de
régler le probléme au sein du Sous-comité du programme et de
la procédure pour que la réunion soit annulée suffisamment a
’avance.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Althouse.
Mr. Mayer.

M. Mayer: Madame le président, la réponse qu’a donnée le
député d’Essex—Kent est fort intéressante: en effet, juste
avant l’ajournement, je crois me rappeler que nous avons
attendu environ une demi-heure avant qu’un représentant du
gouvernement daigne se présenter. Si nous sommes a revoir ce
qui s’est fait par le passé et si nous devons établir les régles du
Comité de fagon que nous puissions, sans les faire attendre
indiment, entendre des témoins qui voyagent a leurs propres
frais et dont le temps est également précieux, je ne vois pas
pourquoi on ne pourrait pas commencer la séance sans
s’inquiéter de la présence ou de I'absence de représentants du
gouvernement—si ceux-ci ne sont pas disposés a s’assurer de la
présence d’un représentant de 1'Opposition officielle. Si vous
vouliez revoir les procédures de la Chambre des communes,
vous constateriez que 1’'on accorde a I’Opposition officielle une
reconnaissance spéciale, justement parce qu’il s’agit de
I’Opposition officielle. Nous ne faisons que demander la méme
chose pour notre Comité.

A regarder ce qui s’est fait par le passé, je trouve curieux
que le gouvernement soit prét a piper les dés en sa faveur; en
fait, le gouvernement n’a méme pas respecté certains des
objectifs qui avaient été établis lorsque nous avons adopté le
nouveau Réglement i titre d’essai et que nous avons décidé de
réduire la taille des comités. Si vous le voulez, je peux vous
citer des exemples.

Jexhorterais les représentants du gouvernement, dans la
mesure ou ils désirent que le climat du Comité soit sain ... Le
député d’Essex—Kent a répondu a mon collégue de Wetaski-
win en parlant du dossier du Comité et des bons résultats
obtenus. Si l'on regarde justement ce dossier et que l'on
examine la feuille de présence de I'Opposition officielle, on
constatera que ce n’est jamais cette derniére qui a obligé le
Comité a renvoyer des témoins parce qu’il n'y avait pas
quorum.

Jexhorte donc les députés gouvernementaux a revenir sur
leur décision de s’opposer 4 I'amendement, parce que cela
permettrait d’établir un climat de bonne volonté au sein du
Comité. Je voudrais vous expliquer mon point de vue, point de
vue que partagent, j’imagine, les autres membres du Comité,
quel que soit le parti auquel ils appartiennent: si nous devons
étre obligés d’attendre longuement qu’un député gouvernemen-
tal daigne se présenter, cela n’arrangera pas la situation en
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very well in terms of witnesses. You may find a situation where
we are not inclined to give the government members the
benefit of the doubt, saying: Look, we all know that it is busy;
it is hard to get away from your office; things come up; there
are demands on your time that you cannot anticipate. We all
know that. If you are not willing to do us the courtesy of
recognizing that the Official Opposition has something a little
extra than a third party in the House, I think you are going to
find that there is going to be less willingness on behalf of the
Official Opposition—which is what we are on this side—to see
that there is some turnabout when it comes time, and there
will come a time, to see that that kind of thing is considered
from our side as far as the government side is concerned.

I would strongly urge you to accept the amendment of my
colleague from Wetaskiwin. It does really nothing in terms of
the way the committee will function, except that it will
indicate, at least as far as I am concerned, an attitude that
shows that the government is willing to co-operate with the
Official Opposition as far as the structuring of this committee
is concerned.

Le président: Un instant, s’il vous plait.

Il y a un dernier intervenant qui a donné son nom, soit M.
Neil. J’aimerais toutefois dire que la question qui se pose . . .

Mr. Neil: No I am prepared to have the question put.

Le président: Donc, la question est posée.

Désirez-vous un vote enregistré sur cette question?

Mr. Neil: The question on the amendement.

Le président: Trés bien.

Alors, quels sont ceux qui sont en faveur de I'amendement
proposé par M. Schellenberger?

Maintenant, quels sont ceux qui sont contre?
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L’amendement est rejeté par 9 voix contre 5.
Mr. Neil: Madam Chairman?
Le président: Monsieur Neil.

Mr. Neil: I would like to propose an amendment. You know
that what we are dealing with here is a situation of accom-
modating witnesses. No votes can be taken and the comments
of the member from Essex to the effect . . . well, it could meet
without a chairman or a vice-chairman, but where you do not
have a quorum, you certainly could not meet, unless either one
of those parties were there; you would have to elect somebody
to replace one of them.

I would like to move an amendment to the effect that the
chairman be authorized to hold meetings to receive and to
authorize the printing of evidence when a quorum is not
present, provided that three members of the committee are
present. This does not put any obstacles in the way of the
government because there are no votes possible. It is simply an
accommodation of the witnesses.

L’amendement est rejeté par 8 voix contre 6.

[Traduction]

terme de témoins. Peut-étre serons-nous de moins en moins
enclins 4 donner aux députés du gouvernement le bénéfice du
doute et de les excuser a cause des nombreux travaux qui les
retiennent 4 leurs bureaux et des imprévus qui réclament tout
leur temps. Nous savons que cela peut arriver. Mais si vous
n’étes pas préts a reconnaitre courtoisement que I’Opposition
officielle a un statut un peu plus particulier qu'un tiers parti a
la Chambre, vous constaterez de votre part que I’Opposition
officielle, puisque C’est 1a notre titre, sera beaucoup moins
encline 4 faire volte-face le moment voulu; ce sera a vous,
membres du gouvernement, a regarder les choses de notre
point de vue a nous.

Je vous invite donc encore une fois instamment a accepter
I’amendement présenté par mon collégue de Wetaskiwin. Cela
ne change rien au fonctionnement du Comité, sauf que cela
montrerait, & mon point de vue, que le gouvernement est
d’accord pour collaborer avec 1'Opposition officielle dans la
mise sur pied du Comité.

The Chairman: One moment, please.

I have the name of the last intervener, Mr. Neil. [ would like
to add that the matter raised . . .

M. Neil: Non, je suis prét 4 mettre la question aux voix.
The Chairman: Then the question is put.

Should the vote be recorded?

M. Neil: «La mise aux voix de 'amendement».

The Chairman: Very well.

Then, who are those in favour of Mr. Schellenberger’s
amendment?

Now, who are those who are against?

The amendment is lost by nine Votes to five.
M. Neil: Madame le président?
The Chairman: Mr. Neil.

M. Neil: J’aimerais proposer un amendement. Ce que nous
tentons de faire ici, c’est d’aider les témoins. Il ne s’agit pas de
passer quoi que ce soit aux voix. Ce qu’a dit le député d’Essex
au sujet de . .. Le Comité pourrait sans doute se réunir sans la
présence d’un président ou d’un vice-président, mais s’il n’y a
pas quorum, il lui serait impossible de commencer ses délibéra-
tions, @ moins qu’il y ait des représentants de I'un ou l'autre
des partis, ce qui permettrait de faire élire un nouveau
président ou vice-président.

Je voudrais proposer 'amendement suivant: que le président
soit autorisé a tenir des séances, a recevoir des témoignages et
a en autoriser 'impression a défaut de quorum, pourvu que
trois membres du Comité soient présents. Cela ne devrait
porter aucun préjudice au gouvernement, puisqu’il ne s’agit
pas de voter sur quoi que ce soit. Il s’agit simplement d’aider
les témoins.

The amendment is lost by eight votes to six.
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Le président: Je demande le vote sur la motion principale. Je
la relis:

Que le président soit autorisé a tenir des séances, a recevoir
des témoignages et a en autoriser I'impression a défaut de
quorum, pourvu que deux membres du Parti libéral et un
membre de I'opposition soient présents.

La motion est adoptée par 7 voix contre 6.

Le président: La cinquiéme motion concerne les régles de
fonctionnement du Comité durant la période de questions des
témoins. Monsieur Dion.

M. Dion: Je propose que . . .

Le président: Je vous rappelle que ce sont des régles qui
avaient été fixées 4 la demande de M. Schellenberger lors
d’une réunion antérieure.

Monsieur Schellenberger.

Mr. Schellenberger: That is not entirely the way I had it
worded. It is very close. It is one P.C., one N.D.P., one Liberal,
one P.C., one Liberal, one P.C., one Liberal, then the N.D.P.
Then you start over again. That way you do not get two people
in a row. It does not matter, if you want two Liberals in a row;
but it would seem in that way that there is some movement
across the table.

Le président: Je prends note de votre commentaire, mon-
sieur Schellenberger, mais si . . .

Monsieur Dubois.

M. Dubois: Madame le président, j’ai suivi les audiences du
Comité sur certains projets de loi, et il me semble que c’était
un représentant du Parti progressiste-conservateur, un néo-
démocrate et un libéral, et ensuite un conservateur, un libéral
et un néo-démocrate. On alternait de cette fagon. Il me semble
que c’est ce qui s’est toujours fait. Qu'il y ait deux libéraux au
deuxi¢me ou au troisiéme tour, cela ne me dérange absolument
pas. On devrait tout simplement faire la rotation.
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On sait que le Nouveau parti démocratique a deux mem-
bres; ils peuvent étre quatre avec les substituts. A ce moment-
14, vous pouvez commencer par les conservateurs, et ensuite
passer aux néo-démocrates et aux libéraux, pour ensuite faire
le méme tour. A un moment donné, faute de combattants au
niveau du N.P.D,, ce sera aux conservateurs et aux libéraux
jusqu'd la fin de la bataille. Enfin, quand il n’y a pas de
bataille, il n’y a pas de probléme.

Le président: Monsieur Dubois, avant de donner la parole &
M. Schellenberger, je vous rappelle que cette régle faisait suite
a une demande de M. Schellenberger sur le fonctionnement
méme du Comité. On en a discuté au Sous-comité de ’ordre
du jour et de la procédure, et nous en sommes venus i cette
proposition qui a été acceptée par les trois partis. Ce rapport a
¢té présenté au Comité et accepté par le Comité permanent de

[Translation)

The Chairman: I am now putting the question on the main
motion which reads this way:

That the Chairman be authorized to hold meetings to
receive and to authorize the printing of evidence when a
quorum is not present, provided that two members of the
Liberal party and one member of the Opposition are
present.

The motion is carried by seven votes against six.

The Chairman: The fifth motion concerns the way the
committee will proceed during the questioning of witnesses.
Mr. Dion.

Mr. Dion: I move that . . .

The Chairman: 1 remind you that the rules have been
established at Mr. Schellenberger’s request at a previous
meeting.

Mr. Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Ma motion n’était pas tout a fait libellée
de cette fagcon, méme s’il y a trés peu de différence. On accorde
la parole & un conservateur, un néo-démocrate, un libéral, un
conservateur, un libéral, un conservateur, un libéral, puis un
néo-démocrate, et on recommence le tout. De cette fagon, deux
députés d’'un méme parti ne peuvent prendre la parole I'un a la
suite de 'autre. En fait, cela ne me fait rien que I'on décréte
que deux libéraux peuvent parler 'un aprés Iautre; mais il me
semble que ma proposition permet de passer d’un coté de la
table a I'autre.

The Chairman: Mr. Schellenberger, I note your comments,
butit...

Mr. Dubois.

Mr. Dubois: Madam Chairman, I followed the committee’s
meetings on certain bills, and I seem to recall that it was one
P.C., one NDP, one Liberal, then one P.C., one Liberal and
one NDP. It seems to me that we always alternated that way.
If there are to be two Liberals at the second or third round,
that does not disturb me at all. But there should simply be a
rotation.

The New Democratic Party sends in two members; but if
they send in four members with the substitutes, then you can
start with the Conservatives, then go to the New Democratic
Party and to the Liberals, before starting all over again. Then
at some point in time, when there are no New Democrats left,
the floor will be given to the Conservatives and to the Liberals
until there are no more questioners. When there is no fight,
there is no problem.

The Chairman: Mr. Dubois, before giving the floor to Mr.
Schellenberger, I would remind you that the rule followed a
request by Mr. Schellenberger on the committee’s operations.
The matter was discussed at the Sub-committee on Agenda
and Procedure, after which the proposal was accepted by all
three parties. The report was submitted to the committee and
agreed to by the Steering Committee on Agriculture, on
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I'agriculture mardi le 29 novembre 1983. Ce sont les régles qui
s’appliquent depuis cette date-1a.

Mr. Dubois: If Mr. Schellenberger wants to move this
motion as it is, I will accept very carefully his motion.

Mr. Schellenberger: That is not the way I had written the
motion.

Le président: D’accord, merci. Vous avez un commentaire,
monsieur Schellenberger?

Mr. Schellenberger: It is not a problem generally if we have
sufficient time. If we are using two and a half hours for a
meeting time, then I have no objection as to who is recognized,
as long as everyone is. But generally, witnesses, particularly
the minister, if we are late starting a half an hour we have only
an hour and a half to question them, then this order is
important, Madam Chairman. It is very important then
because of the need for members in the numbers that are in
the House to get their questions put to particularly the
minister when he comes so seldom.

When I wrote the notice out I had it in the way I read it, not
two Liberals in a row; that is one PC, one Liberal, one PC, one
Liberal, then the additional NDP, and then the starting over
again of the rotation, as is the practice in the House of
Commons. If it is the practice in the House, perhaps it ought
to be the practice in this committee. If we have lots of time, I
have no objection if the Chair uses her discretion, but if we are
in a period of time when a witness has to leave quickly for
some reason or another, then this order is significant. That is
the only reason that I propose it.

Le président: J'accepte les commentaires qui ont été faits
par tous les intervenants sur la question. Les membres du
Comité sont-ils tous d’accord sur cette motion concernant le
fonctionnement du Comité?

Mr. Dubois: Can we amend the number of two for one?

The Chairman: No.
Mr. Schellenberger: Yes, I wish to do that.
Mr. Dubois: Make the motion, Stan.

Mr. Schellenberger: Okay. I move an amendment that the
term “two Liberals” be changed to say: one Liberal, one PC,
one Liberal. That is in lines 5 and 6.

Le président: Si je comprends bien, dés que les deux
représentants du Nouveau parti démocratique ont eu I’occasion
de poser leurs questions, on alterne par la suite entre le parti de
I’Opposition officielle et les libéraux.

[Traduction]

Tuesday November 29, 1983. These are the rules that apply as
of that date.

M. Dubois: Si M. Schellenberger est prét a proposer la
motion telle qu’elle est libellée, je I'appuierai aprés mire
réflexion.

M. Schellenberger: Mais je ne I’avais pas libellée ainsi.

The Chairman: Very well, thank you. Mr. Schellenberger,
do you have a comment?

M. Schellenberger: Cela ne pose aucun probléme si nous
avons suffisamment de temps devant nous. Si les réunions
durent deux heures et demie, je n’ai dans ce cas aucune
objection 4 ce que l'on céde la parole & qui 'on voudra, du
moment que chacun puisse intervenir. Mais lorsque nous
recevons des témoins, en particulier des ministres, et que nous
commengons une demi-heure en retard, il ne nous reste qu’une
heure et demie pour les interroger, ce qui donne a l'ordre de
préséance une certaine importance, madame le président. En
effet, I'ordre choisi prend beaucoup d’importance, puisque les
députés, si nombreux en Chambre, doivent pouvoir poser leurs
questions aux témoins, et en particulier aux ministres qui
comparaissent si rarement.

Lorsque j’ai rédigé ma motion, I'ordre était tel que je vous
I’ai lu et ne permettait pas a deux libéraux de prendre la parole
'un aprés autre; il s’agissait d’'un conservateur, d’un libéral,
d’un conservateur, d’un libéral, puis d’'un néo-démocrate, avant
de reprendre le méme tour de piste, comme on le fait a la
Chambre des communes. Si on le fait la-bas, peut-étre
devrions-nous le faire au Comité. Par contre, si nous avons
beaucoup de temps a notre disposition, je n’ai aucune objection
a ce que le président use de son pouvoir discrétionnaire.
Cependant, si un témoin doit quitter le Comité rapidement
pour une raison ou une autre, je répéte que I’ordre choisi prend
toute son importance. C’est la raison pour laquelle j’ai proposé
ma motion.

The Chairman: I accept the comments that were made by all
intervenors on the matter. Do the members of the committee
all agree on this motion concerning the committee’s opera-
tions?

M. Dubois: Pouvons-nous modifier le chiffre et passer de
deux a un?

Le président: Non.
M. Schellenberger: Si, justement, c’est ce que je voudrais.

M. Dubois: Dans ce cas, présentez la motion, monsieur
Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Trés bien. Je propose de modifier les
lignes 5 et 6 et de remplacer I'expression «deux libéraux» par la
suite: «un libéral, un conservateur, un libéral».

The Chairman: If I understand you correctly, as soon as the
two New Democrats have put their questions, we alternate
between the Official Opposition and the Liberals.
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D’accord? Alors la motion est amendée pour que ce soit un
représentant du Parti conservateur, un représentant du Parti
libéral, et on alterne par la suite.

Une voix: Aprés le premier tour.

Le président: C’est cela. C’est-a-dire que c’est toujours le
premier tour, parce que chacun n’a eu I’occasion que de parler
une fois. D’accord. On a deux représentants du Parti libéral,
un représentant du Parti conservateur, un représentant du
Nouveau parti démocratique, et & partir de ce moment-la, on
alterne entre représentants libéraux . . .

Mr. Schellenberger: No, no. Perhaps [ might move my . ..

Le président: Alors, je pense qu’il faudrait comprendre de
quelle ligne on parle.

L’ordre serait: un représentant du Parti conservateur, un
représentant du Nouveau parti démocratique et un représen-
tant du Parti libéral. On reprend: un représentant du Parti
conservateur . ..

Mr. Schellenberger: One Liberal, one PC, one Liberal,
then ...

Le président: Un libéral, un représentant du Parti conserva-
teur, un représentant du Nouveau parti démocratique, et on
continue.

M. Daudlin: Entre les deux, un libéral.
Le président: C’est ce que je viens de dire.
Une voix: Non, non, pas tout 4 fait.

Le président: Alors la motion est: un représentant du Parti
conservateur, un représentant du Nouveau parti démocratique,
un représentant du Parti libéral, et ensuite on reprend avec un
représentant du Parti conservateur, un représentant du
NPIDE
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An hon. Member: One Liberal, one PC . . .

Le président: Ensuite, on revient au Parti conservateur.

An hon. Member: Then a Liberal, then the NDP.

Une voix: On change le mot «deux» pour «un» et a la ligne
suivante, c’est « un libéral» avant I’expression «N.P.D.».

Le président: Nous avons tout notre temps, monsieur Dion.

Nous devons d’abord voter sur les amendements, sur la
motion amendée.

Tout le monde est d’accord?
Vous voulez intervenir, monsieur Althouse?

Mr. Althouse: Yes. I agree with the proposal as it is
amended. Perhaps we should pass this and then discuss what I
have to raise next.

I am not certain what the procedure is for the alternates,
who usually have the right to be recognized; whether they then
get included in the second round or how we include those in. In

[Translation]

Agreed? Then the motion is amended to read, one PC, one
Liberal, then the starting over of the rotation.

An hon. Member: After the first round.

The Chairman: Yes. But it is still the first round. Since
nobody has taken the floor more than once. Agreed. It is two
Liberals, one PC, one NDP, then we start the rotation between
the Liberals . . .

M. Schellenberger: Non. Peut-étre devrais-je proposer moi-
méme. . .

The Chairman: I think we should better understand which
line we are writing.

The order would then be, one PC, one NDP, one Liberal.
Then we start again with one PC . ..

M. Schellenberger: Un libéral, un conservateur, un libéral,
puis. ..

The Chairman: One Liberal, one PC, one NDP, and so on.

Mr. Daudlin: Between the two there is one Liberal.
The Chairman: That is what I just said.
An hon. Member: No, not quite.

The Chairman: Then the motion reads: One PC, one NDP,
one Liberal, then we start again with one PC, one NDP . ..

Une voix: Un Libéral, un Conservateur. ..

The Chairman: Afterward, we shall come back to the
Conservative Party.

Une voix: Ensuite un Libéral, puis un N.P.D.

An hon. member: We put the word “two” instead of “one”
and, on the following line, we put in “a Liberal” before
“NDP”.

The Chairman: We have all our time, Mr. Dion.

We must first of all vote on the amendments, that is on the
motion as amended.

Is everybody in agreement?
Would you like to speak, Mr. Althouse?

M. Althouse: Oui. Je suis d’accord avec la propqsitior_l telle
que modifiée. Nous devrions peut-étre I'adopter puis délibérer
de la question que je dois maintenant soulever.

Je ne sais pas au juste quelle est la procédure a suivre dans
le cas des membres substituts, qui ont d’habitude le droit de
prendre la parole; j’ignore si ces derniers peuvent intervenir au
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most of the committees other than this committee, and I think
in this committee, we recognize alternates as being able to pose
questions and submit comments. We have not dealt with a
situation where alternates are present, unless we consider them
as having to be part of a second round; the first round would
be the official delegation and the second round would then
include alternates. That is how it was explained to me from the
agreement, but since it is not really clear in here, I wanted to
have it on the record that this is how it was interpreted.

The Chairman: Mr. Dubois.

Mr. Dubois: I think, Madam Chairman, there is no problem
about that, that we go with the one PC, one Liberal, one NDP,
and one Liberal, and after they have their turn—and it is
possible that the second speaker from the Conservatives—we
have regular members—Mr. Mayer, who is the official
critic—maybe it is Mr. McCain who will be speaking for the
second round; he is an alternate. So there is no problem. It is
up to their own party to decide who will be the second speaker.
Maybe it will be an alternate.

Mr. Althouse: That was my interpretation. I just wanted to
make certain it was everyone’s. Good.

Le président: Alors, sur la motion telle qu’amendée, je pose
la question. Est-ce que tous les membres du Comité sont
d’accord?

La motion est adoptée.

Le président: La sixiéme motion, proposée par M. Bocks-
tael, se lit ainsi:

Que le président ait le pouvoir d’autoriser le remboursement

des dépenses des témoins, si nécessaire, en l'absence de
quorum au Comité.

La motion est adoptée.

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, may I raise a simple point
of order? When we voted on the amendment that Mr. Neil
moved, and I believe Mr. Schellenberger moved, did I hear the
clerk say the vote was lost six to eight?

The Chairman: Yes.
Le président: Nous avons perdu un votant en cours de route.

Mr. Mayer: We have gained a voter somewhere along the
way. Only 14 people here can vote, because the NDP only has
1, so unless the chairman voted, there can only be 13 votes.

Le président: Je m’excuse! Il semblerait que sur le vote
précédent, nous avions commis une erreur en inscrivant huit au
lieu de sept. Nous en sommes toujours a sept voix contre six,
sauf le premier ol le résultat était cing, M. Althouse ayant
voté avec le gouvernement.

[Traduction)

second tour, ou comment nous pouvons les faire participer.
Cela dit, a la plupart des autres comités, et je crois méme au
sein du ndtre, nous reconnaissons le droit aux membres
substituts de poser des questions et de faire des observations.
Cependant, nous n’avons jamais eu de substituts ici présents, a
moins que ce ne soit comme intervenants a un second tour.
Dans un tel cas, au premier tour la parole est accordée aux
membres permanents alors qu’au second, on laisse intervenir et
les permanents et les substituts. C’est tout au moins comment
on m’a expliqué la chose d’aprés I'entente a4 laquelle nous
étions parvenus, mais étant donné que tout n’est pas vraiment
clair je tenais 4 vous en parler afin qu’on sache comment la
chose a été interprétée.

Le président: Monsieur Dubois.

M. Dubois: Madame le président, je crois qu’il n’y a pas de
probléme a cet égard, c’est-a-dire qu’on accorde la parole a un
Conservateur, a un Libéral, 4 un N.P.D. puis 4 un Libéral
pour ensuite donner a chacun son tour, sans nécessairement
alterner d’un parti 4 l'autre. Ainsi, M. Mayer, qui est le
critique officiel peut intervenir ou M. McBain, qui est
substitut, au second tour. Il n’y a donc pas de probléme. C’est
au parti de décider qui interviendra en deuxiéme lieu, un

membre permanent ou un substitut.

M. Althouse: C’était mon interprétation de la chose. Je
voulais simplement vérifier si c’était aussi celle de tout le
monde. C’est bien.

The Chairman: Then, about the motion as amended, I would
like to ask if all the members of the committee are in agree-
ment.

The motion is carried.

The Chairman: The sixth motion, submitted by Mr.
Bockstael is the following:

That the chairman be empowered to authorize the reim-
bursement of the witnesses’ expenses, if necessary, in the
absence of a quorum in the committee.

The motion is carried.

M. Mayer: Madame le président, si vous permettez,
j'aimerais invoquer le Réglement. Lorsque nous avons voté au
sujet de la modification proposée par M. Neil ainsi que par M.
Schellenberger aussi, le greffier a-t-il dit que la proposition a
€té renversée par huit voix contre et six voix pour?

Le président: Oui.
The Chairman: We have lost a voter on the way.

M. Mayer: Nous avons gagné une voix de plus en cours de
route. Il n’y a que 14 personnes qui ont le droit de vote ici, et le
N.P.D. ne dispose que d’une voix, en conséquence, & moins que
le président n’ait voté, il ne peut y avoir que 13 voix d’expri-
mées.

The Chairman: Excuse me! We seem to have made a
mistake during the preceding vote, in that we indicated eight
votes instead of seven. We are then seven votes cast against six,
except in the first case where the result was five, since Mr.
Althouse voted with the government side.
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Je vous remercie de me I'avoir signalée. Je m’excuse de
I'erreur.

Mr. Mayer: Thank you very much.

Le président: Les motions ayant trait au fonctionnement du
Comité ayant maintenant été adoptées, nous en sommes aux
ordres de renvoi qui ont été soumis au Comité.

Vous avez regu la liste de ces documents en février 1983. Un
certain nombre de dossiers ou plutdt de rapports ont été vus.
J'ignore comment vous voulez disposer des ordres de renvoi qui
sont devant le Comité.
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Monsieur Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: Madam Chairman, so that we might have
some order, I wonder if we might suggest that this list be
referred to the steering committee for a proposal to the full
committee for the order of hearing of all or a portion of those
items that have been referred to us for consideration.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Daudlin.

Vu que tous les membres sont d’accord avec la proposition
de M. Daudlin, les ordres de renvoi seront imprimés a la
prochaine réunion du Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure.

Une voix: Voila!

M. Dion: Madame le président, quelqu’un a-t-il proposé une
motion ayant trait au pouvoir d’autoriser les remboursements?

Le président: Oui, c’est M. Bockstael.

M. Dion: Ah, M. Bockstael. Trés bien.

Le président: Aucune autre affaire n’étant . . .
Oui, monsieur Hargrave.

Mr. Hargrave: Madam Chairman, are we to other business
yet?

Le président: Nous en sommes aux autres affaires. Other
business, yes.

' Mr. nggrave: Madam Chairman, if it is in order, I would
like to raise a subject which may lead to a motion. I hope that
is in order.

May I proceed?
Le président: Certainement, monsieur Hargrave.

Mr. Hargrave: Madam Chairman and members of the
committee, I want to draw your attention to the subject of
stabilization and marketing boards in the red meats industry.
And I use that phrase very carefully because that is what a
recent report . . . perhaps loosely referred to as the Vandermu-
elen- Anderson or the Anderson-Vandermuelen Report—is all
about. It deals with stabilization and marketing boards in the
red meats industry.

[Translation)
I thank you for having pointed out this mistake to me, and I
apoligize for it.

M. Mayer: Merci beaucoup.

The Chairman: Since the motions concerning the function-
ing of the committee have been carried, we shall now proceed
to study the order of references that were sent to our commit-
tee.

You were sent the list of those documents in February,
1983. Also, a certain number of documents, or rather reports,
have been studied. I do not know how you wish to dispose of
these orders of references that are before the committee.

Mr. Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: Madame le président, pour que nous procédions
dans l'ordre, pouvons-nous demander que cette liste soit
renvoyée au Comité directeur afin qu’il décide de proposer au
comité plénier, soit d’étre saisi de la totalité des articles y
figurant ou seulement d’une partie.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Daudlin.

Since all the members of the committee agree with Mr.
Daudlin’s proposition, the orders of reference will be printed
for the next meeting of the subcommittee on agenda and
procedure.

An hon. member: That is the way!

Mr. Dion: Madam Chairman, has anyone proposed a
motion pertaining to granting the authority to reimburse
expenses?

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Bockstael has.

Mr. Dion: Oh, Mr. Bockstael. Very well.
The Chairman: Since there is nothing else . . .
Yes, Mr. Hargrave.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président, en sommes-nous déja
rendus aux autres questions?

The Chairman: We are already to other business, yes.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président, si cela vous parait
recevable, j’aimerais soulever une question qui entrainera peut-
étre la présentation d’'une résolution. Jespére qu’elle vous
paraitra recevable.

Puis-je commencer?
The Chairman: Certainly, Mr. Hargrave.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président et membres du Comité,
j’aimerais attirer votre attention sur la question de la stabilisa-
tion et des offices de commercialisation dans I'industrie de la
viande rouge. J'utilise cette expression avec grande précaution
étant donné qu’un rapport récemment publié, appelé le rapport
Vandermuelen—Anderson ou Anderson—Vandermuelen a
précisément étudié ce sujet.
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Now, I do not know whether all members of the committee
have a copy of that or not. But if you go to the right people you
can get that report. Madam Chairman, I am suggesting that
this report should be seriously considered by this Standing
Committee on Agriculture; that there should be a reference to
call before the committee the two principal authors, Sonny
Anderson and Henry Vandermuelen for a proper examination
of the report. Also the Minister of Agriculture, who authorized
it, should be asked to appear before the committee.

If it is appropriate, Madam Chairman, I will be glad to
move a motion. Presumably you may want to have the
suggestion referred to the steering committee along with the
previous suggestion, and that would be satisfactory to me. But
I want to get it on the record: It is a most important subject. I
would say that at the annual winter meetings of the livestock
sector, right across Canada, stabilization in the red meats
industry is the most current and the most important subject. It
is a very serious matter.

Le président: Oui. Monsieur Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: I think the hon. member raises a very impor-
tant issue and an issue that would concern all members of this
committee. I have some grave concerns though that the rules
that would allow us, for instance, to refer this long list of
reports to the steering committee were brought in in an effort
to assure that automatically reports tabled in the House would
in fact be the subject matter of reference to the standing
committees—in this case the Standing Committee on Agricul-
ture. This is in order that we might have a better grasp of the
issues that we are facing in the various sectors of the economy.

I did not hear Mr. Hargrave indicate that in fact the report
to which he refers has yet been tabled in the House and as a
consequence—I believe it has not been. If my belief and
assumption are correct, then obviously we do not have the
reference, and we would be put in the position of a committee’s
attempting to make a report to the House—seeking a reference
of the House that in fact has not come to us either by order or
by automatic reference. I do not know that is within the
competence of the committee so to do. I would suggest that it
might be appropriate to at least consider that technical
problem at the steering committee level, to see whether or not
it is something that in fact we can overcome.
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Further, once that issue is resolved, to determine in principle
whether or not we would want the report before us. That may
indeed be the case, but it may be something technically beyond
our competence.

Mr. Hargrave: Madam Chairman.
Le président: Monsieur Hargrave.

Mr. Hargrave: Madam Chairman, may I respond to the
member from Essex—Kent? Members of the committee
should be aware—and if they are not, I will tell them now—
that the date of that report authorized by the Minister of

[Traduction]

Jignore si tous les membres du Comité ont un exemplaire de
ce document. Toutefois, il est possible d’en obtenir un si on
s’adresse au bon endroit. Madame le président, & mon avis, le
Comité permanent de I’agriculture doit sérieusement envisager
d’étudier ce rapport; en conséquence, nous devrions disposer
d’un ordre de renvoi nous permettant de demander aux deux
principaux auteurs du document, soit MM. Sonny Anderson et
Henry Vandermuelen de témoigner devant nous afin que nous
puissions étudier les documents de fagon satisfaisante. Nous
devrions également demander au ministre de ’Agriculture, qui
a autorisé la publication du rapport a venir témoigner lui aussi.

Si cela est approprié, madame le président, je suis tout a fait
disposé 4 présenter une motion a cette fin. Il se peut que vous
veuillez renvoyer la question au Comité directeur en méme
temps que ma proposition antérieure, ce qui me satisferait.
Toutefois, je tiens & ce que mes propos soient consignés au
procés-verbal car le sujet me parait trés important. Lors des
rencontres annuelles que tient 'industrie du bétail en hiver, la
question la plus importante dont on discute et la plus actuelle
est celle de la stabilisation dans I'industrie de la viande rouge.
Il s’agit de quelque chose de trés sérieux.

The Chairman: Yes. Mr. Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: Je crois que mon distingué collégue souléve une
question trés importante et qui préoccupera sans doute tous les
membres de notre Comité. Cependant, je crains trés fort que
les réglements nous permettant de renvoyer cette longue liste
de rapports au Comité directeur, servent a faire en sorte que
les rapports déposés automatiquement a la Chambre fassent
I’objet d’ordres de renvoi auprés des comités permanents, en
I’occurrence, celui de ’Agriculture. Ce serait afin que nous
saisissions mieux les questions auxquelles nous sommes
confrontés dans divers domaines de I’économie.

Je n’ai pas entendu M. Hargrave nous dire que le rapport
auquel il faisait allusion a déja été déposé a la Chambre, j’en
conclus donc qu’il ne I’a pas encore été. Si tel est le cas, alors
nous ne disposons pas d’un ordre de renvoi & ce propos, et en
tant que Comité, nous nous mettons dans la position de
présenter un rapport a la Chambre, d’essayer d’en obtenir un
ordre de renvoi qui n’a pas encore été décidé, soit par ordon-
nance, soit par renvoi automatique. Je ne crois pas que le
Comité soit autorisé a agir ainsi. A mon avis, il convient donc
d’envisager ce probléme technique au sein du Comité directeur
afin de voir si nous pouvons le régler.

En outre, lorsqu'on aura résolu cette question, il faudra
décider si nous voulons étre saisis de ce rapport. Il se peut que
nous le voulions; mais il se peut également que cela ne reléve
pas de notre compétence.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président.
The Chairman: Mr. Hargrave.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président, puis-je répondre aux
préoccupations du député d’Essex—Kent? Les membres du
Comité doivent savoir, et s'’ils ne le savent pas je le leur dis
maintenant, que la date du rapport autorisé par le ministre de
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Agriculture—and the Minister of Agriculture’s name is on
it—is March 1982. To the best of my knowledge, that report
only became available through the Minister’s office about two
or three weeks ago.

All I can say, Madam Chairman, is that if this report is not
allowed to come before this committee, where it quite properly
belongs, it is because certain members of the committee and
others do not want it to come. That is all I will say for now.

Mr. Daudlin: Again, Madam Chairman, I am sure Mr.
Hargrave is neither seeking, nor indeed, attempting to impute
motives to anybody at the committee. I point to the technical
difficulty I raised not in order to create a road block but just to
ensure that we have the right to have it come before us and
what mechanism we would use so to do. I suppose it is open to
Mr. Hargrave and other members to be seeking of the
Minister that he, in fact, tabled the report in the House so it
would be available to this committee automatically at that
point. But I wonder whether or not we have the authority to
seek reports of which we have knowledge by whatever means
and that they be properly made references to the appropriate
committees.

That is my only question and the only reason I raise it with
you.

Mr. Hargrave: Madam Chairman, if I may on one further
comment . . .

Le président: Monsieur Hargrave, je voudrais bien apporter
un commentaire également!

Nous pourrions peut-étre demander un avis a ce sujet, a
savoir si on peut demander le dépot de ce rapport-la ou non.
Nous pourrions en discuter au Sous-comité du programme et
de la procédure par la suite.

Monsieur Hargrave.

Mr. Hargrave: Madam Chairman, I was just going to
suggest, after a conference with some of my party, that I think
it might be appropriate if I were to formally request the
Minister of Agriculture to table it, and then we will take it
from there. This I am prepared to do and as quickly as I can.

Le président: D’accord.
An hon. Member: All right.
Le président: Je vous remercie, monsieur Hargrave.

Le dernier sujet nous ayant été soumis et discuté, la séance
du Comité est maintenant levée jusqu’a la prochaine convoca-
tion de la présidence.

Je vous remercie.

[Translation]

I’Agriculture et signé de sa main, est le mois de mars 1982.
Que je sache, le bureau du ministre a seulement fait distribuer
ce rapport il y a deux ou trois semaines.

Madame le président, si on ne permet pas au Comité d’étre
saisi de ce rapport qui reléve précisément de son mandat, c’est
que certains membres du Comité ou d’autres personnes ne le
veulent pas. C’est tout ce que j’ai 4 dire pour le moment.

M. Daudlin: Madame le président, je suis convaincu que M.
Hargrave ne tente pas de préter des intentions a qui que ce
soit. J’ai soulevé cette difficulté technique non pas pour faire
obstruction, mais plutdt pour m’assurer que nous avons le droit
d’en étre saisis et pour déterminer quel moyen nous pourrions
prendre pour arriver a cette fin. Je suppose que M. Hargrave
et d’autres ont le droit de demander au ministre de nous
remettre le rapport s’il a effectivemsnt été présenté a la
Chambre; cela devrait étre automatique. Mais je me demande
ceci: avons-nous le droit de demander des rapports dont on a
eu vent de quelque fagon que ce soit et dans quelle mesure
peut-on prétendre qu’ils relévent de l'ordre de renvoi du
Comité en question.

C’est la seule question que je pose et la seule raison pour
laquelle je la pose.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président, j'aimerais faire une
autre observation . . .

The Chairman: Mr. Hargrave, I would also like to make a
comment!

We could also seek advice on this matter to determine
whether or not we can request the submission of that report.
After that, we could discuss this matter at the sub-committee
on Agenda and Procedure.

Mr. Hargrave.

M. Hargrave: Madame le président, a la suite de consulta-
tions avec les membres de mon parti, j'estime qu’il est dans
I’ordre de demander officiellement au ministre de I’Agriculture
de présenter le rapport; cela fait, nous pourrions décider quoi
faire. Je suis disposé a formuler cette demande le plus tét
possible.

The Chairman: Agreed.
Une voix: Entendu.
The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Hargrave.

As the last item on the agenda has been discussed, the
meeting is adjourned until the call of the chair.

Thank you.

Tuesday, January 31, 1984
® 1536

The Clerk of the Committee: Honourable Members, I see a
quorum. Pursuant to Standing Order 69, we have now to elect
a chairman. I will entertain motions to that effect.

Le mardi 31 janvier 1984

Le greffier du Comité: Honorables députés, je vois qu’il y a
quorum. En vertu de larticle 69 du Reéglement, il faut
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M. Dion: Je propose M™ Eva C6té a la présidence.
M. Ostiguy: Je seconde la motion.

Le greffier: M. Dion, appuyé par M. Ostiguy, propose M™
Eva Coté comme président.

Motion agreed to.
Le greffier: M™ Co6té est élue président.

Le président: Je vous remercie de la confiance que vous me
témoignez et j'espére que cette année encore, nous aurons des
débats constructifs et trés informatifs.

Malheureusement, on m’annonce que je n’aurai pas
d’augmentation de salaire. Je partagerai donc le plaisir des
séances du Comité permanent de I’agriculture au méme titre
que vous. Je vous remercie a nouveau.

Mr. Daudlin: Madam President, I think you should be very
glad that there has been no diminution in salary either.

The Chairman: I appreciate it very much.

Il reste un deuxiéme point a I'ordre du jour: I’élection du
vice-président. J'accepterai donc, avec plaisir, toute proposition
a cet effet.

M. Ostiguy: Je propose I’honorable député Bob Daudlin.

Le président: Les députés qui sont en faveur de la proposi-
tion?

Les députés qui s’y opposent?

Donc, du consentement unanime, M. Daudlin est élu vice-
président du Comité permanent de ’agriculture.

Des voix: Bravo!

Le preésident: Félicitations, monsieur Daudlin. Vous

toucherez le méme salaire que nous tous.

Jaimerais faire une petite parenthése pour vous rappeler
que le document qu'on vous distribue présentement est le
résultat des résolutions que nous avons adoptées en décembre
dernier, qui fixent les modalités de fonctionnement du Comité
permanent de Iagriculture. Il n’est pas nécessaire, a ce
moment-ci, de refaire toutes les motions qui ont été adoptées,
aprés débat, comme vous le savez, et qui seront en vigueur au
cours de la présente année.

Troisiétmement, vous aurez entre les mains les ordres de
renvoi transmis au Comité. En fait, on vous distribue présente-
ment la liste de tous les documents et rapports qui ont été
transmis 4 notre Comité et sur lesquels vous aimeriez peut-étre
formuler des commentaires ou encore transmettre des ques-
tions au Comité directeur. Le dernier rapport que nous avons
regu, c’est le rapport annuel 1982-1983 d’Agriculture Canada.
Vous I’avez regu hier.

[Traduction)

maintenant élire un président. Je suis préte a recevoir des
motions.

Mr. Dion: I move that Mrs. Eva C6té be chairman.
Mr. Ostiguy: I second the motion.

The Clerk: Mr. Dion, seconded by Mr. Ostiguy, moves that
Mrs. Eva Coté be chairman of the committee.

La motion est adoptée.
The Clerk: Mrs. C6té is elected chairman.

The Chairman: I would like to thank you for your vote of
confidence, and I hope that once again this year, we will have
constructive and informative discussions.

Unfortunately, I have been told that I will not be getting a
salary increase. I will therefore be enjoying the meetings of the
standing committee on agriculture in the same way as you. I
would like to thank you again for electing me chairman.

M. Daudlin: Je pense, madame le président, que vous
devriez étre contente qu’il n’y ait pas eu de réduction de salaire
non plus.

Le président: J’en suis trés reconnaissante.

The second item on the agenda is the election of a vice-
chairman. I will therefore be pleased to entertain motions to
that effect.

Mr. Ostiguy: I move that Mr. Bob Daudlin be vice-
chairman.

The Chairman: Are the members in favour of the motion?

Is anyone against the motion?

Mr. Daudlin is therefore unanimously elected vice-chairman
of the standing committee on agriculture.

Some Hon. Members: Bravo!

The Chairman: Congratulations, Mr. Daudlin. You will be
getting the same salary as all of us.

I would just like to remind you that the document that is
being distributed at the present time outlines the resolutions
we passed in December governing the functioning of the
committee. It is not necessary to go through all these motions,
which have been adopted following debate, as you know, and
will be in effect for the year ahead.

You will also have a copy of the Orders of Reference the
committee has received. You are in fact being given a list of all
the documents and reports that have been referred to our
committee, on which you may have some comments or
questions to pass along to the steering committee. The last
report we received is the 1982-1983 annual report of Agricul-
ture Canada. You got it yesterday.
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Est-ce que des membres du Comité auraient des commentai-
res 4 faire sur les ordres de renvoi dont nous avons maintenant
la liste?

Monsieur Daudlin.

Mr. Daudlin: Madam Chairman, in the absence of our long-
time member, Mr. Hargraves, whose riding escapes me for the
moment . . .

An hon. Member: Medicine Hat.

Mr. Daudlin: Medicine Hat. You will recall at one of the
last meetings we held that he raised the issue of the report on
red meats and that he was seeking the assistance of the
committee and the Minister and the House in terms of having
that report come before this committee. I do not see it on the
list you have had circulated to us, and I do recall that the
member did in fact raise the issue in the House with the
Minister of Agriculture, although I do not, for the moment,
recall what the response was or whether indeed there was an
undertaking to table. It seems to me that it is an important
issue and one that in fact this committee should be seized of,
and it might behoove us to ask through you to use your good
offices to consult with the Minister of Agriculture to see
whether or not that report could not be tabled in the House so
that in fact it would receive automatic reference to this
committee.

Mr. Bloomfield: Could be tabled, not ‘could not be tabled".

Mr. Daudlin: Could be tabled.

Le président: Si le Comité le désire, je pourrais certaine-
ment écrire au ministre de I’Agriculture pour lui demander de
déposer ce rapport. Pour que ce rapport puisse étre étudié par
le Comité, il doit étre déposé par le ministre 4 la Chambre des
communes et renvoyé au Comité de I’agriculture. Par ailleurs,
les prévisions budgétaires seront bientét déposées. Peut-étre
pourrions-nous attendre ce moment pour en parler au ministre.
Mais, si vous étes d’accord quant a la premiére proposition, on
pourrait demander au ministre quelles sont ses intentions au
sujet de ce rapport et lui dire que nous aimerions le voir.

D’accord? Alors, nous écrirons au ministre pour lui deman-
der de déposer ce rapport-1a 4 la Chambre pour qu’il puisse
ensuite étre renvoyé au Comité.

Y a-t-il d’autres questions qui devraient étre . . .

M. Dubois: Est-ce que vous allez en envoyer une copie & tous
les membres du Comité?

Le président: De la lettre? Mais certainement.
Monsieur Althouse.

Mr. Althouse: I have another matter that is not a report per
se. I am not sure whether you want to finish with the reports
before you go to that or whether I can raise it now.

There has been quite a lot of discussion, both in the press
and within the Department of Agriculture and amongst the
meat processing sector of our economy, having regard to the
changes that are now being proposed by the Department of

[Translation)

Do committee members have any comments to make on the
list of orders of reference?

Mr. Daudlin.

M. Daudlin: Etant donné I’absence de M. Hargrave, qui est
membre du Comité depuis trés longtemps, et dont j'oublie la
circonscription pour le moment . . .

Une voix: Medicine Hat.

M. Daudlin: Il est député de Medicine Hat. Vous vous
souviendrez que lors d’une de nos derniéres réunions, il a
soulevé la question du rapport sur les viandes rouges. Il
demandait 1’aide du Comité, du ministre et de la Chambre
pour que le rapport soit déféré au Comité. Le rapport ne figure
pas dans la liste qu’on vient de nous distribuer. Je me souviens
que le député avait posé une question au ministre de I’Agricul-
ture 4 la Chambre, mais je ne me souviens pas de la réponse du
ministre. Je ne sais pas s’il s’est engagé 4 déposer le rapport a
la Chambre. A mon avis, il s’agit d’une question importante
que le Comité devrait examiner, et il serait peut-étre bon de
demander au président de consulter le ministre de I’Agricul-
ture pour savoir si le rapport ne pourrait pas étre déposé a la
Chambre pour étre ensuite déféré automatiquement au
Comité.

M. Bloomfield: Il s’agit de savoir si le rapport pourrait étre
déposé a la Chambre.

M. Daudlin: Oui.

The Chairman: If the committee wishes, I could certainly
write to the Minister of Agriculture to ask him to table the
report. In order for the report to be studied by the committee,
it must be tabled by the Minister in the House of Commons
and referred to the standing committee on agriculture. We
should also bear in mind that the estimates will be tabled
shortly. Perhaps we could wait until that time to raise the
matter with the Minister. However, if you agree with the first
motion, we could ask the Minister what he intends to do with
the report, and tell him that we would like to study it.

Agreed? We will therefore write a letter to the Minister to
ask him to table the report in the House so that it can be
referred to the committee.

Are there any other matters which should be. ..

Mr. Dubois: Are you going to be sending a copy to all
committee members?

The Chairman: A copy of the letter? Of course.
Mr. Althouse.

M. Althouse: J’ai une autre question a soulever, mais il ne
s'agit pas d’un rapport. Je ne sais pas si vous voulez en finir
avec les rapports avant de passer a d’autres questions.

Il y a beaucoup de discussion dans les médias, au ministére
de I’ Agriculture et dans le secteur de la transformation de la
viande au sujet des changements que le ministére propose
d’apporter aux inspections de viande et aux réglements y
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Agriculture for meat inspections and the kind of regulations
and procedures that will be in place. There have been a
number of allegations raised during the implementation of this
program, which leaves consumers wondering whether in fact
their meat is going to be as well protected as they have been
led to expect it always has been.

I am wondering if it would not be a good use of the commit-
tee’s time to ask the minister for permission to establish an
investigation or a subcommittee to look into the effects of the
proposed program, whether it is being implemented in a way
that will provide continued safety and hygiene for Canada’s
consumers, or whether some of the allegations that have been
coming out in the press are in fact putting that whole meat
processing sector into question and some doubt. I think the
kind of questions that have been raised ought to be looked at,
and public explanations found for the allegations that have
been raised; probably this committee is as good a parliamen-
tary group to take on that responsibility as any.
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M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madame le président, je voudrais
répondre a cette question.

Il agit d’'une réorganisation au sein du service d’inspection
du gouvernement. Déja le ministre a répondu en partie a cette
allégation. Il n’est pas question de réduire quelque service que
ce soit. Déja, a I’abattage, on fait une inspection, et on en fait
une autre a 'usine de transformation.

Si le député veut avoir une réponse officielle plus rapide-
ment, je lui conseillerais de poser la question a la Chambre des
communes; le ministre va lui répondre. C’est la politique du
Ministére que d’offrir de bons services. On incite le service
d’inspection & étre dynamique et productif. Donc, je vous
conseille de poser votre question a la Chambre des communes.
Vous aurez votre réponse immédiatement.

Mr. Althouse: Madam Chairman, I think, if you will check
the record you will note that I have asked the question in the
House, and that has not allayed the statements of concerns
that have been forthcoming from both consumers and people
who are involved in providing the inspection service. Therefore
I think the only way to get at the real question is to have some
of those people who are involved on the ground on a day-to-day
basis, come before the committee and explain to us how the
system works at their level in the plant. The answers the
minister has provided in the House have not allayed the fears;
I think probably the most practical way to get at what is really
happening would be to call in some of the people who are
involved in the change-over both from the department and
from the plants; find out what is proposed; how it is going into
effect, and what difficulties are being raised with the new
program. I do not think we can find out directly from the
minister in a few-second reply in the House.

The Chairman: Mr. Schellenberger.

~ Mr. Schellenberger: 1 do not know. Perhaps we could
incorporate a meeting on this with a report. It is in the meat
area and there might be a possibility.

[Traduction)

afférents. Beaucoup d’allégations ont eu lieu pendant la mise
en oeuvre du programme, et les consommateurs se demandent
si la viande sera aussi bien protégée que par le passé.

Je me demande donc s’il ne serait pas bon que le Comité
demande au ministre la permission de lancer une enquéte ou
de constituer un sous-comité pour savoir si la mise en oeuvre
du programme est compatible avec la sécurité ou ’hygi¢ne des
consommateurs canadiens, ou si certaines allégations faites
dans les médias remettent en question tout le secteur de
transformation de la viande. Il faudrait que toute la question
soit débattue et qu’il y ait des explications publiques aux
accusations qui ont été portées. C’est probablement le Comité
qui, au Parlement, est le mieux placé pour le faire.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): I would like to answer that point,
Madam Chairman.

It is simply a reorganization of the inspection service of the
government. The Minister has already answered these
allegations. There is no reduction of the service in any shape or
form. There is an inspection at the slaughtering stage and
there is another one at the processing plant.

If the honourable member is anxious to get an official
answer to his question, I suggest he ask it in the House. The
Minister will give him the answer. The department’s policy is
to offer the best service possible. And the inspection service is
supposed to be dynamic and productive. So I suggest to the
honourable member that he ask his question in the House. He
will be answered without any delay.

M. Althouse: Madame le président, si vous vérifiez les faits,
vous noterez que j'ai déja posé la question & la Chambre et
que, malgré tout, les consommateurs et les gens qui font partie
du service d’inspection ont continué a4 exprimer des préoccupa-
tions a ce sujet. C’est pourquoi je dis que la seule solution
possible est de faire venir les gens qui travaillent sur le terrain
pour qu’ils expliquent au Comité comment le systéme fonc-
tionne dans les usines elles-mémes. Les explications du
ministre & la Chambre n’ont certainement pas fait taire les
craintes qui se sont manifestées. La fagon la plus réaliste de
procéder est de faire venir certains de ces gens qui subissent le
changement tant au ministére que dans les usines, de voir
exactement ce dont il est question, comment tout cela se
traduit dans les faits et ou il y a des problémes. Ce n’est
certainement pas le ministre qui peut nous apprendre tout cela
en quelques secondes a la Chambre.

Le président: Monsieur Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Peut-étre faudrait-il prévoir une réunion
ainsi qu'un rapport a ce sujet. Ce serait une possibilité puisque
c’est un sujet qui a a voir avec les viandes.
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I would like to raise an issue that, I think, is of some
importance and may even assist the minister in bringing
forward, when he does bring it forward, his legislation on the
Western Grain Stabilization Act. There is a lot of unrest
starting to come forward in the West with this fund’s raising
up to $1 billion and the seeming incapacity of Parliament or
the minister to come to grips with the formula to get some
money that is desperately needed now in the Prairies from the
fund, which has been set up by Parliament to be triggered
when there is a depression in farm incomes, which we are now
experiencing in Western Canada. I think we would be doing
some service if we could now question the people from the
Western Grain Stabilization Board on how close they are to
changing the formula; what statistics they have to show us the
difficulties they are in, so that as members of Parliament we
can get some idea whether this is a very complex problem or
one that could be simply solved. It may only take one meeting
or so, but it would assist us if we can believe the Speech from
the Throne, that this is a bill that will be coming forward
relatively soon, and we might get out in front. One of the
reports you have before you is from that board, I believe. I
think I saw it in here. Yes, the Report of the Administration of
the Western Grain Stabilization Act and Stabilization
Account.

At the same time we might want the Stabilization Board
before us to talk about things like the hog stabilization
program, the beef stabilization program, and some of the
others, in which there have been or have not been payments,
just for some questioning on this problem.

® 1550

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madame le président, en ce qui
concerne la stabilisation du porc, 'année financiére prend fin
le 1¢ avril. Pour cette raison, on ne peut pas présentement faire
la moyenne des cinq derniéres années. Pour la gouverne de
mon collégue d’en face, c’est le renseignement qu’on m’a
donné. Je croyais que I'année financiére se terminait le 31
décembre, comme dans le cas d’autres productions, mais c’est
le 1" avril.

. Mr. Schellenberger: Well, maybe just the western stabiliza-
tion, then, until April. I thought it ended on December 2.

The Chairman: Mr. Daudlin.
Mr. Daudlin: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Dealing first with the issue raised by Mr. Althouse, I do not
know whether or not the access that we will obviously have
under the estimates will be adequate for us to go into that
particular issue in depth. I would assume it would be, and I
would guess that that would be coming before us within the
next two to three weeks. I would think shortly after budget
day, February 15, if that is the case—the estimates would be
forthcoming within a week thereafter and it would be an issue
then that we could deal with, which is less than three weeks
hence. But if Mr. Althouse has a reason that would persuade
us to deal with the issue in advance of that, or seek permission
so to do, perhaps it would be an issue that would be more

[Translation)

Dans un autre ordre d’idées, je voudrais parler de quelque
chose d’assez important qui pourrait aider le ministre au
moment ou il présentera—j’ignore quand exactement—ses
nouvelles propositions sur la loi de stabilisation concernant les
grains de I’Ouest. Le malaise se fait de plus en plus grand dans
cette région lorsqu’on voit que cette caisse atteint maintenant
un milliard de dollars et que le Parlement ou le ministre
semblent incapables de trouver le moyen de canaliser une
partiec de cet argent vers les Prairies ou I'agriculture en a
désespérément besoin, comme le Parlement avait prévu qu’on
le fasse en cas de diminution des revenus agricoles, ce qui est la
situation actuelle. Nous ferions certainement avancer la
question si nous pouvions demander aux gens de I'Office de
stabilisation des grains de 1'Ouest ou en est la modification de
la formule, quelles données ils ont déja en main, de fagon que
nous puissions voir, comme c’est notre devoir de députés, si le
probléme est vraiment complexe ou s'il existe une solution
simple. Il ne faudrait peut-étre qu’'une réunion a ce sujet, mais
elle serait utile, puisque, si nous nous fions au Discours du
Trone, ce projet de loi est sur le point de nous étre présenté.
Nous pourrions prendre de I’avance. Je pense que le rapport de
I’Office figure parmi ceux qui ont été regus par le Comité. Je
le vois ici. C’est le rapport de I’Administration de la loi sur la
stabilisation des grains de I'Ouest et du compte de stabilisa-
tion.

Nous pourrions profiter de I'occasion pour interroger
'Office de stabilisation sur des sujets comme le programme de
stabilisation du porc, le programme de stabilisation du boeuf et
d’autres, qui ont ou n’ont pas donné lieu a4 des paiements.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madam Chairman, as for pork
stabilization, the financial year ends on April 1. That is why
we cannot presently give the average of the last five years. This
is given as a point of information for my colleague on the other
side of the floor as this is information that was given me. I
thought that the financial year ended December 31 as for
other producers, but it is April 1.

M. Schellenberger: Bon, peut-étre seulement la stabilisation
de I'Ouest, alors, jusqu’en avril. Je croyais que cela se termi-
nait le 2 décembre.

Le président: Monsieur Daudlin.
M. Daudlin: Merci, madame le président.

Tout d’abord, pour ce qui est de la question soulevée par M.
Althouse, je ne sais pas si les questions que nous pourrons
poser lors de I'étude du budget nous permettront d’étudier
toute cette question a fond. Cependant, je crois que si, et j'ose
espérer que nous en serons saisis d’ici deux ou trois semaines.
D’aprés ce qu'on dit, le budget sera déposé le 15 février, et
nous devrions étre saisis du budget des dépenses dans la
semaine qui suit cette date, et nous pourrons alors traiter de ce
sujet, c’est-d-dire dans moins de trois semaines. Cependant, si
M. Althouse peut trouver une bonne raison pour nous persua-
der de traiter de cette question avant cette date, d’obtenir la
permission de le faire, peut-étre ce probléme devrait-il étre
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adequately dealt with by the Subcommittee on Procedure and
Agenda, and 1 would recommend that, while at the same time
suggesting that if Mr. Althouse would like to see us go in that
direction, it might be appropriate for our clerk or whatever
support staff we can have for the committee to put together a
brochure, or at least a file for all of the committee members of
the press, and other material that exists right now, indicating
the kind of concern that does exist out there, so that we all
could be satisfied as to the nature of the concern, the direction
from which it comes, and those directions that the electorate or
the constituents of all of us would want to see us taking.

It seems to me, in any event, that at the end of the day the
appropriate place for us to determine our agenda would be by
a report from our procedure and agenda committee. I would
suggest that if in fact the estimates do not provide an adequate
forum for that, we could perhaps ask our agenda committee to
deal with it.

About the issue raised by Mr. Schellenberger, It sounds to
me like one that deserves some support and that we should be
taking a look at. If we have a report before us already and if it
is the wish of the committee that we deal in advance of the
estimates with an issue, this might be an appropriate one that
we could commence with. But again, we perhaps could most
appropriately deal with it in terms of setting up witnesses and
an agenda by having the agenda committee, or the subcommit-
tee, take a look at it first and make a recommendation to the
full committee.

Le président: Si vous me permettez, je vous demanderai de
vous référer au rapport annuel 1982-1983 d’Agriculture
Canada que vous venez de recevoir. Justement, on y fait
mention du systéme d’inspection de la transformation des
viandes. Il s’agit de la Loi sur I'inspection des viandes; on fait
certains commentaires. A I’occasion du dépot de ce rapport au
Comité, nous pourrions choisir les sujets qui nous intéressent
davantage et voir ol nous en sommes. Il y a toute une révision
du systeme qui est en cours, et on fait allusion ici 4 certains
avis qui ont déja été publiés dans La Gazette du Canada et a
d’autres qui seront publiés au cours de I’année 1984. Donc,
monsieur Althouse, vous pourrez sans doute voir comment
fonctionne tout le systéme d’inspection dans le cadre de notre
¢tude du rapport annuel d’Agriculture Canada, étude que nous
pourrions faire avant méme que les prévisions budgétaires
soient déposées au Comité, comme le propose M. Daudlin. Ce
sera la méme chose dans le cas de . . . Eh bien, on a déja l'autre
rapport.

Alors, si vous voulez, le Sous-comité de I'ordre du jour et de
la procédure pourra étudier cette question et voir quels témoins

pourraient venir, et le Comité permanent sera convoqué par la
suite.

M. Dion: D’accord.

Je propose la levée de I'assemblée.

[Traduction)

plutdt débattu par le Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure, et c’est ce que je recommanderais en effet, tout en
disant que si M. Althouse veut nous voir prendre cette
orientation, il serait peut-étre bon que notre greffier ou notre
personnel de soutien prépare une brochure, ou au moins un
dossier documenté pour les membres de la presse, sans oublier
les documents qui existent d I’heure actuelle, pour nous donner
une idée du genre de questions que 1’on se pose en dehors de
cette enceinte ou nous nous trouvons, de fagon a ce que nous
puissions savoir vraiment quelles sont les préoccupations, ou
elles se font le plus sentir, et quelle orientation 1’électorat ou
nos commettants voudraient nous voir adopter.

De toute fagon, en fin de journée comme nous le sommes, il
me semble qu’il vaudrait mieux attendre le rapport du Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure pour fixer notre
échéancier en la matiére. Si I’étude du budget des dépenses ne
nous permet pas d’étudier cette question a fond, nous pourrions
demander a notre sous-comité d’y voir.

Quant a la question soulevée par M. Schellenberger, elle me
semble des plus intéressantes et nous devrions certainement
’étudier. Si nous avons déja un rapport devant nous et que le
Comité désire que nous I’étudiions ou que nous étudiions une
question quelconque avant le dépot du budget des dépenses, ce
rapport constituerait peut-étre un bon point de départ. Encore
une fois, cependant, peut-étre serait-il préférable de trouver
d’abord les témoins que nous voudrions entendre et de faire
dresser un échéancier par le sous-comité du programme, ou de
lui demander tout au moins d’étudier la question, pour ensuite
faire une recommandation au Comité plénier.

The Chairman: If you do not mind, I would ask you to refer
to the 1982-1983 annual report from Agriculture Canada that
you have just received. Reference is made in it to the meat
processing inspection system. It refers to the Meat Inspection
Act; certain comments are made on that subject. Using the
tabling of this report to the committee, we could choose
whatever subject matter interests us most and see what point
we have arrived at. There is a substantial review process of the
whole system under way presently, and mention is made to
some things that have already been published in the Canada
Gazette and to others which will be published during 1984. So,
Mr. Althouse, you can most probably find out how the whole
inspection system works during our examination of Agriculture
Canada’s annual report, examination that we could undertake
even before the Estimates are tabled in committee, as Mr.
Daudlin has suggested. It might be the same thing for...
Well, we already have the other report.

So, if you do not mind, the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure can examine this question and see which witnesses
could come, and the full committee will then be called to meet.

Mr. Dion: Agreed.

I move adjournment.
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Le président: Nous .sommes mardi. Je vais tenter de
communiquer avec les responsables de chacun des partis pour
voir s’il est possible de convoquer une réunion du Sous-comité
de l'ordre du jour et de la procédure pour jeudi matin, par
exemple. Est-ce possible? Si ce n’est pas possible, on pourrait
remettre la réunion 4 mardi prochain.

Mr. Althouse: I have a problem. We could send an alternate
though.

Le président: Est-ce qu’il vous conviendrait mieux que ce
soit mardi prochain & 9h30?

Mr. Schellenberger: Thursday is fine.
The Chairman: That is okay? Thursday of this week?

Mr. Daudlin: Let us try Thursday, unless there are some
serious difficulties with one of the parties.

The Chairman: Okay.
S’il n’y a pas d’autres questions, je vais ajourner la séance.

Thank you very much.

[Translation]

The Chairman: This is Tuesday. I will try to get in touch
with those responsible for each of the parties to find out if it is
possible to have a meeting of the Subcommittee on Agenda
and Procedure for Thursday morning, for example. Is it
possible? If not, we could put off the meeting until next
Tuesday.

M. Althouse: J’ai un probléme. On pourrait cependant
envoyer un substitut.

The Chairman: Would it be better if it were next Tuesday at
9:30?

M. Schellenberger: Jeudi, c’est parfait.
Le président: C’est bien? Jeudi de cette semaine?

M. Daudlin: Disons jeudi, a8 moins que cela ne pose des
problémes sérieux pour un des partis.

Le président: Parfait.

If there are no other questions, I will declare the meeting
adjourned.

Merci beaucoup.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Pursuant to Standing Order 46(4) the following paper was
deemed referred to the Committee:

Tuesday, January 17, 1984

Report of the Department of Agriculture for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 1983, pursuant to section 6 of the Depart-
ment of Agriculture Act, Chapter A-10, R.S.C. 1970.—
Sessional Paper No. 322-1/6.

ORDRE DE RENVOI

Conformément aux dispositions de l'article 46(4) du Regle-
ment, le document suivant était réputé déféré au Comité:

Le mardi 17 janvier 1984

Rapport du ministére de I’Agriculture, pour I'année financiére
terminée le 31 mars 1983, conformément a I’article 6 de la Loi
sur le ministére de I’Agriculture, chapitre A-10, S.R.C.
1970.—Document parlementaire n° 322-1/6.
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[Text] [Traduction)

The Standing Committee on Agriculture met at 11:07
o'clock a.m., this day, the Chairman, Eva C6té, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Mr. Althouse, Mrs.
Coté, Messrs. Dionne (Chicoutimi), Gustafson, Mayer and
Ostiguy.

Alternates present. Messrs. Bloomfield, Hargrave, McCain
and Neil.

Other Members present. Messrs. Taylor and Towers.

Witnesses: From the Department of Agriculture: Mr. J.P.
Connell, Deputy Minister and Mr. Y. Jacques, Assistant
Deputy Minister (Marketing and Economics Branch).

The Committee proceeded to consider, pursuant to S.O.
46(4), the Annual Report of the Department of Agriculture
for 1982-83, deemed referred to the Committee on Tuesday,
January 17, 1984.

The witnesses answered questions.

Madam Chairman presented the First Report of the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure, which reads as follows:

Your Sub-committee met on Thursday, February 2, 1984 to
discuss the Committee’s future activities respecting the
documents referred pursuant to its Standing Order 46.

Your Sub-committee recommends:
That the following meetings be sheduled as follows:

—On Tuesday, February 7, with the Hon. Sen. Hazen
Argue, Minister responsible for the Canadian Wheat
Board, in relation to the Western Grain Stabilization
Act and Stabilization Account, 1981.

—On Tuesday, February 14, with Officials from the
Department of Agriculture, in relation to the Depart-
ment of Agriculture Annual Report 1982-83 (Fruit,
Vegetables and Honey Act).

—That the next meeting of the Sub-committee on Agenda
and Procedure be scheduled for Thursday, February 9,
1984 and that Dr. J.E. McGowan, Assistant Deputy
Minister for the Food Production and Inspection Branch
of the Department of Agriculture be invited to attend to
give a briefing to the Members; and

—That the Library of Parliament be requested to provide
some information material (briefing book, press clip-
pings, etc . . . ) to the Members of the Sub-committee, no
later than Tuesday, February 7, 1984 on the FOIL
program.

On motion of Mr. Neil,—The First Report of the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure was adopted.

Questioning resumed.

Mr. Mayer proposed to move,—That this Committee
recommend to the Minister that the Government of Canada
make financial assistance available to the Canadian Horticul-
ture Council and Potato Producers of Canada, for the purpose

Le Comité permanent de I'agriculture se réunit, ce jour a
11h07, sous la présidence de M™ Eva Coté (président).

Membres du Comité présents: M. Althouse, M™ C6té, MM.
Dionne (Chicoutimi), Gustafson, Mayer et Ostiguy.

Substituts présents: MM. Bloomfield, Hargrave, McCain et
Neil.

Autres députés présents: MM. Taylor et Towers.

Témoins: Du ministere de I'Agriculture: M. J.P. Connell,
sous-ministre et M. Y. Jacques, sous-ministre adjoint (Com-
mercialisation et économie).

Conformément a I'article 46(4) du Réglement, le Comité
procéde a I’étude du rapport annuel du ministére de I’Agricul-
ture (1982-1983) tenu pour renvoyer au Comité le mardi 17
janvier 1984.

Les témoins répondent aux questions.

Madame le président dépose le premier rapport annuel du
Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure:

Votre Sous-comité se réunit le jeudi 2 février 1984 pour
déterminer les futurs travaux du Comité concernant les
documents visés en vertu de I'article 46 du Réglement.

Votre Sous-comité recommande:
Que I'horaire des séances suivantes soit approuvé:

—Le mardi 7 février, avec I'hon. sénateur Hazen Argue,
ministre responsable de la Commission canadienne du
blé, au sujet de la Loi de stabilisation concernant le grain
de I'Ouest et du Compte de stabilisation (1981);

—Le mardi 14 février, avec les hauts fonctionnaires du
ministére de I’Agriculture, au sujet du rapport annuel
dudit Ministére (1982-1983) (Loi sur les fruits, les
légumes et le miel);

—~Que la prochaine réunion du Sous-comité du programme
et de la procédure ait lieu le jeudi 9 février 1984 et que
M. J.E. McGowan, sous-ministre adjoint 4 la Direction
générale de la production et de I'inspection des aliments,
au ministére de I’Agriculture, soit invité a donner une
séance d’information aux membres; et

—Que l'on demande a la Bibliothéque du Parlement de
préparer, a l'usage des membres du Sous-comité
directeur, un document d’information (coupures de
presse, document de travail, etc.), sur le programme
FRIN, pour le mardi 7 février au plus tard.

Sur motion de M. Neil,—Le premier rapport du Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure est adopteé.

L’audition des témoins se poursuit.

M. Mayer propose,—Que le Comité recommande au
Ministre d’obtenir que le gouvernement du Canada consente a
accorder au Conseil canadien de I'horticulture et aux Produc-
teurs canadiens de pommes de terre une aide financiere
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of deferring the costs associated with all hearings related to the
imposition of the surcharge of duty imposed by the United
States on potatoes exports from Eastern Canada.

Madam Chairman expressed reservations concerning the
procedural acceptability of the proposed motion.

By unanimous consent, the proposed motion was changed to
read as follows:

—That the Committee recommends that the Government
give consideration to the advisability of making financial
assistance available to the Canadian Horticulture Council and
Potato Producers of Canada, for the purpose of deferring the
costs associated with all hearings related to the imposition of
the surcharge of duty imposed by the United States on
potatoes exports from Eastern Canada.

After debate, the question being put on the motion, it was
agreed to on division.

Questioning resumed.

At 12:25 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

destinée a absorber d’avance les frais li€s 4 toutes les auditions
relatives a I'imposition, par les Etats-Unis, d’un droit supplé-
mentaire sur les pommes de terre en provenance de I'Est du
Canada.

Madame le président exprime des réserves quant a la
formulation adoptée.

A T'unanimité, la motion proposée se lit désormais comme
suit:

—Que le Comité recommande au gouvernement de s’inter-
roger sur l'opportunité de consentir une aide financiére au
Conseil canadien de I'horticulture et aux Producteurs cana-
diens de pommes de terre afin d’absorber d’avance les frais liés
a toutes les auditions relatives a I'imposition, par les Etats-
Unis, d’un droit supplémentaire sur les pommes de terre en
provenance de I’Est du Canada.

Aprés débat, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée avec voix
dissidente.

L’audition des témoins se poursuit.

A 12h25, le Comité suspend les travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

Le greffier du Comité

Micheline Rondeau-Parent

Clerk of the Comittee
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Tuesday, February 7, 1984
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Le président: A I'ordre! Je vous souhaite la bienvenue a cette
réunion du Comité permanent de I’agriculture.

Notre ordre de renvoi porte sur le rapport annuel 1982-1983
du ministére de I’Agriculture qui a été déféré au Comité le 17
janvier 1984 en vertu de I’article 46 du Reglement.

Etant donné que nous n’avons pas quorum, nous ne parle-
rons pas du premier rapport du Sous-comité du programme et
de la procédure.

Nos invités sont tous du bureau du sous-ministre. Je vous
présente le sous-ministre, M. J. P. Connell, qui est accompagné
du sous-ministre adjoint principal, le docteur G.I. Trant.

Monsieur le sous-ministre, je ne sais pas si vous avez une
déclaration a faire. De toute fagon, j'aimerais que vous nous
présentiez d’abord les personnes du Ministére qui vous
accompagnent pour répondre aux questions des membres du
Comité.

Mr. J.P. Connell (Deputy Minister, Agriculture Canada):
Thank you, Madam Chairman. I do not have an opening
statement, but I will take advantage of the opportunity you
present to introduce those who are with me. You have already
introduced Dr. G.I. Trant, Senior Assistant Deputy Minister.
We have Mr. Y. Jacques, Assistant Deputy Minister, Market-
ing and Economics Branch; Dr. John McGowan, Assistant
Deputy Minister, Food Production and Inspection Branch; Dr.
Ed LeRoux, Assistant Deputy Minister, Research Branch; Mr.
Rod Bailey, Assistant Deputy Minister, Regional Development
Branch; Mr. A.G. Ross, Assistant Deputy Minister, Finance
and Administration Branch; accompanied by Mr. J. McCrea,
Director General, Finance Directorate. From the Departmen-
tal Secretariat we have Dr. D.J.E. Demars, Departmental
Secretary, and Mr. T. Hall, Senior Secretariat Officer.

We are quite willing, and I hope able, to respond to any
questions.

Le président: Je vous remercie, monsieur le sous-ministre.
Nous commengons tout de suite la période des questions.

Monsieur McCain, vous avez la parole.

Mr. McCain: Madam Chairman, the fruit, vegetable, and
honey structure of Canadian trade is perhaps one of the most
unfortunate trade spheres we have in Canada, inasmuch as we
have an international deficit of approximately $1 billion in
international trade, with approximately a negative balance of
trade with the United States of $700 million. As we export
some of these products, the industry seems to be competing
against very artificial trade barriers in the European Economic
Community. We are looking at a situation in the United States
where they are sort of trying to find ways and means to keep
us out, as they have in the potato industry. I would like to see
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The Chairman: Order please. | am happy to welcome you to
this meeting of the Standing Committee on Agriculture.

Our order of reference pertains to the 1982-1983 Annual
Report from the Department of Agriculture, which was
referred to the committee on the 17th of January, 1984,
pursuant to Standing Order 46.

We do not have any quorum, so we will postpone the
discussion of the first report of the sub-committee on agenda
and procedure.

Our witnesses are all from the Deputy Minister’s Office. |
introduce Mr. J. P. Connell, Deputy Minister, and with him
his Senior Assistant Deputy Minister Dr. G. I. Trant.

Mr. Deputy Minister, I do not know if you have a prelim-
inary statement to read. Anyway, I would like you to first
introduce the gentlemen from your department, who will
answer some questions from the committee members.

M. J.P. Connell (sous-ministre, Agriculture Canada):
Merci, madame le président. Je n’ai pas de déclaration
préliminaire a faire, mais je vais en profiter pour vous présen-
ter les personnes qui m’accompagnent. Vous avez déja présenté
le D G.1. Trant, sous-ministre adjoint principal. Il y a aussi M.
Y. Jacques, sous-ministre adjoint, Direction de la commerciali-
sation et de I’économie; le D' John McGowan, sous-ministre
adjoint, Direction de la production et de l'inspection des
aliments; le Dr Ed LeRoux, sous-ministre adjoint, Direction de
la recherche; M. Rod Bailey, sous-ministre adjoint, Direction
du développement régional; M. A.G. Ross, sous-ministre
adjoint, Direction des finances et de I'administration; il est
d’ailleurs accompagné de M. J. McCrea, directeur général,
Direction des affaires financiéres. Du Secrétariat du ministére,
nous avons avec nous le D' D.J.E. Demars, secrétaire ministé-
riel, ainsi que M. T. Hall, agent principal du Secrétariat.

Nous sommes donc tout a fait disposés, et j’espére que nous
en serons capables, de répondre a toutes vos questions.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Deputy Minister. We are
going to start right away with the question period.

Mr. McCain, you have the floor.

M. McCain: Madame le président, du point de vue de nos
échanges, le secteur canadien des fruits, des légumes et du miel
est sans doute le plus malchanceux en ce moment, puisqu’il
enregistre un déficit d’environ un milliard de dollars, avec un
solde négatif dans nos échanges avec les Etats-Unis de 700
millions de dollars. A ’exportation, ce secteur se heurte a des
barriéres tarifaires trés artificielles imposées par la Commu-
nauté économique européenne. En ce qui concerne les Etats-
Unis, on cherche la-bas 4 effectivement nous empécher de
pénétrer le marché, comme c’est le cas par exemple pour la
pomme de terre. J’aimerais donc que nous nous penchions sur
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if we could address ourselves, first, to the potato situation,
inasmuch as the State of Maine has now lodged an appeal to
the Court of International Trade in New York—I believe the
title is correct. What is going to be the position of the govern-
ment? Are you today, Mr. Deputy Minister, in a position to
make a comment?
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In view of the broad-based objection to imports from
Canada to the United States, whether it be asbestos, petro-
chemicals, steel or agricultural products, we must have pretty
nearly reached the stage at which, I think, the government is
going to assume part of the legal costs; if not all, some of them.
The strain on the finances of the potato industry in Canada
were very, very extreme. For instance, in the Province of New
Brunswick, they have spent their entire budget in legal fees, to
pay off the bills which have been incurred to protect their
industry. The Province of Quebec, I believe, is supplying one-
sixth of the cost of that operation, and I am sure that is very
much appreciated by the trade.

I think it is time the Government of Canada began to take a
very, very hard look at how we can expect the various trade
groups in Canada, and particularly the agricultural trade
groups who are very ill-financed, to stand up to the legal
opportunities which present themselves, for objection to our
exports to the United States and other areas of the world.
They just do not have the means.

I would appeal to you at this moment in time, Madam
Chairman, to implore the Department of Agriculture or what
other department of government might assist them, to pick up
the tab for this potato deal that would impose extra duties on
Canadian exports of potatoes to the United States, particularly
in light of the fact that they have gone, almost, to the last
court which could hear the case. I implore that the government
do make grants in fact to the Canadian Horticultural Council,
which has been the receiver of funds and the payer of bills; it
could ease the burden which has been imposed upon the trade
groups in Canada; this bill has now gone up to something in
the nature of $250,000. I will await your comment, Madam
Chairman.

Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, as far as the most recent
deal is concerned, I do not have any expert opinion. Certainly
it is our hope and I suppose I might even say expectation . . .
Well, I would seek some refuge if someone asked me to back
up the statement of expectations, but it is certainly my hope
that the appeal of which Mr. McCain speaks, will not succeed.
I recognize, certainly, that it is a further tactic on the part of
that industry in the United States that is being employed,
which results in extra expense to the industry and to the
Canadian Horticultural Council. We do pay. We do make a

[Traduction]

cette situation du marché de la pomme de terre, d’abord,
notamment a la suite d’un appel interjeté par I’état du Maine
auprés du Tribunal du commerce international a New York, je
pense que c’est la dénomination exacte. Quelle sera donc la
position de notre gouvernement? Monsieur le sous-ministre,
étes-vous en mesure de nous répondre la-dessus aujourd’hui?

Etant donné les objections soulevées par toute importation
en provenance du Canada, aux Etats-Unis, qu’il s’agisse
d’amiante, de produits de la pétrochimie, d’acier ou de
produits de I'agriculture, je pense que nous sommes proches
d’un seuil a partir duquel le gouvernement devrait assumer une
partie des frais de procédure; sinon tous, du moins une partie
d’entre eux. Le secteur de la pomme de terre, en effet, se
trouve dans une situation difficile du point de vue financier.
C’est ainsi que dans la province du Nouveau-Brunswick, tout
le budget a été consacré a des frais d’avocats, faisant suite aux
démarches qu’ils ont di entreprendre pour protéger leur
secteur. La province de Québec, si je ne me trompe, assume
1/6 des frais de cette opération, et je suis certain que c’est une
initiative fort appréciée du secteur considéré.

Je pense qu’il est donc temps pour le gouvernement fédéral
de se pencher de fagon trés sérieuse sur la question, et de voir
dans quelle mesure les diverses associations professionnelles,
notamment celles de I’agriculture dont le budget est si maigre,
peuvent engager les procédures juridiques ad hoc a chaque fois
que I’on cherche a faire obstacle a nos exportations, aux Etats-
Unis et ailleurs. Voild donc des associations qui tout simple-
ment n’ont pas les moyens d’assumer les frais de procédure.

J’en appelle donc a vous-méme, madame le président, pour
que nous implorions le ministére de I’Agriculture, ou tout autre
ministére fédéral en mesure de les aider, de prendre en charge
les frais de procédure dans cette affaire de commerce de
pommes de terre ou I'on veut imposer des taxes supplémentai-
res aux exportations canadiennes vers les Etats-Unis; je pense
également qu’il convient de tenir compte du fait que ’on s’est
maintenant adressé 4 la derniére instance compétente en la
matiére. Je demande .donc instamment au gouvernement de
débloquer des crédits pour le Canadian Horticultural Council
(Conseil canadien de I’horticulture), qui a fonctionné jusqu’ici
comme collecteur et comme bailleur de fonds lorsqu’il a fallu
régler les factures; voila donc un fardeau financier qui pourrait
étre allégé, et dont jusqu’ici les associations professionnelles
ont fait les frais; la note se monte a ce jour a quelque
250,0008. Je vais donc attendre votre réponse, madame le
président.

M. Connell: Madame le président, en ce qui concerne cette
derniére affaire, je n’ai & ma disposition I’avis d’aucun expert.
Nous espérons certainement, et je pense que nous pouvons
méme nous y attendre... Disons que je me limiterai aux
espoirs, si I'on insiste vraiment, mais en tout cas je peux dire
que nous souhaitons vivement que I'appel dont M. McCain a
parlé sera débouté. Il est certain, et je suis prét a le reconnai-
tre, qu'il s’agit 1d d’une ultime manoeuvre de la part des
Américains, qui se traduit en effet par des dépenses supplé-
mentaires & notre Conseil de I'horticulture. Il faut payer la
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contribution to the Canadian Horticultural Council, but not in
respect of specific expenses such as this. I think the govern-
ment feels it is not appropriate for them to make contributions
specifically for legal expenses incurred in this sort of thing.

LS

I know that the Minister of Agriculture is certainly cogni-
zant, very aware, of the financial situation the Horticultural
Council and indeed the potato industry generally finds itself in
as a result of this very, very great expense, but I do not believe
he has yet been able to find a way that would be appropriate in
order to help share that expense. In the final analysis, I
suppose, if one carried this to the extreme, we would be pitting
our treasury against that of the United States, a most prodi-
gious nation, and I am not sure whether we could afford it.

However, it is not without relevance to note that over the
past number of years the Government of Canada has paid
approximately $55 million to the potato industry in Canada as
a result of prices and for stabilization purposes, so perhaps in
an indirect way a substantial contribution has been made to its
well-being. As for a direct pick-up of the tab of legal costs, |
do not think that is possible for us to do.

Mr. McCain: Madam Chairman, we are not in a normal
situation. We are not dealing with the pulp and paper industry.
We do not have the MacMillan Bloedels and the B.C. Forests
or the K.C. Irving to foot this bill. We just do not have them.
We are talking about a bunch of little people.

The lumber application ended with the ITC hearing. We
now find ourselves in the position where this one is being
carried one step farther than the lumber industry trade
argument went. | do not think the trade groups in Canada can
afford, and certainly the potato industry itself cannot afford,
to fight the battles which are international in nature in the
courts of the various lands of this world. 1 think we have
reached the position where | wish the deputy Minister would
certainly change his attitude toward it.

| appreciate the fact that, no, historically you have not
picked up these bills. I deplore the fact, however, that we have
less than what 1 would have hoped would have been the
interest and information in this committee today as to what is
going to be the position of government, and I really think it has
now become a responsibility of the Government of Canada to
pick up a very major portion of that bill under the circum-
stances. They are extraordinary circumstances; they are not
common.

The Horticultural Council has exhausted any reserves it has
had—and its wisdom in having reserves has certainly been
proven by the fact that it was able with its reserves to face the
United States and the potato industry of the United States in
court and win to this point. But certainly we cannot turn our
back on it. We can hope that it is going to be unfavourable,
but I think we have to take every possible measure to deter-
mine that it shall be unfavourable in its final decision, and that

[Translation)

facture. Nous contribuons au budget du Conseil canadien de
I’horticulture, sans toutefois participer de fagon explicite 4 ce
genre de dépenses. C’est la politique du gouvernement de ne
pas contribuer de fagon explicite aux frais de procédure
encourus dans ce genre de situation.

Je sais que le ministre de I’Agriculture est au courant de la
situation financiére du Conseil de I'horticulture, et il est vrai
que pour le moment, le secteur de la pomme de terre doit
débourser des sommes importantes pour cette affaire, mais je
ne pense pas que le ministre jusqu’ici ait trouvé comment
partager ce type de dépenses. En derniére analyse, je suppose,
on en arriverait alors @ mesurer les capacités de notre trésor a
celui des Etats-Unis, la plus riche des nations, affrontement
dont I'issue serait pour nous des plus incertaines.

Toutefois, il n’est pas inintéressant de remarquer que depuis
plusieurs années, le gouvernement fédéral a versé environ 55
millions de dollars au secteur de la pomme de terre au Canada,
dans le cadre de ses politiques de stabilisation et de soutien des
prix, aide indirecte qui a contribué de fagon importante a la
prospérité de ce secteur. En ce qui concerne une prise en
charge directe de ces frais de procédure, je ne pense pas que
nous puissions y songer.

M. McCain: Madame le président, la situation dans laquelle
nous nous trouvons n’est pas une situation normale. Il ne s’agit
pas ici d’'une industrie de la pite a papier. Nous n’avons pas
derriére nous, pour payer la facture, des sociétés comme
MacMillan Bloedels et B.C. Forests, ou K.C. Irving. Cela
n’existe pas dans notre secteur. Nous avons affaire ici a une
poignée de petits exploitants.

Dans le cas de I'industrie du bois, leur requéte s’était
terminée par une audience avec 1&C. Or, dans ce cas-ci, nous
en sommes déja A une étape ultérieure du processus. Je ne crois
pas, quant & moi, que les associations professionnelles du
Canada, en tout cas pas le secteur de la pomme de terre,
puissent s’offrir le luxe de batailles juridiques auprés des
tribunaux des divers pays avec lesquels nous commergons.
Nous en sommes donc 4 un point ol j’aimerais voir le sous-
ministre changer de position.

Je sais en effet que vous n’avez pas I’habitude de régler ce
genre de facture. Je déplore toutefois que nous en soyons restés
a un point bien en-deca de ce qui intéresserait notre Comité
aujourd’hui, en matiére de position du gouvernement, et je
pense qu’il a maintenant la responsabilité précise de prendre en
charge une partie importante de ces frais, étant donné cette
situation tout a fait exceptionnelle, tout d fait hors du com-
mun.

Le Conseil de I'horticulture a maintenant épuisé ses
réserves; et l'on peut féliciter sa clairvoyance en la matiére
puisqu'il a jusqu’ici utilisé ses réserves pour faire face a
I'industrie de la pomme de terre américaine, lors d’un procés
qui jusqu’ici est gagné. Il n’est tout de méme pas possible que
nous nous désintéressions maintenant de cette affaire. Certes
nous pouvons souhaiter que I'appel soit rejeté, mais je crois
surtout que nous devons faire tout ce qui est en notre pouvoir
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means a monitoring of the total process. We have to know, day
by day almost, what activity is taking place as it approaches
the hearing date in the international trade court. I do not think
we can say we hope it will not be successful. I think we have to
say we are going to determine that it shall not be successful
and that we need the leadership of the Department of Agricul-
ture, which does represent the horticultural industry and the
potato industry in particular.

The fact that you spent money on the potato industry is not
an extraneous matter, I agree, but certainly you have spent
money on other agricultural industries and I do not think you
have to hold the $55 million you said you have paid against it
in its present plight. You are not going to spend anything on
the potato industry this year, thank God. They do not want
your hand-outs; they do not want us to ask for them, but
sometimes we find ourselves in a position where whatever
sector of agriculture we may be in, we need money from the
price stabilization board, whether it be white beans or potatoes
or wheat.

I would ask the Minister really to give it the highest possible
profile and to reconsider his position that government cannot
do this. Through the grants committee the government can do
what it chooses to do.
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Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, I hope that I did not give
the impression that we are not providing any assistance to the
Horticultural Council in respect of this action in the United
States antidumping courts. We do give and have given a
considerable amount of technical assistance in the formulation
of its case, its arguments, and the preparation of statistics.
What has not been given is direct financial assistance for the
lawyers’ bills. I would not wish to evade any responsibility that
is mine, but I would want to assure Mr. McCain that the
position of the government in respect to direct financial
assistance for legal bills—and it does not depend on my
attitude one way or the other . . .

Mr. McCain: You are diminishing your own importance, sir,
and the influence which you could exert. Do not be so humble;
be more supportive.

Thank you, Madam Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. McCain.

Mr. Althouse.

Mr. Althouse: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

: I would like to pursue the potato import and export question
Just a little further, but from a slightly different part of the
country. As you are aware, Mr. Deputy, the imports from

[Traduction]

pour que la décision finale soit prise dans ce sens, et cela
signifie nous engager dans I'ensemble du processus. C'est-d-
dire que nous devons nous tenir au courant, pour ainsi dire au
jour le jour, du point ol en sont les choses au fur et & mesure
que l'on approche de la date d’audience au Tribunal du
commerce international. Je ne pense pas que nous puissions
nous satisfaire d’un espoir quant a I'issue de cet appel. Nous
devons surtout affirmer notre détermination de tout faire pour
que I'appel soit rejeté, et pour cela demander au ministére de
I’Agriculture de prendre des initiatives, & titre de représentant
de I'industrie horticole et de la pomme de terre entre autres.

Le fait que vous ayez subventionné I'industrie de la pomme
de terre est certainement un point pertinent, je suis d'accord,
mais cela n’est certainement pas le seul secteur qui a été
subventionné, et je ne crois pas non plus que vous puissiez
arguer en permanence de ces 55 millions dépensés pour
refuser, dans notre situation, de faire quelque chose. Or, cette
année, le secteur de la pomme de terre, Dieu merci, ne va rien
vous coiiter. Il ne vous demande pas I'aumdne, ce n’est pas de
mendicité qu’il s’agit, mais il arrive que I'on soit dans une
position, dans tel ou tel secteur de I'agriculture, ou l'on a
besoin de I'aide de I'Office de stabilisation des prix agricoles,
au profit des haricots blancs ou des pommes de terres ou méme
du blé.

J'aimerais donc demander au ministre d’accorder une
attention toute particuliére a cette question, et de reconsidérer
sa position, le gouvernement ne pouvant persister dans cette
voie. Par son comité des subsides, le gouvernement peut trés
bien prendre des décisions lorsqu’il veut en prendre.

M. Connell: Madame le président, j'espére ne pas donner
I'impression que nous n’aidons pas le Conseil de I'horticulture
dans cette situation, c’est-a-dire dans son action aupres des
tribunaux antidumping aux Etats-Unis. Bien au contraire,
nous avons mis toute notre compétence technique a sa
disposition, pour la présentation du cas, la formulation des
arguments et la compilation de tableaux statistiques. La seule
chose que nous n’ayons pas faite c’est fournir une assistance
financiére directe au titre des frais d’avocats. Je ne cherche
certainement pas a fuir mes responsabilités en la matiére, mais
j'aimerais répéter & monsieur McCain que la position du
gouvernement en matiére d’assistance financiére directe pour
frais d’avocats . .. et cela ne dépend absolument pas de mon
bon vouloir . . .

M. McCain: Vous vous sous-estimez, monsieur, ainsi que
I'influence que vous pourriez avoir dans cette situation. Ne
soyez pas aussi modeste, et faites preuve de plus de solidarité.

Merci, madame le président.

Le président: Merci, monsieur McCain.
Monsieur Althouse.

M. Althouse: Merci, madame le président.

J'aimerais continuer sur cette question des importations et
des exportations de pommes de terre, mais & propos d’une
autre région du pays. Comme vous le savez, monsieur le sous-
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California, Washington and to some extent Idaho, have been
going into the lower mainland of British Columbia at an ever-
increasing rate. You are aware that the potato producers in
that part of Canada have argued that there was some dumping
going on. An investigation was begun by the Department of
Revenue, Customs and Excise Branch—I think it was initiated
September 30, 1983—and to date there has not been any
ruling though there seem to be indications that the investiga-
tion is over. What is holding up a ruling, and how much longer
is it likely to be? I ask that since I suspect the Department of
Agriculture has watched these kinds of investigations before.
How much longer is it likely to be before the producers there
will get a ruling as to whether the product is, in fact, being
dumped, according to the definition of dumping?

Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, my understanding is that
the substantive part of the investigation is over, as Mr.
Atlhouse has indicated. | presume that now Revenue Canada,
Customs and Excise, is analyzing the information they gained.
My expectation is that within a very few days, | suppose one
might say, certainly this month, there would be a finding, a
ruling, from Customs and Excise.

Mr. Atlhouse: What input, if any, does the Department of
Agriculture have during these kinds of investigations? Are you
called upon, for instance, to give advice on the differentials
between grades or the quality that is being compared? Or how
do the comparisons get made except through comparison of
grades?

Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, we would be called upon,
depending upon the nature of the investigation, to give what I
suppose one might call technical or professional advice or
information on prices, on the potato sizes, grades, markets,
patterns of trade, that would assist Revenue Canada, Customs
and Excise, in their investigations. We are not called upon to
offer them advice as to which way they should decide their
case. We do not enter into that portion of their investigation,
that being their responsibility. But they do not rely wholly on
us, of course; they talk to the industry, they talk to the
growers, to the processors, to the exporters and importers, and
generally make a thorough investigation. But we would be part
of the input into all of the data and, 1 suppose, even opinion
which they would gather in order for the Deputy Minister
there to come to his conclusions.
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Mr. Althouse: Do you analyze? I expect someone in the
department would have analyzed previous cases and previous
rulings. Is there any room for discrepancy between the
interpretation of the data because of the values they place on
different grades? A problem, not just between U.S. and
Canada but sometimes in interprovincial trade within our own
country, is that the domestically sold potatoes—that is those
produced and sold within the same province—do not really
have any real requirement for grades in a lot of places, and
hence a product coming from another province or another state
usually has been graded and is often perceived by the con-

[Translation)

ministre, les importations en provenance de Californie, de
I’Etat de Washington et dans une certaine mesure de I'ldaho,
ont pénétré la bordure sud de la Colombie-Britannique de
fagon croissante. Vous savez également que les producteurs de
pommes de terre de cette région du Canada se sont plaints de
dumping. Une enquéte a été mise en cours par le ministére du
Revenu, Douanes et Accise—a la date du 30 septembre 1983,
je crois—et il n’y a toujours eu aucune décision de prise, alors
que tout semble indiquer que cette enquéte est close. Qu’est-ce
qui fait donc obstacle a ce qu'une décision soit prise, et
combien de temps faudra-t-il encore attendre? Je pose cette
question étant donné que je soupgonne le ministére de I’Agri-
culture d’avoir déja assisté a ce genre d’enquéte par le passé.
Combien de temps, donc, les producteurs devront-ils encore
attendre avant que I’on dise si oui ou non il y a dumping, selon
la définition du terme?

.

M. Connell: Madame le président, & ma connaissance, la
partie la plus importante de I’enquéte est close, comme M.
Althouse I'a déja dit. Je suppose que le ministére du Revenu,
Douanes et Accise, étudie les renseignements recueillis. Je
m’attends 4 ce qu’une décision soit prise d’ici quelques jours,
ou du moins dans le courant du mois, 4 Douanes et Accise.

M. Althouse: Le ministére de 1’Agriculture est-il consulté
lors de ce genre d’enquéte? Fait-on appel a vos services,
notamment lorsqu’il est question de calibrage et de différence
de qualité? Comment en effet faire des comparaisons si I'on ne
fait pas appel a la notion de catégorie du produit?

M. Connell: Madame le président, en fonction de la nature
de I’enquéte, nous sommes consultés, et nous donnons un avis
technique, ou professionnel, concernant les prix, les calibres,
les qualités et catégories de pommes de terre, les marchés, les
pratiques commerciales, tous renseignements qui peuvent aider
le ministére du Revenu, Douanes et Accise, dans ses recher-
ches. La ou notre conseil n’est pas sollicité, c’est lorsqu’il s’agit
de conclure le cas. Cette derniére partiec de I’enquéte leur
revient, et nous n’intervenons pas. Mais le ministére du Revenu
ne fait pas appel qu’a nous, bien sir, il s’adresse aussi aux
producteurs eux-mémes, aux industriels de la transformation,
aux exportateurs et importateurs, et I’enquéte est en général
extrémement minutieuse. Mais notre avis est sollicité au
moment de la collecte des diverses données a partir desquelles
le sous-ministre de ce ministére prend sa décision.

M. Althouse: Effectuez-vous des analyses? J'imagine que
quelqu’un au ministére aurait a analyser les cas qui se seraient
produits auparavant et les décisions qui auraient été rendues.
Serait-il possible qu’il y ait des divergences au niveau de
I'interprétation des données a cause des valeurs accordées aux
différentes catégories? Un probléme qui se pose au niveau non
seulement du commerce entre les Etats-Unis et le Canada mais
également de celui du commerce inter provincial, c’est que les
pommes de terre locales—c’est-a-dire celles qui sont produites
et vendues dans la méme province—n’ont souvent pas a étre
calibrées dans beaucoup d’endroits. Ainsi, un produit prove-



7-2-1984

Agriculture k19

[Texte]

sumer to be of slightly better quality, so they will therefore pay
a little bit more for the fact that they are graded. I am
concerned that when we start fighting a dumping order, or a
dumping case, that the people who are doing the investigating
realize that whichever side of the border—provincial, state or
country—it is difficult to get a proper comparison because of
the fact that one side of the equation are graded and of known
quality and the other side is whatever the seller can put on to
an unsuspecting consumer, so to speak.

Mr. Connell: Well, Madam Chairman, it is true that these
various kinds of specifications, whether it is in potatoes, or
steel, or whatever, certainly can have a very profound and, I
suppose one might say at times, limiting effect on anti-
dumping actions that are taken. Limiting in a way, but often if
the complaint is expertly drawn, and I believe in the case of
B.C. that it has been done that way, then the chances of it
succeeding are improved, if one can narrow the complaint to
the specific segment of the market that is affected. For
example, in the Maine-New Brunswick situation there was a
certain small, whole-sized white potato that was the subject of
that action, and all the rest of the potato industry was not
affected by that case. In the B.C. case, | know at one time, as
you have I think implied, there was some question as to
whether or not we were in the best position, because there is
this question of grading on one side of the border and not the
same kind of grading on the other side of the border. My
impression is that that is not really a factor in this case and |
have that belief because Revenue Canada has accepted the
complaint and decided that an investigation was required and
has been able to proceed with the investigation without
dropping it, at least to date.

Mr. Althouse: Is there any way that your department can
urge that a decision be forthcoming in light of the damage that
appears to be being done to B.C. producers? Can the process
be speeded up since the initial part or most of the investigation
does seem to be completed?

Mr. Connell: Well, certainly we can, we do and we have
urged Revenue Canada to proceed with all haste, all deliberate
speed, one might say, and I think they are fully aware of the
importance that the B.C. industry and ourselves attach to an
early determination. I am sure they will not proceed with haste
if by so doing they would be doing an incomplete or shoddy
investigation, but I think we have had some effect in sensitiz-
ing them to the situation, and we do that in any of the cases
where agricultural products are involved.
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Mr. Althouse: Has there been any indication from them how
much more time they need to complete the investigation and
make an announcement?

[Traduction]

nant d’une autre province ou d'un autre Etat, qui a été calibré,
est souvent pergu par le consommateur comme étant de qualité
légérement supérieure; les consommateurs accepteront donc de
payer un peu plus parce que le produit a été calibré. Ce que je
crains, c’est que lorsque nous nous trouverons aux prises avec
un cas de dumping ou de vente a perte, les personnes chargées
de I'enquéte ne se rendent pas compte du fait que, quel que soit
le coté de la frontiére provinciale, nationale ou d’Etat dont il
s’agit, il est trés difficile d’établir une bonne comparaison, a
cause du fait que d’un cdté de I'équation le produit est calibré
et de qualité connue, tandis que de I'autre coté, tout est permis
au vendeur tant que le consommateur n’est pas méfiant.

M. Connell: Madame le président, il est vrai que ces
différentes sortes de critéres, qu'il s’agisse de pommes de terre,
d’acier ou d’autre chose, peuvent avoir une incidence profonde
et parfois méme trés limitative au niveau des mesures anti-
dumping qui sont prises. Il y a donc limitation dans une
certaine mesure, mais souvent si la plainte est bien rédigée, je
pense que c’est le cas de la plainte dans I'affaire en Colombie-
Britannique, alors les chances de réussir sont accrues, surtout
si 'on parvient 4 limiter la plainte a la partie du marché qui est
touchée. Dans le cas de I'affaire entre I'Etat du Maine et le
Nouveau-Brunswick, il s’agissait d’une petite pomme de terre
a chair blanche, mais le reste de I'industrie de la pomme de
terre n’a pas du tout été touché. Pour ce qui est de I'affaire de
la Colombie-Britannique, je sais qu’a une époque, comme vous
I'avez déja, je pense, laissé entendre, il avait été question de
savoir si nous étions dans la meilleure position possible, a cause
de l'existence d’un systéme de calibrage d’un coté de la
frontiére mais pas de I'autre. J'ai 'impression que ce n’était
pas véritablement un facteur dans ce cas-1a, et si je le pense,
c’est parce que le ministére du Revenu du Canada a accepté la
plainte et décidé qu'une enquéte s'imposait. Le ministére a
d’ailleurs pu poursuivre son enquéte, qui est toujours en cours,
que je sache.

M. Althouse: Y a-t-il quelque chose que votre ministére
pourrait faire pour accélérer la prise d’une décision, vu le tort
qui semble avoir été fait aux producteurs de la Colombie-
Britannique? Le gros de I’enquéte semblant étre terminé, ce
processus ne pourrait-il pas étre accéléré?

M. Connell: Nous pouvons en effet encourager le ministére
du Revenu a travailler le plus rapidement possible, si je puis
dire, et c’est ce que nous avons fait, et je pense que le ministére
est bien au courant de I'importance que l'industrie de la
Colombie-Britannique et nous-mémes attachons a la prise
d’une décision dans les délais les plus brefs. Je suis certain qu’il
ne s’empressera pas trop, au risque de faire une mauvaise
enquéte ou une enquéte incompléte, mais je suis convaincu que
nous avons réussi a sensibiliser le ministére a I'urgence de la
situation, et c’est d’ailleurs ce que nous faisons dans tous les
cas ou il est question de produits agricoles.

M. Althouse: Le ministére vous a-t-il donné une idée du
temps dont il aurait encore besoin pour terminer son enquéte et
rendre une décision?
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Mr. Connell: Not in terms of a specific date. The indication
is that within the next few weeks—I said ““days” earlier—the
thing should be complete, unless some unforeseen problem
rears its head; and I do not think that will happen.

Mr. Althouse: Okay. I will have some questions later on the
eastern side of the country.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Althouse.
Monsieur Dionne.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Merci, madame le président. Je
suis trés heureux de rencontrer monsieur le sous-ministre et
I’équipe d’Agriculture Canada. Ce qui me fait plaisir ce matin
c’est qu’autour de la table on semble vouloir parler de plus en
plus de I'exportation des produits agricoles; ¢ca me fait plaisir
d’en entendre parler car, I'an dernier, on avait mis un peu en
doute le fait que I'on devrait exporter davantage. On a alors
mis en place la Société Canagrex. J'ai également eu I’occasion
et la fierté de lire le discours qu'a prononcé le président de
Canagrex; il a si bien dit que I’exportation des grains se fait a
un rythme trés positif dans notre pays mais que, lorsque nous
enlevions les grains, nous avions un déficit dans notre com-
merce international et que, dorénavant, il faudrait mettre
I'accent sur I'exportation de produits horticoles. Cela rejoint
un peu I'idée de mon collégue, M. McCain, assis en face de
moi, qui dit qu’on devrait faire de plus en plus d’efforts pour
avoir une meilleure qualité, une meilleure productivité, afin
d’exporter sur nos marchés internationaux; je suis 100 p. 100
en faveur de cette idée et je me réjouis de voir que beaucoup
plus de gens vont se pencher sur ce probléme afin que le
Canada puisse occuper la place qu’il lui revient sur les marchés
internationaux et que, tout en étant trés dynamiques sur les
marchés internationaux, nous pourrons rendre service a des
gens qui peuvent produire davantage et qui ont tous les
mécanismes en place présentement pour le faire. On a alors
pris comme exemple la pomme de terre, que je connais trés
bien ainsi que mon collégue M. McCain et, cette année, je ne
pense pas que I'on puisse dire qu’il ne se fait pas des choses
dans ce domaine, car on a développé davantage des stations de
recherche, on essaie de trouver de nouvelles variétés qui vont
produire davantage au pays et qui vont améliorer notre qualité
et nos rendements, donc sur le plan de la concurrence mondiale
nous serons présents et nous pourrons occuper davantage . ..
Nous avons peut-étre certains points faibles qui ont été décelés
au cours des derni¢res années, mais il faut féliciter I'équipe
d’Agriculture Canada, qui est vraiment d’avant-garde dans ce
domaine.

Maintenant, monsieur le sous-ministre, en ce qui touche la
position de la pomme de terre au niveau national, on sait que
I'on a eu des problémes pour I'exportation vers les Etats-Unis,
mais on sait également que ces problémes semblent vouloir se
régler par une forme de négociation qui a pris forme tout au
long de I'année derniére. Ceci a occasionné, bien siir, des frais
de la part des organismes agricoles, et, personnellement, ce que
je déplore c’est qu’au niveau national le Manitoba, 'Ontario,

[Translation)

M. Connell: Non, on ne nous a pas donné de date précise.
Mais d’aprés ce que nous avons compris, I'affaire devrait étre
terminée d’ici quelques semaines, j'ai parlé de jours tout a
I’heure, @ moins que ne surgisse un probléme imprévu, et je ne
pense pas que cela arrive.

M. Althouse: Trés bien. J'aurai 4 vous poser des questions
tout a I'heure au sujet de I’est du pays.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Althouse.
Mr. Dionne.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Thank you, Madam Chairman. |
am very pleased to meet with the Deputy Minister and the
team from Agriculture Canada, and what makes me very
happy this morning is the fact that all around the table seem to
want to talk more and more about exporting agricultural
products. 1 am very happy to hear that because last year
people were not too sure about the idea of exporting more
products, and Canagrex was put in place. I had the opportu-
nity, and I might add that it offered me great pride, of reading
the speech made by the president of Canagrex when he so well
explained that grain exports were growing at a very positive
pace in our country but that, when the statistics for grains
were removed, we were left with a deficit in our international
trade. He continued by saying that the emphasis should now
be placed on the exporting of horticultural products. That ties
in a bit with what my colleague across the way, Mr. McCain,
was saying when he explained that we should strive for a better
quality and a better productivity in order to export more on
our international markets. | agree 100% with that idea and |
am thrilled to see that more people are going to look at the
problem in order that Canada might hold the place which it
should hold on the international markets. Furthermore, I
believe that while being very aggressive on international
markets, we could at the same time be helping out people who
can produce more and who now have at their disposal all the
necessary systems and mechanisms to produce more. We took
the example of the potato, which I and my colleague Mr.
McCain are very familiar with. As far as this past year is
concerned, | do not think that anyone could say that not very
much has been going on with the potato: much to the contrary,
we have developed more research stations, we are trying to
find new varieties which will be more productive in Canada
and which will improve the quality and the productivity of our
potato fields. Therefore, as far as our competitiveness on world
markets is concerned, we are going to be there, and we are
going to take up more and more room. We perhaps have a few
weak points which have been identified over the course of the
past few years, but we must congratulate the team from
Agriculture Canada which has proven itself to be very much in
the avant-garde in this area.

Mr. Deputy Minister, 1 would now like to touch on the
question of the situation of the potato at the national level. We
know that there were some problems with the exporting of
potatoes to the United States, but we also know that this
problem seems to be in the process of being resolved through a
form of negotiation which has been going on throughout last
year. This has of course brought about expenses on the part of
agricultural organizations, and what I personally deplore is the
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le Québec et le Nouveau-Brunswick ont semblé vouloir
s'organiser mais jusqu'au moment ol peut-étre une province
leur a glissé entre les mains et a mis en danger un petit peu
I'organisation de cette agence nationale, qui permettrait peut-
étre aux producteurs de pomme de terre du Canada de devenir
plus forts.

Est-ce que vous croyez, monsieur le sous-ministre que cette
agence est encore en négociation et que 1984 va donner un peu
plus de poids ou aider a la naissance de cette agence sur une
base plus permanente et faire en sorte que, peut-étre, les
problémes soulevés par mon collégue, M. McCain, seront
davantage résolus par la naissance de cette fusion de toutes les
provinces qui partageront un peu la méme idée a ce sujet?

Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, I am not sure I would be
able to predict with any accuracy whether 1984 will usher in a
brave new world for the potato industry in Canada, or in any
particular part of Canada.

71135

As Mr. de Jong has pointed out, there have been a lot of
discussions over the years about the formation of a national
potato agency or an eastern Canada potato agency. I think, if |
am not mistaken, there have been about seven different
consultations or draft papers that have been presented. And, as
he also has identified, at the last moment in each one of those
discussions, one or more of the provinces has declined to
participate, and those efforts, at least temporarily, have been
scuttled.

I am sure that it is with that in mind that the government, in
its Speech from the Throne, announced that there would be a
commission of inquiry into the potato industry this year; and |
would expect, one might almost say momentarily, that the
Minister of Agriculture would be able to announce further
details of that. We look forward, from Agriculture Canada’s
point of view, and I am sure the industry’s as well, to that
inquiry getting underway and examining the state of the
potato industry and potato marketing in Canada and making
good, solid recommendations that the industry and the
department and everyone concerned will be able to accept to
bring a bit more order and cohesiveness to the potato industry,
particularly, one might say, in eastern Canada where the
swings of fortunes have been up and down, which have
required, as | indicated before, many millions of dollars in
stabilization payments which, as Mr. McCain has correctly
pointed out, and yourself, the industry does not really like or
want. They would prefer to have the kind of market every year
that they have this year, when such payments would not be
necessary.

However, I have great hopes. | hope | am not too optimistic
that the commission of inquiry will bring about some order and
good management into the production and marketing of
potatoes in Canada.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Merci, monsieur le sous-ministre.

[Traduction]

fact that at the national level, Manitoba, Ontario, Quebec and
New Brunswick only seemed to want to get organized, when a
province slid through their hands and endangered the organi-
zation of this national agency, whose work could perhaps result
in the strengthening of Canadian potato producers.

Mr. Deputy Minister, do you know if this agency is still in
the process of negotiating and do you believe that we will see
more support or weight given, on a more permanent basis, to
the creation of this agency in 1984? Perhaps the problems
which my colleague Mr. McCain brought up could be resolved
through the uniting of all these provinces which think some-
what alike.

M. Connell: Madame le président, je ne pense pas étre en
mesure de prévoir avec exactitude si ’'année 1984 marquera le
début d’une ére nouvelle et prometteuse pour l'industrie de la
pomme de terre au Canada, ni méme dans une région donnée
du pays.

Comme I'a signalé M. de Jong, on a beaucoup discuté au
cours des années de la création d’une agence nationale de la
pomme de terre ou d’une agence de la pomme de terre de I'Est
canadien. Si je ne m’abuse, il y a eu sept consultations ou
documents de travail différents. M. de Jong a également
précisé que, dans le cadre de chacune de ces discussions, au
dernier moment I'une, ou méme plusieurs, des provinces a
refusé de participer, et ces efforts ont donc échoué, au moins
temporairement.

Je suis certain que c’est d’ailleurs pour cela que le gouverne-
ment a annoncé dans son discours du Trone qu’il créerait cette
année une commission d’enquéte sur l'industrie de la pomme
de terre, et j’attends d’une minute a I"autre que le ministre de
I’Agriculture nous fournisse davantage de précisions la-dessus.
Le ministére de ’Agriculture et I'industrie aussi, j'en suis sdr,
attendent avec impatience que cette enquéte soit entreprise et
que la commission examine la situation de l'industrie de la
pomme de terre et de la commercialisation de la pomme de
terre au Canada pour qu’elle puisse faire des recommandations
judicieuses et solides que I'industrie, le ministére et tous les
intéressés pourront accepter, ce afin d’amener un peu d’ordre
et de cohésion dans l'industrie de la pomme de terre, plus
particulierement dans I’Est canadien ou les hauts et les bas
ont, comme je I’ai déja signalé, exigé des millions de dollars en
paiement de stabilisation dont I'industrie ne veut pas vraiment,
comme ’ont a si juste titre souligné M. McCain et vous-méme.
L’industrie préférerait avoir chaque année le genre de marché
qu'elle a eu cette année, ou ces paiements n'ont pas ¢té
nécessaires.

J'ai néanmoins beaucoup d’espoir. J’espére seulement ne pas
étre trop optimiste en m’attendant que la commission
d’enquéte améne de I'ordre et de la bonne gestion a la produc-
tion et a la commercialisation de la pomme de terre au
Canada.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Thank you, Mr. Deputy Minister.



2:14

Agriculture

7-2-1984

[Text]

J’ai une autre question, madame le président, mais avant de
la poser, je voudrais formuler un souhait: j’aimerais qu’Agri-
culture Canada prenne d’autres initiatives du genre de ce que
fait la Commission canadienne du lait. Présentement, la
Commission vend du beurre 4 rabais, 4 la fois pour inviter les
Canadiens & consommer plus de beurre et pour diminuer les
surplus.

Il y a sirement au pays, monsieur le sous-ministre, des
produits horticoles qui mériteraient une publicité de ce genre.
Au cours de I'hiver, au lieu d’importer de la Californie de la
laitue ou autre chose, on pourrait inviter les Canadiens a
consommer davantage de chou. On a beaucoup de chou au
pays, et sa valeur nutritive est peut-étre méme supérieure, car
il a été cultivé pendant la saison normale; on ne I’a pas fertilisé
pour activer inutilement sa croissance. Ce serait une forme de
publicité: on inviterait la population & consommer davantage
de certains produits.

Madame le président, on parle d’exportation, mais avant
d’en faire, il faut conserver nos produits. Il faut les conserver
dans des entrepdts qui leur conviennent. On sait que, au cours
des quelques derniéres années, I'on a parcouru beaucoup de
chemin dans ce domaine. On a amélioré la qualité de ces
entrep6ts et on a un meilleur contrdle de la température.

Si on veut faire de I'exportation, il ne faut pas en faire
seulement pendant une bréve période chaque année, mais bien
douze mois par année. C’est essentiel si I’'on veut stabiliser nos
exportations et garantir 4 nos clients étrangers que nous
pourrons leur fournir nos services douze mois par année.

Croyez-vous, monsieur le sous-ministre, que nous allons
avoir une politique encore plus généreuse pour la construction
d’entrepdts? Vous savez que depuis la mise en application de
ce programme, certaines régions sont devenues exportatices de
produits dont nous étions importateurs nets il y a quelques
années. Je pense que c’est un actif trés important pour notre
pays, et je voudrais que l'on continue dans cete direction.
Jaimerais avoir votre opinion a ce sujet.

® 1140

Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, | do not really anticipate
that in the fruit and vegetable area we will be able to have a
sale, so to speak, such as the Dairy Commission has
announced. That industry is not organized in the same way as
the dairy industry is organized and I would be the last to take
credit for that sale of butter in any event. But we have had and
do have promotions of Canadian products, in co-operation with
the Canadian Horticultural Council, and this has to do both
with fruits and with vegetables, in order to promote to
Canadians the Canadian products. The Fruit and Vegetable
Storage Construction Program, to which Mr. Dionne has
alluded, I think that we have this year—or in 1983 actually—
not only renewed that program but increased the amount of
money available per year from $3 million per year to $5
million per year and the grants that are made. So far, for the
fiscal year 1983-1984, we have 26 projects which have been
approved and I think there are still many applications—at

[Translation)

I have another question, Madam Chairman, but before
asking it, I would like to express a wish: |1 would like to see
Agriculture Canada take other initiatives in the same way as
the Canadian Dairy Commission has done. Right now, the
Commission is selling butter at a discount, both to encourage
Canadians to consume more butter and to decrease the
surpluses.

Mr. Deputy Minister, there are certainly some horticultural
products in this country which deserve similar publicity.
During the course of the winter, instead of importing lettuce or
other produce from California, we could perhaps encourage
Canadians to eat more cabbage. We have a lot of cabbage in
this country and the nutritional value of this vegetable is
perhaps even higher than that of lettuce, because it is cul-
tivated during the normal growing season; cabbage plants have
not been fertilized to artificially activate their growth. That
would be one form of publicity: we would simply encourage the
population to consume more of certain products.

Madam Chairman, we talk about exports, but before being
able to export our products, we must be able to preserve them.
We must preserve them in storage facilities which suit them.
We know that over the last few years, a lot of progress has
been made in this area. The quality of storage facilities has
been greatly improved and we can now better control tempera-
tures.

If we want to export, we must not export only during a brief
period every year, but 12 months a year. That is essential if we
want to stabilize our exports and guarantee regular supplies,
12 months of the year, to our foreign customers.

Mr. Deputy Minister, do you think that we are going to see
an even more generous policy for the construction of ware-
houses? You must know that since the adoption of this
program, certain regions have begun to export products that
we were net importers of only a few years back. I believe that
it is a very important asset for our country, and I would like to
see things pursued in this same direction. I would like to have
your opinion on that.

M. Connell: Madame le président, je ne prévois pas que nous
tenions des soldes dans le domaine des fruits et des légumes,
comme ce qui a été annoncé par la Commission canadienne du
lait. Cette industrie n’est pas organisée de la méme fagon que
I'industrie du lait, je suis du reste le dernier qu'il faudrait
féliciter de ce solde de beurre. Quoi qu'il en soit, nous avons
déja organisé la promotion des ventes de produits canadiens en
collaboration avec le Conseil canadien de I'horticulture, en vue
de stimuler la vente des fruits et des 1égumes canadiens auprés
des consommateurs canadiens. Quant au programme de
construction d’entrepdts pour les fruits et légumes auxquels M.
Dionne a fait allusion, je pense que cette année, ou plutdt en
1983, non seulement nous I’avons renouvelé, mais nous avons
augmenté le budget total de ce programme, qui est passé de
trois millions a cinq millions de dollars par an, ainsi que le
montant des subventions qui sont versées en vertu de celui-ci.
Pour I'année financiére 1983-1984, au total 26 projets ont
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least a number of applications—that have yet to be approved
for the 1983-1984 fiscal year, but where the construction will
be taking place primarily in the 1984 calendar year.

This has been a most well received and beneficial program,
as I am sure all members know, in that it lengthens consider-
ably the marketing season for all sorts of products; the
cabbages to which you refer, Mr. Dionne, apples, etc., etc.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): I know.

Mr. Connell: The 1984 construction season, as | say, will be
under way very soon and we do not expect any diminution at
all in the number of applications that are going to be received
and [ think again in 1985, if the program continues then at this
enhanced level, that the farmers of this kind of product and the
processers of this kind of product will benefit even more from
the program.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Dionne.

Nous avons le quorum depuis un certain temps déja. Si les
membres du Comité sont d’accord, nous allons procéder a
’'adoption du premier rapport du Sous-comité du programme
et de la procédure. Il s’agit d’'une réunion qui a eu lieu le 2
février 1984. Nous avons apporté un seul changement au
rapport. Compte tenu de la disponibilité des témoins que le
Comité voulait entendre, nous avons inversé I'ordre des
témoins. C’est-a-dire que nous recevons aujourd’hui les hauts
fonctionnaires du Ministére et, a la prochaine réunion, le 14
février, nous recevrons le sénateur Hazen Argue pour I’étude
de I'application de la Loi de stabilisation concernant le grain
de I'Ouest et du compte de stabilisation de 1981. D’accord?

M. Neil: Je propose I’adoption du premier rapport du Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure du Comité permanent
de I'agriculture.

La motion est adoptée.
(Voir le proces-verbal de la réunion.)

Le président: Nous poursuivons la période des questions
avec M. Mayer.

Mr. Mayer: Thank you, Madam Chairman. I would like to
pursue briefly if 1 could the concern that Mr. Althouse had
over what is going on in B.C. Mr. Deputy Minister, you said—
I do not know whether I quote you accurately, but it is a
paraphrase—they will not proceed by haste to make a shoddy
investigation. That is with regard to what is going on. I have a
letter here from the B.C. Vegetable Marketing Commission
that points out that the Department of Agriculture in Septem-
ber of 1982 was looking into this situation and 1 want to
concur with what Mr. Althouse was saying that anything that
can be done to speed up that process would be helpful—and I
realize it is not the Department of Agriculture, it is the
Department of National Revenue, Customs and Excise.

As far as the B.C. situation is concerned, these people feel
they have been hurt. This is the second season running, as I
understand it. Potatoes is a very expensive crop to grow. Mr.
McCain is in the potato business and 1 am familiar with it as

[Traduction]

jusqu’a présent été approuvés, et je pense qu’il reste encore de
nombreuses demandes qui devront é&tre approuvées pour
I’année financiére 1983-1984, mais pour lesquels les travaux de
construction ne commenceront qu’en 1984.

Comme le savent certainement tous les députés, ce pro-
gramme a été trés bien regu et il s'est avéré trés bénéfique en
prolongeant de fagon appréciable la saison de commercialisa-
tion pour tout un tas de produits, par exemple, les choux dont
vous faisiez état, monsieur Dionne, les pommes, etc., etc.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Je sais.

M. Connell: La saison de construction 1984 s’amorcera sous
peu et nous ne prévoyons aucune diminution pour ce qui est du
nombre de demandes que nous allons recevoir. Je pense méme
que si le programme se maintient en 1985 au niveau accru
qu’il connait a I’heure actuelle, les producteurs et transforma-
teurs de ce genre de produits bénéficierons encore davantage
du programme.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dionne.

We have had the quorum for a little while already. If the
members of the committee are in agreement, we could now
deal with the adoption of the first report of the sub-committee
on Agenda and Procedure. It deals with a meeting which was
held on the 2nd. of February, 1984. One single change was
made to the report. Given the availability of the witnesses
which the committee wished to hear, we simply reversed the
order of their appearance. In other words, today we are
hearing officials from the department and at our next meeting,
planned for February 14, we will be hearing Senator Hazen
Argue, in relation to the application of the Western Grain
Stabilization Act and the Stabilization Account for 1981. Is
everyone agreed?

Mr. Neil: | propose the adoption of the first report of the
sub-committee on Agenda and Procedure of the Standing
Committee on Agriculture.

Carried.
(See the proceedings of the meeting).

The Chairman: We will now carry on with the question
period, and it is Mr. Mayer’s turn.

M. Mayer: Merci, madame le président. Si vous le permet-
tez, je désire revenir briévement sur la préoccupation qu’a
soulevée M. Althouse au sujet de ce qui se passe en Colombie-
Britannique. Monsieur le sous-ministre, vous avez dit . . . et ce
n’est pas une citation, mais une simple paraphrase: ils ne vont
pas s’empresser au risque de faire une mauvaise enquéte. Cela
se rapporte & ce qui se passe en ce moment. J'ai devant moi
une lettre de la B.C. Vegetable Marketing Commission qui
signale que le ministére de I’Agriculture examinait la situation
en septembre 1982. Je pense, tout comme M. Althouse, que
tout ce qui pourrait accélérer le processus serait utile. Mais je
me rends bien compte qu'il ne s’agit pas du ministére de
I’Agriculture, mais du ministére du Revenu, Douane et Accise.

En ce qui concerne la Colombie-Britannique, ces gens se
sentent durement touchés, et c’est déja, je crois savoir, la
deuxiéme saison consécutive. M. McCain, qui est du métier, et
moi qui connais bien I'industrie de la pomme de terre, nous le
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well. In the name of what is fair, I want to urge you to do
whatever you can in the department to see that you speed these
people up to arrive at a decision.
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There is also the feeling that since the thing on the east
coast has at least been settled—it is now in appeal—that there
is a linkage and that because there has been no injury found on
Canadian potatoes moving south on the east coast, the
government will not pursue as vigorously as it might the
situation on the west coast, which is entirely different. I want
to emphasize that. The people on the west coast feel there is a
linkage, although I know in the department’s view there is not,
but any delay that is there seems to be unnecessary. I do not
think you could say, to quote your words back to you, Mr.
Deputy Minister, that you will not proceed by haste to make a
shoddy investigation; we agree with that. But surely when they
registered concerns with you as far back as a year-and-a-half
ago, you cannot say that is a hasty procedure.

Mr. Connell: Well, Madam Chairman, | did not wish to
imply that in the present situation with respect to B.C., there
was any shoddy investigation. My comment, rather, dealt
generally with anti-dumping investigations and was in response
to Mr. Althouse’s question about what we did and the kind of
pressure or arguments or interest that we showed in respect of
any anti-dumping investigation. It simply was that I was sure
Revenue Canada would not, in any case, proceed hastily if that
meant a shoddy or an incomplete investigation. I do not think
that is the case in the B.C. potato situation; True, it has taken
several months, but I believe they are proceeding and have
proceeded expeditiously. I expect they will be able to make
their announcement very shortly. Of couese I will be glad to
renew contact, or tell them again about our interest, and the
importance to producers, but we are doing that constantly
anyway. We do not want to wear out our welcome, of course,
but I am sure they are well aware of the importance the whole
industry and ourselves attach to it.

Mr. Mayer: Let me read you, if | can, Madam Chairman, a
portion of a letter I received just before Christmas from Mr.
R. G. Towsley, the Secretary and Manager of the B.C.
Vegetable Marketing Commission. He says, in part:

We began petitioning the Department of Agriculture in
Septembmber of 1982 for a surtax application on U.S.
potatoes but were guided to the Anti-Dumping Regulations
as a better avenue for our complaint.

Now, that was in September, 1982. That is getting to be a
year-and-a-half ago. Has the department considered what they
have asked for in British Columbia; that is, a surtax applica-
tion? If you cannot get a decision out of Revenue Canada
through the Anti-Dumping provisions, has the department
considered putting on some surtax in order to protect the . . .

[Translation)

savons bien: sa culture entraine des frais considérables. Je fais
appel a votre sens de la justice et vous adjure de faire ce qui est
en votre pouvoir, au ministére, pour hater une décision.

On a également I'impression, tout au moins puisque cette
question sur la cote est a été réglée—on a maintenant interjeté
appel—qu’il existe un rapport et parce qu’on a constaté que les
pommes de terre canadiennes de la cote est qui sont expédiées
vers le Sud, sont saines, le gouvernement ne s'efforcera pas
autant qu’il le pourrait de régler la situation sur la cdte ouest,
ou elle se présente tout différemment. Jinsiste la-dessus, les
gens de la cote ouest ont I'impression que les deux situations
sont liées, bien que je sache que ce n’est pas l'opinion du
ministére, mais tout délai qui s’y produit est jugé superflu.
Certes, monsieur le sous-ministre, vous ne devriez pas, pour
reprendre vos propres termes, bacler la besogne par excés de
précipitation, nous n’en disconvenons pas. Mais quand les
doléances présentées remontent 4 un an et demi, on ne peut
plus guére parler de précipitation.

M. Connell: Je ne voulais certainement pas dire, madame le
président, que I'enquéte avait été baclée dans le cas de la
situation actuelle en Colombie-Britannique. L’observation que
j'ai faite visait plutdt, d’'une facon générale, I'enquéte anti-
dumping, et ce en réponse a la question de M. Althouse,
demandant quelles mesures nous avions prises et quelles
étaient nos arguments, intéréts ou pressions, en matiéres
d’enquéte anti-dumping. J'affirmais simplement par la qu’a
mon avis, Revenu Canada, par souci d’assurer que I’enquéte
soit compléte et bien faite, ne proceéderait pas avec précipita-
tion. Cela ne me parait pas le cas dans I'affaire des pommes de
terre de Colombie-Britannique; il est vrai que plusieurs mois se
sont écoulés, mais I'affaire suit son cours, je crois, et avec
diligence. Je crois qu'une communication sera faite trés
prochainement. Je suis tout a fait disposé, bien entendu, a
renouer le contact ou 4 leur faire part de nouveau de I'intérét
de la question et de I'importance qu’y attachent les produc-
teurs, mais c’est de toute fagon ce que nous faisons déja. Nous
ne voulons pas abuser de leur hospitalité, bien entendu, mais je
suis certain, de toute fagon, qu'ils se rendent bien compte de
I'importance que nous—et toute I'industrie—y attachons.

M. Mayer: Permettez-moi de vous lire, madame le prési-
dent, un extrait d’une lettre que j'ai regue peu avant Nogl de
M. R.G. Towsley, secrétaire et directeur de la B.C. Vegetable
Marketing Commission. Voici le passage:

Dés septembre 1982, nous nous sommes adressés au
ministére de I'Agriculture en demandant que soient
surtaxées les pommes de terre provenant des Etats-Unis,
mais on nous a répondu qu’il était préférable pour nous
d’invoquer le Réglement anti-dumping.

C’était en septembre 1982, soit il y a bientdt un an et demi. Le
ministére a-t-il réfléchi 4 ce qu'on réclamait en Colombie-
Britannique, a savoir I'application de la surtaxe? Si Revenu
Canada ne peut prendre des décisions en se basant sur les
dispositions du Réglement anti-dumping, le ministére a-t-il
envisagé d’imposer une surtaxe afin de protéger . . .
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Mr. Connell: The surtax, indeed, was the first route that was
explored, Mr. Mayer. If I remember correctly, our feeling in
the department at the time was that it certainly was a worthy
way to proceed, but it is not the Department of Agriculture
that imposes such surtaxes. We can recommend that to the
Minister of Finance and he, of course, would consult not only
with us, but with the Minister of State for International Trade.
It was decided that a surtax was not the most appropriate way
to go and, as a result of that, the Anti-Dumping complaint was
filed and Revenue Canada was able to proceed with that.
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Mr. Mayer: Well, I agree, and I think none of us like duties
at borders. All of us would like it if everybody could trade in
such a way they would not be necesary. But if, the Americans
can produce earlier than we can and get the jump on us in
getting a product on the market and suppliers getting used to
that, then it becomess tougher for our people to stay in the
market. As I said, I think all of us like to look at restrictions at
the border certainly only as a last resort.

But just to impress upon yu what has been going on into the
second crop season, let me quote from Mr. Towsley’s letter
again.

... National Revenue began a Deputy Minister’s investiga-

tion into the B.C. situation. This investigation was to be

completed in late November or early December . . .

This letter was dated 1983, December. It is now into
February 1984 and you say that it is going to be a few weeks
yet. Unfortunately, it looks like it could go on. I think these
people are certainly looking for a resolution or some kind of
decision regarding what they have suggested in this letter.

Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, Revenue Canada, Customs
and Excise, began the investigation on September 30. In
respect to surtax vis-a-vis or versus anti-dumping, perhaps it is
worth pointing out that under the GATT of which we are a
member, anti-dumping is, shall I say, much more defensible in
terms of counter-measures which another country might take.
Anti-dumping investigations rely on the facts as to whether
there is dumping or there is not, and whether there is anti-
dumping duty or there is not. The imposition of a surtax might
well require compensation to be paid to the countries against
whom the surtax is imposed. | am sure that would have been a
consideration by the Minister of Finance and the Minister of
State for International Trade in concluding that a surtax was
not the most appropriate way to go.

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, I thank the deputy for that
response. In regard to the concern raised by Mr. McCain over
the kind of financial circumstances that the Canadian
Horticultural Council is in as a result of the action taken by
the U.S. against Canadian potatoes, I would like to move a
motion, Madam Speaker, which I will read:.

I move that this committee recommend to the Minister of
Agriculture that the Government of Canada make financial
assistance available to the Canadian Horticultural Council and

[Traduction]

M. Connell: La surtaxe était effectivement le premier moyen
que nous avions envisagé, monsieur Mayer. Le ministére a jugé
a I'époque, si j’ai bonne mémoire, que ¢’était un moyen a notre
disposition, mais ce n’est pas le ministére de I'Agriculture qui
impose ces surtaxes. Nous pouvons faire une recommandation
a cet effet au ministre des Finances qui se concerterait alors
non seulement avec nous, mais également avec le ministre
d’Etat pour le commerce international. L’imposition d’une
surtaxe n'a pas été considérée comme la meilleure fagon de
procéder, a la suite de quoi, une réclamation anti-dumping a
été faite et Revenu Canada a pu y donner suite.

M. Mayer: Aucun d’entre nous, j'en conviens, n'apprécie le
paiement de droits a la frontiére; chacun espére que le respect
de certaines régles les rendrait superflus. Mais si les Améri-
cains peuvent écouler leurs récoltes avant nous, et nous
coupent I’herbe sous les pieds, et si les fournisseurs s habituent
a cette situation, nos producteurs auront plus de difficultés a se
maintenir sur le marché. Tous, je le répéte, nous n’envisageons
les restrictions aux frontiéres que comme un dernier recours.

Mais je voudrais bien vous faire comprendre ce qui s’est
passé pour la seconde saison consécutive, en vous citant de
nouveau un passage de la lettre de M. Towsley.

Le sous-ministre de Revenu national a ouvert une
enquéte sur la situation en Colombie-Britannique, enquéte
qui devait étre achevée fin-novembre ou début décembre . . .

Cette lettre est datée de décembre 1983. Or, nous sommes
en février 1984, et d’aprés vous, il faut encore compter
quelques semaines. Malheureusement, les choses semblent
s’éterniser et ces gens cherchent certainement a prendre une
décision sur les propositions contenues dans cette lettre.

M. Connell: Madame le président, les services des Douanes
et Accises de Revenu Canada ont ouvert I’enquéte le 30
septembre. Je voudrais vous faire remarquer qu’en ce qui
concerne la surtaxe comme mesure anti-dumping, celle-ci est
beaucoup mieux admise, aux termes du GATT dont nous
sommes membres, si ce sont des mesures prises pour nous
défendre contre un autre pays. Dans une enquéte anti-
dumping, il faut déterminer s'il y a ou non dumping, et s’il y a
ou non des droits anti-dumping. Si I’on impose une surtaxe, il
pourrait devenir nécessaire d’indemniser le pays a l'encontre
duquel la surtaxe a été imposée. Je suis sir que cet argument a
€té pris en considération par le ministre des Finances et par le
ministre d’Etat pour le commerce international lorsqu’ils ont
conclu qu'une surtaxe n’était pas la mesure la plus judicieuse a
prendre.

M. Mayer: Madame le président, je remercie le député de sa
réponse. A propos des craintes exprimées par M. McCain sur
la situation financiére ou se trouve le Canadian Horticultural
Council a la suite des mesures prises par les Etats-Unis contre
les pommes de terre canadiennes, j'aimerais proposer une
motion, madame le président, dont je vais donner lecture:

Je propose que le Comité recommande au ministre de
I’Agriculture que le gouvernement du Canada accorde une
aide financiére au Canadian Horticultural Council et aux
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Potato Producers of Canada for the purposes of defraying the
costs associated with all the hearings related to the imposition
of the surtax of duty imposed by the U.S. on potato exports
from eastern Canada.

We are not suggesting here, we are not demanding, and we
are not making it an ironclad request. We are suggest that this
committee pass a motion that the Government of Canada
consider making some financial assistance available. So that, I
think, leaves the Minister open to some discretion in what he is
prepared to do.

However, I certainly think, on the basis of the kind of
organization which the Canadian Horticultural Council is, and
the kind of work it did in successfully defending the action
taken by the main producers on behalf of not only the pro-
ducers in the Maritimes but which carries ramifications for the
rest of the horticultural industry right across the country; this
deserves serious consideration. I think it is entirely reasonable
to ask that the Minister and the government be willing at least
to consider the concern raised by Mr. McCain and, as I said, I
would so move that motion, Madam Chairman.

Mr. McCain: Madam Chairman, may I just say a word or
two on that motion, please?

The Chairman: Two minutes, sir.

Mr. McCain: I would like to say, Madam Chairman, that I
am sure the deputy Minister is aware that there is legislation
before the U.S. Congress and Senate which would obligate the
federal government of the United States to pick up a very
major portion of the costs of any such representation as that
made in respect to the potato industry in any aspect of trade in
the United States, particularly the fruit and vegetable
industry. There is also legislation there which gives the
Secretary of Agriculture the sole authority to impose these
duties without the hearings.

it U b

Madam Chairman, I think this motion is one which should
pass this committee, because I think we have to serve notice on
the United States not that we are in a war, but that the
Government of Canada recognizes the serious consequence of
such depredations as can be imposed upon our trade. Madam
Chairman, I would appeal to every member of this committee
to give this motion unanimous consent.

Some hon. Members: Hear, hear!

Mr. McCain: I think it is imperative to Canadian trade as it
relates to the fruit and vegetable industry that the United
States understand we are not going to lie down in front of
them at all, that the Government of Canada will, in fact,
support its industries as the United States will. Now, that
legislation in the United States has not passed, but it is still
there for consideration.

Le président: Monsieur Mayer, comme la motion a des
répercussions financiéres importantes, il semble qu’elle ne

[Translation)

producteurs de pommes de terre du Canada pour les défrayer
des frais encourus pour les audiences relatives 4 I'imposition
d’une surtaxe de droits imposée par les Etats-Unis sur les
exportations de pommes de terre du Canada de I'est.

Il ne s’agit ni d’'une demande, ni d’une exigence, mais d’une
simple suggestion: nous demandons au Comité d’adopter une
motion demandant au gouvernement du Canada d’envisager
d’accorder une aide financiére, ce qui laisse au ministre une
certaine latitude dans son action.

Je crois toutefois qu'une telle demande mérite d’étre
sérieusement prise en considération, en raison du genre
d’organisation que représente le Canadian Horticultural
Council, de I'action qu’il a menée en défendant avec succés la
cause des principaux producteurs, et ce au nom non seulement
des producteurs des Maritimes mais en étendant les consé-
quences a I'industrie horticole dans tout le pays. Demander au
ministre et au gouvernement de bien vouloir prendre tout au
moins en considération les doléances de M. McCain me parait
relever du bon sens et c’est donc la motion que je propose,
madame le président.

M. McCain: Madame le président, me permettez-vous de
dire quelques mots sur cette motion?

Le président: Je vous donne deux minutes, monsieur.

M. McCain: Je suis siir, madame le président, que le sous-
ministre n’ignore pas que le Congrés et le Sénat des Etats-Unis
ont été saisis d’un projet de loi qui obligerait le gouvernement
fédéral des Etats-Unis a assumer une grande partie des cofits
de toute demande similaire a celle présentée pour I'industrie de
la pomme de terre, dans toute branche des échanges commer-
ciaux des Etats-Unis, en particulier le secteur des fruits et
légumes. Il existe aussi une loi en vertu de laquelle le secrétaire
de I’Agriculture peut imposer des taxes sans passer par des
audiences.

Madame le président, j'estime que le Comité devrait adopter
cette motion car je crois qu’il faut avertir les Etats-Unis non
pas du fait que nous soyons en guerre mais plutdt du fait que le
gouvernement du Canada reconnait les conséquences sérieuses
qu’auront ces ravages sur notre commerce. Madame le
président, je prie tous les membres du Comité d’accorder leur
consentement A cette motion pour qu’elle soit adoptée a
'unanimité.

Des voix: Bravo!

M. McCain: Il est primordial, dans I'intérét du commerce de
fruits et légumes au Canada, que les Etats-Unis comprennent
que nous n’allons pas accepter cette situation sans protester. lls
doivent comprendre que le gouvernement du Canada appuiera
ces industries tout comme le feraient les Etats-Unis. Or, le
projet n’a pas encore force de loi aux Etats-Unis mais il est
néanmoins a I'étude.

The Chairman: Mr. Mayer, as this motion has considerable
financial implications, I do not think it can be passed by the
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puisse étre acceptée par le Comité. Toutefois, les greffiers se
penchent présentement sur la question.

Monsieur Neil, est-ce a propos de la méme question?

Mr. Neil: Yes, Madam Chairman, | would like to speak on
the motion.

This motion is not one that involves the expenditure of
money. It is simply a motion that recommends to the Minister,
and my understanding is that such motions are in order. We
are simply making a recommendation to the Minister. I realize
the committee and ordinary members are not able to make
motions that involve the expenditure of money, but we can
certainly make motions that recommend to Ministers that
money be spent. [ would say, in my opinion, the motion is in
order.

Mr. McCain: In recommending a specific expenditure, it
would be totally out of order. As a recommendation to the
Minister to give consideration to support, I think it is in order,
Madam Chairman.

Le président: Monsieur Mayer.

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, just to follow up on what
Mr. Neil has said, that is precisely why the motion was worded
that way. As I said, it is simply a recommendation that the
Minister consider providing financial assistance. | realize the
committee is limited in what it can do. The only thing it can do
as far as expenditures is concerned is reduce; it cannot increase
expenditures or cause expenditures to be . . .

Mr. McCain: Madam Chairman, it is not a motion of
criticism of the Minister. It is a request to reconsider his
position in respect to financing.

Le président: Pour ce qui est de la motion, les greffiers nous
affirment qu’elle est irrecevable.

Toutefois, si vous désirez formuler une recommandation au
ministre, je crois qu'on la lui a déja faite, si I'on s’en reporte au
débat qui vient d’avoir lieu. Cependant, nous ne pouvons plus
en discuter maintenant parce que les greffiers estiment
toujours que la motion est irrecevable et qu’elle nécessiterait
un vote de la part des membres du Comité.

Mr. Neil: Madam Chairman, in the House of Commons on
Private Members’ motions, there is nothing wrong with a
Private Member’s bringing forth a motion—it may have been
debated many times—recommending to the government or a
particular Minister that consideration be given to spending
certain moneys. I would challenge the Chair’s ruling.

Le président: Vous avez raison.

Mr. Mayer: In fact, if you look at the Private Member’s
motion up for today’s debate, Madam Chairman, it is precisely
that kind of motion. It is a motion that recommends to the
government that it look at the whole concept of agri-bonds,
and it is moved in the name of Mr. Gurbin, which by implica-
tion is going to involve some kind of tax expenditure on behalf
of the government. It is simply a recommendation in Dr.
Gurbin’s motion that this kind of thing be considered, and that

[Traduction]

Committee. However, the clerks are now checking to see what
the situation is.

Mr. Neil, is this on the same point?

M. Neil: Oui, madame le président. J'aimerais parler du
méme sujet.

Cette motion ne porte pas affectation de fonds. Clest
simplement une motion qui servira de recommandation au
ministre et je crois savoir que ce genre de motion est dans les
régles. Nous ne faisons que remettre une recommandation au
ministre. Bien que le Comité et des députés ne soient pas en
mesure de présenter des motions portant affectation de fonds,
nous sommes en droit de recommander au ministre de faire
certaines dépenses. A mon avis, la motion est dans les régles.

M. McCain: S’il y avait une recommandation de verser des
fonds dans un but précis, elle ne serait pas permise. Toutefois,
madame le président, a titre de recommandation au ministre,
je crois bien qu’elle est dans les régles.

The Chairman: Mr. Mayer.

M. Mayer: Madame le président, pour faire suite aux
commentaires de M. Neil, la motion a été ainsi libellée dans ce
but précis. C’est-a-dire, il s’agit de la simple recommandation
que le ministre envisage de fournir une aide financiére. Le
Comité a des pouvoirs limités, je I'admets. Je sais qu’il ne peut
que réduire des budgets et qu’elle ne peut les augmenter ou
faire en sorte que les dépenses soient augmentées . . .

M. McCain: Madame le président, le but de la motion n’est
pas de critiquer le ministre. Elle vise uniquement a lui
demander de réexaminer sa position en ce qui concerne le
financement.

The Chairman: The clerks inform me that the motion is out
of order.

However, as far as a recommendation is concerned, | think
the proceedings will show that you have already made one.
However, we cannot give this matter any more discussion
because the clerks still feel the motion is out of order and that
it would require a vote from the members of the committee.

M. Neil: Madame le président, a la Chambre des commu-
nes, les députés peuvent présenter des motions d’initiatives
parlementaires. Elles peuvent faire I'objet de beaucoup de
discussions et elles peuvent recommander que le gouvernement
ou qu’un ministre examine la possibilité d’affecter certains
crédits. Je conteste la décision du président.

The Chairman: You are correct.

M. Mayer: Justement, madame le président, la motion
d’initiative parlementaire présentée aujourd’hui tombe dans
cette catégorie. C’est une motion qui recommande au gouver-
nement d’envisager ’étude des obligations agricoles, proposée
par M. Gurbin et qui aurait comme conséquence une dépense
fiscale par le gouvernement. La motion du docteur Gurbin
contient simplement la recommandation que la question soit
considérée. D’ailleurs, sa formulation refléte cet objectif,
'objectif de la motion appuyée par M. McCain.
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is precisely the kind of wording you have in front of you, which
was moved and seconded by Mr. McCain.
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So I cannot understand why you would not find it in order.
Certainly we have considered the thing here today, but if the
committee feels this is something that should be done,
certainly a motion that is voted on and agreed on by the
committee and presented to the House is going to carry a lot
more weight than something that just happens to be in the
transcript from the committee proceedings of today.

Le président: Monsieur Mayer, conformément a I’article
564 du Reéglement, comme vous le dites, il est certain que tout
rapport présenté par un comité et dont ’application exigerait
la dépense de deniers publics, doit comporter I’expression
consacrée: «Que le gouvernement envisage I’opportunité de . . .
»

Cette formulation serait acceptable, mais je ne pense pas
que, dans un rapport de comité, on puisse exiger que le
gouvernement ajoute des crédits 4 ceux qui ont déja été prévus
dans un texte de loi ou autrement. Mais on peut certainement,
selon I'expression consacrée, je le répéte, demander au
gouvernement d’envisager ['opportunité d’augmenter des
dépenses ou la valeur des programmes déja existants.

Si cela répond a votre question, alors bien sir, le Comité
pourrait recommander au gouvernement d’envisager . . .

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madame le président, le Conseil
canadien de I’horticulture a déja fait une demande au minis-
tére de I’Agriculture dans ce sens et comme il s’est trés bien
acquitté de sa tdche, je ne vois pas la nécessité de me pronon-
cer sur la question.

Le président: Le compte rendu du Comité démontrera
que...

Oui, monsieur Mayer.

Mr. Mayer: First of all, by unanimous agreement, might we
change the wording so it concurs with the section you quoted
in Beauchesne—564?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

Mr. Mayer: Is that agreeable? And if that is the case, then
the motion is in order, Madam Chairman.

Mr. McCain: Ask the clerk to adjust the motion so it reads
in accordance with the rules.

Le président: Alors, si vous étes d’accord pour attendre
quelques minutes, les greffiers s’occuperont de la rédaction
d’une recommandation au gouvernement qui soit conforme a
I'article 564 du Réglement. D’accord?

An Hon. Member: Agreed.
Le président: Le prochain intervenant sera M. Ostiguy.

Mr. Neil: We might as well dispose of this now. It is just a
matter of changing a few words, Madam Chairman. We
cannot set aside a motion. I think we have to deal with it.

[Translation)

Ainsi, je ne vois pas pourquoi elle serait irrecevable. Nous
avons bien étudié€ la question aujourd’hui et si le Comité estime
qu’il faudrait aller au-dela, une motion adoptée par le Comité
et présentée a la Chambre des communes aura beaucoup plus
de crédibilité auprés de la Chambre qu'une simple phrase
paraissant dans les délibérations de la réunion d’aujourd’hui.

The Chairman: Mr. Mayer, in accordance with Section 564
of the Parliamentary Rules, as you have pointed out, reports
coming from a committee and requiring expenditure of public
moneys must include the traditional words, “that the govern-
ment give consideration to the advisibility of™.

This wording would be acceptable. However, I do not think
that in a committee report we can request that the government
spend moneys above and beyond those already made available
under a piece of legislation. We can nonetheless use this
accepted wording and, as I said, ask the government to
consider the advisability of increasing the expenditures or the
budgets for existing programs.

If you are satisfied with this solution, the committee can
most certainly recommend that the government consider . . .

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madam Chairman, the Canadian
Horticulture Council has already requested the Department of
Agriculture to take the same kind of measures and as they did
such a good job, I do not see the necessity of taking a position
on this matter.

The Chairman: The committee proceedings will show
that .

Yes, Mr. Mayer.

M. Mayer: D’abord, si nous avons le consentement unanime
du Comité, peut-étre que nous pourrions changer la formula-
tion pour que la motion soit conforme a larticle 564 de
Beauchesne.

Des voix: D’accord.

M. Mayer: Est-ce que cela vous convient? Si oui, la motion
sera recevable, madame le président.

M. McCain: Il faudrait demander au greffier de modifier la
formulation pour qu’elle soit conforme au Réglement.

The Chairman: So if you are willing to wait a few minutes,
the clerks will draft a recommendation to the government that
is in accordance with Section 564 of the Rules. Are we agreed?

Une voix: D’accord.
The Chairman: The next speaker is Mr. Ostiguy.

M. Neil: Nous ferions aussi bien d’en finir avec la motion
tout de suite. Il s’agit simplement de changer quelques mots,
madame le président. Nous ne pouvons laisser une motion en
suspens. Il faut régler la question maintenant.
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Le président: Les greffiers modifieraient la motion de
maniére 4 la rendre conforme au commentaire 564 de Beau-
chesne.

D’accord?
Mr. McCain: [ think the clerk has that done right now.

Mr. Mayer: She has it done right now. You have a very
good clerk. She is nodding her head in agreement.

Le président: On est en train de le faire.

Mr. Mayer: Unless somebody has some concerns about it, is
there any reason why we cannot proceed with this motion?

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): They are cleverer than you think.
Mr. Mayer: | never underestimate the clerks.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Mayer.

Si vous étes d’accord, le greffier pourrait nous lire le texte de
la motion.

The Clerk of the Committee: It is moved by Mr. Mayer,
seconded by Mr. McCain, that the Government of Canada
give consideration to the advisability of making financial
assistance available to the Canadian Horticultural Council and
Potato Producers of Canada for the purpose of deferring the
cost associated with all hearings related to the imposition of
the surcharge of duly imposed by the U.S. in potato exports
from eastern Canada.

Some hon. Members: Agreed.
® 1205

Le président: Les membres du Comité sont donc d’accord
sur le nouveau texte de la motion.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Je m’abstiens de voter, madame le
président car, comme je I’ai dit tantdt, je sais que le Conseil
canadien de I'horticulture a déja fait une demande en ce sens,
il y a plusieurs mois.

Le président: Un instant, je vous prie. Il n'y aura pas de
discussion a ce sujet. Je demande tout simplement aux
membres du Comité s’ils sont d’accord sur la motion, sous la
forme modifiée que le greffier vient de lire .

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

Le président: D’accord.

La motion est adoptée a la majorité des voix.

Le président: Le prochain intervenant sera M. Ostiguy.
M. Ostiguy: Merci, madame le président.

Ce matin, en ce début des séances du Comité permanent de
I"agriculture, il faudrait presque faire un tour d’horizon des
programmes mis de I'avant par le ministére de I’Agriculture.

Madame le président, dans une région du Québec comme la
mienne ou I'agriculture est des plus prospéres, il y a beaucoup
de sujets a discuter. Par contre, jaimerais me confiner a
essayer d’améliorer la situation agricole au Canada et, par le
fait méme, la position du ministére de I’Agriculture.

[Traduction]

The Chairman: The clerks will change the wording so that
the motion is in accordance with Section 564 of Beauchesne.

Agreed?
M. McCain: Je crois que le greffier vient juste de le faire.

M. Mayer: Effectivement. Elle est excellente, votre greffier.
Et elle opine du chef.

The Chairman: The wording is being changed.

M. Mayer: A moins que I'on ait quelque chose & dire a ce
sujet, pourrait-on faire adopter la motion?

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Ils sont plus fins que vous ne le
pensiez.

M. Mayer: Je ne fais jamais 'erreur de sous-estimer les
greffiers.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mayer.

If you are all agreed, the clerk will read the wording of the
motion.

Le greffier du Comité: Il est propos¢ par M. Mayer et
appuyé par M. McCain que le Gouvernement du Canada
envisage I’opportunité d’accorder une aide financiére au
Conseil canadien de I'horticulture et aux producteurs de
pommes de terre du Canada pour couvrir les frais relatifs aux
audiences portant sur la taxe douaniére imposée aux exporta-
tions de pommes de terre de I’'Est du Canada par les autorités
américaines.

Des voix: D’accord.

The Chairman: The members of the committee agree on the
new wording of the motion.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): I am abstaining, Madam
Chairman, because, as | said earlier, the Canadian Horticul-
ture Council put in a request to this effect several months ago.

The Chairman: Just a moment, please. There will be no
debate on this. I am simply asking the members of the
committee whether they agree with the amended version of the
motion that the clerk has just read.

Des voix: D’accord.

The Chairman: Agreed.

The motion is carried on division.

The Chairman: The next speaker will be Mr. Ostiguy.
Mr. Ostiguy: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

This morning, since it is the first meeting of the Standing
Committee on Agriculture, we should perhaps do a run-down
of the programs provided by the Department of Agriculture.

In a part of Quebec like the one I come from, Madam
Chairman, where agriculture is thriving, there are a lot of
things to discuss. I would, however, like to confine my
statement to areas where efforts are being made to improve
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Je désirerais donc aborder la Loi sur le paiement anticipé
des récoltes, adoptée par le gouvernement canadien le 12 mai
1977, qui vise a aider les agriculteurs a entreposer les céréales
pendant la période de récolte, alors que les prix sont moins
élevés, afin de leur permettre d’attendre jusqu’a une période de
douze mois, je crois, pour obtenir le meilleur prix possible de la
vente de leur récolte.

Le montant prété a chaque agriculteur qui veut se prévaloir
de la Loi est de 15,000% et, au Québec, le programme est
administré par la Fédération des producteurs de cultures
commerciales du Québec, section de I'U.P.A.

Or, en 1982-1983, des agriculteurs se sont prévalus de la Loi
pour un prét sans intérét et ont di signer une entente avec la
Fédération qui a une liste d’acheteurs accrédités, ce qui est la
source du probléme que je vous expliquerai en peu de mots.

Dans la région de Saint-Hyacinthe, cette liste, qui était
minime, comportait le nom de trés petits courtiers et de gros
acheteurs, comme la Co-opérative fédérée du Québec ou la Co-
opérative de Sainte-Rosalie, 4 qui les agriculteurs pouvaient
vendre leurs céréales. Mais, comme dans les autres régions du
Québec, a certaines occasions, ces producteurs ont vendu leurs
céréales a des sociétés qui n’étaient pas accréditées auprés de
la Fédération. Or, ces agriculteurs ont remboursé leur emprunt
dans les délais prescrits, mais la Fédération les a pénalisés a
partir du jour ou I’emprunt de 15,0008 a été contracté jusqu’au
jour ou il a été remboursé. Ainsi, un grand nombre d’agricul-
teurs a qui on a imposé des frais variant entre 2,000% et 3,000%
ne veulent plus entendre parler de la Loi.

Enfin, d’autres qui ont payé avec un mois de retard ont été
pénalisés sur les treize mois.

Madame le président, la chose me semble tout simplement
aberrante. On dit que la Loi sur le paiement anticipé des
récoltes cherche a aider I'agriculteur et I'agriculture, mais
qu’en est-il au juste?
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Il semble qu’on se renvoie la balle. La Fédération rejette le
blime sur Agriculture Canada, tandis qu’Agriculture Canada
riposte que la faute en revient 4 la Fédération. Il va falloir
trancher 4 un moment donné. C’est presque un jeu de Coleco-
vision. 1l faut cesser ce jeu et modifier la Loi, s’il le faut, ou
I'interpréter d’'une maniére plus humaine, parce que certains
agriculteurs de ma région qui se sont prévalus de ce prét, mais
qui, je le répéte, n’ont pas vendu leur production a un acheteur
accrédité, qui refuse d’ailleurs de I'étre pour ne pas avoir a
dévoiler son bilan a tous les membres de la Fédération ou de
U.P.A, ... au fait, cette derniére étale-t-elle son bilan 4 la
population? . .. donc, ces personnes sont pénalisées pour des
sommes d’argent variant entre 2,000$ et 3,0008, méme si clles
ont fait le remboursement dans les délais prescrits.

Le président: Monsieur le sous-ministre.

[Translation)

agriculture in Canada and improve Agriculture Canada’s
position.

I would first like to deal with the Advance Payments for
Crops Act, enacted by the federal government on May 12,
1977, which is designed to help farmers store grain during the
harvesting period, when prices are lower, so that they can wait
up to 12 months, I believe, to get the best possible price for
their crop.

Each farmer who wants to benefit under the Act is loaned
an amount of $15,000 and, in Quebec, the program is adminis-
tered by the Fédération des producteurs de cultures commer-
ciales du Québec, which is part of the U.P.A.

In 1982-1983, farmers used the Act to get a no-interest loan
and had to sign an agreement with the federation, which has a
list of certified buyers, which is the cause of the problem that I
will describe to you in a few words.

In the Saint-Hyacinthe region, this list, which was not very
long, included the names of very small brokers and big buyers,
like the Co-opérative fédérée du Québec and the Co-opérative
de Sainte-Rosalie, to whom farmers could sell their grain.
But, as sometimes happens in other parts of Quebec, the
producers sold their crops to companies that were not certified
by the federation. These farmers paid back their loan by the
deadline, but the federation penalized them from the day the
$15,000 loan was made to the day when it was paid back. So
there are a certain number of farmers who had to pay amounts
of between $2,000 and $3,000 and who want to have nothing
more to do with the Act.

Others who paid back the loan one month late paid a fine
for those 13 months.

This is simply ridiculous, Madam Chairman. The Advance
Payment for Crops Act is supposed to help farmers and
agriculture, but what is really going on?

It seems that we are throwing the ball back and forth into
each other’s court. The federation blames Agriculture Canada,
while Agriculture Canada maintains that the fault lies with
the federation. We are going to have to decide one way or
another at some point. It is almost like a Colecovision video
game. We must put a stop to this game and amend the Act, if
necessary, or interpret it in a more humane fashion, because
some farmers in my region who took advantage of the loan
provisions, but, I repeat, did not sell their production to an
accredited buyer—who indeed, refuses to become one so as to
avoid providing a balance sheet to all the members of the
federation or the UPS; in fact, does the latter release such
information to the general population?—as I was saying, these
farmers are made to pay penalties of between $2,000 and
$3,000 even if they have paid the money back within the
required period of time.

The Chairman: Mr. deputy minister.
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Mr. Connell: Madam Chairman, as far as the specific cases,
I cannot really comment on that. I would be glad to look into
the specific cases that Mr. Ostiguy talks about, but in general
terms and the way the acts involved are written and are
adMinistered, I would ask Mr. Jacques to speak to the way the
advance payment for crops or, if it is applicable, the APCMA,
another similar piece of legislation, operates. M. Jacques.

M. Y. Jacques (sous-ministre adjoint, Commercialisation et
Economie, ministére de I’Agriculture): Comme vous le dites,
monsieur Ostiguy, une somme de 15,390% a été consentie a un
certain monsieur.

M. Ostiguy: Restons-en aux généralités.

M. Jacques: D’accord, mais c’est un cas particulier qui peut
se répéter. En dépit du fait que ces personnes ont remboursé,
en toute bonne foi, la somme qui avait été avancée, la Loi sur
le paiement anticipé des récoltes, dont voici la copie ci-
annexée, stipule aux articles 5 b)(i)(B) et 7 que les intéréts sur
les montants remboursés directement a I’Association doivent
étre payés a cette dernicre.

Quant a la liste des acheteurs, je pense que vous avez
répondu a la question. En effet, le texte législatif exige la
présentation du bilan. Or, plusieurs acheteurs éventuels ont
refusé de le faire. Automatiquement, leur nom ne peut figurer
sur la liste. Nous devons adapter le programme a la loi dont
nous disposons. D’ailleurs, au sujet des cas mentionnés, j’ai
demandé I’avis de nos avocats qui ont recommandé de nous en
tenir au texte de la loi.

Je ne dis pas que la loi est parfaite, mais que, pour les cas
que vous soulevez, nous sommes obligés de I'appliquer telle
qu’elle est.

Si vous désirez modifier la Loi, il serait peut-étre utile de le
proposer au ministre qui, dans le cadre d’une révision de la Loi
sur le paiement anticipé des récoltes, pourrait certainement en
tenir compte.

Le président: Oui, monsieur Ostiguy.

M. Ostiguy: Toujours a propos de la Loi, monsieur Jacques,
le paragraphe (B) stipule, et je cite:

soit par la remise du paiement directement a ’association, y

compris, sous réserve de Iarticle 7, I'intérét couru depuis le

jour ot il a été consenti au taux que la banque a appliqué au

prét qu’elle a accordé a I'association pour le paiement,

Par contre, I'article 7 stipule, et je le cite:
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7. Le producteur qui, en application de la disposition
5b)(i)(B) ou (C), rembourse directement l’association de
tout ou partie du paiement anticipé dont il a bénéficié n’est
pas tenu, au cas ou il rembourse le tout avant d’étre en
défaut, au paiement de I'intérét sur les plus petits des
montants suivants:

a) les premiers 500%; ou

[Traduction]

M. Connell: Madame le président, je ne peux pas vraiment
parler de cas précis. Je serai heureux de me renseigner
davantage sur les cas dont M. Ostiguy nous a parlé, mais en
général et étant donné la fagon dont les lois sont rédigées et
appliquées, je demanderai & M. Jacques de vous répondre au
sujet de I'administration des paiements anticipés des récoltes
ou, si c’est utile, la Loi sur la vente coopérative des produits
agricoles, une autre loi semblable. Mr. Jacques.

Mr. Y. Jacques (Assistant Deputy Minister, Marketing and
Economy, Department of Agriculture): As you pointed out,
Mr. Ostiguy, the sum of $15,390 was given to a certain person.

Mr. Ostiguy: Let us stick with generalities.

Mr. Jacques: Fine, but this is a situation which may recur.
Even though these people had, in good faith, paid back the
amount advanced to them, the advance payment of Crops Act,
of which I have a copy here, stipulates in Section 5(b)(i)(B)
and 7 that interest on amounts paid back directly to the
association must be paid to the latter.

As far as the list of buyers is concerned, I believe you
answered the question yourself. You are absolutely right to say
that the law requires the presentation of a balance sheet, and
many potential buyers have refused to do this. So, automati-
cally, their name may not appear on this list. We must adapt
the program to our current legislation. As far as the cases you
mentioned are concerned, I asked the opinion of our legal
counsel who recommended that we stick to the provisions of
the legislation.

I do not mean to say that the legislation is perfect, but
simply that in regard to the cases you have mentioned, we have
no choice but to apply it as stipulated.

If you wish to amend the Act, it might be a good idea to
make a proposal to the minister who would certainly take your
suggestions into account at the time of revising the advance
payments for crops Act.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Ostiguy.

Mr. Ostiguy: Still with respect to the legislation, Mr.
Jacques, paragraph (B) stipulates, and I quote:

(B) payment in the amount of the advance, made directly to

the organization, together with interest from the day the

advance is made, subject to section 7, at the interest rate

applicable to the money borrowed from the bank by the

organization in respect of that advance . . .

On the other hand, section 7 states, and again I quote:

“7. Where a producer repays all or part of an advance
made to him by an organization by direct payment to the
organization under Clause 5(b)(i)(B) or (C), no interest is
payable on the first

(a) $500, or
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b) les premiers 10% du paiement anticipé.

A

Je n’ai pas de cas particuliers a citer; j’ai des cas. Au
Québec, c’est dans la région de la vallée du Richelieu, ot on
produit une grande quantité de mais grain et d’autres céréales,
que l'on retrouve le plus fort pourcentage d’agriculteurs qui se
prévalent de la Loi sur le paiement anticipé des récoltes. Mais,
encore une fois, je ne comprends pas qu’on ne ... C'est qu'il y
a la disposition (B) et I'article 7. On peut jouer entre les deux.
Il semble que, depuis 1977, c’était la premiére année, en 1982-
1983, que I'on appliquait si sévérement cet article. Les années
précédentes, on fermait les yeux ou on laissait passer quand
I’agriculteur payait dans les limites du temps prescrit.

On n’aide pas I'agriculture et on ne rend pas la loi plus
accessible quand on multiplie les intéréts des agriculteurs,
comme on le fait présentement au Québec. J'aurais envie de
déposer une motion, mais je ne le ferai pas.

Le président: Monsieur Jacques.

M. Jacques: Madame le président, voici ce que nous avons
fait. Premiérement, les paiements anticipés sont de ma
responsabilité depuis 1981. Effectivement, il est possible que
parfois la loi n’ait pas été appliquée de fagon idéale. Depuis
1981, nous faisons des efforts pour mettre cette loi en applica-
tion suivant les régles.

Vous savez que nous sommes toujours 4 la merci d’une
vérification du vérificateur général du Canada. Selon les avis
juridiques qui nous ont été donnés, nous nous devons de mettre
le programme en application selon la loi qui le régit.

Voici ce que je propose. S’il y a des cas qui semblent
douteux ou qui semblent présenter une contradiction quelcon-
que, je suis prét a les étudier avec M. Ostiguy et a leur
accorder une attention particuliére.

M. Ostiguy fait allusion a I’ensemble de la loi. Tout ce que
je puis dire, c’est que nous, nous devons mettre cette loi en
application et, effectivement, c’est ce que nous tentons de faire,
dans la mesure du possible.

M. Ostiguy: Je ne présenterai pas de motion, mais je vais
formuler un voeu pieux.

Mr. McCain: On a point of order.
The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. McCain: | would have to say that I agree with Mr.
Ostiguy totally that the act is too severe and that we would be
happy to support a motion of his to recommend an amendment
to it.

Thank you very much.
Le président: J'aurais un commentaire . . .

M. Ostiguy: Un dernier commentaire, madame le président.
Jimagine que le ministére de I’Agriculture renégocie chaque
année avec la Fédération des producteurs de cultures commer-
ciales du Québec le contrat ou I'entente. Il faudrait peut-étre
obliger la Fédération a accréditer tout le monde, pas seulement
de petits acheteurs. On y faisait une sélection. J'ai vu la liste.
J’ai méme ici la copie qui a été envoyée aux agriculteurs par la

[Translation)

(b) 10% of the advance, whichever, is the lesser, so paid
by him, if the advance is fully repaid without default.”

I cannot give you examples of specific cases, but there are
cases. In Quebec, large quantities of corn and other grains are
produced in the Richelieu Valley region, and it is here that the
greatest number of farmers avail themselves of the provisions
of the advance payments for crops Act, but once again, | do
not understand . . . you see, there is provision (B) and section
7. You can play one against the other. It seems that since
1977, 1982-83 is the first year that this section of the legisla-
tion has been applied so harshly. In earlier years, the govern-
ment pretended not to notice or took no action at all as long as
the farmer paid within the prescribed period of time.

One does not assist agriculture or make the law more
accessible by increasing farmers’ interest payments, as is being
done in Quebec these days. I am inclined to table a motion, but
I will not.

The Chairman: Mr. Jacques.

Mr. Jacques: Madam Chairman, this is what we did. First
of all, I have been in charge of advance payments since 1981.
It is certainly possible that the law was not applied properly on
some occasions. Since 1981, we have been doing our utmost to
apply the law according to the rules.

As you know, we are always at the mercy of the Auditor
General of Canada. According to the legal opinions we were
given, we have no choice but to apply the program according
to the legislation which regulates it.

This is what | propose. If you know of cases which seem
unusual or show some sort of contradiction,] would be
perfectly willing to study them with Mr. Ostiguy and give
them my own personal attention.

Mr. Ostiguy is referring to the law as a whole. All I can say
is that we are required to apply the law and we are attempting
to do this as well as we possibly can.

Mr. Ostiguy: | do not intend to table a motion, but I will
indulge in some wishful thinking.

M. McCain: J'invoque le Réglement.
Le président: Oui.

M. McCain: Je dois dire que je suis entiérement d’accord
avec M. Ostiguy lorsqu’il affirme que la loi est trop sévere, et
nous nous ferions un plaisir d’appuyer toute motion qu'il
pourrait présenter pour recommander sa modification.

Merci beaucoup.
The Chairman: I would like to make a comment . . .

Mr. Ostiguy: | just have one more thing to say, Madam
Chairman. | imagine the Department of Agriculture renegoti-
ates contracts or agreements on an annual basis with the grain
producers’ federation of Quebec. Perhaps the federation should
be required to give accreditation to everyone, not only small
buyers. A certain selection is being made. I have seen the list
myself. 1 even have a copy of the list sent to farmers by the
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Fédération; on y parle d’une liste bleue et d’une liste jaune. Les
bons sont sur la liste jaune et les mauvais sur la liste bleue, ou
vice versa. De toute fagon, j’ai vu les noms sur ce document, et
personne que je connaissais ne faisait vraiment le commerce du
grain.

Jaimerais donc que le ministére, lors de ses prochaines
négociations avec la Fédération, élargisse I’éventail d’acheteurs
de grain et ne se restreigne pas a une liste qui est arrétée, non
pas par le ministére, mais par la Fédération. C’est ce qui est
important. Ce n’est pas le ministére de I’Agriculture qui est a
bldmer, c’est plutot la Fédération des producteurs de cultures
commerciales qui, elle, décide que ce sera M. X ou M. Z qui
achetera les céréales.
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Monsieur Jacques, dans votre négociation avec la Fédéra-
tion, vous pourriez peut-étre essayer d’élargir ['éventail
d’acheteurs de céréales afin que les agriculteurs ne soient pas
pénalisés. Je vous le dis, j'ai I'impression qu’au Québec, en
1984, il va y avoir beaucoup moins de demandes, parce que
tous les agriculteurs seront «en maudit», si vous me permettez
I'expression.

Le président: Monsieur Jacques, vous avez . . .

M. Jacques: Il y a une chose que je voudrais signaler: ces
gens-1a doivent satisfaire a certaines exigences s’ils veulent étre
accrédités. Une de ces exigences, c’est que les bilans soient
déposés, qu’on ait une copie des bilans. Il y a deux ou trois
acheteurs potentiels dans votre région qui ont refusé de
déposer ces bilans.

M. Ostiguy: Je les comprends. J'aurais fait la méme chose.

Le président: Nos témoins d’aujourd’hui devront certaine-
ment revenir, car il semble que les sujets traités dans le rapport
annuel d’Agriculture Canada soient trés vastes. C’est peut-étre
un sujet sur lequel on devrait revenir si d’autres questions sont
soulevées. Je vous rappelle que le Comité suspend ses travaux a
12h30, donc dans dix minutes. Je ne pense pas que I’on pourra
¢épuiser le sujet aujourd’hui. Il sera sans doute nécessaire d’y
revenir.

M. Ostiguy: J'y reviendrai avec plaisir, madame.

Le président: Monsieur Jacques, un dernier commentaire.

Mr. Jacques: Mr. McCain, I do not mind, if you have any
suggestions to bring in or to table. On the other hand we have
legislation and all we are trying to do is to apply that legisla-
tion, as I said to Mr. Ostiguy.

Mr. McCain: The legislation gives the co-ops federally no
leeway.

Le président: Un instant, s’il vous plait. Depuis quelque
temps, il y a des changements a I'application de la loi. Je ne
veux pas que I'on discute de changements qui pourraient étre
faits éventuellement. Si, pour la gouverne des membres du
Comité, il est nécessaire que I'on étudie I'application de la Loi
sur le paiement anticipé des récoltes, je pense que I'on devrait
en reparler a l'occasion d’une autre séance avec les hauts

[Traduction]

federation; there is mention of a blue list and a yellow list. The
good ones are on the yellow list and the bad ones are on the
blue list, or vice-versa. In any case, | have seen the names on
this list, and no one that I knew was really in the grain
business.

During its next negotiations with the federation, I would like
to see the department increase the number of grain buyers and
not restrict itself to a list which is drawn up by the federation,
not by the department. That is a very important factor. It is
not the Department of Agriculture which is at fault, rather,
the federatiOn of Commercial Grain Producers which decides
whether Mr. X or Mr. Z will buy grain.

In your negotiations with the federation, Mr. Jacques, you
might try to get a broader range of buyers for your grain, so
that farmers will not be penalized. I get the feeling that there
will be far fewer applications from Quebec in 1984, because all
of the farmers “mad as hell”, if you will pardon the expression.

The Chairman: Mr. Jacques, you have . ..

Mr. Jacques: There is one thing I would like to point out:
these people have to meet certain requirements if they are to
be certified. One of these requirements is that financial
statements be filed and that we get a copy of them. There are
two or three potential buyers in your region who refuse to file
statements.

Mr. Ostiguy: | understand them. I would have done the
same thing.

The Chairman: Today’s witnesses will certainly have to
come back, because it seems that there is a very broad range of
issues involved in Agriculture Canada’s annual report. Maybe
we should come back to this if other questions are raised. I
would remind you that the committee adjourns at 12.30, in 10
minutes. I do not think that we will exhaust this subject today.
We will no doubt have to come back to it.

Mr. Ostiguy: | would be very pleased to come back to it,
Madam Chairman.

The Chairman: One last comment, Mr. Jacques.

M. Jacques: Si vous avez des suggestions a faire, monsieur
McCain, je serais ravi de les entendre. Cependant, comme je
'ai dit @ M. Ostiguy, nous ne faisons qu’appliquer les lois
existantes.

M. McCain: En vertu de la loi, les coopératives n’ont aucune
latitude au niveau fédéral.

The Chairman: Just a moment, please. For some time now,
there have been changes in the way in which the legislation is
implemented. I do not want us to discuss changes that could
eventually be made. If, for the information of committee
members, we have to look at the Advance crop payments Act,
I think that we should do that at another meeting with
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fonctionnaires du ministére. Etes-vous d’accord? On pourrait
voir, lors d’une séance du Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure, s'il y a lieu de revenir sur cette question. D’accord?

M. Ostiguy: Madame le président, je suis tout a fait
d’accord avec vous, parce que je pense que le moment est bien
choisi pour discuter des bonnes choses que fait Agriculture
Canada. Mais s’il y a des problémes administratifs ailleurs,
pourquoi ne pas en discuter au Comité permanent de I’agricul-
ture?

Le président: Je suis d’accord sur le fait que I'on doive
identifier ou se situent les probléemes, mais je ne pense pas
qu’on pourra le faire en sept minutes. Ce serait désolant, parce
que C’est un sujet extrémement important. D’accord? Mereci.

M. Jacques: Nous sommes a votre entiére disposition.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Jacques. Nous n’en doutions
pas.

Monsieur Neil.

Mr. Neil: Thank you, Madam Chairman. My intervention is
more in the area of a point of order than any questioning. Just
a few minutes ago we passed a motion that was presented by
Mr. Mayer and it seems to me that we have to do more than
just leave the motion in the minutes; that this committee now
has to make a report to the House of Commons indicating that
this motion was passed, and the report should be tabled in the
House of Commons.

I would suggest that at the next steering committee, with the
assistance of the clerk, the First Report of the Standing
Committee on Agriculture be prepared, presented to this
committee for passage and then submitted to the House of
Commons.

Le président: Je trouve la proposition trés bonne. Je vous
remercie, monsieur Neil. A la prochaine séance du Comité,
nous pourrions discuter avec le greffier de ce rapport-1a. Si les
membres du Comité sont d’accord, nous pourrions certaine-
ment faire rapport 4 la Chambre des communes.

Mr. Neil: I do not think it is a case of their agreeing. I think
they are bound to do it. We passed a motion and I think the
committee is bound to bring in a report to the House. At least
I would hope that is the situation.

Le président: Si j’ai bien compris votre intervention, vous
demandiez que la motion qui avait été présentée fasse mainte-
nant partie du rapport qui sera déposé a la Chambre des
communes. Si les membres du Comité sont d’accord, nous
ferons un rapport 4 la Chambre des communes sur cette
question-la et sur les autres sujets dont nous avons discuté.
D’accord? Parfait. Merci beaucoup.

BED 25

Je voudrais remercier le sous-ministre ainsi que tous les
membres de son équipe de travail. J’ai I'impression que nous
nous reverrons dans trés peu de temps.

Mr. Connell: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

[Translation]

department officials. Agreed? We could ask the subcommittee
to decide whether we should come back to this. Agreed?

Mr. Ostiguy: | agree with you, Madam Chairman, because |
think that it is appropriate at this time to discuss the good
things that Agriculture Canada is doing. But if there are
administrative problems in other areas, why should the
Standing Committee on Agriculture not discuss them?

The Chairman: | agree that we should identify problem
areas, but I do not think that we can do it in seven minutes.
That would be unfortunate, because it is an extremely
important subject. Agreed? Thank you.

Mr. Jacques: We are at your disposal.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Jacques. We have no doubts
about that.

Mr. Neil.

M. Neil: Merci, madame le président. Je n’ai pas vraiment
de question a poser; mon intervention sera plutot un rappel au
Réglement. Tout & I’heure, nous avons adopté une motion qui
avait été déposée par M. Mayer et il me semble que nous ne
devions pas nous contenter de consigner la motion au compte
rendu; il incombe au Comité de signaler a la Chambre que la
motion a été adoptée et de faire déposer le rapport a la
Chambre.

Je propose qu’a la prochaine séance du Comité de direction,
avec la participation du greffier, le Premier rapport du Comité
permanent de I'agriculture soit rédigé, déposé au Comité et
adopté, puis renvoyé a la Chambre des communes.

The Chairman: That is a very good suggestion. Thank you,
Mr. Neil. We could discuss the report with the Clerk at the
next meeting of the committee. If members of the committee
agree, we could certainly report to the House.

M. Neil: Je ne crois pas qu’il soit question d’obtenir le
consentement des membres du Comité. Je crois que nous
sommes obligés de le faire. Nous avons adopté une motion et
nous sommes tenus de faire rapport a la Chambre. Du moins,
je lespére.

The Chairman: If I have understood what you were saying,
you are asking that the motion that was proposed be included
in the report that will be tabled in the House. If members of
the committee, we will report to the House of Commons on
this and on other subjects that we have discussed. Agreed?
Fine. Thank you very much.

I would like to thank the deputy minister and all of the
members of his team. I get the feeling that we will be seeing
each other again very soon.

M. Connell: Merci, Madame le président.
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[Texte] [Traduction)

Le président: La séance est ajournée jusqu'au 14 février, The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned until February 14,
alors que nous recevrons le sénateur Argue pour discuter du  when Senator Argue will be appearing to discuss grain
transport des céréales. transportation.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
Pursuant to Standing Order 46(4) the following paper was

ORDRE DE RENVOI
Conformément aux dispositions de I'article 46(4) du Régle-

deemed referred to the Committee:
Thursday, May 26, 1983

Report on the Administration of the Western Grain Stabiliza-
tion Act, together with the Report on the state of the Stabili-
zation Account for the year 1981, pursuant to section 45 of the
Act, Chapter 87, Statutes of Canada 1974-75-76—Sessional
Paper No. 321-1/35C.

ment, le document suivant était réputé déféré au Comité:

Le jeudi 26 mai 1983

Rapport sur I'application de la Loi de stabilisation concernant
le grain de 'Ouest, y compris la situation du Compte de
stabilisation, pour I’année 1981, conformément a I’article 45 de
cette Loi, chapitre 87, Statuts du Canada, 1974-1975-1976—
Document parlementaire n° 321-1/35C.
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REPORTS TO THE HOUSE

The Standing Committee on Agriculture has the honour to
present its

FIRST REPORT

In relation to its Order of Reference of Tuesday, January 17,
1984, relating to the Report of the Department of Agriculture
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1983, your Committee
agreed to report the following to the House.

Your Committee recommends that the Government give
consideration to the advisability of making financial assistance
available to the Canadian Horticulture Council and Potato
Producers of Canada, for the purpose of deferring the costs
associated with all hearings related to othe imposition of the
surcharge of duty imposed by the United States on potatoes
exports from Eastern Canada.

A copy of the relevant Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence
(Issues Nos. 2 & 3) is tabled.

The Standing Committee on Agriculture has the honour to
present its

SECOND REPORT

In relation to its Order of Reference of Thursday, May 26,
1983, relating to the Report on the Western Grain Stabiliza-
tion Act, for the year 1981, your Committee agreed to report
the following to the House.

Your Committee recommends that the government consider
the advisability of amending Section 8, Sub-section 3 of the
Western Grain Stabilization Act to include in “Area Gross
Expenses” all items of expenses allowed under the Income Tax
Act with the exception of Cabital Cost Allowance and further
that the Government consider the advisability that the payout
be based on a three year rather than a 5 year period.

A copy of the relevant Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence
(Issue No. 3) is tabled.

Respectfully submitted,

RAPPORTS A LA CHAMBRE

Le Comité permanent de ’agriculture a I’honneur de présenter
son

PREMIER RAPPORT

Relativement a son ordre de renvoi du mardi 17 janvier 1984,
concernant le Rapport du ministére de I’Agriculture pour
I’année financiére terminée le 31 mars 1983, le Comité
convient de faire rapport a la Chambre de ce qui suit.

Votre Comité recommande que le gouvernement envisage
I'opportunité de fournir une aide financiére au Conseil
canadien de I'horticulture et aux producteurs canadiens de
pommes de terre en vue de différer les frais liés 4 toutes les
audiences portant sur 'imposition, par les Etats-Unis, d’une
surtaxe a 'importation de pommes de terre provenant de I’est
du Canada.

Un exemplaire des procés-verbaux et témoignages s’y
rapportant (fascicules n** 2 et 3) est déposé.

Le Comité permanent de I’Agriculture a I’honneur de
présenter son

DEUXIEME RAPPORT

Relativement 4 son ordre de renvoi du jeudi 26 mai 1983,
concernant le Rapport sur I'application de la Loi de stabilisa-
tion concernant le grain de Ouest pour I’année 1981, le
Comité convient de faire rapport 4 la Chambre de ce qui suit.

Votre Comité recommande que le gouvernement envisage
I'opportunité de modifier le paragraphe 8(3) de la Loi de
stabilisation concernant le grain de ’Ouest, afin d’inclure dans
les «Frais bruts de la région» toutes les dépenses permises en
vertu de la Loi de I'imp6t sur le revenu, a I'exception de la
déduction pour amortissement, et que le gouvernement
envisage I'opportunité de fonder le paiement sur une période de
3 ans plutdt que de 5 ans.

Un exemplaire des procés-verbaux et témoignages s’y
rapportant (fascicule n° 3) est déposé.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le président

Eva Coté

Chairman
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TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 1984 LE MARDI 14 FEVRIER 1984

) (4)

[Text] [Traduction)]

The Standing Committee on Agriculture met at 11:08
o’clock a.m., this day, the Chairman, Eva Coté, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Messrs. Althouse,
Cardiff, Mrs. Coté, Messrs. Daudlin, Dionne (Chicoutimi),
Gurbin, Gustafson, Hovdebo, Mayer, Schellenberger, Tessier
and Veillette.

Alternates present: Messrs. Dion, King, McCain and Neil.
Other Member present: Mr. Towers.

Appearing: The Honourable Senator Hazen Argue, Minister
of State for the Canadian Wheat Board.

Witnesses: From the Western Grain Stabilization Adminis-
tration: Mr. Omar Bilokury, Chief Program Services and Mr.
Avery Sahl, Member, Advisory Committee. From the
Department of External Affairs: Mr. Harold Hedley, Grain
Marketing Bureau.

The Committee proceeded to consider the Annual Report of
the Administration of the Western Grain Stabilization Act for
1981, deemed referred to the Committee on Thursday, May
26, 1983.

The Minister made a statement and, with the witnesses,
answered questions.

Mr. Mayer moved,—That pursuant to the motion adopted
at its meeting held on Tuesday, February 7, 1984, the follow-
ing Report be adopted and presented to the House, at the
earliest opportunity:

FIRST REPORT

In relation to its Order of Reference of Tuesday, January
17, 1984, relating to the Report of the Department of
Agriculture for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1983, your
Committee agreed to report the following to the House.

Your Committee recommends that the Government give
consideration to the advisability of making financial
assistance available to the Canadian Horticulture Council
and Potato Producers of Canada, for the purpose of
deferring the costs associated with all hearings related to the
imposition of the surcharge of duty imposed by the United
States on potatoes exports from Eastern Canada.

The question being put on the motion, it was agreed to.
Questioning resumed.

Mr. Neil proposed to move,—That the government consider
the advisability of amending Section 8, Sub-section 3 of the
Western Grain Stabilization Act to include in “Area Gross
Expenses” all items of expenses allowed under the Income Tax
Act with the exception of Capital Cost Allowance and further
that the payout be based on a three year rather than a 5 year
period.

By consent, it was agreed,—That the proposed motion be
allowed to stand until 3:30 p.m. this day.

Le Comité permanent de I’agriculture se réunit, ce jour a 11
h 08, sous la présidence de M™ Eva Coté (président).

Membres du Comité présents: MM. Althouse, Cardiff, M™
Co6té, MM. Daudlin, Dionne (Chicoutimi), Gurbin, Gustafson,
Hovdebo, Mayer, Schellenberger, Tessier et Veillette.

Substituts présents: MM. Dion, King, McCain et Neil.
Autre député présent: M. Towers.

Comparait: L’honorable sénateur Hazen Argue, ministre
d’Etat (Commission canadienne du blé).

Témoins: Stabilisation concernant le grain de I'Ouest: M.
Omar Bilokuri, chef, Service de programme; M. Avery Sahl,
membre, Comité consultatif. Du ministere des Affaires
extérieures: M. Harold Hedley, Direction générale de la
commercialisation des céréales.

Le Comité procéde a I'étude du rapport annuel (1981)
relatif 4 I'application de la Loi de stabilisation concernant le
grain de I’Ouest, rapport tenu pour déféré au Comité le jeudi
26 mai 1983.

Le Ministre fait une déclaration, puis lui-méme et les
témoins répondent aux questions.

M. Mayer propose,—Que conformément a la motion
adoptée 4 la réunion du mardi 7 février 1984, le rapport
suivant soit adopté et présenté a la Chambre dés que possible:

PREMIER RAPPORT

Relativement 4 son ordre de renvoi du mardi 17 janvier
1984 concernant le Rapport du ministére de 1’Agriculture
pour I'année financiére terminée (sic) le 31 mars 1983, le
Comité convient de faire rapport a la Chambre de ce qui
suit.

Votre Comité recommande que le gouvernement envisage
I'opportunité de fournir une aide financiére au Conseil
canadien de I’horticulture et aux producteurs canadiens de
pommes de terre en vue de différer (sic) les frais liés a toutes
les audiences portant sur I'imposition, par les Etats-Unis,
d’une surtaxe a I'importation de pommes de terre provenant
de I’est (sic) du Canada.

La motion mise aux voix est adoptée.
L’audition des témoins se poursuit.

M. Neil propose,—Que le gouvernement s’interroge sur
'opportunité de modifier le paragraphe 8(3) de la Loi de
stabilisation concernant le grain de I’Ouest, afin d’inclure dans
les «Frais bruts de la région» toutes les dépenses permises en
vertu de la Loi de I'impét sur le revenu, a I’exception de la
déduction pour amortissement, et que le paiement soit fondé
sur une période de 3 ans plutdt que de 5 ans.

Par assentiment, i/ est convenu,—Que la motion proposée
soit réservée jusqu’a 15 h 30 aujourd’hui.
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At 12:44 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned till 3:30
p.m. this afternoon.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(5)

The Standing Committee on Agriculture met at 3:37 o’clock
p.m. this day, the Chairman, Eva Coté, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Messrs. Althouse,
Cardiff, Mrs. Co6té, Messrs. Daudlin, Dionne (Chicoutimi),
Ferguson, Gurbin, Gustafson, Hovdebo, Mayer, Ostiguy,
Schellenberger, Tessier and Veillette.

Alternates present: Messrs. Bockstael, Dion (Portneuf),
Lapointe (Beauce) and Neil.

Other Member present: Mr. Towers.

Appearing: The Honourable Hazen Argue, Minister of
State for the Canadian Wheat Board.

Witnesses: From the Department of External Affairs: Mr.
Harold Hedley, Grain Marketing Bureau. From the Western
Grain Stabilization Administration: Mr. Omar Bilokury,
Chief Program Services.

The Committee resumed consideration of the Annual
Report of the Administration of the Western Grain Stabiliza-
tion Act 1981, pursuant to its Order of Reference of May 26,
1983.

The Minister and the witnesses answered questions.

Mr. Neil moved,—That the government consider the
advisability of amending Section 8, Sub-section 3 of the
Western Grain Stabilization Act to include in “Area Gross
Expenses” all items of expenses allowed under the Income Tax
Act with the exception of Capital Cost Allowance and further
that the payout be based on a three year rather than a 5 year
period.

After debate, Mr. Daudlin moved in amendment thereto,—
That the words “the government consider the advisability
that” be inserted between the words “further that” and “the
payout”.

The amendment carried.
The motion, as amended, carried.

It was agreed,—That this motion be reported to the House.

At 4:57 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

A 12 h 44, le Comité interrompt les travaux jusqu’a 15 h 30.

SEANCE DE L’APRES-MIDI
(5)

Le Comité permanent de I’agriculture se réunit, ce jour 4 15
h 37, sous la présidence de M™ Eva Coté (président).

Membres du Comité présents: MM. Althouse, Cardiff, M™
Coté, MM. Daudlin, Dionne (Chicoutimi), Ferguson, Gurbin,
Gustafson, Hovdebo, Mayer, Ostiguy, Schellenberger, Tessier
et Veillette.

Substituts présents: MM. Bockstael, Dion (Portneuf),
Lapointe (Beauce) et Neil.

Autre député présent: M. Towers.

Comparait: L’honorable Hazen Argue, ministre D’Etat
(Commission canadienne du blé).

Témoins: Du ministére des Affaires extérieures: M. Harold
Hedley, Direction générale de la commercialisation des
céréales. De la Stabilisation concernant le grain de I'Ouest:
M. Omar Bilokuri, chef, Service de programme (sic).

Le Comité reprend ’étude du rapport annuel (1981) relatif
a la Loi de stabilisation concernant le grain de 1’Ouest,
conformément a son ordre de renvoi du 26 mai 1983.

Le Ministre et les témoins répondent aux questions.

M. Neil propose,—Que le gouvernement s’interroge sur
I'opportunité de modifier le paragraphe 8(3) de la Loi de
stabilisation concernant le grain de ’Ouest, afin d’inclure dans
les «Frais bruts de la région» toutes les dépenses permises en
vertu de la Loi de I'impdt sur le revenu, a I’exception de la
déduction (sic) pour amortissement, et de plus que le paiement
se fonde sur une période de trois ans au lieu de cinq ans.

Aprés débat, M. Daudlin propose de modifier le paragraphe
comme suit,—Que les mots «Que le gouvernement s’interroge
sur I'opportunité de» soient insérés entre les mots «et de plus» et
le mot «paiement».

L’amendement est adopté.
Le motion ainsi modifiée est adoptée.

Il est convenu,—Que le président fasse rapport de la motion
a la Chambre.

A 16 h 57, le Comité suspend les travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

Le greffier du Comité

Micheline Rondeau-Parent

Clerk of the Committee
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Tuesday, February 14, 1984
® 1108
Le président: A ’ordre!

Je vous souhaite la bienvenue 4 cette séance du Comité
permanent de l'agriculture. Le Comité étudie aujourd’hui le
rapport sur I'application de la Loi sur la stabilisation concer-
nant le grain de I'Ouest et sur le Compte de stabilisation 1981,
rapport déféré au Comité le 26 mai 1983.

Nous recevons aujourd’hui le ministre responsable de la
Commission canadienne du blé, I’honorable sénateur Hazen
Argue. Je demanderais au sénateur Argue . . .

L’honorable sénateur Hazen Argue (ministre d’Etat
responsable de la Commission canadienne du blé): Merci,
madame le président.

Le président: Un instant, sénateur Argue. Avant de faire
votre exposé, sénateur, auriez-vous l’obligeance de nous
présenter les personnes qui sont avec vous et qui s’occupent du
probléme de la stabilisation?

Senator Argue: Thank you very much, Madam Chairman.

I have with me a number of officials I would like to
introduce to you: Mr. Omar Bilokury, Chief of Program
Services, Western Grain Stabilization Administration,
Winnipeg; Mr. Avery Sahl, a farm representative on the
Advisory Committee, Western Grain Stabilization Adminis-
tration; Dr. Harold Hedley, Grain Marketing Bureau; Dr.
Craig Fulton, Commodity Market Analysis Division of the
Department of Agriculture; William Miner, Co-ordinator of
the Special Advisory Group on Grains; Dick Cathcart of the
Grain Marketing Bureau; and Ray Ryland from my office.

® 1110

Members of the Agricultural Committee, I am pleased to be
here this morning. I have a short opening statement. The
method or the vehicle for this meeting was a reference, I
believe, of the 1981 annual report; I am sure you are interested
in that, and I am sure you are interested in other aspects of the
operation of the Western Grain Stabilization Act.

The 1981 annual report is the sixth annual report for the
period January 1 to December 31, 1981. The annual report for
1982 is being printed. Final calculations of net cash flow for
1982 were completed in November, 1983.

Gross grains receipts in 1981 were $6,201 million, 31.8%
higher than the previous year, reflecting improved delivery
quotas, a $730 million final payment in January, 1981 and a
$488 million adjustment payment in February, 1981. Net cash
flow for 1981, at $2,428 million, was the highest since the start
of the program and was substantially higher than the previous
five-year average.

Le mardi 14 février 1984

The Chairman: Order, please.

I would like to welcome you to this meeting of the Standing
Committee on Agriculture. Today the committee is studying
the report of the administration of the Western Grain Stabili-
zation Act and Stabilization Account, 1981 referred to the
committee on May 26, 1983.

Appearing is the minister responsible for the Canadian
Wheat Board, the Honourable Senator Hazen Argue. I will
invite Senator Argue. ..

Hon. Senator Hazen Argue (Minister of State responsible
for the Canadian Wheat Board): Thank you, Madam Chair-
man.

The Chairman: One moment, please Senator Argue. Before
making your presentation, would you be kind enough to
introduce the persons accompanying you, that is the officials
responsible for the stabilization program?

Le sénateur Argue: Je vous remercie, madame le président.

Je vous présente d’abord les fonctionnaires: M. Omar
Bilokury, chef des Services au programme, Administrateur de
la stabilisation du revenu des céréaliculteurs de 1'Ouest,
Winnipeg; M. Avery Sahl, représentant agricole au sein du
Comité consultatif, Bureau de la stabilisation; M. Harold
Hedley, Office de commercialisation du grain; M. Craig
Fulton, Division de I’analyse des marchés des produits
primaires, ministére de I’Agriculture; William Miner, coordi-
nateur du groupe consultatif spécial sur les céréales; Dick
Cathcart de I’Office de commercialisation du grain; et Ray
Ryland de mon cabinet.

Messieurs les membres du Comité de I’agriculture, je suis
trés heureux de me présenter devant vous ce matin. J’ai une
bréve déclaration préliminaire a faire. Je crois que le sujet de
la présente séance est le rapport annuel de 1981. Je suis certain
que cela vous intéresse tout autant que les autres facettes de

’administration de la Loi de stabilisation concernant le grain
de I'Ouest.

Le rapport annuel de 1981 est le sixiéme rapport annuel; il
couvre la période du 1 janvier au 3l décembre 1981. Le
rapport annuel de 1982 est en cours d’impression, le calcul
final des rentrées nettes pour 1982 ayant été terminé en
novembre 1983.

En 1981, les recettes brutes provenant de la vente de grain
atteignaient 6,201 millions de dollars, soit 31,8 p. 100 de plus
que I'année précédente, ce qui signifie une amélioration des
contingents de livraison et un paiement final de 730 millions de
dollars en janvier 1981, ainsi qu’un rajustement de 488
millions de dollars en février 1981. Les rentrées nettes pour
1981, qui s’établissaient 4 2,428 millions de dollars, ont été les
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The maximum level of participation per producer was
$45,000 of eligible receipts in 1981. Participation at the end of
1981 included 76.7% of farmers with eligible permit books.
The amount of levies paid by participating producers in 1981
was $56.4 million. The balance in the Western Grain Stabili-
zation Fund at the end of 1981 was $402 million. The Western
Grain Stabilization Administration staff at the end of 1981
numbered 15.

The calculations for the 1982 program have now been
completed. Gross receipts for 1982 were down to $5,852
million. Net cash flow for 1982 was $2,246 million compared
to the preceeding five-year average of $1,834 million. Thus
there was no payment for 1982.

Producer levies in 1982 were $55 million. The federal
government contributed $110 million and paid $60 million in
interest. The Western Grain Stabilization Fund balance at the
end of 1982 was $628 million. Participation at the end of 1982
had increased to 77.2 % of eligible Canadian Wheat Board
permit book holders.

Data for 1983 stabilization per year is preliminary. Gross
receipts are now fairly firm, but expenses can only be
estimated until after the survey is completed and cost data is
compiled, which will be in October, 1984. Gross receipts for
1983, as of early February, 1984, are $6,150 million. This
reflects a nine % increase in 1983 volume of marketings and
the record level of 36.6 million tonnes. This increase in volume
more than offsets the decline in average value of sales which
fell from $174 per tonne in 1982 to $168 per tonne in 1983.
Calculations on the basis of preliminary data indicate there
will be no payout for 1983.

The maximum eligible level of receipts per producer was
increased to $60,000 at the start of 1983. This increased the
maximum levy per producer to $1,200.

Total producer levies in 1983 were $63 million. The federal
government contribution was $126 million and interest
payments are about $62 million. The fund balance at the end
of 1983 is about $875 million.

For the 1984 stabilization year, the maximum eligible
receipts level has been maintained at $60,000 per producer.
The levy rates for producers and the federal government have
been reduced to 1.5% and 3.5% respectively at the start of
1984. The Act provides that when the interest earned on the
fund in two years is more than one-third of the total producer
and government contributions, these changes in the levy are to
be implemented.

[Translation]

plus élevées depuis le début du programme; elles sont sensible-
ment supérieures a la moyenne des cing années précédentes.

Le niveau maximum de participation par producteur pour
1981 était de 45,0008 des recettes admissibles. A la fin de
1981, 76,7 p. 100 des titulaires de permis admissibles partici-
paient au programme. La somme des cotisations versées en
1981 par les producteurs participants s’élevait & 56,4 millions
de dollars. A la fin de cette année-1a, le solde du fonds de
stabilisation était de 402 millions de dollars et 15 personnes
travaillaient au Programme de stabilisation concernant le
grain de I’Ouest.

Les calculs pour le programme de 1982 sont maintenant
terminés et les recettes brutes sont tombées a 5,852 millions de
dollars tandis que les rentrées nettes étaient de 2,246 millions
de dollars comparativement 4 une moyenne de 1,834 millions
de dollars pour les cinq années précédentes. Par conséquent,
aucun paiement n’a été effectué pour 1982.

En 1982, les cotisations des producteurs se sont chiffrées a
55 millions de dollars. Le gouvernement fédéral a apporté une
contribution de 110 millions de dollars et a versé 60 millions de
dollars d’intéréts. A la fin de cette année-la, le solde du Fonds
de stabilisation concernant le grain de I’Ouest s’établissait a
628 millions de dollars et la participation avait augmenté pour
passer 4 77,2 p. 100 des titulaires admissibles d’un permis de la
Commission canadienne du blé.

Les données touchant I’année de stabilisation 1983 sont
provisoires. Les recettes brutes sont maintenant presque
définitives, mais les dépenses resteront approximatives jusqu’a
ce que I’enquéte soit achevée et que les données sur les coiits
soient compilées, ce qui se fera en octobre 1984. Au début de
février 1984, les recettes brutes de 1983 s’élévent a 6,150
millions de dollars. Il s’agit d’une hausse de 9 p. 100 du volume
des mises en marché de 1983 et d’une production record de
36,6 millions de tonnes. Cette hausse de volume fait plus que
compenser la baisse du prix de vente moyen qui est passé de
1748 la tonne en 1982 4 168$ la tonne en 1983. D’aprés les
calculs fondés sur les données provisoires, aucun versement ne
sera effectué pour 1983.

Au début de 1983, les recettes maximales admissibles par
producteur ont été haussées 4 60,0008. La cotisation maximale
par producteur est donc passée a 1,2008.

En 1983, les cotisations ont atteint au total 63 millions de
dollars; la contribution du gouvernement fédéral a été de 126
millions de dollars et les paiements, de 68 millions de dollars.
A la fin de I’année, le solde du Fonds se chiffrait 4 prés de 875
millions de dollars.

Pour I’année de stabilisation 1984, les recettes maximales
admissibles par producteur seront toujours de 60,000$. Les
taux de cotisation pour les producteurs et le gouvernement
fédéral ont été abaissés 4 1.5 p. 100 et 3.5 p. 100 respective-
ment au début de 1984. D’aprés la Loi, lorsque I'intérét acquis
sur le Fonds en deux ans dépasse le tiers de I'ensemble des
cotisations des producteurs et du gouvernement, cette modifi-
cation des taux est obligatoire.
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I am sure that you are all aware that the government has the
Western Grain Stabilization Program under active review. The
program was mentioned in the 1983 Speech from the Throne.
It is my expectation that we will be presenting amendments
during this session which will improve the responsiveness of the
program and increase its acceptability to producers. Such
changes are still under consideration, and I welcome the
meeting of the agricultural committee of the House of
Commons this morning.

If I might say so, I am certain that we will hear advice from
Hon. Members as to how this Act can be changed and
improved, and I shall certainly welcome the comments of Hon.
Members.

Mr. Neil: On a point of order, Madam Chairman. The
Minister’s remarks include a considerable number of statistics
and it was impossible to copy these statistics as he was making
his presentation. I am wondering if the Clerk could arrange to
have his presentation copied immediately and circulated to us.

Senator Argue: That is a good point.
The Chairman: Yes, sir, surely, Mr. Neil. Thank you.

On vous distribuera donc des copies de I’exposé que vient de
faire le sénateur Argue.

On commence la période de questions avec M. Gustafson.

Mr. Gustafson: Thank you, Madam Chairman. I wish to
welcome the Minister and his people. I note that both the
Minister and Mr. Sahl who is with him are both constituents
of mine, so a special welcome to this committee.

An Hon. Member: Ask him if he votes for you, Len.

Mr. Gustafson: Well, he tells me that he does not, but all his
relatives do.

As you know, Mr. Minister, the Western Grain Stabilization
Program has had a lot of coverage and a lot of concern from
farmers, basically because the cash-flow position of farmers
has become very severe. As you pointed out in the 1981 report,
which I tried to follow, possibly the cash position was not as
tight then as it is now, some three years later, and this poses a
real problem for farmers. As you know, machine costs have
escalated very severely; fertilizer costs and expenditures of
farmers in general have gone up most significantly.

You said that the program was under active review. How
long are we going to have to wait for some action on the part
of the government? Is that action going to be significant in the
budget brought down tomorrow? Is there to be anything in
that budget that is going to relate or give direction to where
the government intends to go with the Western Grain Stabili-
zation Program?

[Traduction]

Je suis persuadé que vous savez tous que le gouvernement
procéde actuellement 4 une révision approfondie du Pro-
gramme de stabilisation concernant le grain de I'Ouest. Le
programme a été mentionné dans le discours du trone de 1983.
Je crois que nous présenterons au cours de la présente session
des amendements qui permettront au programme de mieux
répondre aux besoins et d'étre davantage accepté par les
producteurs. Ces amendements sont toujours a I’étude et je
suis heureux de pouvoir participer 4 une séance du Comité de
Pagriculture de la Chambre des communes ce matin.

Permettez-moi de dire que je suis certain de recevoir ici des
suggestions des députés quant a la fagon d’améliorer la loi; je
serai trés heureux de tous ces commentaires.

M. Neil: Madame le président, j'invoque le Réglement. Les
remarques préliminaires du ministre renferme un nombre
considérable de chiffres, mais il a été impossible de faire
photocopier tout cela pendant qu’il les pronongait. Je me
demande si le greffier pourrait s’arranger pour que son exposé
soit maintenant photocopié sans tarder pour qu’il nous soit
distribué.

Le sénateur Argue: C’est juste.
Le président: Certainement, monsieur Neil. Merci.

Therefore copies of Senator Argue’s remarks will be
circulated.

We will begin this round of questioning with Mr. Gustafson.

M. Gustafson: Merci, madame le président. Je désire
souhaiter la bienvenue au ministre et 4 ceux qui 'accompa-
gnent. Je remarque que M. Sahl et le ministre sont tous deux
résidents de ma circonscription. Je leur adresse donc un salut
particulier.

Une voix: Demandez-lui donc s’il vote pour vous, Len.

M. Gustafson: Eh bien! Il me dit que lui ne vote pas pour
moi, mais toute sa famille le fait.

Comme vous le savez, monsieur le ministre, le Programme
de stabilisation concernant le grain de I'Ouest a beaucoup fait
parler de lui et préoccupe énormément les agriculteurs surtout
a cause de leurs problémes de liquidités qui sont devenus
vraiment trés graves. Comme vous le soulignez dans le rapport
de 1981, ces problémes n’étaient pas aussi aigus a I'époque
qu’ils le sont maintenant trois ans plus tard. Cela pose des
difficultés trés réelles aux agriculteurs. Vous savez que le prix
de Poutillage agricole a augmenté considérablement tout
comme le prix des engrais et les dépenses générales des
agriculteurs.

Vous dites qu’une révision approfondie du programme est en
cours. Combien de temps encore faudra-t-il attendre avant que
le gouvernement ne prenne des mesures concrétes? Ces
mesures importantes seront-elles mentionnées dans le budget
qui doit étre présenté demain? Y aura-t-il quelque chose dans
le budget qui puisse nous renseigner quant a l'orientation
qu’entend donner le gouvernement au Programme de stabilisa-
tion concernant le grain de I'Ouest?
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It may be noted that when Mr. Lang introduced the
program in 1976, he laid out the guidelines for the program as
being a cash-flow program, dealing with the problems of cash-
flow that farmers have, and not an insurance policy per se.

In addition to that, I would like your comments on the level
of payment that farmers are making, dealing with the $1200
contribution. Is there any suggestion that may be lowered?
Also the formula that is used to deal with cash-flow and with
pay-out, which it is quite clear is not working, and the opt-out
provision which I believe you suggested might be an opt-out
provision in terms of five years. I would like to hear your
comments in these areas.

Senator Argue: Mr. Gustafson has obviously raised some
very important questions. How long will the review take? The
review is being actively pursued. I think there was a meeting of
officials just last week. We are looking at a number of options,
I can tell you quite frankly. I think the contribution that you
make this morning, as to what recommendations or what
suggestions we might deal with, will certainly be taken into
consideration

® 1120

I am not able to disclose anything in the Budget—I can tell
you quite frankly, I do not know what is in the Budget. So
there is no way I can answer that question: whether there is
any reference in the Budget. I think the important reference is
in the Speech from the Throne. It said amendments will be
brought into the Western Grain Stabilization Act to make it
more sensitive.

Mr. Gustafson: Could you be specific on what recommenda-
tions you made to Cabinet with regard to the Speech from the
Throne or the Budget that is coming down tomorrow?

The importance of that, Mr. Minister, is that the farmers
have been waiting for some time for this to be dealt with. As
you indicated, there is close to $1 billion in this fund and the
need is very severe out there.

Senator Argue: As far as recommendations to the Cabinet
are concerned, prior to the introduction of the Speech from the
Throne, you can appreciate that there was considerable
discussion about the items in the Speech from the Throne and
that particular item is my responsibility. I was happy to
recommend that kind of reference in the Speech from the
Throne and was very pleased that it was in the Speech from
the Throne.

The review has been going on following that. It had gone on
before that, but it has been going on very much since. I am
hopeful that in a reasonable length of time we will be able to
put legislation before the House of Commons aimed at
improving the legislation and aimed at providing an early
payment from the Act.

As to why the maximum levels were increased, when this
legislation was first brought down or when it became the law
of the country, the objective was that 90% of the maximum
amount would be covered. I think the 60% is still a good deal

[Translation)]

Remarquez que lorsque M. Lang a créé le programme en
1976, il a affirmé que le programme aurait pour but de régler
les problémes de liquidités des agriculteurs et ne serait pas un
régime d’assurance.

Je voudrais également savoir ce que vous pensez du taux de
cotisation des agriculteurs qui est maintenant de 1,2008$.
Serait-il possible de le diminuer? Quelle formule utilise-t-on
pour calculer le rapport rentrées/paiements, car de toute
évidence ce n’est pas la bonne? Qu’en est-il de la clause
permettant de se retirer du programme? Je crois que vous
aviez parlé d’une possibilité de retrait aprés cinq ans.

Le sénateur Argue: M. Gustafson pose 1a des questions trés
importantes. Combien de temps durera la révision? Elle est en
cours. Je crois qu’il y a eu une réunion de fonctionnaires la
semaine derniére. Nous envisageons un certain nombre
d’options. Les recommandations ou suggestions que vous
pourrez nous faire ce matin seront certainement prises en
considération.

Quant au budget, je ne peux pas vous dire ce qu’il renferme.
Trés franchement d’ailleurs, j’ignore ce qu’il y a dedans. Je ne
peux donc pas vous dire s’il en sera question dans le budget. Je
crois que la mention la plus importante reste celle du discours
du trone. On y disait que des amendements seraient proposés a
la Loi de stabilisation concernant le grain de I'Ouest afin de la
rendre plus souple.

M. Gustafson: Pourriez-vous nous préciser les recommanda-
tions que vous avez faites au Cabinet a propos du discours du
trone ou du budget qui sera présenté demain?

C’est important, monsieur le ministre, parce que les
agriculteurs attendent depuis déja un certain temps que la
question soit réglée. Comme vous I’avez dit vous-méme, il y a
prés de un milliard de dollars dans ce fonds alors que les
besoins des producteurs sont criants.

Le sénateur Argue: Quant aux recommandations que j’ai
faites au Cabinet avant le discours du tréne, vous n’étes pas
sans savoir qu’il y a eu énormément de discussions sur tout ce
que contenait le discours. Comme cette question était de mon
ressort, j’ai eu le plaisir de recommander qu’on fasse une telle
annonce dans le discours du tréne et j’ai été trés heureux de
constater qu’elle s’y trouvait.

La révision a été entreprise immédiatement aprés. En fait,
on l'avait entamée avant méme cela, mais on I'a intensifiée
depuis. J'espére que d’ici pas trop longtemps, nous serons en
mesure de présenter un projet de loi 4 la Chambre des
communes en vue d’améliorer la loi actuelle et de permettre un
remboursement rapide.

Quant 4 la raison pour laquelle les taux maximums ont été
augmentés, c’est qu’au moment ou la loi a été adoptée, on avait
pour objectif d’assurer 90 p. 100 du montant maximal. Je crois
que la proportion de 60 p. 100 reste une bonne affaire méme si
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below that maximum objective, so in a sense we have not even
reached the maximum objective.

I can understand farmers questioning the raising of the
ceilings when they have not seen any, let us say, recent benefit.
But my own view is that if we did not endeavour to keep fairly
close to the 90%, the whole program or the potential benefit of
the program would wither away because of neglect. I did not
feel we should neglect it. We should have a very major
percentage of the receipts covered. Then we should go forward
with the kind of exercise we have today to consider changes in
the Act that would provide for a payout and make it more
sensitive.

The officials are here and I will ask them to comment. What
has happened is that there was no anticipation of the huge
grain sales and that kind of unforeseen increase in the gross
cashflow. I think no one expected the rate of inflation to be as
high. So with that, and perhaps other things that were not
foreseen, payments have not been made out as rapidly as
producers would expect.

The discussion that came forward from the advisory
committee last September in Regina was that there should be
a clause inserted which would allow farmers to get out. Their
suggestion was not five years, it was ten. The program has now
been going on for eight years. This would mean that those who
were in it early, and most of them were in it early, would be
able to exercise that option a couple of years from now.
Hopefully within that couple of years they will see the benefit
of the Act and will elect to stay in. The coverage is pretty good
by way of percentage.

Perhaps Mr. Bilokury could be more specific about the
factors that have made a payment impossible up to this date,
that is, within the last few years.

wil125

Mr. Omar Bilokury (Chief Program Services, Western
Grain Stabilization Administration): As the minister pointed
out, the maximum eligible receipts limit that provided for
coverage when the program was introduced started out at
$25,000. This in 1976 did not quite approach the intended
objective of the program to cover 90% of eligible receipts, but
it certainly was in the range where this could have been
achieved had there been an adjustment downward in overall
receipts. By 1979 it was very, very obvious because of
increased grain marketing and somewhat improving prices that
the intended objective of the program to cover 90% of the
eligible receipts was falling very seriously behind.

Essentially, the clause to maintain the intended level of
coverage is very important because it provides an opportunity
for the program to keep in line with the realities of what is
happening on the farm. Perhaps an easy way to explain it, an
oversimplification, is that the value of 8,000 bushels of wheat
in 1976 was worth roughly $25,000, including initial and final
payments; by 1981 that same 8,000 bushels of wheat was
worth well over $45,000.

[Traduction]

elle est inférieure a 1’objectif original, que nous n’avons donc
pas encore atteint.

Je peux comprendre les producteurs qui contestent la hausse
des plafonds alors qu’ils n'ont rien re¢u derniérement. Pour-
tant, & mon avis, si nous ne tentions pas de nous rapprocher de
’objectif de 90 p. 100, c’est tout le programme et ses avantages
qui disparaitraient dans la négligence. Il ne mérite pas cela.
Nous devons essayer d’assurer le pourcentage le plus élevé
possible des recettes. Nous devons donc poursuivre I’étude des
amendements qui pourraient permettre un certain rembourse-
ment et qui rendraient le programme plus adaptable.

Comme les responsables du programme m’accompagnent, je
vais leur demander leurs commentaires. Ce qui s’est passé en
fait, c’est que nous ne nous attendions pas aux ventes énormes
de céréales et a la hausse imprévisible des rentrées brutes.
Personne ne s’attendait 4 ce que le taux d’inflation soit aussi
élevé. Pour cette raison, et pour d’autres tout aussi imprévues,
les paiements n’ont pas été effectués aussi rapidement que
’auraient voulu les producteurs.

En septembre dernier, 4 Regina, le Comité consultatif a
suggéré ’adoption d’une disposition permettant aux agricul-
teurs de se retirer du programme, mais apres 10 ans, non pas
aprés cinq ans. Comme le programme existe maintenant
depuis huit ans et que la plupart des participants en sont
depuis les tout débuts, cela signifierait que la plupart d’entre
eux pourraient choisir de se retirer dans deux ans. Nous
espérons que d’ici 14 ils auront pergu les avantages de la Loi et
choisiront donc de continuer a participer. Le degré de protec-
tion est assez intéressant.

M. Bilokury pourrait peut-étre vous donner plus de détails
sur les raisons pour lesquelles les remboursements ont été
impossibles jusqu’a présent et ce, depuis quelques années.

M. Omar Bilokury (chef, Services au programme, Adminis-
tration de la stabilisation du revenu des céréaliculteurs de
P’Ouest): Comme I’a dit le ministre, la limite maximale des
recettes admissibles aux paiements lorsque le programme avait
été adopté commengait a 25,0008. En 1976, cela ne permettait
pas vraiment d’atteindre 1'objectif proposé du programme—
celui de couvrir 90 p. 100 des recettes admissibles—mais cette
possibilité était encore réalisable avec un rajustement a la
baisse des recettes globales. Cependant, en 1979 il est devenu
tout a fait évident que cet objectif serait loin de pouvoir étre
atteint.

Essentiellement, la disposition visant & maintenir le niveau
prévu des paiements est trés importante car elle permet au
programme de tenir compte de la situation des producteurs. En
simplifiant peut-étre beaucoup les choses pour vous les
expliquer, je dirais qu’en 1976 8,000 boisseaux de blé représen-
taient environ 25,0008, y compris le paiement initial et final
alors qu’en 1981 ce chiffre dépasse de loin 45,0008, pour les
mémes volumes.
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Mr. Gustafson: I think the farmers are becoming very
frustrated with programs the government has been bringing
out. If you look at the cashflow part of the program that it was
to address western grain stabilization, it did not address it at
all.

Is it the minister’s intention to continue this program as a
program to deal with cashflow, or is it his intention to use it as
an insurance policy?

Possibly you could comment as well on just how you
consider the farmers’ position now in terms of cashflow. Where
do you see them?

Senator Argue: I think it has to be related to cashflow. If
you are talking about insurance on an individual basis, of
course it is not. It is related to the whole western program.

What was your last question? How I see the future with
regard to cashflow?

Mr. Gustafson: Because of inflation . . .
Senator Argue: Yes.

Mr. Gustafson: —it has not addressed cashflow. This
program has not worked. Let us come to that conclusion: the
program has not worked. If it is to work there has to be a
definite change in the formula. Does the minister see that
formula to be changed to address the program as an insurance
policy or as a program that would address cashflow?

Senator Argue: I am not sure I am going to endeavour to
answer the specifics of cashflow versus insurance, but as I see
it amendments to the Act are required. We are looking at a
possible change in the base period on which it is based,
reducing it from five years to three years. That is certainly
part of the option.

Another thing being looked at very, very carefully is
whether you change the year in which contributions are made
from the current calendar year to a crop year. Once again, the
officials tell me—and I have to accept their advice; I am not
an authority on the actuarial basis or the details of the
program—that that, too, would make it more sensitive.

So we are endeavouring to consider options that will make
the progam more sensitive to conditions today because I think
it is perfectly correct to say that costs are very much up; that
farmers feel that the program is not working, as it should, in
their interests, and they feel that it is time—and the advisory
committee said exactly the same—the government considered
improvements and changes to the Act. Those options are being
considered, and we wish to make it more sensitive so it can
cover cashflow in a more realistic way and perhaps some other
items of cost that are not now included in arriving at cashflow.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Gustafson. If you wish, I
will put your name on the second round.

Mr. Hovdebo.

[Translation]

M. Gustafson: Je pense que les agriculteurs deviennent trés
mécontents des programmes mis en place par le gouvernement.
Dans celui-ci, contrairement a ce qui était prévu, les liquidités
n‘ont pas du tout permis de stabiliser le revenu du grain de
I’Ouest.

Le ministre a-t-il 'intention de maintenir ce programme
pour répondre aux besoins de liquidités ou entend-il I'utiliser
comme programme d’assurance?

Vous pourriez peut-étre nous dire aussi quelle est d’aprés
vous la situation actuelle des agriculteurs en matiére de
liquidités.

Le sénateur Argue: Le programme doit étre lié aux liquidi-

tés. Il ne s’agit sirement pas d’une assurance, du moins
individuellement. C’est tout ’Ouest qui est visé.

Quelle était votre derniére question? Comment je vois
’avenir pour ce qui est des liquidités?

M. Gustafson: A cause de I'inflation . . .
Le sénateur Argue: Oui.

M. Gustafson: ... il n’a rien fait pour les liquidités. Nous
devons en arriver 4 cette conclusion: le programme n’a pas
fonctionné. Pour qu’il donne des résultats, il faut envisager une
modification catégorique de la formule. A cet égard et selon le
ministre, faut-il un programme d’assurance ou un programme
répondant aux besoins de liquidités?

Le sénateur Argue: Je n’essaierai pas de préciser chacune de
ces deux options ou de vous donner ma préférence, mais
j'estime que des modifications & la Loi s’imposent. Nous
examinons la possibilité de modifier la période de référence
pour la réduire de cinq 4 trois ans. Cela fera sans doute partie
de la solution.

Nous examinons aussi trés soigneusement la possibilité de
modifier 1’année de versement des contributions afin de
remplacer ’année civile courante par une année-récolte. La
encore, les fonctionnaires me disent—je dois accepter leurs
conseils car je ne suis spécialiste ni des questions actuarielles ni
des moindres aspects du programme—que cela compliquerait
aussi les choses.

Nous essayons donc d’envisager des solutions qui permet-
traient au programme de mieux tenir compte des conditions
actuelles car il me parait tout 4 fait juste de dire que les coits
augmentent beaucoup; que les cultivateurs estiment que le
programme ne fonctionne pas, comme il le devrait, dans leur
intérét, et ils pensent qu’il est temps—et c’est bien ce qu’a dit
le comité consultatif—que le gouvernement envisage des
améliorations et des modifications 4 la Loi. Nous examinons
ces possibilités afin que le programme puisse mieux couvrir les
problémes de liquidités ainsi peut-étre que certains autres
éléments de cofits dont il n’est pas actuellement tenu compte
pour déterminer les liquidités.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Gustafson. Si vous souhaitez,
J’inscris votre nom pour le second tour.

Monsieur Hovdebo.
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Mr. Hovdebo: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

The deficiencies of the mechanics of the Western Grain
Stabilization Act, I think, are probably well known. By the
time they get to the point where the farmer is very disturbed
with them it means they have ceased to work long before they
actually become a discussion around the kitchen table. So I am
not going to spend any time on that. But what I would like to
spend a little bit of time on is the difference, the rigidity, of the
Act, and ask if you have any intentions of dealing with that.

I think the best way to deal with the rigidity of the Act is to
compare it with the Agricultural Stabilization Act. In the last
10 years we have had two pay-outs in the Western Grain
Stabilization Act—two pay-outs—and I think they were in
1978 and 1979, if I am not mistaken. And take a look at the
agricultural stablization ... The December 24 press release
said that $66.8 million was paid out for 8 commodities.

When there was a vomitoxin emergency it was used to
justify a payment of 100% to winter wheat growers instead of
the 90% under the ASA. That kind of flexibility is not in the
Western Grain Stabilization Act, and I just wonder why.

Also that same press release makes the statement:

The prairie agricultural economy is largely covered by the
ASA for livestock, and the Western Grain Stabilization Act
for grains.

The Western Grain Stabilization Act made absolutely no
payments, and you cannot suggest to anybody out there that
the need is not as great as it was for the eastern growers and
for the other commodity growers.

Also, to show another indication of the kind of flexibility
that is missing from the Western Grain Stabilization Act, the
grain-corn announcement last year was modified on Feburary
1 to give $4.48 a tonne to producers under the ASA. It had
been announced earlier that there would not be any payment,
and the reason given for the payment to be put in place was
that the stabilization board had calculated a new support price
based on new data given by Statistics Canada. Again, I do not
think there is that kind of flexibility in the Western Grain
Stabilization Act. The formula is so established that it
cannot . . . there is no way . . . We need that kind of flexibility.

Even last year, December 20, there was an announcement—
and a good deal of money put into the estimates—on the
apple-growers of eastern Canada who had suffered frost
damage. The ministry had devised something called the
Eastern Canada Apple Industry Compensation and Re-
establishment Plan.

Western grain growers had very heavy frost two years ago as
well. It reduced the sale price of the grain that came from
those areas to approximately one half of what they could have
expected, and still there was no suggestion that there be any

[Traduction]

M. Hovdebo: Merci, madame le président.

Les lacunes de I'administration de la Loi sur la stabilisation
du grain de I’Ouest sont bien connues, je pense. A partir du
moment ou cela devient une véritable source d’irritation pour
I’agriculteur, cela signifie que les problémes ont commencé a
se poser 4 lui bien avant qu’il ose en parler ouvertement. Je ne
m’attarderai pas la-dessus. Par contre, j’aimerais vous parler
un peu de la rigidité de la loi et vous demander si vous avez
'intention d’y remédier.

A mon avis, la meilleure fagon d’aborder ce probléme est de
comparer la loi en question a la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix
agricoles. Au cours des dix derniéres années, deux paiements
ont été accordés dans le cadre de la Loi sur la stabilisation du
grain de ’Ouest, en 1978 et en 1979, si je ne me trompe. Or,
en ce qui concerne la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix agricoles,
le 24 décembre dernier, un communiqué de presse indiquait
qu’une somme de 66,8 millions de dollars avait été payée pour
huit produits de base.

Ainsi, la crise provoquée il y a quelque temps par la
vomitoxine a déclenché un versement de 100 p. 100 aux
producteurs de blé d’hiver, au lieu de 90 p. 100 en vertu de la
LSPA. Par contre, la Loi sur la stabilisation du grain de
’Ouest est loin d’étre aussi souple, et je demande pourquoi.

Le méme communiqué de presse indique par ailleurs:

L’économie agricole des Prairies est couverte, en grande
partie, par la LSPA pour le bétail, et par la Loi sur la
stabilisation du grain de I’Ouest pour les céréales.

Or, cette Loi sur la stabilisation du grain de ’Ouest n’a permis
le versement d’aucun paiement aux agriculteurs, et vous ne
pouvez pas dire que ces céréaliculteurs n’en ont pas autant
besoin que ceux de I’Est ou que d’autres producteurs.

Permettez-moi de vous donner un autre exemple illustrant la
rigidité de la Loi sur la stabilisation du grain de I’Ouest. Il fut
annoncé le 1° février de I’année derniére que I'on verserait
4.488% la tonne aux producteurs en vertu de la LSPA. Or, on
avait annoncé auparavant qu’aucun versement ne ferait fait, et
’on expliquait la nouvelle décision en disant que I'Office de
stabilisation avait calculé un nouveau prix de soutien a partir
de nouvelles données fournies par Statistique Canada. Ici
encore, la rigidité de la Loi sur la stabilisation du grain de
’Ouest ne permettrait pas ce changement. La formule est
établie de telle sorte qu’elle rend impossible . .. Pourtant, il
serait utile que cette loi soit aussi souple que I'autre.

L’année derniére encore, le 20 décembre dernier, on a
annoncé que des crédits importants seraient prévus dans le
budget a4 I'intention des producteurs de pommes de I'est du
Canada dont les récoltes avaient gelé. Le ministére avait congu
ce qu'on appelle le Programme d’indemnisation des produc-
teurs de pommes de I’est du Canada et de repeuplement des
vergers.

Les producteurs céréaliers de ’Ouest ont eux aussi eu des
problémes de gel intense il y a deux ans, a tel point que le prix
de vente des céréales provenant de ces régions a chuté de
moitié environ et, malgré cela, il n’a nullement été question de
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payment generated because of those, even for the specific
farmers. So if you are changing the Act, I think we have the
wrong Minister here, because the Minister of Agriculture
administers this Act, I believe, does he not?

Senator Argue: I do not know. I am not a line Minister, so I
am not administering the acts. The Minister of Agriculture
administers the Act.

Mr. Hovdebo: Is there going to be some ministerial discre-
tion built into the Act in the review you are presently going
through, as there is under the Agricultural Stabilization Act?
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Senator Argue: I am not sure we are considering an act
which virtually gives the minister authority to change the
provisions of the act, or to have that kind of flexibility that you
are talking about, although certainly that is an item that can
be considered. Mr. Sahl of the advisory committee of the
Western Grain Stabilization Act is here. As you suggested,
Mr. Hovdebo, the principles that apply to the Agricultural
Stabilization Act and to the Western Grain Stabilization Act
are different. The purpose of the Western Grain Stabilization
Act, as I understood it, was not to insure prices of particular
commodities at any given percentage, but rather to deal with
the grain economy of Western Canada as such. I am saying
that if there is a time when there is a down-turn in that
economy, there should be a mechanism available that triggers
some rather substantial payments of money into that economy.

I think the fact of the matter is that we have in this fund
today more than $900 million. The farmers have received a
couple of pay-outs, I guess totalling something under $400
million. It may cover approximately what they have paid in to
the act themselves, or somewhat more, but there is a huge sum
of money in the act itself, which in the view of producers, has
not been doing the kind of job it was designed to do. There is a
need out there, and I think that is supported by the submis-
sions of all the farm organizations dealing with the fund that is
there. We hope amendments can be made and will be made
that will make it more sensitive and which will receive support
for passage so that those payments can be made.

Mr. Sahl is here and I am sure you would like to hear his
views as a producer and a member of that advisory committee.
Avery, if you have some statement you would like to make
generally, I am sure the committee members would be glad to
hear from you.

Mr. Avery Sahl (Member Advisory Committee, Western
Grain Stabilization Administration): As you indicated and as,
I guess, a number of others have indicated, the advisory
committee has had submissions directly from farmers and
through their farm organizations, indicating they would like to
see some revision in the plan to make it more responsive. ..agri
-7 a - lc; We have carried that message forward on a number
of occasions. At the last meeting we had when the fund was in
review, we made some recommendations. There is no question
that farmers are somewhat apprehensive about the mech-

[Translation]

les indemniser. Si vous voulez modifier la loi, ce n’est pas au
ministre ici présent qu’il faut s’adresser, mais plutdt au
ministre de ’Agriculture puisque c’est ce dernier qui adminis-
tre la loi, n’est-ce pas?

Le sénateur Argue: Je ne sais pas, je ne suis pas ministre a
part entiére et, par conséquent, je n’administre pas les lois.
C’est le ministre de I’Agriculture qui le fait.

M. Hovdebo: La nouvelle Loi sur la stabilisation du grain de
I’Ouest va-t-elle accorder une certaine discrétion au ministre,
comme c’est le cas avec la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix
agricoles?

Le sénateur Argue: Je ne sais pas si I'on envisage actuelle-
ment de donner au ministre le pouvoir de modifier les disposi-
tions de la loi, ou de prévoir le degré de souplesse que vous
préconisez, mais en tout cas, c’est une possibilité que I’on peut
étudier. M. Sahl, du comité consultatif de la Loi sur la
stabilisation du grain de I’Ouest, est ici et, comme vous |'avez
vous-méme suggéré, monsieur Hovdebo, les principes qui
régissent la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix agricoles sont
différents de ceux qui sous-tendent la Loi sur la stabilisation
du grain de ’Ouest. Ainsi, cette derniére loi a été adoptée dans
le but, non pas de garantir que les prix de certaines denrées se
maintiendront 4 un certain pourcentage, mais plutdt de
consolider 1’économie céréaliére de I'ouest du Canada. Ainsi,
en cas de ralentissement économique, nous avons un méca-
nisme qui permet de déclencher le versement de sommes assez
substantielles dans cette économie.

En fait, ce fonds représente aujourd’hui plus de 900 millions
de dollars. Les agriculteurs ont regu deux ou trois paiements,
totalisant un peu moins de 400 millions de dollars. Cela
correspond peut-étre grosso modo, aux sommes qu’ils ont
versées eux-mémes en vertu de la loi, ou méme un peu plus,
mais a I’heure actuelle, ce fonds est trés riche mais n’a pas, de
I’avis des producteurs, atteint les objectifs pour lesquels il avait
été prévu. Il y a donc un besoin que nous devons satisfaire, et
c’est ce qu’indiquent les soumissions présentées par toutes les
organisations agricoles au sujet de ce fonds. Nous espérons que
des amendements pourront étre apportés dans ce sens et que la
loi sera rapidement adoptée pour que ces paiements soient
verseés.

M. Sahl est ici et je suis sir que vous voulez savoir ce qu’il
pense en tant que producteur et membre du comité consultatif.
Avery, vous avez la parole.

M. Avery Sahl (membre du comité consultatif sur la Loi sur
la stabilisation du grain de ’Ouest): Comme vous I'avez dit, 4
I'instar de beaucoup d’autres d’ailleurs, le comité consultatif a
recu des soumissions directes d’agriculteurs et d’organismes
agricoles, indiquant la nécessité de rendre le programme plus
sensible aux besoins des agriculteurs. Nous avons transmis ce
message a4 plusieurs occasions et, lors de la derniére réunion
que nous avons eue, nous avons fait certaines recommanda-
tions. Il est évident que les agriculteurs se préoccupent surtout
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anisms of the plan to cause a pay-out. They would certainly
welcome some revision in the plan itself.

Mr. Hovdebo: The Agricultural Stabilization Act which
theoretically covers the whole field, has the kind of flexibility
which has allowed the kind of payments that have been made
over the years. The net result of those two acts has been a very
unfair situation as far as western grain growers are concerned.
Western grain growers do not have the kind of backing, I
suppose you would have to say, the ability to equalize their
treatment that the other commodities have.

What we need is either agreeing to be brought under the
Agricultural Stabilization Act a little more fully—it actually
could be under the Act right now—so that the specific
situations which have developed, such as frozen wheat in a
certain area, could be dealt with under that act separately
from the Western Grain Stabilization Act, or the kind of
flexibility that would allow the Western Grain Stabilization
Act to take effect. Otherwise, we continue to perpetrate an
unfair situation between the grain growers and the other
commodities. It is an obvious unfairness because of the fact
that, although we pay well into the fund, we do not get the
money out when we need it.
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Will there be anything in the Bill which allows this kind of
flexibility? Would you take suggestions from this group or
another committee, if it were formed, to look at those kinds of
suggestions, or can we extend the flexibility of the Agricultural
Stabilization Act to grain growers as well and consequently
make it fairer for grain growers?

Senator Argue: I think you have raised some pretty perti-
nent points. I guess I would say the basis of the present Act is
a contribution of $1 from the farmers and a contribution of $2
from the Treasury of Canada. It has made a very broad
program to deal with economic downturns when they happen
on the economy in western Canada.

It has not, as you have suggested, been designated to take
care of frozen wheat or crop failures on a given farm or
anything like that. The idea has been that the Crop Insurance
Program lends itself to insurance, at least to a partial extent,
against those kinds of calamity or the economic results from
those kinds of calamity. I am sure the officials who are hearing
your suggestions today about flexibility will give those
suggestions every consideration.

It is an interesting point you raise about whether the
Agricultural Stabilization Act could be used to overlap—Ilet us
call it that for lack of a better word—to western Canada to
make a payout in the instance of frozen crops or something
like that. But that is not the general purpose of this Bill or the
principles on which the Bill was based. I presume that would
be a very major change.

Mr. Bilokury: Perhaps as an addition to the point the
Minister made, I believe it is very important to distinguish
between a production adversity and its effect on the economic
well-being of the farmer as opposed, of course, to the economic
factors the stabilization program addresses.

[Traduction]

des mécanismes du plan qui déclenchent le versement d’un
paiement. Ils réclament une modification de ce olan.

M. Hovdebo: La Loi sur la stabilisation des prix agricoles,
qui couvre en théorie toute I'industrie agricole, a la souplesse
nécessaire pour permettre le versement des paiements qui ont
été faits au cours des années. L’application de ces deux lois
crée une situation trés injuste a I’égard des producteurs
céréaliers de I'Ouest. En effet, ces derniers ne regoivent pas
I'appui que d’autres catégories de producteurs regoivent.

Il faudrait donc, soit élargir la portée de la Loi sur la
stabilisation des prix agricoles, afin d’inclure des circonstances
particuliéres, comme le gel des récoltes de bl¢, de sorte que ce
genre de situation ne reléverait plus de la Loi sur la stabilisa-
tion du grain de 1’Ouest; I'autre solution consisterait a donner
suffisamment de souplesse a la Loi sur la stabilisation du grain
de I'Ouest pour que les paiements puissent étre versés dans ce
genre de circonstance. Autrement, les producteurs de céréales
continueront d’étre défavorisés par rapport aux autres
producteurs. C’est manifestement injuste, car nous cotisons a
la caisse, mais nous ne pouvons rien en retirer quand nous
avons besoin d’argent.

Le projet de loi permettra-t-il d’assouplir les conditions? Si
le Comité, ou un autre comité, si ’on en créait un, formulait
des recommandations, est-ce que vous seriez préts a en tenir
compte? Serait-il possible de faire en sorte que la Loi sur la
stabilisation des prix agricoles s’applique aussi aux producteurs
de céréales, pour que ceux-ci soient moins défavorisés?

Le sénateur Argue: Vous avez soulevé des questions fort
pertinentes. En ce moment, la loi prévoit qu’un dollar sera
versé par les cultivateurs, et deux dollars par le Conseil du
Trésor. Il s’agit d’un programme trés étendu visant & contre-
carrer les perturbations économiques qu’il pourrait y avoir
dans I’Ouest du Canada.

Nonobstant ce que vous avez dit, le programme n’a pas été
congu pour indemniser les victimes d’un gel ou d’'une mauvaise
récolte. Le programme d’assurance-récolte protége, dans une
certaine mesure, contre des fléaux de ce genre et les répercus-
sions économiques de ceux-ci. Je suis certain que les fonction-
naires, qui vous ont entendu parler de I’assouplissement des
conditions, tiendront compte de vos recommandations.

J’ai trouvé bien intéressant ce que vous avez dit & propos de
la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix agricoles. Vous avez proposé
qu’elle soit étendue, pour ainsi dire, & ’Ouest du pays, pour
qu’on puisse, par exemple, indemniser un cultivateur dont la
récolte a gelé. Mais ce n’est pas pour cela que le projet de loi a
¢été congu, et ce n’est pas 1a non plus le principe sur lequel il a
été fondé. Ce sera un changement radical.

M. Bilokury: Pour ajouter a ce que le ministre a dit, je crois
qu’il faut faire la distinction entre les problémes de production
et leur effet sur la situation du cultivateur et la conjoncture
économique. Le programme de stabilisation vise plutot celle-ci.
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Essentially, if you are looking at a situation where a farm is
dried out, hailed out, eaten out, or diseased out on a regional
basis, the program does not respond to those regional or local
situations. The underlying objective of the program is
intended, of course, to sustain the net cashflow from the sale of
grain in the western region at a basis at least equal to the
average of the previous five years. Until now, of course, that
has been the condition for the operation of the program.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Hovdebo.
Monsieur Tessier.
M. Tessier: Merci, madame le président.

Vous me permettrez, madame le président, de faire une
premiére remarque. Je voudrais étre le plus diplomate possible,
mais je voudrais aussi que I’'on comprenne le message. On veut
étre bons garcons et bonnes filles du c6té des francophones,
mais j'aurais aimé que les remarques préliminaires qui nous
ont été distribuées uniquement en anglais soient dans les deux
langues. J'ai bien I'impression que, de I'autre c6té, on n’accep-
terait pas des documents uniquement en frangais. Dieu merci,
je peux maintenant me débrouiller et j’en suis heureux. Mais il
n’en reste pas moins que I'on devrait étre servis dans les deux
langues.
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An Hon. Member: Hear! Hear!

M. Tessier: Madame le président, il y en a qui ont tendance
a vouloir tout comptabiliser. Pour ma part, je ne m’oppose pas
a ce qu’il y en ait qui viennent voir si j’ai obtenu 499,000 ou
500,000 dollars dans le cadre du programme relatif a la
stimulation de I’emploi.

J’en viens & ma question. Depuis que le programme de
stabilisation existe, quels en ont été les coits pour le gouverne-
ment du Canada?

Dans quelle mesure cette formule de stabilisation constitue-
t-elle un revenu minimum garanti pour le producteur? Il
semble qu’on se querelle constamment au sujet des program-
mes de stabilisation. On se demande si ce sont des programmes
de stabilisation réels ou des programmes d’assurance. Dans le
cas particulier de la stabilisation concernant le grain de
I’Ouest, dans quelle mesure le programme actuel constitue-t-il
une forme de revenu minimum garanti, quelque chose d’un peu
plus poussé que de la simple stabilisation?

Le président: Monsieur le sénateur.

Senator Argue: I regret very much, and I apologize for, not
having the statement in both languages. We prepared it very
quickly this morning. I know that is not an excuse, but I regret
very much it is not in both languages.

I think we will ask our officials to provide you with the
various sums of money that have been paid into the Act by the
Government of Canada and by the producers and that kind of
detailed information. It is not a guaranteed basic minimum
income in any way. It is triggered on the basis of the cashflow
or the lack of it in western Canada, and when there is a drop in

[Translation]

Si les récoltes, dans une région donnée, sont détruites par la
dessiccation, la gréle, les insectes ou la maladie, le programme
ne s’applique pas. Il vise plutdt & assurer que les recettes
provenant de la vente de céréales dans 'Ouest soient au moins
égales a la moyenne des cinq années précédentes. C’est ainsi
que le programme a fonctionné jusqu’ici.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Hovdebo.
Mr. Tessier.
Mr. Tessier: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

With your permission, Madam Chairman, I will begin by
making a comment. I would like to be as diplomatic as
possible, but I would also like to get my message across. We,
on the francophone side, want to be good boys and girls, but I
would have liked the opening statement, which was distributed
only in English, to have been available in both languages. I
suspect that the other side would not accept documents that
were only in French. I can get along now, in English, thank
God, and I am very pleased about it. But we should still get
service in both languages. End of comment.

Une voix: Bravo! Bravo!

Mr. Tessier: Some people have a tendency, Madam
Chairman, to put a value on everything. Personally, I have no
objection to people looking at whether I got $499,000 or
$500,000 under the job creation program.

Now, for my question. How much has the stabilization
program cost the federal government since it was introduced?

To what extent is the stabilization formula a form of
guaranteed mininum income for the producer? We seem to be
constantly fighting over stabilization programs. We wonder
whether they are true stabilization programs or insurance
programs. To deal specifically with western grain stabilization,
to what extent is the existing program a form of guaranteed
minimum income, something that goes a little bit further than
stabilization pure and simple?

The Chairman: Senator Argue.

Le sénateur Argue: Je regrette infiniment que la déclaration
ne soit pas dans les deux langues, et je m’en excuse. Nous
I'avons rédigée en vitesse ce matin. Je sais que ce n’est pas la
une raison, mais je regrette infiniment qu’elle ne soit pas dans
les deux langues.

Nous allons demander a nos fonctionnaires de vous dire, en
détail, quels montants ont été versés dans la caisse par le
gouvernement fédéral et par les producteurs. Il ne s’agit
nullement d’un revenu minimal garanti. Tout dépend des
liquidités, ou de I’absence de celles-ci, dans 'Ouest du Canada;
lorsque les liquidités baissent par rapport aux cinq années
précédentes, il y a déboursement.
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the cashflow as related to the previous five years, then a
payment is triggered.

I think I would ask Mr. Bilokury to provide you with the
statistical information you have requested.

Mr. Bilokury: There is a financial statement in your 1981
annual report. I believe it is the last exhibit. You will notice
there the breakdown of the contribution in levy from farmers
and from the Government of Canada up to, of course, Decem-
ber 31; the end of the 1981 calendar year. If you wanted to
update that in just approximate figures or amounts for 1982,
then the producer levy contribution would total about $284
million, the government’s contribution is roughly $568 million,
and the accumulated interest would add up to roughly $143
million.

M. Tessier: Pour la gouverne des membres du Comité,
pourriez-vous aussi préciser quels ont été les déficits au cours
des six derniéres années? On sait que ces déficits ont été
assumés par le gouvernement.

Mr. Bilokury: There was a deficit for a short period of time
after the payout was made for the 1978 calendar year of
operations, but that was very temporary. It was just for a
matter of about two or three months and then subsequent levy
contributions from the two sources really erased that deficit.

M. Tessier: Si je vous comprends bien, la participation
gouvernementale représente au moins deux fois celle des
producteurs, soit deux dollars et quelques cents pour chaque
dollar des producteurs. Je voudrais vous faire confirmer qu'’il
en est bien ainsi, parce que vous venez de nous donner des
chiffres qui abonderaient dans ce sens alors que si I’on examine
d’autres programmes de stabilisation, il s’agit de $1 pour $1.

® 1150

Le blé a-t-il un statut particulier au gouvernement?

A Witness: Yes, it is at the bottom of the heap: that is its
special status.

Senator Argue: I think the complaint this morning, at least
from other parts of the committee, is that the Agricultural
Stabilization Act and the payouts that were referred to have
carried no contribution by the producers, as I understand it.
This is in a sense the exception rather than the rule. Surely it is
loaded two to one; and I do not take much objection to that, as
a western producer.

The crop insurance scheme—if you want to call that a
stabilization program, it is in a sense, although it is crop
insurance—that is 50%, as you suggest, from the Government
of Canada and 50% from the producers . The provinces
administer it, and that is 6% or 8% of the total cost, I believe—
and that is from memory. So the bulk of the money is pro-
duced by the farmers and matched by the Government of
Canada. But if you compare this program with the general
agricultural stabilization program, the western producers do
contribute to the program. It is more from the government
than from the producers. Then there is another element in

there, I believe, namely that when there is a surplus—and
36128—2

[Traduction]

Je vais demander 4 M. Bilokury de vous donner les chiffres
que vous avez demandés.

M. Bilokury: Dans le rapport annuel de 1981, vous trouve-
rez un bilan. C’est le dernier tableau, je crois. Vous y trouverez
la ventilation de la cotisation des cultivateurs et du gouverne-
ment fédéral, jusqu’au 31 décembre 1981. Pour obtenir des
chiffres approximatifs pour 1982, il suffit d’extrapoler: les
prélévements a la production s’éléveraient a environ 284
millions de dollars, la contribution du gouvernement a environ

568 millions, et les intéréts cumulatifs 4 environ 143 millions.

Mr. Tessier: Could you tell us also what were the deficits
for the last six years? We know that they have been assumed
by the government.

M. Bilokury: Briévement, aprés que les paiements ont été
effectués pour 1978, il y a eu un déficit; mais cela n’a vraiment
pas duré longtemps. Au bout de deux ou trois mois, les
cotisations des cultivateurs et du gouvernement fédéral sont
rentrées et le déficit a été rayé.

Mr. Tessier: If I have understood you correctly, the
government contributes at least twice as much as the pro-
ducers, two dollars and change for each dollar contributed by
the producers. I would like you to confirm for us that this is
the case, because you have just given us figures which would
seem to indicate that it is, whereas if we look at other stabiliza-
tion programs, it is dollar for dollar.

Does wheat have special status with the government?

Un témoin: Oui, il est au dernier rang: voild son statut
spécial.

Le sénateur Argue: Ce qui ennuie les membres du Comité,
du moins certains d’entre eux, c’est qu'on effectue des
réglements en vertu de la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix
agricoles sans que les producteurs soient obligés de cotiser.
C’est du moins ce que j’ai compris. Au fond, c’est I’exception
plutdt que la regle. Bien siir, la cotisation du gouvernement
fédéral est deux fois plus élevée; en tant que producteur de
I’Ouest, je n’ai rien contre.

Dans le cadre du programme d’assurance-récolte—qui
pourrait aussi étre considéré comme un programme de
stabilisation—le gouvernement fédéral verse 50 p. 100, et les
producteurs 50 p. 100. Le programme est administré par les
provinces; si je me souviens bien, les frais d’administration
représentent entre 6 et 8 p. 100 du coiit global. Le programme
est presque entierement financé, 4 part égale, par les cultiva-
teurs et le fédéral. Pour ce qui est du programme de stabilisa-
tion des prix agricoles en général, les cultivateurs de ’Ouest y
cotisent. Mais les cotisations du fédéral sont plus élevées que
les leurs. Il y a un autre élément qui entre en jeu: lorsqu’il y a
un surplus—et il y en a presque toujours eu—Ile taux de
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there has been almost all of the time—that money earns a
return—90% of the 90-day Treasury bills—which I think in
general terms is perhaps a fairly good interest rate. That is
another element in the system. All of those contributions have
added up—and the relatively small payouts—to the kind of
surplus we are talking about in the Act today.

M. Tessier: Madame le président, vous me permettrez une
derniére remarque.

Je ne voudrais pas suggérer d’améliorer une situation qui
doit I’étre, mais il existe des différences entre les programmes,
comme dans le cas de la stabilisation des grains et nous, de
I’Est, et, en particulier du Québec, nous sommes disposés a les
accepter.

D’autre part, je voudrais que la méme ouverture d’esprit
existe pour tous les autres programmes, parce que si l'on veut
administrer ce pays, il faut en respecter les différences, et si
cela coite le double pour la stabilisation des céréales ou du blé,
je serai toujours d’accord pour en payer le colt. Toutefois,
jespére que l'on aura droit & la méme condescendance a
I’échelle du pays, pour tous les programmes du gouvernement
canadien.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Tessier.

Senator Argue: If I might just add a statement to that, on
principle, certainly I feel programs in the main should have a
national application. Certainly I feel very strongly in principle
that one area should not benefit more than another area, and
certainly not at the expense of another area. But there may be
differences between our areas, let us say the East and the
West, that sometimes mean different programs. If I may
interpret some of what has been said this morning, if you want
to generate something in the West that is in opposition, you
can say, well, now, when the winter wheat payment came
forward it was based on a disease and it was based on the
quantity of wheat that was available or the farmer was selling,
and it was not a program that was actuarially sound, it was
merely a payment. If on the other side you want to look at the
West, you can say look at that program; it is two to one in
favour of the farmers.

My own theory as a politician is that if you have something
in the East —and maybe you do, sometimes—that is better
than what we have in the West, we should try to improve what
is there to equalize the benefit you have; and then if we happen
to have something sometimes that is a little better than you
have, we should lend our support to your getting the same kind
of benefits. So we are not really trying to take one part of the
country down to help another or in a relative sense to make it a
better comparison, but we are improving the areas of the
country where we feel improvement is needed.

® 1155

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator.

M. Mayer sera notre prochain intervenant, mais j’aimerais,
tout d’abord, parler au Comité du rapport 4 déposer a la
Chambre des communes, suite a la séance du Comité de la
semaine derniére.

[Translation)

rendement—90 p. 100 de ce que rapportent les bons du Trésor
de 90 jours—est pas mal intéressant. Voild un autre élément.
C’est parce que les cotisations se sont accumulées—et que les
débours ont été minimes—que nous nous retrouvons avec un
surplus.

Mr. Tessier: Madam Chairman, one last comment, with
your permission.

I do not want to suggest improving a situation that needs it,
but there are differences between the programs, as there are in
the case of grain stabilization, and we, in the East, particularly
in Quebec, are prepared to accept them.

I would also like us to be as open-minded about all of the
other programs, because if we want to govern this country, we
have to respect differences, and if it costs twice as much to
stabilize grain or wheat, I am still prepared to pay the price. |
hope, however, that all Canadians will be as understanding
about federal programs.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Tessier.

Le sénateur Argue: Je crois qu’en principe, les programmes
fédéraux devraient étre d’envergure nationale. Je crois
fermement qu’en principe, une région ne devrait pas en
recevoir plus qu’une autre, et certainement pas au détriment
de la région en question. Mais il y peut y avoir entre les
régions, entre I’Est et I'Ouest, des différences qui font quon a
besoin de programmes différents. D’aprés ce que vous avez dit
ce matin, il semble que, pour susciter 'opposition dans ’Ouest,
on peut prétendre que les paiements pour le blé d’hiver ont été
calculés en tenant compte des maladies et de la quantité de blé
que les cultivateurs vendaient ou pouvaient vendre, que le
financement du programme n’était pas solide sur le plan
actuariel, qu’il s’agissait uniquement de débourser de I’argent.
Par contre, si on pense 4 I’Ouest, on peut dire que les cultiva-
teurs en bénéficient dans un rapport de 2 4 1.

Je crois, en tant que politicien, que si ce que I'on a dans I’Est
est toujours meilleur que ce que 'on a dans I"Ouest—et c’est
parfois le cas—nous devrions essayer d’améliorer la situation
et d’obtenir les mémes bénéfices que vous; et s’il nous arrive
d’avoir un peu plus que vous, nous devrions vous donner notre
appui lorsque vous essayez d’obtenir des bénéfices compara-
bles. Il ne s’agit pas de rabaisser une région pour en relever
une autre, pour que les deux soient davantage comparables; il
s’agit d’améliorer les conditions dans des régions ou nous
croyons que c’est nécessaire.

Le président: Merci, monsieur le sénateur.

Before giving the floor to the next speaker, who will be Mr.
Mayer, I would like to ask the committee to consider the
report to be tabled in the House of Commons, following our
meeting last week.
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You have that report? Comme il y a quorum, je pourrais,
avec votre consentement, présenter le rapport a la Chambre,
cet aprés-midi ou demain. J’ai, toutefois, besoin d’un motion-
naire.

M. Mayer, appuyé par M. Veillette, . . . Etes-vous d’accord

sur la phraséologie?
That is okay?

Le Comité adopte donc 4 'unanimité de faire rapport a la
Chambre cet aprés-midi ou demain. Merci.

Monsieur Mayer, vous avez droit & dix minutes.
Mr. Mayer: Thank you very much, Madam Chairman.

I cannot believe what is going on here this morning. It is
almost like being in Alice in Wonderland. We are all being
very polite around the table. We have a real world out there,
Madam Chairman, Mr. Minister. People are having trouble
paying their fuel bills. They are having trouble getting
organized to buy seed and fertilizer to get their crops in the
ground this coming spring. You know what that is like, Mr.
Minister; you farm yourself.

The government is sitting literally on $1 billion that is
available under a plan. You are quoted in the press, in the
Western Producer, back in October as saying that the govern-
ment is aiming at quite a substantial payment.

And you are looking at amendments. You tell us this
morning: “It is my hope that we will be presenting amend-
ments during this session”.

You have not reached any decisions. You have the thing in
the Throne Speech.

Frankly, I do not understand what is going on. People want
action. They do not want words. I wrote some down: You got a
short distance; you got a reasonable length of time; you did not
anticipate the escalation in grain sales; you did not anticipate
the inflation rate. This government’s record, as far as looking
after western grain producers goes, is dismal. It is an embar-
rassment.

I can go on: You sat on almost $10 million of producers’
money under the PFAA and did nothing with it for 10 years. I
do not understand some of these things. You are reported as
having a $4-million slush fund in Saskatchewan to spread
around for political purposes.

You are willing to advocate on behalf of the Russians. We
understand that. If we are going to trade, it has to be a two-
way street. You are willing to advocate that western producers
purchase Russian equipment. That is fine. What are you
willing to do on behalf of western producers when the govern-
ment is sitting, as I said, literally on $1 billion?

When can we expect some action? And, if you are not
prepared to do it, then why do you not give a reference to this
committee and see if we can do something? This is a critical
situation. This is not polite talk.

[Traduction]

Vous avez le rapport? Since we have a quorum, I could,
with your consent, present the report in the House this
afternoon or tomorrow. However, I would need a motion to
that effect.

Mr. Mayer, seconded by Mr. Veillette... Do you agree
with the wording of the report?

Cava?

It is therefore unanimously agreed that I shall submit this
report to the House this afternoon or tomorrow. Thank you.

Mr. Mayer, you have 10 minutes.
M. Mayer: Merci beaucoup, madame le président.

Jai du mal 4 croire ce qui se passe ici ce matin. Clest
presque comme si on était avec Alice au pays des merveilles.
Tout le monde a été trés poli. Mais il y a une réalité, madame
le président, et monsieur le ministre, selon laquelle les gens ont
du mal a payer leurs factures de carburant. Ils ont du mal a
s’organiser pour s’acheter des grains de semence et des engrais
pour semer au printemps. Vous savez ce qui se passe, monsieur
le ministre, car vous étes agriculteur vous-méme.

Le gouvernement dispose d’un milliard de dollars en vertu
du programme. En octobre, vous avez déclaré, selon le Western
Producer, que le gouvernement vise a atteindre un paiement
assez considérable.

Vous nous dites également que vous examinez des amende-
ments 4 la loi. Vous nous avez dit ce matin que vous espérez
pouvoir présenter des amendements pendant la session.

Vous n’avez pas encore pris de décision. Vous parlez du
programme dans le discours du trone également.

Je vous dis en toute franchise que je ne comprends pas ce qui
se passe. Les gens veulent de I’action et non pas des mots. J’ai
pris en note certains de vos propos: vous nous avez dit que la
distance était courte, que la période de temps était raisonnable,
que vous n’avez pas prévu l'augmentation des ventes de
céréales, ni le taux d’inflation. Le comportement du gouverne-
ment envers les producteurs de céréales de IOuest est une
honte.

Je peux citer d’autres exemples: vous n’avez rien fait,
pendant dix ans, des presque 10 millions de dollars que vous
avez regus des producteurs en vertu de la Loi sur I’assistance a
I'agriculture des Prairies. Je ne comprends pas certaines de ces
choses. On dit que vous avez un fonds d’une valeur de 4
millions de dollars, en Saskatchewan, servant a des fins
politiques.

Vous étes prét a parler au nom des Soviétiques. Cela, nous le
comprenons. Le commerce doit se faire dans les deux sens.
Vous étes prét 4 encourager les producteurs de I'Ouest a
acheter des machines fabriquées en U.R.S.S. C’est trés bien.
Mais qu’est-ce que vous étes prét a faire au nom des produc-
teurs, alors que le gouvernement se repose sur un milliard de
dollars?

Quand le gouvernement va-t-il agir? Si vous n’étes pas prét
a prendre des mesures, pourquoi ne pas donner un autre
mandat au Comité, pour nous permettre d’essayer de faire
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If you went to an elevator, Mr. Minister, with all due
respect, and gave the kind of crap you are giving this morning,
they would draw and quarter you. You would come back to
Ottawa in a Glad bag, like my seat-mate said one time.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Je pense que mon collégue d’en
face n’a pas compris. La question a 1’étude, ce matin, a trait 4
'application d’une assurance, et non pas au prix mondial. M.
Mayer ne comprend rien, car il me semble que le ministre est
venu expliquer ce qu’est une assurance-stabilisation, et non
¢élaborer sur les marchés mondiaux. Il faudrait donc s’en tenir
au sujet pour lequel nous avons été convoqués ce matin,
madame le président.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Dionne.

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, the minister understands
perfectly well what I am talking about.

Senator Argue: I am just as anxious as any member of this
committee or anybody else to see that action is taken quickly
to deal with the item that is forecast in the Speech from the
Throne, and I anticipate and I believe that amendments will be
brought before the House of Commons.

Mr. Mayer: When?

Senator Argue: In this session. And I hope when the
amendments are brought before the House of Commons . . .

Mr. Mayer: The last session was four years.

Senator Argue: Yes, well, I did not have any part of that so I
will not get into that.

Mr. Mayer: You do have some part of this program. Let us
get some action.

Senator Argue: Okay, but I hope.. . .

The Chairman: If you want an answer, give the minister a
chance.

Senator Argue: I am prepared to encourage, as I have been,
a quick introduction of legislation to deal with this question.
When it is before the House of Commons the members on all
sides of the House of Commons will have an opportunity, I
hope, to deal with it and to deal with it expeditiously. And I
hope all those who are concerned and who are dealing with the
question can act and will act in such a way as to get the money
paid out and paid out quickly, whatever the provisions may be.
And I take it from the strong language you used this morning
that if and when, and when the legislation is introduced, as I
believe it will be, forecast from the Throne, that action will be
taken so that those kind of pay-outs can be made.

® 1200

I guess, Madam Chairman, we are not here to deal with all
the aspects of the grain situation, but it has been referred to in
a rather broad way. I think this government has committed

[Transiation)

quelque chose? La situation est critique. Je ne cherche pas a
étre poli.

Sauf votre respect, monsieur le ministre, si vous alliez dans
un silo raconter le genre d’histoire que vous nous avez racontée
ce matin, on vous réduirait en bouillie. Comme mon voisin a la
Chambre I’a dit un jour: vous reviendriez 4 Ottawa dans un
sac de plastique.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): I do not think my colleague
opposite has understood anything. The issue we are looking at
here this morning concerns an insurance plan, and not world
prices. Mr. Mayer does not understand anything, because, in
my opinion, the minister came to explain stabilization
insurance, and not to discuss world markets. So, we should
stick to the subject for which this meeting was convened,
Madam Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dionne.

M. Mayer: Madame le président, le ministre comprend
parfaitement ce dont je parle.

Le sénateur Argue: J’ai tout aussi hdte que n’importe quel
membre du Comité, ou n’importe qui d’autre que des mesures
soient prises rapidement pour faire suite 4 I’annonce qui a été
faite dans le discours du trone. Je pense que des amendements
a la loi seront présentés a la Chambre des communes.

M. Mayer: Quand?

Le sénateur Argue: Pendant la session. Et j'espére que
lorsque les amendements seront présentés devant la Chambre
des communes . . .

M. Mayer: La derniére session a duré quatre ans.

Le sénateur Argue: Oui, mais comme je n'y étais pour rien,
je ne vais pas me lancer dans ce débat.

M. Mayer: Mais vous avez quand méme un réle a jouer pour
ce qui est de ce programme. Faites quelque chose, s’il vous
plait.

Le sénateur Argue: Trés bien, mais j’espére . . .

Le président: Si vous voulez avoir une réponse, il faut
donner au ministre la possibilité de répondre.

Le sénateur Argue: Comme par le passé, je suis prét a
encourager la présentation rapide d’un projet de loi sur cette
question. Lorsque le projet de loi sera devant la Chambre des
communes, tous les députés auront I'occasion de I'étudier, et
j'espére qu’ils I'adopteront rapidement. Et j’espére que toutes
les personnes concernées qui ont des inquiétudes pourront et
voudront faire le nécessaire pour obtenir le versement rapide-
ment, quelles qu’en soient les conditions. Vous avez parlé sans
ambages, ce matin, et j’en conclus que lorsque le projet de loi
aura été présenté—comme je crois qu’il le sera, d’apres le
discours du tréne—tout sera mis en ordre pour que ces
paiements puissent étre effectués.

Certes, madame le président, nous ne sommes pas ici pour
traiter de tous les aspects de la question des grains, mais nous
en avons parlé en termes assez généraux. Ce gouvernement a, a
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major funds to the grain industry in western Canada, cash
advances, guaranteed initial prices, very huge guarantees of
credit sales which have facilitated the sale of credit, and it has
been alluded to this morning about the trade picture; of course
trade has to be there. These are very huge markets. If we can
facilitate the maintenance and the expansion of these kind of
markets, then so much the better. In spite of the criticism that
has been made—and I can understand the criticism that is
made and I can understand it being made—I think increasing
the sales of all of these grain commodities is something we
were not able to forecast, but I am rather proud they hap-
pened. And if because we have got larger sales than ever it has
made it less likely that payments will be made out of this fund,
I think that is a positive accomplishment. I think the criticism
would be far worse if the sales had not been there and we were
looking at a very major reduction in cash.

Mr. Mayer: That is a total non-sequitur you make.

Senator Argue: But anyway, these are the facts. The money
is there. We are looking for amendments to the Act and we
hope that action will be taken this session and that money can
be paid out to the producers.

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, to conclude, the Minister
mentions that we use strong language. He well knows that if
he were to speak to producers in his home province, in Mr.
Gustafson’s riding, where he resides, he would get the same
kind of language. That is the kind of frustration that is out
there. He mentions cash advances. This Party is on record for
almost two years of being willing to support, and put through
the House very very quickly, tout de suite, increases in cash
advances.

Senator Argue: And WGSA.

Mr. Mayer: 1 will get to that. You have a member of your
advisory committee sitting here. The advisory committee on
this Act has recommended that it be amended. We on this side
recommended over a year ago that it be looked at. What is
holding you back? Why can we not do something? The fund is
built up to such a level that there is an automatic triggering of
a reduction in contributions by producers. What is the hold-
up? Are we to take it that you do not have any influence? If
you want some help, ask us, and we will all be prepared to go
to Cabinet with you and help you along. If that is the kind of
thing that needs to be done, let us know. This is a serious
situation. And nobody can understand why the government sits
on its fanny with such a big chunk of cash and comes here
before the committee with platitudes. People want some
action. If we are going to reap a crop, we have to seed a crop.
And that is the kind of situation that is developing in the areas
that are affected by this program.

I could go on, Madam Chairman, and really it does not do
any good, because we are going around in circles and covering
ground that been covered before. But I hope the Minister gets
the message that it is a serious situation and he is prepared to
do something about it. With reference to amendments, if the
Minister is prepared to come forward with some reasonable
amendments, we on this side will support them, and support
them very quickly and support them willingly. So do not let

[Traduction)]

mon avis, engagé des fonds considérables pour le secteur des
grains de I’Ouest, il a consenti des avances de fonds, il a
garanti les prix de départ, il a accordé des garanties considéra-
bles pour les ventes a crédit, ce qui a eu pour effet de les
encourager, et il a influencé sur un négoce qui, bien entendu,
joue un rdle trés important: il s’agit de marchés considérables.
Tant mieux si nous sommes en mesure de concourir au
maintien et 4 I’expansion de ce genre de marchés. Malgré les
critiques—je comprends qu’on ait élevé des critiques, et j'en
comprends la nature—je pense que le gonflement des ventes de
tous ces grains et leurs dérivés n’était pas prévisible, mais je
suis plutdt fier que cela se soit produit. Et si nos ventes ont
atteint un chiffre record, de sorte qu’il est peu probable que
des versements soient faits, c’est une chose qui me parait
positive. Que n’auraient été les critiques si les ventes n’avaient
pas eu lieu et §’il y avait une ponction des réserves.

M. Mayer: Votre conclusion manque totalement de logique.

Le sénateur Argue: Et pourtant, ce sont la des faits.
L’argent y est. Nous cherchons & modifier la loi, et nous
espérons que des mesures seront prises, cette session-ci, pour
que les versements soient faits aux producteurs.

M. Mayer: En conclusion, madame le président, le ministre
nous reproche de ne pas micher nos paroles. Il sait fort bien
que s’il s’adressait aux producteurs de sa province natale, ceux
de la circonscription de M. Gustafson, ou il réside, on ne lui
parlerait pas sur un autre ton. Car les gens de la-bas se sentent
lésés. Il parle d’avances de fonds. Voila deux ans que ce parti
nous promet d’appuyer une proposition d’avances de fonds, et
de la faire adopter trés rapidement, «tout de suite», par la
Chambre.

Le sénateur Argue: Et la Loi de stabilisation concernant le
grain de 'Ouest.

M. Mayer: J'y arrive. Vous avez ici présent un membre de
votre comité consultatif, le comité qui a recommandé que la loi
soit modifiée. Nous, de notre part, avons recommandé, il y a
plus d’un an, que la loi soit revue. Qu’est-ce qui vous retient?
Pourquoi piétinons-nous? Le fonds a atteint des dimensions
telles qu’il y a déclenchement automatique d’une réduction des
cotisations des producteurs. Quel est I’obstacle? Voulez-vous
nous faire croire que vous n’avez pas d’influence? S’il vous faut
de I'aide, demandez-la nous; nous sommes tous disposés a vous
accompagner et vous appuyer devant le Cabinet. S’il faut en
venir a cela, dites-le nous, car la situation est grave et nul ne
comprend I'immobilisme du gouvernement, qui vient débiter
des platitudes devant ce Comité, alors que les fonds se sont
accumulés a ce point. Les gens veulent voir bouger les choses.
Qui veut récolter doit semer, c’est 1a qu’on en est venu dans les
régions concernées par ce programme.

Je pourrais encore poursuivre la discussion, madame le
président, mais ce serait futile, car nous ne faisons que tourner
en rond et ressasser le méme sujet. Et j'espére que le ministre
prend conscience de la gravité de la situation et est disposé a
intervenir. En ce qui concerne les amendements, si le ministre
veut bien présenter des amendements raisonnables, nous les
appuyerons, sans tarder et de bon coeur. Que nul ne prenne
donc ce prétexte pour ne pas proposer d’amendement a la loi,
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anybody use that as an excuse for not coming forward with
amendments to the Act, because we are prepared to support
them, and support them in very very short order. We are
interested in doing something for producers in this country, not
interested in coming with rhetoric and sitting on a bunch of
cash that could be doing some good for people in this country.

Senator Argue: I think the statement that Mr. Mayer has
made about being willing to act and willing to act quickly is an
important contribution. I anticipate that you will have an
opportunity in this session to follow through and to help pass
legislation that will result in an improved pay-out, and will
make the Act more sensitive.

I do not have to take a back seat to anybody as far as going
out and meeting the producers is concerned. I was up in
Mistatim last Thursday with 300 people there. They are
interested in this Act, they are interested in changes. They
take strong positions, but they are very, very appreciative of
the record of this government in the grain business and it is a
record that is an admirable record. We increased our export
sales in the year that just ended from 17% of the world market
to 21%—the American sales went down from 49% to 42%.
That is all right. I think that is a pretty good accomplishment.
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Mr. Mayer: But if you look at it over a context of 20 years,
we are a disaster, and if the Minister . . .

Senator Argue: Oh, we are no disaster . . .

Mr. Mayer: —is so proud of himself, I would challenge him
to resign his seat and run against Mr. Gustafson, and then he
would put his record on the line.

Senator Argue: You just cannot take it; however, it is all
right to dish it out. It goes both ways. The record is excellent
with sales. It compares favourably with any other record in the
world.

Mr. Mayer: Let the producers judge your record. Resign
from the Senate and run and we will see what the producers
say about your record.

The Chairman: Mr. Mayer, please.

Le président: La réunion de ce matin a été convoquée pour
qu’on parle de la loi actuelle et des modifications possibles a y
apporter. Si vous avez des recommandations a faire au
ministre avant que le nouveau projet de loi ne soit déposé, ce
serait I'occasion de le faire.

Le prochain intervenant sera M. Neil. Si vous avez de
bonnes idées sur le nouveau projet de loi, monsieur Neil, le
moment serait bien choisi pour les exprimer.

Mr. Neil: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Over the past year—I think almost without exception—the
first question that was put to me by producers was this: How
can I get out of the Western Grain Stabilization Act? Or,
when will there be a payout? They realize there is around a

[Translation]

car nous sommes tout disposés 4 les appuyer, et trés rapide-
ment. Ce que nous voulons, c’est intervenir en faveur des
producteurs de notre pays, et non discutailler et laisser
s’amasser un tas d’argent que 'on pourrait mieux employer
pour les gens de notre pays.

Le sénateur Argue: M. Mayer, en nous disant qu’il était
disposé 4 agir, et 4 agir rapidement, a fait une importante
intervention. Vous aurez certainement 1’occasion, lors de cette
session-ci, d’y donner suite et de contribuer 4 faire adopter une
loi qui améliorera les versements et qui sera plus souple.

Je n’ai de legon 4 prendre de personne quand il s’agit d’aller
4 la rencontre des producteurs: pas plus tard que jeudi dernier,
j'étais a Mistatim, ou j’ai rencontré 300 personnes. Ils
s’intéressent a la loi et ils s’intéressent aux modifications a la
loi. Ils prennent des positions trés fortes, mais ils sont trés
reconnaissants pour les réalisations admirables du gouverne-
ment dans le domaine des grains. Nous avons augmenté notre
part des ventes a I’exportation, pendant I’année qui vient de se
terminer, de 17 p. 100 du marché mondial 4 21 p. 100—alors
que la part des Etats-Unis a baissé de 49 p. 100 a 42 p. 100. Ce
n’est pas mal. Je pense qu’il s’agit d’un succes.

M. Mayer: Mais si I'on examine la situation sur une période
de 20 ans, elle est catastrophique, et si le ministre . . .

Le sénateur Argue: Ce n’est pas vrai.

M. Mayer: ... est tellement fier, je le défie de démissionner
en tant que sénateur et de poser sa candidature contre celle de
M. Gustafson. De cette fagon-1a, il aurait a défendre ses
réalisations.

Le sénateur Argue: Vous étes trés bon pour formuler des
critiques, mais vous les acceptez mal. Du c6té des ventes, nous
avons un excellent bilan, qui se compare favorablement a celui
de tout autre pays du monde.

M. Mayer: Que les producteurs jugent votre bilan. Démis-
sionnez de votre poste de sénateur et posez votre candidature
comme député, et nous verrons ce que pensent les producteurs
de votre bilan.

Le président: Monsieur Mayer, s’il vous plait.

The Chairman: This morning’s meeting was called to discuss
the current act and possible amendments. If you have some
recommendations to make to the minister before the new bill is
tabled, this is the time to make them.

I will now give the floor to Mr. Neil. If you have some good
ideas on the new bill, Mr. Neil, this would be a good time to
put them forward.

M. Neil: Merci, madame le président.

Depuis un an, la premiére question que me posent les
producteurs, presque sans exception, est la suivante: comment
puis-je me retirer de la Loi de stabilisation concernant le grain
de I’Ouest? Ou bien: quand est-ce qu'il y aura un paiement?



14-2-1984

Agriculture 3223

[Texte]

billion dollars in there and they cannot understand why a
payment has not been triggered to them. Therefore, I think it
is important that steps be taken to bring in amendments to
make the Act more realistic.

There are a couple of matters that concern me, Mr.
Minister. The first one is the fact that we are sitting here today
dealing with the 1981 report; we are into 1984. If you look at
Section 45 of the Act, you are required on or before the 31st
day of August next, following the end of each year, to table a
report. Really the report on the 1982 crop year should have
been tabled in the House by the 31st of August last year and
we should have been dealing with it.

The other thing that concerns me is the fact that under
Section 45.1 of the Act, it says:

The minister shall, within three years after the coming
into force of this Act, undertake a comprensive review.

As I recall, the Act received Royal Assent in 1976. Conse-
quently, that review should have been carried out by 1979 or,
at the latest, in 1980. I wonder if you can tell us, Mr. Minister,
who is carrying out this review? You indicated it would be
available soon, but does that mean six months, eight months?
Right now, you are basically three years late in bringing in
that review.

Senator Argue: The review has been under way. I am not
sure that it has been virtually completed, but certainly a
tremendous amount of work towards that review has been
undertaken. The review is being made within Agriculture
Canada, and some of the officials who are making that review
are with me this morning.

Mr. Neil: So it is officials of your department who are
making the review.

Senator Argue: It is really, in a sense, teamwork between
Agriculture Canada and the Grain Marketing Bureau. But
you will appreciate that there is a component of the Grains
Group that comes from Agriculture in the first place.

Mr. Neil: Have you held any public meetings for public
input into possible changes in the Act?

Senator Argue: I am informed that the first review required
for the period 1976-1978 was completed and published in
1979. So I guess we are on a second review.
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Mr. Neil: I do not recall its being tabled in the House or
referred to this committee at any time.

Senator Argue: We can check that. I am informed that it
was published—and it was published. Perhaps a copy of that
report can be produced . . . not here this morning, but at a later
time. I guess I can ask the questions: How wide was the
consultation and whom did you hear from in the studies that
you made? Dr. Hedley.

[Traduction]

Les producteurs savent qu’il y a un fonds d’environ un milliard
de dollars, et ils ne comprennent pas pourquoi ils n’ont pas
recu de paiements. Jestime donc qu’il est important de
prendre des mesures pour proposer des modifications a la loi,
pour la rendre plus réaliste.

Il y a plusieurs questions qui me préoccupent, monsieur le
ministre. La premiére est le fait que nous examinons
aujourd’hui le rapport de 1981, alors que nous sommes
maintenant en 1984. Si vous examinez I'article 45 de la loi,
vous verrez que vous devez, au plus tard le 31 aoit qui suit la
fin de chaque année, soumettre un rapport. Le rapport
concernant la campagne agricole de 1982 aurait di étre déposé
a la Chambre avant le 31 aoit 1983, et c’est ce rapport-l1a que
’on aurait di examiner.

Je me préoccupe également de la disposition qui se trouve a
Iarticle 45.1, et qui se lit comme suit:

Le ministre doit, dans les trois ans qui suivent I’entrée
en vigueur de la présente loi, faire une étude approfondie.

Si je me souviens bien, la loi a regu la sanction royale en
1976. Par conséquent, I’étude aurait di étre effectuée avant
1979, ou en 1980 au plus tard. Pourriez-vous, monsieur le
ministre, nous dire qui s’occupe de cette étude? Vous nous avez
dit qu’elle serait préte bientot. Est-ce qu’il s’agit de six mois,
ou de huits mois? En ce moment, I’étude est en retard de trois
ans.

Le sénateur Argue: L’étude est en cours. Je ne suis pas sir
qu’elle soit presque terminée, mais on a déja fait énormément
de travail. C’est Agriculture Canada qui effectue I’étude, et
certains des fonctionnaires qui s’en occupent m’accompagnent
ce matin.

M. Neil: Donc, ce sont des fonctionnaires de votre ministére
qui effectuent I’étude.

Le sénateur Argue: Il s’agit d’un travail d’équipe entre
Agriculture Canada et la Direction générale de la commercia-
lisation des céréales. Mais vous comprendrez que le groupe sur
les céréales comprend des fonctionnaires d’Agriculture
Canada, de toute fagon.

M. Neil: Avez-vous déja tenu des réunions publiques pour
connaitre le point de vue de la population au sujet des modifi-
cations a la loi?

Le sénateur Argue: On me dit que la premiére étude pour la
période de 1976-1978 a été terminée et publiée en 1979. Nous
sommes donc en train d’effectuer la deuxiéme étude.

M. Neil: Je ne me souviens pas qu’il ait jamais été déposé a
la Chambre ou renvoyé au Comité.

Le sénateur Argue: On me dit qu'il a été publié. Il serait
possible de donner un exemplaire de ce rapport, pas ici ce
matin, mais plus tard. Je peux sans doute poser ces questions:
vos consultations ont-elles été nombreuses et qui vos études
vous ont-elles permis d’entendre? Monsieur Hedley.
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Mr. Harold Hedley (Grain Marketing Bureau, Department
of External Affairs): For the 1978 review, there were submis-
sions from producer groups, which were referenced in the
review. If I can recall it correctly, I think the basic conclusions
of the review at that time were that there were insufficient
data to evaluate the operation of the program against the
concerns that were being raised. But many of the same points
that were raised at that time have been looked at in the current
review, which is now close to being completed.

Mr. Neil: What concerns me, Mr. Minister, is why the
review, if it was tabled or submitted to Parliament as required
by the Act, was not referred to this committee for consider-
ation. It is very unfortunate.

The other thing that bothers me is the fact that when the
Bill was before this committee Mr. Lang was the Minister and
he repeated, time and time again, and many of the members
on this side were in attendance at these committee meetings,
that one of the things the Act would do was that, if there were
a payout, the moneys would be available and in the hands of
the farmer in the spring of each year in order to assist the
farmer in covering his expenses for seeding. I read in your
report that the final calculations of net cashflow for 1982 were
completed in November, 1983.

I can appreciate the problems you have in gathering and
correlating the information, but, Mr. Minister, if you would
read, or have your officials read, the evidence in the Agricul-
ture committee when we were dealing with the Bill, there were
a number of recommendations made from this side of the
House indicating how the information could be gathered very
quickly through the income tax department, rather than
having Stats Canada do it by going door to door. The informa-
tion could be plugged into the computer by the department
and you would know whether or not there was going to be a
payout within two or three months after the beginning of the
year, in time for spring seeding. 1 would urge you, Mr.
Minister, to have your officials read some of the comments by
members on this side. It was not accepted by the Minister of
that day... I suppose because you do not accept, as a
government, recommendations made by the opposition; that is
traditional. But there were some darn good recommendations
there and I would urge you to read it.

The only other thing I would like to do, Mr. Minister, at this
time, would be to make a motion. I move that the government
consider the advisability of amending Section 8.(3) of the
Western Grain Stabilization Act to include in area gross
expenses all items of expense allowed under the Income Tax
Act with the exception of capital cost allowance; and further,
that the payout be based on a three-year rather than a five-
year period.

My reason for making this motion, Mr. Minister, is that
there are a number of very large items of expense a farmer is
faced with that are not taken into consideration in determining
whether or not there shall be a payout. I think it is important
to be realistic. Just one example is the question of interest.

[Translation)

M. Harold Hedley (Direction générale de la commercialisa-
tion des céréales, ministére des Affaires extérieures): Pour
I’étude de 1978, des groupes de producteurs ont présenté des
mémoires dont il est question dans le rapport. Si mes souvenirs
sont exacts, les conclusions fondamentales de I’étude indi-
quaient qu’il n’existait pas suffisamment de données pour
évaluer I'application du programme compte tenu des préoccu-
pations qui avaient été formulées. Mais I’étude actuelle qui est
presque terminée a permis d’examiner un grand nombre des
mémes points qui avaient été soulevés alors.

M. Neil: Monsieur le ministre, ce qui me préoccupe, c’est
pourquoi I’étude—si elle a été déposée ou soumise au Parle-
ment comme l’exige la loi—n’a pas été portée a I’attention du
Comité. C’est fort dommage.

L’autre chose qui me préoccupe, c’est que lorsque le Comité
examinait le projet de loi, M. Lang qui était alors ministre
avait répété bien des fois—et un grand nombre des députés de
ce cOté de la table participaient a ces séances du Comité—
entre autres choses, que s’il y avait des paiements a faire, la loi
ferait en sorte que les fonds seraient disponibles et accordés
aux cultivateurs au printemps de chaque année pour les aider a
défrayer le coiit de I’ensemencement. Je lis dans votre rapport
que les calculs définitifs du produit disponible pour 1982 ont
été terminés en novembre 1983.

Je comprends fort bien que vous avez des difficultés a réunir
et 4 comparer les renseignements, monsieur le ministre, mais si
vous lisez ou si vous demandez a vos fonctionnaires de lire les
témoignages entendus par le Comité de I'agriculture lorsque
nous étions saisis du projet de loi, vous saurez qu’un certain
nombre de recommandations ont été présentées de ce coté de la
Chambre, précisant qu’il serait trés rapide d’obtenir des
renseignements par l'intermédiaire du ministére du Revenu
plutdt que de charger Statistique Canada de se les procurer en
faisant du porte-d-porte. Le ministére pourrait mettre ces
renseignements sur ordinateur, et vous sauriez alors s’il y
aurait ou non un versement dans les deux ou trois mois apres le
début de I'année, 4 temps pour I’ensemencement du printemps.
Je vous demanderais donc instamment, monsieur le ministre,
de demander 2 vos fonctionnaires de lire certaines des remar-
ques des députés de ce coté. Le ministre de 1’époque ne les
avait pas acceptées—sans doute parce que traditionnellement,
un gouvernement n’accepte pas les recommandations présen-
tées par l'opposition. Mais certaines étaient excellentes et je
vous demanderais instamment de les lire.

Je voudrais par ailleurs, monsieur le ministre, présenter
maintenant une motion. Je propose que le gouvernement
envisage la possibilité de modifier le paragraphe 8.(3) de la Loi
de stabilisation concernant le grain de I’Ouest pour inclure aux
frais bruts de la région toutes les dépenses autorisées en vertu
de la Loi de I'imp6t sur le revenu, a I’exception de la déduction
pour amortissement; et de plus, que le paiement soit établi sur
trois ans plutdt que sur cing.

Je propose cette motion, monsieur le ministre, car les
cultivateurs doivent faire un grand nombre de trés grandes
dépenses, dont il n’est pas tenu compte pour déterminer si un
versement sera fait ou non. Il me paralt important d’étre
réaliste. On peut citer par exemple la question des intéréts.
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That is a substantial expenditure by a producer and I think it
is important that that be included. I would ask that all items
which can be charged as expenses for income tax purposes,
with the exception of capital cost allowance, be used in the
determination of the area gross expenses.
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Senator Argue: | might ask you a question, then, Mr. Neil.

Mr. Neil: Sure.

Senator Argue: Can you explain to me why... ? I think
maybe I know the answer, but could you give me the reason
you would leave out capital cost allowance?

Mr. Neil: There is no question that a farmer is entitled to
claim capital cost allowance for income tax purposes, but while
many farmers have been living on capital cost allowance over
the years, I do not think it is a true expense as far as the
determination of costs are concerned, quite frankly.

Senator Argue: I appreciate the reasons why you have put
forward this motion. If it is agreeable to Madam Chairman, I
wonder if Mr. Sahl would care to comment on the attitude that
has been taken by the Farm Advisory Group with regard to
including a broader number of expenses in the calculations.

Mr. Neil: I would like to hear an expression of his opinion
on capital cost allowance as well. Maybe I am out in left field
with respect to that, but I have that feeling with respect to the
CCA.

Mr. Sahl: I would certainly agree that interest has become
one of the major costs facing farmers, and I have drawn
together some figures that indicate what farmers paid in
interest in 1976 and what they paid in 1982 and 1983. This, of
course, includes all farmers in Canada. It was $732 million,
according to my figures, in 1976; it went up to $2.1 billion in
1982; and in 1983, it was down slightly below the $2 billion.
Interest has become a very major expense of farmers not only
in purchasing equipment but in interest paid on lines of credit.
I guess 90% of farmers are operating on it at the present time.

So I certainly concur that interest should be included in the
calculations. Labour is one item that qualifies, and when a
farmer has to substitute capital for labour in the form of
machinery, in my opinion that should qualify as well.

Senator Argue: On a previous point you raised, Mr. Neil, |
just might say that, if at a given point a payment is in fact
going to be made, I am informed that the objective is to make
part of that payment by April in a given year. The full
calculations cannot have been made by that time, but suffi-
cient calculations can be made to indicate that a payment is on
the way and that a substantial part of the payment can be
made by April and the balance at a later date. That would not
fully meet the suggestion made that it should be there before
spring, but it would be working towards that end.

[Traduction]

C’est une importante dépense pour les producteurs, et il faut
donc l'inclure. Je voudrais demander qu’a I'exception de la
déduction pour amortissement, tous les éléments soient
considérés comme des frais aux fins de I'impdt sur le revenu
pour déterminer les frais bruts de la région.

Le sénateur Argue: Je voudrais vous poser une question dans
ce cas, monsieur Neil.

M. Neil: Je vous en prie.

Le sénateur Argue: Pourriez-vous m’expliquer pourquoi . . .
? Je connais peut-étre la réponse, mais pourriez-vous me dire
pourquoi laisser de coté la déduction pour amortissement?

M. Neil: Il est indéniable que les cultivateurs peuvent
demander la déduction pour amortissement aux fins de I'impdt
sur le revenu, mais bien que beaucoup d’entre eux demandent
cette déduction depuis des années, trés franchement, je ne
pense pas qu’il s’agisse d’une dépense véritable, pour ce qui est
de la détermination des coiits.

Le sénateur Argue: Je comprends pourquoi vous proposez
cette motion. Avec la permission de madame le président, je
voudrais demander 2 M. Sahl de bien vouloir nous dire ce qu’il
pense de la position adoptée par le groupe consultatif des
agriculteurs qui voudraient inclure un plus grand nombre de
frais dans les calculs.

M. Neil: J’aimerais savoir ce qu’il pense aussi de la déduc-
tion pour amortissement. Je ne suis pas tout a fait d’accord
pour le premier point, contrairement a ce qui concerne la
DPA.

M. Sahl: Je suis tout a fait d’accord, I'intérét est devenu I'un
des principaux coiits que doivent subir les cultivateurs, et j'ai
regroupé certains chiffres indiquant combien ils ont payé a ce
titre en 1976, 1982 et 1983. Cela comprend bien sir tous les
cultivateurs du Canada. 1l s’agissait de 732 millions de dollars
en 1976, de 2,1 milliards de dollars en 1982 et en 1983 d’un
peu moins de 2 milliards de dollars. L’intérét est donc devenu
un frais trés considérable pour les cultivateurs non seulement
pour les achats d’équipement mais aussi pour les marges de
crédit. Je pense qu’actuellement 90 p. 100 d’entre eux doivent
emprunter de I’argent moyennant un taux d’intérét.

Je suis donc tout a fait d’accord pour inclure I'intérét dans
les calculs. La main-d’oeuvre est un élément admissible, et
lorsqu’un cultivateur doit remplacer le travail par du capital
sous forme d’équipement, cela devrait étre aussi admissible.

Le sénateur Argue: A propos d’une question que vous avez
déja soulevée, monsieur Neil, j'ajouterais que si @ un moment
donné un paiement va étre accordé, 'objectif—d’aprés ce que
'on me dit—est d’en verser une partie au plus tard en avril
d’une année donnée. Il n’est pas possible de faire alors tous les
calculs, mais un nombre suffisant permet d’indiquer qu’un
paiement va étre accordé dont une partie substantielle peut
étre versée en avril et le reste ultérieurement. Ce procédé ne
correspond pas pleinement 4 la suggestion voulant que tout soit
versé avant le printemps, mais tel serait I'objectif fixé.
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Mr. Neil: My understanding is that you pay Statistics
Canada about $1 million a year to do this survey to determine
whether or not there is going to be a pay-out. If you look at the
evidence when Mr. Lang was before the committee on this
Bill, I suggested you designate certain farmers, maybe 2,000
farmers, and arrange for them to have specially coded income
tax returns, perhaps pay them $200 or something to file their
tax by the end of January. As their returns come in, they could
be plugged into the computer, and you would have all the
information there. You might have to do some random
checking, but certainly you cannot get more accurate figures
than from a man’s income tax return.

I have talked to some of these people to whom Statistics
Canada have gone. They have gone to the man before he has
had his income tax material completed and he has given them
rough figures. But if you were to tell a number of farmers you
would pay them a tax credit of $200 if they were to file their
returns by January 1 each year on this specified form in
accordance with what you want done, then you would have the
information, accurate information. You could plug it into the
computer and you would have the information.

Mr. Gustafson will second that motion, Madam Chairman.
The Chairman: Thank you.

On the motion, Monsieur Dion.
® 1220

M. Dion: Madame le président, j’aimerais que le greffier
soit assez gentil pour me traduire cela en frangais et me donner
le texte écrit. J'aimerais avoir les détails de la formulation et
surtout savoir quelles sont les conséquences d’un voeu pieux ou
d’une motion comme celle-la.

Madame le président, j’aimerais aussi que le greffier me dise
si ce genre de proposition est conforme aux régles de procé-
dure. Jusqu’a quel point une telle proposition peut-elle engager
le Comité et le ministére ou le gouvernement?

Jaimerais que I'on discute de cette question. Si ce n’est
qu’un voeu pieux, on peut se lever 4 la Chambre des communes
pour 'exprimer. Est-ce que cela a une valeur juridique? Est-ce
que cela a une valeur politique? De quoi s’agit-il? Est-ce
simplement pour nous mettre dans I’embarras, parce que nous
sommes moins nombreux de ce cdté-ci que de I'autre coté pour
le vote?

De toute fagon, avant qu’on ne fasse quoi que ce soit, je veux
qu’on me donne la motion bien écrite en frangais, parce que je
veux en comprendre le sens. Si on ne peut me donner le sens de
la motion, qu’on léve I'assemblée et qu'on la soumette a la
prochaine séance du Comité. Je veux conna+itre le sens exact
de la phraséologie.

Le président: Un instant, je vous prie.

[Translation]

M. Neil: Je crois comprendre que vous versez a Statistique
Canada environ un million de dollars par an pour mener cette
¢tude afin de déterminer s’il y aura ou non un versement. Si
vous examinez le témoignage qu’avait fait M. Lang devant le
Comité au sujet de ce projet de loi, il me semble qu’il faudrait
désigner certains cultivateurs, peut-étre 2,000 d’eutre eux, a
qui on pourrait remettre des déclarations d'impdt sur le revenu
codées; on pourrait leur payer environ 2008 afin qu’ils
produisent leurs déclarations d’impét 4 la fin janvier. Leurs
déclarations pourraient ensuite étre transposées sur ordinateur
et vous aurez alors tous les renseignements nécessaires. Vous
devrez peut-étre procéder 4 une vérification au hasard, mais
vous ne pouvez certainement pas obtenir de chiffres plus précis
que ceux qui figurent sur une déclaration d’impét sur le
revenu.

Y

Jai parlé a certaines des personnes auxquelles se sont
adressés les fonctionnaires de Statistique Canada. Ils se sont
présentés aux cultivateurs avant qu’ils aient eu tous leurs
documents fiscaux entre les mains et ils leur ont donc donné
des chiffres approximatifs. Mais si vous disiez & un certain
nombre de cultivateurs que vous leur donneriez un crédit
d’impot de 2008$ s’ils envoyaient leur déclaration au plus tard
le 1¢ janvier de chaque année sur la formule prescrite corres-
pondant aux résultats que vous souhaitez obtenir, vous
disposerez alors de renseignements tout a fait précis. Vous
pourriez les mettre sur ordinateur et obtenir toutes les données.

M. Gustafson appuie cette motion, madame le président.
Le président: Merci.

A propos de la motion, je donne la parole @ M. Dion.

Mr. Dion: Madam Chairman, I would ask the Clerk to be so
kind as to translate the motion into French and give me a
written copy of it. I would like to have the details of the
wording before me, and particularly understand the implica-
tions of a motherhood motion such as this.

Madam Chairman, [ would also like the Clerk to tell me
whether this type of motion is in order. To what extent can a
motion be binding on the Committee, the Minister and the
government.

I would like a discussion on this. If we are just talking about
a motherhood statement, members of Parliament can stand up
in the House of Commons to make such statements. Does this
motion have a legal value? Does it have a political value? And
if so, what is it? Is it simply an attempt to embarrass our side,
because there are fewer of us for the vote?

Before we do anything, I want a written translation of the
motion in French, because I want to understand what it means.
If I cannot be given this, the meeting should be adjourned and
we should vote on the motion at our next meeting. I want to be
sure I understand the exact import of the wording of the
motion.

The Chairman: Just a moment, please.
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[Texte]

Si vous me le permettez, monsieur Neil, je vais ajouter
quelque chose aux remarques de M. Dion. Si vous aviez
I’intention de présenter cette motion ce matin, vous auriez pu
nous préparer un texte francais. Vous mentionnez une . . .

M. Dion: J'invoque le Réglement, madame le président.
Le président: Oui, monsieur Dion.

M. Dion: Je ne demande pas a4 M. Neil de faire lui-méme la
traduction. J’aimerais simplement qu’il nous fournisse, a
I’avenir, un texte frangais pour que nous puissions comprendre
a 'avance.

Le président: Monsieur Dion, je voulais simplement rappeler
a M. Neil que c’est la deuxiéme fois qu’il présente une motion
en anglais au Comité. Maintenant, le greffier pourra nous la
traduire en frangais, si vous le désirez.

Je pense que I'on devrait répondre a la question de M. Dion
concernant le sens de la motion. Vous étes d’accord? Allons-y!

Une voix: Ce n’est pas le sens que I’on veut.

M. Dion: C’est la résolution écrite en frangais.

Je comprends trés bien que M. Neil ne puisse pas faire la
traduction lui-méme, mais il existe sirement, dans notre
systéme gouvernemental, un mécanisme au moyen duquel on
peut faire traduire les textes.

Le président: Pour I'instant, monsieur Dion, il n’y a qu’une
seule solution, c’est que M. Neil relise sa résolution; vous aurez
alors I'interprétation.

M. Dion: Non, je veux cela par écrit.

Le président: Autrement, si M. Neil conserve son texte
anglais, le service du greffier du Comité en demandera une
traduction officielle, faite selon les régles de I’art, et nous
pourrons en discuter a la prochaine séance du Comité.

M. Dion: C’est exactement ce que je veux.
Le président: Monsieur Neil.

Mr. Neil: Madam Chairman, when I came here this
morning, I had no motion prepared, but the Minister was
inviting us as members of this committee to bring forth
recommendations that he could use.

Mr. Mayer: And in fact you did the same thing, Madam
Chairman, you must remember.

Mr. Neil: And that is exactly what I was doing: complying
with the Minister’s request to bring forth a couple of recom-
mendations I thought were important. I would be happy to
read the motion in order that the translation staff can translate
it into French. I would move, seconded by Mr. Gustafson, that
the government consider the advisability of amending Section
8(3) of the Western Grain Stabilization Act to include in area
gross expenses all items of expense allowed under the Income
Tax Act with the exception of capital cost allowance; and
further, that the payout be based on a three-year rather than a
five-year period.

[Traduction]

With your permission, Mr. Neil, I would like to add
something to Mr. Dion’s remarks. If you had intended to
present this motion this morning, you could have prepared a
French version as well. You are referringtoa. ..

Mr. Dion: On a point of order, Madam Chairman.
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Dion.

Mr. Dion: I am not asking Mr. Neil himself to prepare a
translation. I am simply asking him to ensure that in future he
presents a French version so that we can understand the
motion immediately.

The Chairman: Mr. Dion, I simply wanted to remind Mr.
Neil that this is the second time he has put forward a motion
in English only to the committee. The Clerk can translate it
into French, if you so wish.

I think we should answer Mr. Dion’s question regarding the
meaning of the motion. Agreed? Let us proceed!

An hon. Member: We are not asking for the meaning.

Mr. Dion: We want a French version of the motion in
writing.

I understand perfectly well that Mr. Neil cannot do the
translation himself, but there must surely be within our
government structure a translation service.

The Chairman: For the time being, Mr. Dion, the only
solution is for Mr. Neil to re-read his motion. You can then
listen to the interpretation.

Mr. Dion: No. I want to see the motion in writing.

The Chairman: Otherwise, the Clerk will request an official
translation of Mr. Neil’s motion, and we will then be able to
discuss it at our next meeting.

Mr. Dion: That is exactly what I want.
The Chairman: Mr. Neil.

M. Neil: Je n’avais pas préparé de motion en arrivant ici ce
matin, madame le président, mais le ministre nous a demandé
de présenter des recommandations dont il pourrait se servir.

M. Mayer: Il ne faut pas oublier non plus, madame le
président, que vous avez fait la méme chose.

M. Neil: C’est exactement ce que je faisais, a la demande du
ministre, j'ai présenté quelques recommandations que j’esti-
mais importantes. Je serais heureux de relire la motion afin
que les interprétes puissent la traduire en frangais. Je propose,
appuyé par M. Gustafson, que le gouvernement envisage la
possibilité de modifier I’article 8(3) de la Loi de stabilisation
concernant le grain de I’Ouest, pour inclure dans les frais bruts
de la région toutes les dépenses admissibles en vertu de la Loi
de I'imp6t sur le revenu a I'exception de la déduction pour
amortissement; et de plus, que les paiements soient basés sur
une période de trois ans plutdt que sur une période de cinq ans.
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Le président: M. Tessier avait demandé la parole a ce sujet.
Il sera suivi de M. Dion.

M. Tessier: Madame le président, si je comprends bien, le
Comité a le droit d’exiger une traduction frangaise légale de la
résolution, ce qui nous permettrait d’étre mieux en mesure de
débattre la motion.

Le président: Monsieur Dion.

M. Dion: Il ne s’agit pas simplement de vouloir un texte en
frangais ou en anglais, mais de savoir vraiment, dans un texte
légal traduit de 'anglais, sur proposition écrite, sur quoi nous
sommes appelés a voter et jusqu’ol nous pouvons nous
engager. Je veux connaitre le sens et la portée de cette
résolution, et, pour ce faire, il me faut le texte francgais. J’ai le
droit de I’exiger par écrit, et en plus, je veux un texte légal, non
pas une traduction de M. Neil ou du greffier. Le gouverne-
ment dispose de personnes compétentes pour traduire un texte
légal, que ce soit 4 partir de ’anglais ou & partir du francais.
Nous saurions ainsi sur quelle résolution d’un comité reconnu
par la Chambre des communes nous sommes appelés a voter.
Je refuse I'interprétation; je n’ai pas besoin de I’écouter car je
comprends trés bien ’anglais et le sens de la résolution de M.
Neil.

C’est une question de principe. Je n’aime pas que, cing
minutes avant la fin de la séance du Comité, on nous présente
une résolution de ce genre, méme s’il s’agit d’'une résolution
que je qualifierais ‘de voeux pieux‘. Il nous faudrait adopter
des résolutions de voeux pieux. Comme le ministre le disait
tout a I’heure, qu’on fasse des recommandations sans nécessai-
rement voter, car nous pouvons étre d’accord sur les recom-
mandations, alors que vous voulez nous faire voter sur des
choses dont nous ne connaissons pas les conséquences. Il ne
s’agit, d’ailleurs, pas d’une recommandation mais d’une
motion.

Le président: D’accord.

Mr. Mayer: Thank you, Madam Chairman. A couple of
things—and I understand and I appreciate the concern that
the motion is only in English. I would probably have the same
kind of concern, because of my inability to speak French, if the
motion were only in French. But I would point out to you,
Madam Speaker, that what Mr. Neil was doing is precisely the
way that business is conducted in the House. Motions are
accepted by the Speaker in the House that are in only one of
the official languages of this country, and when the motion is
read it is translated simultaneously. That is accepted proce-
dure and things are voted on on that kind of a basis and there
really is not any problem.

About Mr. Dion’s concern about whether in fact it is
motherhood, if you had listened and understood—at least as I
understood the Minister this morning, he was asking for some
assistance and suggestions; and that was the admonition that
you left with the other committee members when I terminated
my time with the committee, Madam Chairman. You asked
for suggestions; which is precisely what Mr. Neil did. We
came here this morning not thinking of moving a motion, and
Mr. Neil I think has put forward a very useful motion in

[Translation]

The Chairman: Mr. Tessier asked to speak on this subject.
He will be followed by Mr. Dion.

Mr. Tessier: Madam Chairman, if I understand correctly,
the committee has the right to require a legal French transla-
tion of the resolution, which would put us in a better position
to debate the motion.

The Chairman: Mr. Dion.

Mr. Dion: It is not just a simple question of wanting a text
in French or in English, but of knowing, by means of a legal
written translation of the English, on what we are called to
vote and to what extent we can commit ourselves. I would like
to know the meaning and the scope of this resolution, and in
order to do this I require the French text. I have the right to
request it in writing and moreover, I want a legal text, not a
translation by Mr. Neil or the Clerk. The government has
competent persons to translate a legal text, whether it is from
French or from English. In this way, we as a committee
recognized by the House of Commons, will be in a position to
know about the resolution on which we are called to vote. I do
not wish the interpretation, I do not need to listen to it because
I understand English very well and the meaning of the
resolution put forward by Mr. Neil.

It is a question of principle. I do not like being presented
with a resolution of this kind five minutes before the end of a
committee meeting, even if it is a motherhood resolution. We
are still expected to pass these resolutions. As the Minister was
saying a moment ago, recommendations should be made
without requiring a vote, because we can agree with the
recommendation, whereas you want us to vote on things when
we do not know the consequences. This is then not a recom-
mendation but a motion.

The Chairman: All right.

M. Mayer: Merci, madame le président. Je comprends la
préoccupation que suscite le fait que la motion n’existe qu’en
anglais. Jaurais probablement la méme préoccupation si la
motion n’existait qu’en francais, car je ne peux pas parler
frangais. Mais j’aimerais vous dire, madame le président, que
ce que M. Neil a fait est exactement ce que 'on fait 4 la
Chambre. Des motions sont regues par I'Orateur a la Chambre
quand elles n’existent que dans une langue officielle et la
motion est ensuite lue et traduite de fagon simultanée. C'est
une facon normale de procéder, on vote de cette facon, et il n’y
a pas de probléme.

En ce qui concerne la question que se pose M. Dion de
savoir s’il s’agit d’un voeu pieu, s’il avait écouté et compris ce
qu'a dit le ministre ce matin, le ministre demandait nos
conseils et nos suggestions. C’était d’ailleurs ce que vous avez
dit aux membres de ce comité, madame le président, quand j’ai
terminé mon tour de parole. Vous avez demandé des sugges-
tions, et c’est exactement ce qu'a fait M. Neil. Nous sommes
venus ici ce matin sans penser a I’adoption d’une motion, et M.
Neil a proposé une motion trés utile a4 la lumiére de nos
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[Texte]

conjunction with the kind of things that came up here at the
committee this morning. We have heard talk from Mr. Tessier
about things working well in one part of the country, and they
should be working the same in the other part of the country.

I take it from the comments of the Minister this morning
that he is interested in what we can suggest to make it work
there on behalf of farmers in one part of the country. It is not
his concern. It is members from Quebec who, if they want to
use this as a delaying tactic, are sending a clear signal to
western Canada that really they are not interested in seeing
the government do things for western Canada. If that is the
intention of Mr. Dion, then I think he should say so; and if he
does not say otherwise, by his actions he is going clearly to
indicate that he simply wants to oppose and delay for the sake
of delaying, so that producers in western Canada cannot take
advantage of some of the programs that are in place.

That is all we are asking for, by the very nature of what the
wording has to be. It has to be worded in such a way that the
government consider the advisability; and that is all we are
suggesting. We want to give some clout, some prestige, some
importance to this committee, so we can do something. If all
we can do is recommend that the government consider the
advisability, then surely the member cannot stand in the way
of that. If he stands in the way of that, I have to repeat again,
and I do so with a certain amount of lament, that he is sending
a clear signal to western Canada that the members from
another part of the country are not interested in helping out
farmers or producers in another part of the country. I would
hope that by words and also by actions he would clarify the
situation so that that is not the case as far as his intentions are
concerned.

® 1230

Le président: Monsieur Dion.

M. Dion: Je ne dis pas que je m’oppose a la motion,
monsieur Mayer. Je suis tout a fait d’accord sur le principe
soulevé dans la motion. Cependant, je me demande si on doit le
faire au moyen d’une motion. Cette motion est-elle recevable,
madame le président?

Mr. Mayer: That is the way it is done in the House.
Le président: Juste un instant . . .

M. Dion: Non, laissez-moi finir. Je pose les questions. Si on
peut voter, je n’accepte pas qu'on ne me donne pas le texte
frangais. S’il s’agit simplement d’une recommandation, 4 mon
avis, on devrait procéder différemment. Il y a plusieurs moyens
de faire des recommandations au ministre, monsieur Mayer.
On peut le faire au moyen d’une motion ou simplement des
textes qui sont ici. Sur le fond, je suis d’accord, mais je ne suis
pas d’accord que I'on fasse cela au moyen d’une motion ce
matin. Nous serons dans I’embarras lorsqu’il s’agira de voter
contre la motion. Mais, je le répéte, nous sommes d’accord sur
le principe, sur le fond.

Le président: Monsieur Dion, la motion est formulée de telle
maniére qu’elle est certainement recevable par le Comité, selon
le commentaire 564 du Précis de procédure parlementaire de
Beauchesne.

[Traduction]

discussions de ce matin. Ce qu’a dit M. Tessier sur la bonne
marche des choses dans une partie du pays vaut également
pour ’autre partie du pays.

Je crois savoir d’aprés les remarques du ministre ce matin
qu'il s’intéresse 4 nos suggestions sur la fagon d’améliorer la
situation des agricultures dans une partie du pays. La fagon
dont nous nous y prenons ne I'intéresse pas. Si les députés du
Québec se livrent aux manoeuvres dilatoires, ils montrent trés
clairement aux gens 4 I’Ouest du Canada qu'’ils ne se préoccu-
pent pas de I'avenir de I'Ouest. Si c’est 1a I'intention de M.
Dion, il doit ’avouer. Autrement, il montrera trés clairement
par ses actions qu’il emploie des moyens dilatoires pour
empécher les producteurs de 1'Ouest de bénéficier des pro-
grammes établis.

Le libellé de la résolution dit que ce que nous demandons.
La résolution doit étre rédigée de fagon a montrer au gouver-
nement que l'action est souhaitable, et c’est cela que nous
suggérons. Nous voulons donner un certain pouvoir, du
prestige, de 'importance a4 ce comité, pour qu’il puisse faire
quelque chose. Tous ce que nous recommandons, c’est que le
gouvernement y réfléchisse, et je ne crois pas que le député soit
contre cela. S’il est contre cela, je dois le répéter, et cela me
fait mal, il montre trés clairement aux gens de 'Ouest du
Canada que les députés d’autres parties du pays ne s’intéres-
sent pas a I’avenir de ses agricultures ou producteurs. J'espére
que par ses paroles et par ses actions, il montrera clairement
que ce n’est pas la son intention.

The Chairman: Mr. Dion.

Mr. Dion: I am not saying that I am opposed to the motion,
Mr. Mayer. I agree with the principle raised in the motion.
However, I am wondering if we should do this by means of a
motion. Is this motion admissible, Madam Chairman?

M. Mayer: C’est comme ¢a que I’on procéde a la Chambre.
The Chairman: Just a minute . . .

Mr. Dion: No, let me finish. I am asking the questions. If we
can vote, I will not agree to not having the French text. If it is
just a recommendation, let it be done differently. There are
many ways of making recommendations to the Minister, Mr.
Mayer. It can be done by means of a motion or it can be done
simply through the texts which are here. I agree on the
substance, but I do not agree on doing it by means of a motion
this morning. We would be in a difficult situation when it
comes to voting against the motion. But, and I repeat, we
agree on the substance, on the principle.

The Chairman: Mr. Dion, the motion is worded in such a
way that it can be received by the Committee, according to
number 564 of Beauchesne code of procedure.
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M. Dion: Je ne vote pas, madame le président, et je vous dis
immeédiatement que ’on ne pourra pas voter tant que tous les
membres du Comité n’auront pas une traduction frangaise
officielle de la motion.

Le président: Il pourrait également y avoir un vote pour
déterminer si les motions doivent étre présentées en frangais ou
en anglais.

M. Dion: C’est la Loi sur les langues officielles, madame le
président. On n’a pas besoin de voter pour cela; on n’en a pas le
droit. Cela est obligatoire. Ce Comité est reconnu par la
Chambre des communes, madame le président, et nous n’avons
pas le droit de voter quand il n’existe qu’une version anglaise
de la motion. Mon droit est de ne pas voter quand il n’existe
pas de traduction frangaise officielle.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madame le président, ce matin, on
essaie de travailler dans l'intérét des producteurs agricoles
canadiens. Le ministre a demandé au Comité de lui faire des
propositions ou des suggestions. Je comprends trés bien
I’'approche de M. Neil, et je pense qu’il est trés louable de sa
part de faire une telle suggestion. Il me semble que I’on devrait
proposer que le Comité de I’agriculture étudie davantage la
question, et non arriver soudainement avec une proposition
visant a changer une loi nationale. C’est 14 qu’est la différence.
Je pense que le ministre et tout le Comité de ’agriculture, dans
I'intérét des producteurs agricoles canadiens, peuvent étudier
de fagon plus poussée la possibilité de modifier le programme
de stabilisation canadien. Je pense que M. Neil sera d’accord
avec moi: peu importe la qualité de la motion, on ne peut pas
soudainement modifier une loi qui comporte tant de consé-
quences financiéres.

Je pense que mes collégues d’en face seront d’accord avec
moi pour dire que si on change la philosophie de la stabilisa-
tion ou de I’assurance-récolte dans I’Ouest, il va falloir
examiner tout ce que cela pourrait avoir de conséquences au
Québec, en Ontario et dans les provinces de I’Est, afin de ne
pas créer de distorsions.

Je pense que mon collégue d’en face est d’accord avec moi
sur le fait que le Comité de Dlagriculture doit se pencher
sérieusement sur toute suggestion, mais il faudrait éviter de
tomber dans le pi¢ge afin de ne pas favoriser une partie du
pays au détriment d’une autre. Je ne pense pas que ce soit le
voeu de M. Neil, parce que je le connais bien. On travaille
dans I'intérét des producteurs.

Je pense que ce matin, on devrait faire des suggestions et
non proposer une motion.

Le président: Avant de passer la parole & M. Tessier ou 4 M.
Neil, jaimerais vous faire une suggestion, car il est déja
passablement tard.

Pourrions-nous accepter le principe de la motion en atten-
dant qu’une traduction officielle en soit fournie a tous les
membres du Comité? Lors de la prochaine réunion, nous
pourrions mettre la motion aux voix.

An hon. Member: No problem.

[Translation]

Mr. Dion: I will not vote, Madam Chairman, and I will tell
you that we cannot vote until all members of the Committee
have an official French translation of the motion.

The Chairman: There could also be a vote to determine
whether the motion should be presented in French or in
English.

Mr. Dion: It is the Official Languages Act, Madam. We do
not need to vote on that; we do not have the right to do so. It is
mandatory. This committee is recognized by the House of
Commons, Madam, and we do not have the right to vote when
there is only an English version of the motion. It is my right
not to vote when there is no official French translation.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Madam Chairman, this morning
we are trying to work in the interests of Canadian agricultural
producers. The Minister asked the committee to make
proposals or suggestions. I understand Mr. Neil’s approach,
and [ think his suggestion is very laudable. It seems to me that
we should suggest that the agriculture committee study the
question further, and not suddenly come up with a proposal to
change a law. That is the difference. I think that the minister
and the whole agriculture committee could give further study
to the possibility of changing the Canadian stabilization
program, in the interests of Canadian agricultural producers. I
think Mr. Neil would agree with me; it does not matter how
good the motion is. You cannot suddenly change a law which
will carry so many financial implications.

I think that my colleagues on the other side of the table will
agree with me when I say that if we change the stabilization
philosophy or the harvest insurance in the West, we will have
to examine the future consequences in Quebec, Ontario, and
the Eastern provinces so that there will not be any distortions.

I think that my colleague opposite will agree with me that
the agriculture committee should study the suggestion very
seriously, but we must avoid falling in the trap of favouring
one part of the country to the detriment of another. I do not
think that that is Mr. Neil’s intent, because I know him very
well. We are working in the interests of all producers.

I think we should make suggestions this morning and not
propose a motion.

The Chairman: Before turning over the floor to Mr. Tessier
or Mr. Neil, I would like to make a suggestion because it is
getting fairly late.

Could we accept the motion in principle while waiting for an
official translation to be provided to all members of the
committee? At the next meeting we could put the motion to
the vote.

Une voix: Pas de probléme.
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M. Tessier: Eh bien, madame le président, je pense que I'on
doit vivre avec la régle qui prévaut: une motion doit étre
déposée dans les deux langues, sinon elle n’est pas recevable
par le Comité.

Le président: D’accord.

M. Tessier: J’appuie donc la position de mon collégue, M.
Dion: si la motion est dans les deux langues officielles, le
Comité n’aura d’autre choix que de la prendre en considéra-
tion. Mais d’ici 14, je propose que ’on n’accepte rien de moins
qu’une motion dans les deux langues.

81235

M. Dion: Je suis d’accord sur la proposition, madame le
président.

Le président: Alors, juste un instant.

Vous étes d’accord pour que I'on s’entende sur le principe.
Quant au vote sur le fond et la nécessité de la présentation a la
Chambre des communes, le débat est reporté jusqu’a ce que
I’on regoive le texte dans les deux langues.

M. Tessier: Ainsi, on modifierait complétement la Loi sur
les langues officielles, et on n’a pas a le faire.

Le président: Mais en vertu du commentaire 564, le
motionnaire aurait pu faire la proposition et . . .

M. Tessier: Et il aurait fallu la faire traduire pour ’exami-
ner ensuite. Comme elle n’est pas traduite, nous n’avons pas a
’étudier.

Une voix: Non, mais nous pouvons l’accepter.

Le président: Un instant.

Une voix: C’est moi qui ai acceptéla. ..

Le président: Celui qui a fait la proposition n’a pas . . .

Une voix: Si 'on joue avec la Loi sur les langues officielles,
on risque de . . .

Mr. Mayer: Madam Chairman, that is perfectly acceptable
to us on this side. I would like, though, to have a clarification
from the clerk as to what the rules of the committee are as far
as procedure in the future is concerned. We are not looking at
it in terms of a narrow, technical thing. I think we are looking
at it, on this side, on the basis of trying to give the committee
the opportunity to accomplish something.

Madam Chairman, I believe what should happen, if need be,
is that we should have an official translator at the committee,
so that when we submit a motion in one language it can be
immediately translated into the other official language,
whichever one we are talking about. That would facilitate
committee proceedings.

But as I said, we on this side are not interested in doing
things simply for the sake of doing them. What we are
interested in doing is trying to accomplish something as far as
this committee is concerned. So we are perfectly happy to
accept the suggestion—1I believe it was you, Madam Chair-
man, who said it—that we accept the principle and vote on it

at a later date. That is perfectly acceptable as far as we are
concerned.

[Traduction]

Mr. Tessier: Well, Madam Chairman, I think we have to
live with the rules as they are. A motion must be submitted in
both languages or it is not admissible by the committee.

The Chairman: All right.

Mr. Tessier: I therefore support the position of my col-
league, Mr. Dion. If the motion is in both official languages,
the committee has no choice but to consider it. But, until then,
I suggest that we accept nothing less than a motion drafted in
both official languages.

Mr. Dion: I agree, Madam Chairman.

The Chairman: Well, just a minute.

You agree that we should agree in principle. As far as the
vote on the substance of the motion and its presentation to the
House of Commons, that discussion is to be delayed until we
have the motion in both official languages.

Mr. Tessier: We would be amending the Official Languages
Act by doing this and it is not our mandate.

The Chairman: Yes, but under Section 564, the mover could
have made the motion and . . .

Mr. Tessier: It would have had to have been translated for
consideration. As it is not, we do not have to consider it.

An hon. Member: No, but we could accept it.

The Chairman: Just a minute.

An hon. Member: I was the one who accepted the . . .
The Chairman: The person who moved the motion . . .

An hon. Member: If we start playing around with the
Official Languages Act, we risk . . .

M. Mayer: Madame le président, cette fagon de procéder
nous est parfaitement acceptable. Toutefois, j’aimerais que le
greffier éclaire ma lanterne et m’explique le réglement du
Comité en ce qui concerne la procédure a I’avenir. Il ne s’agit
pas d’une question étroite et technique. De notre c6té, nous
considérons qu’il s’agit plutdt d’accorder au Comité 1'occasion
d’atteindre un objectif.

Madame le président, le cas échéant, nous devrions faire
venir un traducteur officiel aux réunions. Ainsi, chaque fois
que nous faisons une proposition dans une langue, on pourrait
la traduire sur le champ dans l'autre langue officielle. Ce
systéme faciliterait les délibérations du Comité.

Cependant, comme je viens de vous l'expliquer, les gestes
symboliques ne nous intéressent pas. Ce qui nous intéresse,
c’est d’atteindre un objectif dans I'intérét du Comité. Ainsi,
nous serions tout a fait favorables 4 ce que le principe soit
accepté et le vote reporté a une date ultérieure. Donc, la
suggestion du président nous semble tout a fait acceptable.
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Mr. Neil: Madam Chairman, I would just like to make one
comment with respect to what Mr. Dion said. He seemed to be
of the opinion that an action taken by this committee has the
effect of amending a particular statute, and this we cannot do.
That is why we have phrased this motion in the manner we
have. We had the motion last week. The clerk brought to our
attention that we could only ask the government to consider
the advisability of doing certain things, and if the government
wants to ignore it completely, it can.

So we have absolutely no power here, and all we are doing is
making a recommendation which they consider the advisability
of. I do not think Mr. Dion understood the effect of the motion
or understands the effect of the power of the committees.

The Chairman: Senator Argue.

Senator Argue: Madam Chairman, I might venture to say
something at this time. From long-term experience in the
House of Commons, this is the technique or the manner—and
I suppose it is still the same now as it used to be—that a
Private Member, who has no control over money, can move a
motion asking the government to consider the advisability of. I
guess those motions pass from time to time, and the govern-
ment either does it or does not do it; but the government has to
consider it.

I think this kind of motion is something the committee could
consider. I cannot see that it automatically results in any
charge to the public treasury; it is something that should be
considered. No doubt members will vote according to their
own personal judgment, and I am not endeavouring to
influence that judgment.

Le président: Merci.
Monsieur Dion.

M. Dion: Je n’accepte absolument pas ce que le ministre
vient de dire, car nous devons voter. Ce n’est pas la méme
chose que de se lever 4 la Chambre des communes pour
émettre une opinion en frangais ou en anglais et d’entendre
I'interprétation. Ici, nous devons voter.

Si la motion n’est pas recevable, je ne m’y oppose pas, mais
s’il faut voter, je suis obligé de le faire. J’ai deux ou trois
raisons de le faire d’ailleurs. D’une part, je ne dispose pas du
texte légal. Donc, je ne connais pas les conséquences d’une telle
motion.

Lorsque je me prononce, par voie de vote, sur une motion a
la Chambre des communes, j'ai déja eu en mains le texte, en
francais et en anglais, et je connais les répercussions juridiques
de mon geste. Or, ce matin, je ne les connais pas.

Le président: On reviendra sur le fond de la question: la
présentation de la motion dans les deux langues. Le Précis de
procédure parlementaire ne précise nulle part que les motions
doivent étre présentées dans les deux langues. Le commentaire
297 stipule:

[Translation)

M. Neil: Madame le président, je voudrais faire un commen-
taire en réponse aux propos de M. Dion. Il semble étre de I’avis
que si cette proposition devait étre acceptée, elle aurait comme
conséquence la modification de la Loi sur les langues officiel-
les, chose que nous ne pouvons faire. C’est justement pour
cette raison que nous avions ainsi formulé la proposition. Nous
'avons déja entendue la semaine derniére alors que le greffier
nous avait prévenus que nous étions en mesure de demander au
gouvernement d’envisager 'opportunité de prendre certaines
mesures et pas plus. Ce libellé permet au gouvernement de
faire de la motion ce qu’il veut.

Nous n’avons aucun pouvoir ici. Nous ne faisons que
présenter une proposition dont 'opportunité sera jugée par le
gouvernement. M. Dion n’a peut-étre pas compris les consé-
quences que pourrait avoir la motion ni l'autorité dont
disposent les comités.

Le président: Sénateur Argue.

Le sénateur Argue: Madame le président, permettez-moi de
dire quelques mots. Ma longue expérience 4 la Chambre des
communes m’a appris que le réglement, & moins qu’on ne lait
changé, permet 4 un député, qui n’a aucune autorité finan-
ciére, de proposer que le gouvernement envisage I’opportunité
de telle ou telle mesure. Ces motions sont parfois adoptées,
parfois pas, mais le gouvernement choisit parfois d’y donner
suite. Quoi qu’il en soit, le gouvernement doit considérer la
motion.

Cette motion mérite d’étre examinée par le Comité. A mon
sens, elle ne pourrait grever le Trésor. Nous nous devons de
considérer cette motion. Les membres voteront sans doute
selon leur propre avis personnel et il n’est pas du tout mon
intention de vous influencer dans un sens ou dans un autre.

The Chairman: Thank you.
Mr. Dion.

Mr. Dion: I reject outright what the minister just said
because we must vote. It is not like standing up in the House of
Commons and stating one’s opinion in French or in English
and being able to hear the interpretation. Here, we are called
on to vote on a motion.

If the motion is not receivable, then I do not object. But if
we have to vote, I must. In fact, I have two or three reasons for
refusing to vote. First of all, I do not have the official text, so I
do not know what the consequences of the motion will be.

When I vote on a motion in the House, I already have the
text in French and in English and I know what the legal
repercussions of my vote are going to be. However, this
morning, I do not.

The Chairman: Let us come back to the substance of the
whole issue, the presentation of the motion in both official
languages. Nowhere in the Parliamentary Rules is it stated
that motions must be made in both languages. To quote section
297:
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L’Acte de I’Amérique du Nord britannique autorise I'emploi
a la Chambre du frangais et de I'anglais. L’interprétation
simultanée 4 la Chambre permet a cet égard des discussions
libres et compréhensives dans les deux langues officielles.

Donc, 4 la Chambre des communes, on utilise indifférem-
ment le frangais ou I’anglais.

M.Tessier: Mais pour le dépdt d’une motion ou d’une
proposition, la Loi des langues officielles doit s’appliquer.

Je le regrette infiniment, madame le président, mais nous
avons le droit, comme francophones, et nous ne débattons pas
les principes en cause, mais uniquement notre droit d’avoir une
résolution écrite en francais. Si cette résolution n’est pas écrite
en frangais, nous levons la séance. Qu’on I’écrive en frangais et
nous reviendrons pour I’examiner. C’est ’application pure et
simple de la Loi sur les langues officielles.

Le président: D’accord. Merci.
M. Schellenberger invoque le Réglement.

Mr. Schellenberger: Perhaps we could solve the problem.
We have some witnesses here from some distance and we did
not properly get to question them all. Perhaps, rather than
have another meeting a week from now, or something, and
have the gentlemen come back, we could meet later today. The
request that has been put forward could then be accomplished,
we could deal with the motion and we could carry on with the
questioning of the witnesses. I do not think anyone has any
objection to what is being asked for. We have to deal with that,
because we cannot have the committee constantly stopping, as
we attempt to deal with motions in one language or another, to
wait for translation. Maybe, as a committee, we have to deal
with that question. It is an important question.

I make the suggestion that we meet later today to deal with
the witnesses more thoroughly on this very important question
of western grain stabilization. By that time, perhaps, the
motion can be properly dealt with.

An Hon. Member: Can the Minister return this afternoon?
Le président: Alors, monsieur le ministre, seriez-vous
disponible?

Senator Argue: I have some other engagements. I could see
whether I could move them or not, but it would be pretty
inconvenient at the moment. However, I do not want to veto
the committee’s operation, I guess, or try to.

Le président: Et demain aprés-midi? C’est vrai, demain
aprés-midi, on présentera le Budget.

Senator Argue: Would you care to meet this afternoon? Is
that your suggestion? I will endeavour to accommodate the
committee.

The Chairman: This afternoon.

Senator Argue: Whatever you say, Madam Chairman.

[Traduction)

The British North America Act guarantees that a Member
may address the House in either English or French; the
simultaneous interpretation system insures that debate may
flow freely and intelligently.

So, in the House of Commons, French and English are used
indifferently.

Mr. Tessier: But for tabling a motion, the Official Lan-
guages Act must apply.

I am infinitely sorry about the situation, Madame Chair-
man, but as francophones we have a legal right. We are not
debating the principles in question here, but simply our right
to have a resolution written in French. If the motion is not
drafted in French, we should adjourn the meeting. As soon as
the motion has been written in French, we will come back to
consider it. It is simply a question of applying the Official
Languages policy.

The Chairman: Fine. Thank you.
On a point of order, Mr. Schellenger.

M. Schellenberger: 11 y a peut-étre une solution au pro-
bléme. Puisque les témoins sont venus de loin et que nous
n’avons pas eu suffisamment de temps pour les interroger tous,
nous pourrions peut-étre convoquer une réunion plus tard
aujourd’hui. Ainsi, on n’obligerait pas les témoins a revenir.
Entre-temps, on pourrait satisfaire 4 la demande de rédiger la
motion en frangais, la mettre aux voix et passer aux questions
avec les témoins. Personne ne s’oppose au fond de la motion. Il
faut trancher la question a un moment ou un autre. Sinon, il y
aura des interruptions continuelles chaque fois que nous
devons attendre la traduction d’une motion ou une autre. Il
faut que le Comité régle le probléme. C’est une question tres
importante.

Je propose que nous nous réunissions plus tard aujourd’hui
afin d’interroger les témoins de fagon plus approfondie sur
cette question importante de la stabilisation des prix de grain
de ’Ouest. D’ici cet aprés-midi, la motion aura été rédigée
convenablement.

Une voix: Le ministre, sera-t-il disponible cet apres-midi?

The Chairman: Mr. Minister, would you be available this
afternoon?

Le sénateur Argue: Je suis pris ailleurs mais je pourrais
tenter de changer mes rendez-vous. Disons que cela ne me
convient pas tout a fait. Toutefois, nous ne voulons pas
entraver les délibérations du comité, je ferai un effort pour y
assister.

The Chairman: How about tomorrow afternoon? That is
right, there is the budget then.

Le sénateur Argue: S’il est votre désir de vous réunir cet
aprés-midi, je tenterai de m’accommoder aux besoins du
Comité.

Le président: Cet aprés-midi.

Le sénateur Argue: Comme vous voulez, madame le
président.
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Le président: Cet aprés-midi.

Mr. Schellenberger: We have a vote anyway, so it would be
a short meeting, but at least we could carry on for awhile.

Senator Argue: What time would you suggest for the
meeting?

The Chairman: Three-thirty o’clock.

Mr. Schellenberger: Our vote is probably at 5.30 p.m., or
something, so we would have . . .

An Hon. Member: At 5.45 p.m.

Senator Argue: How long would you anticipate that the
afternoon meeting would last?

Mr. Schellenberger: About an hour and a half. I think we
could finish in an hour and a half. I notice that one gentleman
is from Saskatchewan and I would certainly like to put some
questions to him, but I would hate to have to ask him to travel
back again a week from now, or something.

Senator Argue: Can you come this afternoon, Mr. Sahl?

Mr. Sahl: I have an appointment at 6.30 p.m.
An Hon. Member: You can still make it.

M. Tessier: Madame le président, je parcours une distance
de 1,000 milles par semaine pour venir ici, et s’il faut que je
fasse le trajet deux fois, je le ferai. C’est la méme régle qui
s’applique 4 tout le monde. Alors qu’on ne fasse pas d’accrocs
a la Loi sur le bilinguisme en invoquant de tels de tels prétex-
tes, car cela m’apparait inacceptable.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Tessier. Alors la réunion est
levée jusqu’a 15h30, cet aprés-midi.

[Translation]
The Chairman: This afternoon.

M. Schellenberger: La réunion devra étre bréve de toute
facon car il y a un vote en Chambre cet aprés-midi.

Le sénateur Argue: A quelle heure prévoyez-vous commen-
cer?

Le président: A 15h30.

M. Schellenberger: Le vote aura vraisemblablement lieu a
17h30 alors nous aurions . . .

Une voix: Il est prévu & 17h45.
Le sénateur Argue: Combien de temps pourrait-elle durer?

M. Schellenberger: Environ une heure et demie. Nous
pourrions tout finir en une heure et demie, je crois. Je vois que
nous avons un témoin de la Saskatchewan et je serais content
de pouvoir lui poser quelques questions. Toutefois, je ne
voudrais pas ’obliger a faire I’aller-retour dans une semaine.

Le sénateur Argue: Pourrez-vous assister a la réunion cet
aprés-midi, monsieur Sahl?

M. Sahl: J’ai un rendez-vous a 18h30.
Une voix: Vous aurez le temps.

Mr. Tessier: Madame Chairman, I drive 1000 miles a week
to be here and if I had to do that twice a week, I would. The
same rule applies to everyone. So let us not bend the bilingual-
ism rule with excuses like those I heard earlier. That, to me, is
unacceptable.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Tessier. The meeting is
adjourned until 3:30 this afternoon.

AFTERNOON SITTING
® 1538

Le président: Nous poursuivons cet aprés-midi notre étude
du rapport sur I'application de la Loi sur la stabilisation
concernant le grain de I'Ouest et le Compte de stabilisation
1981, déféré au Comité permanent de I’agriculture le 26 mai
1983.

Le sénateur Hazen Argue, qui est le ministre responsable de
la Commission canadienne du blé, est toujours avec nous, de
méme que les autres témoins de ce matin.

Nous en étions a la motion présentée par M. Neil. Je
constate que M. Neil n’est pas ici pour en parler.

Monsieur Schellenberger.

Mr. Schellenberger: I beg the indulgence of the committee.
Mr. Neil and Mr. Mayer will be another five minutes. They
are at a meeting they had to attend until a quarter to. So if we
could go on with questions until they arrive, then they could at
least be here when the motion is dealt with.

Le président: Si vous étes d’accord, nous continuerons a
interroger les témoins, & moins que vous n’ayez des remarques

SEANCE DE L’APRES-MIDI

The Chairman: This afternoon, we are resuming our study
of the report concerning the application of the Western Grain
Stabilization Act and the stabilization fund for 1981, pursuant
to the order of reference of May 26, 1983 of the Standing
Committee on Agriculture.

Senator Hazen Argue, the Minister responsible for the
Canadian Grain Commission is again with us, as well as the
other two witnesses from this morning’s sitting.

We resume studying Mr. Neil’s motion. However, I notice
that Mr. Neil is not here to discuss it with us.

Mr. Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Je prie le Comité de faire preuve
d’indulgence étant donné que MM. Neil et Mayer arriveront
d’ici cing minutes. Ils assistent présentement a une autre
réunion ou ils doivent rester jusqu'a moins le quart. Si nous
nous en tenons aux questions d’ici leur arrivée, ils seront ici
lorsqu’il s’agira de voter.

The Chairman: If you are in agreement, we will continue to
put questions to the witnesses, unless you have any comments
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i faire sur ce que M. Schellenberger ... Non? Nous allons

donc continuer a poser des questions aux témoins jusqu’a
’arrivée de M. Neil et de M. Mayer. D’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Je poursuis avec ma liste de noms de ce matin.
Monsieur Schellenberger.

Mr. Schellenberger: Thank you, Madam Chairperson. I
have a number of questions I would like to put to both the
Minister and the Advisory Committee. My first question will
be regarding the Advisory Committee. The members on the
committee, do they number five?

Mr. Omar Bilokury (Chief, Program Services, Western
Grain Stabilization Administration): Yes.

Mr. Schellenberger: As I understand it, there was a vacancy
on the committee for about a year and a half of one of your
members. Is that correct, and who replaced that person?

® 1540

Mr. Avery Sahl (Member of the Western Grain Stabiliza-
tion Administration Advisory Committee): I do not think it . ..
Maybe Omar, or the Minister, could more appropriately
answer that.

Mr. Schellenberger: Sure, whoever wishes to answer. I just
want to know how long the members have served on the
committee and when the person was replaced.

Mr. Bilokury: All five of the original members appointed to
the committee are still serving members. My interpretation is
that they remain serving members, of course, until a replace-
ment has been named.

Mr. Schellenberger: So none of the present members have
turned in their resignations, to this date, or wished to be
replaced.

Mr. Bilokury: Not formally to the Administration.

Mr. Schellenberger: It is my information that, in fact, that
is the case and that the difficulty with the committee is that
two of the members are serving with some reluctance, that
they have wished to be replaced and, for at least over a year,
they have not been replaced. That is not to say that the
individuals are not capable, it is their own desire that they
leave. I am wondering why the Minister does not accept some
responsibility, if it is the Minister who appoints the members
of the committee, for dealing with that very serious matter. I
will tell you, then, why I think it is a serious matter.

Senator Argue: Mr. Donn Mitchell may be one of the
members you have in mind. He was at the last meeting and
was very active and I do not know that he is not prepared to
remain active. If there are a couple of members who would
prefer not to act, I am sure they should be replaced.

[Traduction)]

to make about Mr. Schellenberger’s proposals . .. no? In that
case, we shall resume questioning the witnesses until Mr. Neil
and Mr. Mayer will have arrived. Agreed?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.
The Chairman: I will then proceed using this morning’s list.
Mr. Schellenberger.

M. Schellenberger: Merci, madame le président. J’aimerais
poser certaines questions a la fois au ministre et au Conseil
consultatif. Jaimerais d’ailleurs d’abord savoir combien de
personnes font partie de ce conseil, s’agit-il de cinq?

M. Omar Bilokury (directeur du Service des programmes,
Commission de la stabilisation des grains de ’Ouest): Oui.

M. Schellenberger: Je crois savoir que pendant un an et
demi environ, il y a eu une vacance a combler parmi ces
membres. Est-ce exact, et si tel est le cas, qui a remplacé le

membre ayant démissionné?

M. Avery Sahl (membre du Conseil consultatif du bureau de
stabilisation concernant le grain de I’Ouest): Je ne suis peut-
étre pas en mesure de répondre ... Omar ou le ministre sont
peut-étre mieux placés pour le faire que moi.

M. Schellenberger: Certainement, que celui qui le veut
prenne la parole. Je veux tout simplement savoir pendant
combien de temps les membres siégent au sein du Comité et
quand le démissionnaire a été remplacé.

M. Bilokury: Les cinqg premiers membres nommés siégent
toujours. Je crois qu’on demeure membres jusqu’d ce qu’un
successeur ait été nomme.

M. Schellenberger: Cela veut donc dire qu’aucun des
membres actuels n’a donné sa démission ni n’a fait savoir qu’il
désire étre remplacé.

M. Bilokury: Aucune demande en ce sens n’a été présentée
au bureau.

M. Schellenberger: Je crois pourtant savoir que tel est bien
le cas, et qu'il y a un probléme du fait que deux des membres
du Comité siégent a regret étant donné que cela fait au moins
un an qu’ils ont demandé qu’on leur trouve un successeur. Cela
ne porte pas atteinte 4 leur compétence, il s’agit tout simple-
ment qu'ils veulent partir. Je me demande pourquoi le ministre
n’assume pas sa part de responsabilité étant donné que c’est lui
qui doit nommer les membres du Comité, lesquels sont chargés
d’étudier une question qui me parait trés importante, et je vous
préciserai pourquoi.

Le sénateur Argue: Vous songez peut-étre a M. Donn
Mitchell. Ce dernier a assisté a la derniére réunion, a laquelle
il a pleinement participé, et & ma connaissance, il ne désire pas
étre moins actif. Si toutefois il y a certains membres qui
préféreraient ne pas participer aux travaux, alors ils devraient
certainement étre remplacés.
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Mr. Schellenberger: I agree. It is my feeling that, when the
legislation sets up an advisory committee of farmers, that
advisory committee has a very important duty to perform. It is
to be in touch with the members of the industry in that region,
or province, depending upon what area they represent, to
consider seriously the terms of the legislation as to whether the
legislation is properly serving the function that was intended.
If the advisory committee does not believe that is the case, it is
to advise the Minister of that fact. We have here a member of
the advisory committee. Is it the case that you meet once a
year? Is that by order, or is that by the terms of the chairman?
Who determines the schedule upon which you will meet and
discuss these matters?

Mr. Sahl: There is no predetermined number of times that
the committee meets. It is when we feel a need to meet, or
when the people who administer the plan feel that there is
something they want to run by the committee. That is the
pattern.

Mr. Schellenberger: What has been your schedule in the
past, say, four years? How often do you meet?

Mr. Sahl: I really cannot answer that with any degree of
precision. When the plan first came into effect, the committee
met fairly often. As the plan became operational, it was felt, I
guess, by all committee members that there was no need to
meet as frequently. We have been meeting whenever we felt
the need of it, or whenever the people who administer the plan
had something they wanted to run by the committee.

Mr. Schellenberger: How often did you meet last year?

Mr. Sahl: Once, I guess.
Mr. Schellenberger: And the year before?

Mr. Bilokury: Also once. There was only one year—if I may
add this—to the schedule of advisory committee meetings.
Legislative requirements call for at least one meeting a year
and those requirements were met. In one year, I believe the
year of review, the advisory committee met twice. Otherwise, it
has been once a year.

Mr. Schellenberger: If that is the case, perhaps there is no
reason to be concerned about meeting just once a year. If the
advisory committee puts forward its feelings to the Minister in
a very strong way once a year, I suppose the committee should
feel that that is sufficient. Was the advisory committee
concerned that the legislation, obviously, has not been working
for the last, I would say, four years, given volume increases in
1979, inflation, and so forth? Did you feel that meeting once a
year was sufficient to determine whether that is the case, and
did you make strong recommendations to the Minister that
there was a problem and, therefore, it should be dealt with as
far as the Advisory Committee was concerned?
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Mr. Sahl: As I indicated earlier, we have taken resolutions
that came through farm organizations and from farmers as
individuals to the people who administer the plan, as well as

[Translation]

M. Schellenberger: Je suis d’accord. A mon avis, lorsque le
pouvoir législatif met sur pied un conseil consultatif constitué
d’agriculteurs, c’est pour lui confier une tache trés importante.
En l'occurrence, il s’agit de demeurer en contact avec les
autres exploitants agricoles d’une région donnée ou d’une
province, selon la région qu’ils représentent, ce afin d’étudier le
projet de loi et de voir s’ils se conforment a ses objectifs. Si le
conseil consultatif n’est pas persuadé de cela, il doit en aviser
le ministre. Etant donné qu’un des membres de ce conseil est
parmi nous, j'aimerais lui demander s’il est vrai que vos
membres se réunissent une fois par année. Cette réunion se
tient-elle parce que vous y étes obligés ou est-elle convoquée
par le président? Qui établit votre calendrier de travail?

M. Sahl: Le nombre de nos rencontres n’est pas préétabli.
Nous nous réunissons quand nous estimons en avoir besoin ou
lorsque des administrateurs du programme veulent soumettre
quelque chose au Comité. C’est ainsi que nous fonctionnons.

M. Schellenberger: Ces quatre derniéres années, combien de
fois vous étes-vous réunis?

M. Sahl: Je ne suis pas en mesure de vous donner une
réponse trés précise. Cela dit, lors de la mise en vigueur du
programme, le Comité se réunissait assez souvent. Cependant,
au fur et & mesure que les choses avangaient, les membres du
groupe ont estimé qu’il n’était pas nécessaire de se rencontrer
aussi fréquemment. Nous nous réunissons donc lorsque cela
nous parait nécessaire, ou quand les administrateurs du
programme veulent soumettre quelque chose au Comité.

M. Schellenberger: Combien de temps vous étes-vous réunis
I’année derniére?

M. Sahl: Une fois, je crois.
M. Schellenberger: Et ’année d’avant?

M. Bilokury: Une fois aussi. Je précise que le calendrier du
conseil consultatif ne prévoyait qu’une année de rencontres. La
loi exige que nous nous réunissions au moins une fois par année
et nous nous sommes conformés a cela. Toutefois, ’année du
réexamen, nous avons tenu deux rencontres et non une comme
c’est le cas pour les autres années.

M. Schellenberger: Si tel est le cas, il n’y a peut-étre pas lieu
de se préoccuper du fait que vous ne vous réunissez seulement
qu’'une fois par année. Jentends par la que si le conseil
consultatif fait fermement valoir son avis auprés du ministre
une fois par année, je suppose que cela est suffisant. Cepen-
dant, le conseil consultatif s’inquiétait-il du fait que la loi est
manifestement inopérante depuis les quatre derniéres années
étant donné les augmentations en volume de 1979, I'inflation et
encore d’autres choses? Croyez-vous qu’une réunion par année
suffisait pour vous mettre au courant, et avez-vous fermement
exprimé au ministre, que d’aprés vous, il y avait probléme et
qu’en conséquence, il fallait s’en occuper?

M. Sahl: Comme je I'ai dit plus tdt, nous avons adopté des
résolutions que des organisations de producteurs agricoles et
des agriculteurs particuliers nous avaient envoyées ou avaient
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the Minister, and have put forward our feelings on some
aspects of the plan on a number of occasions.

Mr. Schellenberger: Do you consider that your feelings as
an advisory committee are to be kept confidential, or have you
told the farmers in the various regions the kinds of recommen-
dations you are making to the Minister or the people who
administer the plan?

Mr. Sahl: In my case they certainly have not been confiden-
tial. In other capacities I guess I attended last year—and I
counted them—>58 farm meetings where I communicated with
farmers, and the attendance ranged from probably 20 to 300,
so I feel I got a pretty good feel of farmers’ attitudes on a
number of things, including western grain. I paid pretty close
attention to their attitudes on that.

Mr. Schellenberger: When did you start making recommen-
dations, or getting the feeling that the plan was not working?
How long ago would that have been?

Mr. Sahl: I think within the last three years would probably
be accurate. In all fairness, I think prior to that; but taking
into account the life of the plan, it was probably a little too
early to pass judgment on a plan that had only been in place
for that length of time.

Mr. Schellenberger: Based on that, did you feel a certain
frustration like other farmers in the Prairies felt when in fact it
became evident there were problems and yet they were not be
able to get to the administrators of the plan, or to the Minister,
to deal with those problems; that the whole system, the
formula, has remained intact over those three years, and still
in fact remains intact?

Mr. Sahl: I suppose one feels a certain degree of frustration;
but on the other hand, I have been around long enough and
involved long enough to also appreciate the other aspect of it,
the other side of it.

Mr. Schellenberger: You are prepared to accept that
government works slowly then. Is that what you are saying?

Mr. Sahl: 1 did not say that. I think you have to take
perhaps a longer range viewpoint of it.

Mr. Schellenberger: So in your longer range this year, have
you made, in your opinion, a very firm recommendation that
this ought to be changed?

Mr. Sahl: Yes. We made a number of recommendations that
I think I have alluded to, and the Minister and others have
alluded to, during the hearings.

Mr. Schellenberger: You think the advisory board then is
something that ought to continue and is doing a worthwhile
job?

Mr. Sahl: I certainly feel that way. I know I am called on on
many different occasions to talk about the plan. I do not get
into a thorough explanation of the details of the plan, because
I do not feel that is my responsibility. I feel my responsibility is

[Traduction]

envoyées aux administrateurs du programme ainsi qu'au
ministre, et nous avons également fait connaitre, a quelques
reprises, nos réactions a certains aspects du programme.

M. Schellenberger: Estimez-vous que les avis que vous
exprimez en tant que conseil consultatif doivent demeurer
confidentiels, ou avez-vous mis les agriculteurs des diverses
régions au courant des recommandations que vous avez
soumises soit au ministre, soit aux administrateurs du pro-
gramme?

M. Sahl: Eh bien, mon avis & moi n’est certainement pas
demeuré confidentiel. En effet, je crois avoir assisté I’année
derniére, 2 58 réunions d’agriculteurs, ou j’échangeais avec
entre 20 et 300 producteurs agricoles. Cela m’a donc permis de
me faire une bonne idée de l'attitude de ces derniers sur
nombre de choses, y compris le grain de I'Ouest. Par la suite,
j’ai accordé beaucoup d’attention a leur avis.

M. Schellenberger: Quand avez-vous commencé a faire des
recommandations ou a avoir 'impression que le programme ne
fonctionnait pas? Cela remonte & combien de temps?

M. Sahl: A environ trois ans, je dirais méme avant cela.
Cependant, il était alors peut-étre un peu trop tét pour porter
un jugement sur un programme qui venait d’étre mis en
vigueur.

M. Schellenberger: Compte tenu de cela, vous étes-vous
senti vous aussi trés contrarié comme les autres agriculteurs
des Prairies lorsque I’existence de ces problémes devint trés
manifeste et qu’en dépit de cela, il n’y avait pas moyen
d’intéresser les administrateurs ou encore le ministre a les
régler. Cela vous a-t-il mis en colére que I’ensemble du systéme
et la formule soient demeurés inchangés pendant ces trois ans
et le soient encore?

M. Sahl: Je crois qu’on peut dire qu’on ressent une certaine
colére mais par ailleurs, cela fait trop longtemps que je suis
actif dans ce milieu pour que je ne vois pas l'autre coté de la
meédaille.

M. Schellenberger: Vous étes donc disposé a accepter que le
gouvernement fonctionne lentement. Enfin, est-ce cela que
vous affirmez?

M. Sahl: Cela n’est pas ce que j’ai dit. Je crois qu’il faut
peut-étre avoir une perspective plus éloignée.

M. Schellenberger: Compte tenu de cela, avez-vous énergi-
quement recommandé qu’on modifie le systéme?

M. Sahl: Oui. Nous avons formulé des recommandations
que j'ai déja mentionnées, comme I'ont d’ailleurs fait le
ministre et d’autres encore, au cours des séances.

M. Schellenberger: Vous estimez donc qu’il faut maintenir
le conseil consultatif et étes d’avis qu’il fait du bon travail?

M. Sahl: C’est tout a fait mon avis. On me demande souvent
de prendre la parole au sujet du programme. Je n’en donne pas
une explication trés poussée parce que je n’estime pas que c’est
a moi de le faire. J'ai plutét la responsabilité de transmettre les
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carrying the wishes of producers to the people who administer
the plan. That is sort of where I have drawn the line. When it
gets to any of the details of the plan, I refer them to people like
Mr. Bilokury who are involved in the administration of the
plan. I feel that is their responsibility.

Mr. Schellenberger: I commend you for going to that many
meetings. You obviously have some stamina to attend that
number of meetings.

Mr. Sahl: I just want to make it clear they are not all
entirely related to western grain. I have been involved in
other ...

® 1550

Mr. Schellenberger: Earlier it was stated ... and I direct
this to the minister or his assistant—that it was impossible to
forecast that we would have these volumes of sales or the price
increase. I dispute the terms of prices that were used earlier,
that the price of wheat has doubled in the past four or five
years, whatever was used; I do not believe that is the case. But
why would you make a statement like that?

Surely it would have been noticeable that volumes were
increasing rapidly. We had a recession in the economy. Cars
became available. Inflation obviously was not going to turn
around when it was moving at rates of 10% to 12% year after
year there for a while. With our wonderful computers and the
people who come out of our universities with great capacity to
use them, cannot you punch in the various possibilities and see
what the computer spews out the other end to make these
kinds of forecasts? The Minister of Finance is constantly
making them. Most of the farm leaders I listen to . . .

Senator Argue: Are they accurate?

Mr. Schellenberger: Well, he says they are this year. I do
not know whether I should dispute with him or not. He says he
was pretty accurate.

Farm leaders have been telling farmers on the Prairies for
years now that the price of grain is going up and that they
should get ready for this great, wonderful amount of cash that
is going to drop into their hands. Of course, that has not been
entirely accurate.

I am just astonished that we would make the excuse that
this plan is not working because we could not forecast what is
happening. Surely we should be forecasting all the possibilities
and be capable of quickly adjusting the formula.

I remember in brucellosis many farmers suffered dramati-
cally because the government could not move quickly enough
to change the amount of money that was paid to farmers who
had their cattle slaughtered. The same kind of situation is here
with this rigid formula: Government, the department or
Members of Parliament are not capable of adjusting to meet
very serious requirements on the Prairies in the western grain
area. All of us have to be concerned about this. If we establish

[Translation)
désirs des producteurs agricoles aux administrateurs du
programme. Cela me parait étre ma responsabilité, et lorsqu’il
s’agit d’expliquer tous les détails du programme, je m’en
remets plutdt & des gens comme M. Bilokury qui sont chargés
de I'aspect administratif. Cela me parait étre leur responsabi-
lité.

M. Schellenberger: Je vous félicite d’assister & un aussi
grand nombre de réunions. Vous avez manifestement beaucoup
d’énergie pour pouvoir le faire.

M. Sahl: Je dois préciser que toutes ces rencontres n’ont pas
uniquement trait & la question du grain de I'Ouest. Jai
participé a des réunions portant sur autre chose.

M. Schellenberger: Ma question s’adresse au ministre ou a
son adjoint; on a dit plus tot qu’il était impossible de prévoir
'augmentation du volume de ces ventes ou des prix. Je ne suis
pas d’accord avec les prix qu’on nous a cités auparavant; & mon
avis, au cours des quatre ou cinq derniéres années, le prix du
blé n’a pas doublé ou augmenté comme on I’a dit; du moins je
ne le crois pas. Pourquoi feriez-vous cette déclaration?

On aurait certainement pu constater que le volume augmen-
tait rapidement. L’économie a connu une récession. Des
wagons étaient disponibles. De toute évidence on ne pouvait
espérer une croissance économique du jour au lendemain d un
moment ou les taux d’inflation se chiffraient a 10 p. 100 ou 12
p. 100 d’une année a l'autre. On dispose de magnifiques
ordinateurs et les diplomés de nos universités sont trés
compétents en informatique; ne pouvez-vous pas introduire les
diverses paramétres dans I'ordinateur pour voir ce qu’ils nous
sortiraient comme possibilités? Le ministre des Finances fait
une usage constant des ordinateurs. La plupart des représen-
tants agricoles . . .

Le sénateur Argue: Ces prévisions sont-elles exactes?

M. Schellenberger: Eh bien, elles le sont cette année, selon le
ministre. Je ne sais pas s’il y a lieu de réfuter ses dires ou non.
Il prétend qu’elles sont assez justes.

Depuis des années, les représentants agricoles disent aux
céréaliculteurs des Prairies que le prix du grain augmente et
qu’ils peuvent s’attendre 4 toucher de fortes sommes d’argent.
Bien entendu, ces déclarations n’ont pas toujours été tout a fait
exactes.

Je suis étonné que I'on prétende que ce programme n’est pas
efficace parce qu’il était impossible de prévoir la situation. Il
faudrait prévoir toutes les possibilités et étre en mesure de
rajuster rapidement la formule au besoin.

Je me souviens que lorsque la brucellose se déclara, bon
nombre d’agriculteurs ont subi des pertes considérables du fait
que le gouvernement ne voulait pas modifier assez rapidement
la somme versée aux agriculteurs qui abattaient leur bétail. En
raison de cette formule rigide, cette situation s’apparente a
celle dont je viens de parler: ni le gouvernement, ni le Minis-
tére, ni les députés ne peuvent rajuster la formule pour
répondre aux besoins trés graves dans le domaine du grain de
I’Ouest. Nous devons tous nous intéresser a cette question. Si
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rigid legislation like that that is not serving its purpose, then
obviously something is wrong with the legislation we draft.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): That is only a political view.

Mr. Schellenberger: It is not working. Marcel, it is not
working.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): This is not in the interests of the
growers all across the country.

Mr. Schellenberger: Oh, come off it.
Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): It is only a political view.

Mr. Schellenberger: Come on out and I will show you. It is
very nice to jabber over there, but come out and I will show
you what is going on out there.

Mr. Dionne (Chicoutimi): I will show you, too.
Mr. Schellenberger: Yes.
The Chairman: Please . . .

Senator Argue: I have been the minister now for about four
years, but the Act has been in effect, I guess, for about eight.
So the projections were there when I came along as a minister,
and I guess it is right. Those who were around at the time, in
any event, say that they were not able to forecast and they
were not as optimistic by way of forecasting the exports as
events in fact happened.

I think it is a good thing that those exports are in fact bigger
than a lot of people had expected, You may have been as
optimistic for the Wheat Board as others or maybe even more
optimistic than the board itself, but in any event each year
there have been major increases in exports in recent years and
that has had an effect on gross income.

I think, if you go back to the economy in 1974 or 1975 when
this Act was being considered, inflation was not as great then.
It developed along the way. It really developed while this Act
was being administered. So I think that is a reason why
insufficient attention was given, and I think that is a fair thing
to say. At the time they were not able to understand that
inflation would be as big a factor as it has turned out to be.

A review has been going on now since about the end of 1981,
or through 1982 and now into 1983, and that review has
certainly been very, very active. I have taken part in many,
many meetings with the grains group and others on the Act
and what should be done. So a lot of attention has been given
to the Act, certainly in recent months. That review is going on,
and I am confident that amendments will be obtained. The
forecast was in the Speech from the Throne. I am also
confident that those amendments will result in the producers
feeling that the Act is more responsive and will be made more
responsive. I think that producers have a good case out there in
feeling that their costs are up, that this is a time of need.
Inflation has been important. Interest rates are high, as has
already been pointed out at meetings of this committee, and

[Traduction]

nous adoptons une loi aussi rigide qui ne répond pas a ces
objectifs, c’est que, de toute évidence, la loi laisse a désirer.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): C’est un point de vue tout a fait
politique.

M. Schellenberger: La loi ne donne pas les résultats voulus,
Marecel; elle n’est pas utile.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Ceci n’est pas dans l'intérét des
producteurs de grain dans tout le pays.

M. Schellenberger: Allons donc!

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Ce n’est que de la politique, tout
cela.

M. Schellenberger: Venez avec moi dans les Prairies, je vous
le ferai voir. Vous avez beau pérorer de votre coté, mais suivez-
moi dans I’Ouest, je vous monterai ce qui s’y passe.

M. Dionne (Chicoutimi): Je vous en montrerai de mon coté.
M. Schellenberger: Oui.
Le président: Messieurs, s’il vous plait . . .

Le sénateur Argue: Je suis ministre depuis envirion quatre
ans, la loi, par contre, est en vigueur depuis environ huit ans.
Par conséquent, les prévisions avaient été faites lorsque j'ai été
nommé ministre et c’est vrai, je suppose. De toute fagon, ceux
qui étaient I avant mon arrivée prétendent qu’ils n’ont pas pu
prévoir la situation, qu’ils ne pouvaient pas prévoir des
exportations aussi optimistes.

C’est bien que ces exportations soient supérieures a ce qui
avait été prévu. Vous avez peut-étre été aussi optimiste, voire
plus optimiste que la Commission canadienne du bl¢; mais il
n’en demeure pas moins que depuis quelques années, on
constate des augmentations importantes au chapitre des
exportations et que ces derniéres ont eu des retombées sur le
revenu brut.

Si vous vous reportez a la situation économique des années
1974 ou 1975, au moment ou on étudiait cette loi, vous vous
rappellerez que l'inflation était moindre. Elle s’est amplifiée
depuis, au moment ot on appliquait les dispositions de cette
loi. Il est juste de dire que c’est la raison pour laquelle on n’y a
pas accordé une attention suffisante. Il y a quelques années, on
ne pouvait pas s’imaginer que l’inflation deviendrait un
élément aussi important.

Depuis la fin de 1981 ou, tout au moins, en 1982 et en 1983,
on étudie la situation de fagon trés poussée. J'ai participé a bon
nombre de réunions avec les principaux intéressés pour
discuter de la loi et des mesures qui s’imposent. Je peux vous
dire que depuis quelques mois, on s’intéresse certainement aux
dispositions de la loi. Cette étude est en cours et je suis
convaincu qu’'on apportera des modifications a la loi. Le
discours du trone a abordé la question des prévisions. Les
modifications rassureront les producteurs: Ils verront que la loi
tient compte et tiendra davantage compte de leurs besoins. A
mon avis, les producteurs ont tout lieu de croire que leurs
dépenses ont augmenté et qu’il s’agit d’une situation critique.
L’inflation a eu une grande influence. Les taux d’intérét sont
élevés, comme on I'a déja dit a des réunions de ce Comité et
nous reconnaissons tous le grand pouvoir économique de la loi.
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we all recognize, I guess, that there is a lot of money in that
Act.

*Nl'555

The farmers put in their share of it, $1 to be matched by the
Government of Canada; it put in its share. It has been earning
interest at a fairly reasonable rate, I believe, so in a sense it is
an investment. The farmers agree it is an investment, and we
are looking at amendments to the Act and how the Act can be
improved. So I have no problem myself in saying that this
review is important and that the deliberations of this commit-
tee are important.

The Chairman: Merci. Mr. Towers.

Mr. Towers: Thank you, Madam Chairman. Mr. Minister, I
believe that if you were chairman of one of the corporate
boards in Canada, and asked the board of directors to deal
with the 1981 report in 1984, you would be fired on the spot.
Now, this is not good enough—and I have to tell you this to be
fair with you—it is just not good enough, because we have to
get these reports up to date if we are going to be able to deal
with the issues.

I recognize the problem that you are having, and it stems as
a result of the Minister, the Hon. Mr. Lang, who brought this
legislation in, who would not listen to some of our criticism
and our advice at the time the legislation was put in place. We
warned him and we told him it would not work.

The farmers out there that I deal with are not only very
cynical but they are becoming very angry, not only because
there is not a pay-out, but this past year up to August 1, they
were having up to $1,200 collected from them and then $900
after that. It is a double whammy for them, and they are not
prepared to go along with this.

I say they are cynical, and I think they are justified in being
that way. The last pay-out was just prior to the election in
1979, paid in 1978, and now we are talking about another pay-
out this year, just prior to an election again. This is the part
that really makes them very frustrated and angry.

I would like to get back to the review. You say it is an
ongoing thing. The Hon. Lloyd Axworthy told us that the
review would probably be completed by last October to
questions being asked in the House of Commons. Now we still
understand it is going on. [ am wondering if we can establish
just exactly at what stage the review is in at the present time.

Senator Argue: If I might make one or two comments; it is
true that we are dealing with the 1981 report. I believe we
have been informed this morning that the 1982 report is in the
hands of the printers, so that is not far away. I think we have
been informed also that a lot of the material with regard to
1983 is known in a general way, but all of those statistics are
not fully up to date. I guess the law requires that the report be
tabled in Parliament by August 1 and Mr. Bilokury tells me it
is absolutely impossible, physically impossible, to have that
kind of a completion date fulfilled. So I think whatever are the
facts, it should be the earliest possible date, and the law should
be such that the law can be met. We should not be faced with

[Translation]

Pour chaque dollar payé par les céréaliculteurs, le gouverne-
ment fournit 1$. Ce fonds accumule des intéréts 4 un taux
assez raisonnable, 2 mon avis; dans un sens, il s’agit d’un
investissement. Les céréaliculteurs reconnaissent qu’il s’agit
d’un investissement et nous cherchons a apporter des amende-
ments 4 la loi afin de ’améliorer. Je n’hésite donc pas a dire
que cette étude est importante, tout comme le sont les délibé-

rations de ce comité.
Le président: Thank you. Monsieur Towers.

M. Towers: Merci, madame le président. Monsieur le
ministre, si vous étiez président d’un des conseils d’administra-
tion au Canada et si vous demandiez 4 ce conseil d’étudier le
rapport de 1981 en 1984, vous seriez congédié sur le champ.
Or, ces mesures ne suffisent tout simplement pas et pour étre
juste avec vous, je vous dirai pourquoi: Nous devons mettre a
jour ces rapports pour étre en mesure de régler ces questions.

Je suis sensible 4 votre probléme; il est attribuable au
ministre, I’honorable M. Lang, qui a fait adopter cette loi sans
vouloir entendre ni nos critiques ni nos conseils. Nous I’avons
prévenu qu’elle n’aboutirait a rien.

Les céréaliculteurs avec qui je fais affaire sont non seule-
ment trés critiques, mais encore de plus en plus mécontents
pour deux raisons: Non seulement n’y a-t-il pas eu de verse-
ments, mais au cours de I'an dernier, jusqu’au 1° aoit, ils
devaient verser jusqu’a 1,200$ et, aprés cette date, 900$. Ils
sont doublement frappés et ils n’ont pas Iintention d’en rester
1a.

Jai dit qu’ils étaient critiques et & mon avis, ils ont raison de
I’étre. Le dernier versement a été effectué en 1978, juste avant
I’élection de 1979; et maintenant, on effectuerait un autre
versement cette année, juste avant une élection, encore une
fois. Voila ce qui les frustre et les mécontente.

J’aimerais revenir a cette étude. Vous dites qu’il s’agit d’une
étude permanente. L’honourable Lloyd Axworthy, interrogé a
la Chambre, nous avait dit qu’elle serait probablement
terminée dés le mois d’octobre dernier. Or, on nous dit qu’elle
est encore en cours. Peut-on nous dire exactement ce qu’il en
est de cette étude a I’heure actuelle?

Le sénateur Argue: J'aimerais faire un ou deux commentai-
res. Il est vrai que nous discutons du rapport de 1981. Ce
matin, on nous a dit, je crois, que le rapport de 1982 se trouve
chez I'imprimeur; on devrait donc le distribuer sous peu. On
nous a également dit que bon nombre de renseignements
portant sur 1983 sont connus de fagon générale; mais toutes les
statistiques ne sont pas tout a fait 4 jour. Il me semble que la
loi stipule que le rapport doit étre présenté au Parlement au 1
aoit et M. Bilokury me dit qu’il est absolument impossible de
respecter ce délai. Quoi qu’il en soit, il me semble que le
rapport doit étre présenté le plus tdt possible et que la loi soit
ainsi formulée, qu’elle puisse étre respectée. On ne pourrait pas
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the proposition that it is in the Act, but the Act is not being
complied with. Mr. Bilokury can speak for himself, as the
administrator, but that is the information that was given to
me.

I can understand and I appreciate and I agree that the
farmers out there feel that this Act should be more sensitive to
them and that a pay-out under the economic circumstances of
the time is really required. You may disagree with what I say
now, but I think that payout is required.
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Mr. Towers: You have been saying that all year.

Senator Argue: [ think the farmers deserve the payout
whether it happens to be an election year or not, and they may
need the payout. They may be eligible for a payout a year after
the election, and that should not be a deterrent to a payout. It
should stand on its merit. We should not in a sense be talking
about an election.

I know the election is in the wind, but our deliberation and
our consideration should be from the standpoint of having an
Act that has many good features. It should be improved and it
should work. The election date will come when the election
date comes. But we should collectively try to have an improved
Act.

An hon. Member: Hear, hear!

Mr. Towers: Where is the review at the present time? How
long is this going to be going on? I should say that I am not
being critical of the people who work within the system. It
seems to me that their hands are tied by this legislation, that
somehow or other it has to be freed up. Give them the
opportunity to make the system function the way that it
should.

Senator Argue: The review has been going on for some time.
Dr. Hedley has had a good deal to do with it, and he is
certainly capable of commenting on it.

My understanding is that the review has been completed in a
general way. It is in the hands of Ministers for examination
and consideration. We are now looking at the various options
that may flow from that report. We want to know what action
should be taken with regard to the Act itself.

Mr. Towers: Who is going to make this decision then, Mr.
Minister?

Senator Argue: That will be a decision of the Cabinet. The
Minister of Agriculture certainly has a major role to play. A
paper will come forward with a list of options. It will, I take it,
2o through the regular committees of the Cabinet and the final
decision will be a decision of the full Cabinet. It is not a
decision that is made by one Minister.

Mr. Schellenberger: How many months before you get that?

[Traduction]

accepter que la loi fixe un délai qui ne serait pas respecté.
Etant administrateur, M. Bilokury peut vous exposer ses
propres idées a ce sujet: Je tenais & vous faire part des

renseignements qui m’avaient €té transmis.

Je comprends trés bien la situation des céréaliculteurs et je
suis d’accord avec ceux qui prétendent que cette loi devrait
étre plus sensible a leurs besoins et qu’il faudrait effectuer un
versement, compte tenu de la conjoncture économique actuelle.
Vous n’étes peut-étre pas d’accord maintenant, mais je crois
que ce versement est nécessaire.

M. Towers: Vous I’avez dit toute ’année.

Le sénateur Argue: Je crois que les agriculteurs méritent ce
versement, qu'il s’agisse ou non d’une année d’élection, et
qu’ils en ont peut-étre besoin. Il seront peut-étre admissibles a
un versement I’année aprés les élections, et on ne devrait pas
non plus les en priver 4 ce moment-1a. Cela doit se faire sur les
mérites du dossier. D’une certaine fagon, nous ne devrions pas
parler d’une élection.

Je sais que les élections sont dans le vent, mais nos délibéra-
tions et nos études devraient viser 4 faire une bonne loi. Il faut
I’améliorer et il faut que cela fonctionne. La date des élections
sera annoncée lorsqu’elle sera annoncée. Toutefois, ensemble,
nous devons tenter d’améliorer la loi.

Une voix: Bravo, bravo!

M. Towers: Ou en est-on dans la révision a ’heure actuelle?
Pendant combien de temps cela va-t-il durer? Je ne critique
pas ceux qui travaillent dans le réseau. Il me semble que leurs
mains sont liées par cette loi, et que d’une fagon ou d’une
autre, il faut les libérer. Il faut leur donner l'occasion de le
faire fonctionner comme il se doit.

Le sénateur Argue: La révision est en cours depuis un
certain temps. M. Hedley s’en est beaucoup occupé, et il est
certainement capable de dire quelques mots a ce sujet.

Je me suis laissé dire que d’une fagon générale, la révision
était terminée. Elle a été remise aux ministres pour examen et
étude. Nous examinons actuellement les diverses options qui
ressortiraient éventuellement de ce rapport. Nous voulons
savoir quelles mesures s’imposent en ce qui concerne la loi elle-
méme.

M. Towers: Qui alors va prendre la décision, monsieur le
ministre?

Le sénateur Argue: Il s’agira d’une décision du Cabinet. Le
ministre de I’Agriculture aura certainement un grand réle a
jouer. Un document sera préparé comportant une liste
d’options. Je présume que cette liste suivra la filiére réguliére
des comités du Cabinet et que la décision finale sera prise par
le Cabinet entier. Ce n’est pas la décision d’un seul ministre.

M. Schellenberger: Combien de mois faudra-t-il attendre?
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Senator Argue: We have been working at it for some time.
So as far as [ am concerned it is on a fast track. I do really
know what that fast track means or a slow track . ..

Mr. Schellenberger: A side track.
Senator Argue: —double tracking or whatever.
An hon. Member: It is off the track this time.

Senator Argue: A lot of people have been spending a lot of
time looking at this question. Meetings continue to go on and
we hope it can be done quickly.

Mr. Towers: Mr. Minister, unless somebody who is very
close to the situation and understands it has a hand or an input
into this legislation, you are going to end up with the same
mess that the Honourable Otto Lang did, because he did not
understand the legislation when he brought it forward. You
have to have people who are involved in the system, so that
they can lay the base for your legislation. Otherwise, you have
people making the legislation who really are not aware of the
problems.

I would hope that you would get the best people possible to
formulate this legislation. We just cannot tolerate a continua-
tion of what we have had in the past eight years.

Senator Argue: I think we have some very good minds
looking at it. The report has been done in a very competent
manner. The principles being followed are that whatever
amendments are made ... hopefully responding to what we
believe to be the needs of the producers—will nonetheless keep
the plan actuarially sound.
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We are not looking to get in and scoop it out and in any way
interfere with the actuarial basis. All of the recommendations
I have seen, or the ideas put forward, are put forward on the
substance of an Act that is actuarially sound over the next 20
years.

Mr. Towers: Well, do you intend to get away from the—I
think it is a stigma associated with Statistics Canada in trying
to get your information there. I think that is one of the areas
where the system is breaking down. It would seem to me this is
one area where you could free the management up in the
hands of the people who are working in the system. I think you
could free their hands up considerably if you would simplify
that and perhaps get away from Statistics Canada completely.

Mr. Harold Hedley (Grain Marketing Bureau, Department
of External Affairs): In light of the comments that were made
this morning about the possibility of alternative ways of
coming up with the costs, the answer is that there has been no
examination of alternative ways of determining the costs.

Mr. Towers: Is this not going to be a part of the review,
then?

Mr. Hedley: It has not been to this stage.

[Translation)

Le sénateur Argue: Nous y travaillons depuis quelque
temps. En ce qui me concerne, le dossier est sur la voie rapide.
Je ne sais pas ce que signifie la voie rapide ou la voie lente . . .

M. Schellenberger: Une voie d’évitement.

Le sénateur Argue: . .. une voie double ou autre.

Une voix: Cette fois-ci on a quitté la voie.

Le sénateur Argue: Beaucoup de gens ont consacré énormé-

ment de temps 4 examiner cette question. Les réunions se
poursuivent, et nous espérons que cela se fera rapidement.

.

M. Towers: Monsieur le ministre, & moins de trouver
quelqu’un qui connaisse de trés prés la situation, et qui la
comprenne, pour participer 4 la rédaction de cette loi, vous
allez vous retrouver dans le pétrin comme I’honorable Otto
Lang, qui n’avait pas compris la loi lorsqu’il I'a présentée. Il
vous faut avoir des gens qui travaillent dans le réseau, afin
qu’ils puissent établir la base de votre loi. Autrement, ce seront
des gens qui ne connaissent pas vraiment les problémes qui la
prépareront.

J'ose espérer que vous en appellerez aux meilleures person-
nes possibles pour formuler cette loi. Nous ne pouvons tout
simplement pas tolérer que continue ce qui se passe depuis huit
ans.

Le sénateur Argue: Je crois que quelques trés bons esprits
s’en occupent. Le rapport a été rédigé avec beaucoup de
compétence. Les principes sur lesquels on se fonde, veulent que
les amendements apportés—répondant comme nous ’espérons
a4 4 ce que nous croyons étre les besoins des producteurs—
maintiendront néanmoins le régime sur une bonne base
actuarielle.

Nous n’envisageons pas de I’élaguer ni de jouer le moindre-
ment avec la base actuarielle. Toutes les recommandations que
j’ai vues, toutes les idées proposées, recherchent une loi qui soit
solide sur le plan actuariel au cours des 20 prochaines années.

M. Towers: Avez-vous l'intention de vous détacher de—Je
crois qu’il y a un stigmate associé a Statisqiques Canada qui
vous rend plus difficile 'obtention des renseignements. Je crois
que c’est 'une des lacunes du réseau. Il me semble que, dans ce
domaine, en diminuant I’administration, vous faciliteriez la
t4ache de ceux qui travaillent dans le réseau. Je crois que vous
pourriez leur libérer les mains considérablement en simplifiant
cet aspect quitte 4 abandonner complétement sur ce point
Statistiques Canada.

M. Harold Hedley (direction générale de la commercialisa-
tion du grain, ministére des Affaires extérieures): Au sujet des
remarques faites ce matin sur la possibilité de trouver d’autres
facons de calculer les coiits, je vous répondrai qu’on n’a pas
examiné d’autres facons de le faire.

M. Towers: Cela ne s’inscrit pas dans le cadre de la révision
alors?

M. Hedley: Pas jusqu’a présent.



14-2-1984

Agriculture 3:43

[Texte]

Mr. Towers: Well, we are going to be right back where we
are, then, Mr. Minister; and unless you get into that kind of
detail and alleviate that problem, you are not going to get
anywhere.

Senator Argue: The advisory committee made a recommen-
dation that other costs be looked at.

Mr. Hedley: [ am not talking about other costs. I am talking
about the procedure for coming up with the costs.

Senator Argue: Oh, I see. So do you feel there is anything
wrong with the current procedure in coming up with the costs?
Is there a point where the method by which the costs are
arrived at could be improved or expedited?

Mr. Hedley: The only thing I would say at this time is that
we would take the comments of this committee and look into
it. But I cannot make a judgment today.

Le président: Merci.

Etant donné que nous avons maintenant quorum, nous
pouvons revenir a la motion présentée par M. Neil.

Monsieur Daudlin, vous avez la parole.

Mr. Daudlin: Thank you, Madam Chairman. I apologize for
not having been able to be with you for the entirety of the
morning.

I would like to start off by saying that it appears to me in
principle the motion that Mr. Neil has put is one that would
require some substantial deliberation by us and indeed might
even be one that all of us should be considering supporting.
But I would like, if I may, to ask, through you, either of Mr.
Neil or of the Minister, or of my colleagues, that they put
some questions to us all that would assist me in knowing just
exactly what the ultimate impact might be.

I, like many of the members across and around this table,
sat here when we were considering stabilization not only for
the west but also stabilization for the eastern crops that
ultimately were brought in, and I am sure that all members
will recognize that one of the reasons we in fact have a five-
year period currently in both this legislation and in the other
legislation that exists nationally in dealing with those crops
that are a little closer to home than perhaps western wheat is
in my constituency—one of the reasons why we had five years
is that there was a deliberate intent on the part of government
that we would have a period of time that was long enough so as
not to react in a knee-jerk type of reaction to activities in the
market that could so substantially throw out of whack any
formula we were dealing with that it would in fact work to the
ultimate disadvantage of the producer groups we were trying
to help by bringing the legislation forward. I do not think it
takes too great a stretch of the imagination to come up with a
scenario that in fact in a three-year configuration might result
in an emptying of the fund and that in the fourth year would
then put us in the position of having little or no money to

respond to producer groups for whom in fact the legislation
was drawn up.

[Traduction]

M. Towers: Dans ce cas, nous allons nous retrouver
exactement ol nous étions, monsieur le ministre; & moins que
vous ne vous penchiez sur ce détail et que vous rendiez ce
probléme moins aigu, vous ne parviendrez a rien.

Le sénateur Argue: Le comité consultatif a recommandé que
’on étudie d’autres coiits.

M. Hedley: Je ne parle pas d’autres coits. Je parle de la
procédure utilisée pour calculer les coits.

Le sénateur Argue: Je vois. Trouvez-vous que la méthode
utilisée actuellement laisse & désirer? Y a-t-il moyen d’amélio-
rer ou d’accélérer le calcul des coits?

M. Hedley: Tout ce que je peux vous dire pour I'instant,
c’est que nous notons les remarques du Comité et que nous
regarderons la chose. Toutefois, je ne saurais me prononcer
aujourd’hui.

The Chairman: Thank you.

Since we now have a quorum, we can get back to Mr. Neil’s
motion.

Mr. Daudlin, you have the floor.

M. Daudlin: Merci, madame le président. Je m’excuse de
n’avoir pu étre ici toute la matinée.

Tout d’abord il me semble qu’en principe, la motion
présentée par M. Neil devrait faire I'objet d’un débat assez
approfondi et qu’en fait nous devrions peut-étre tous envisager
de l'appuyer. Toutefois j’aimerais, si vous le permettez,
demander 2 M. Neil, au ministre ou 4 mes collégues, de nous
poser quelques questions de fagon 4 m’aider a savoir exacte-
ment quel pourrait étre le résultat ultime.

J’ai, comme de nombreux députés de I'autre coté et autour
de cette table, siégé ici lorsque nous avons étudié la stabilisa-
tion non seulement des prix de 'Ouest, mais également des
prix des récoltes de I'Est que I’on a fini par introduire dans le
systéme. J’en suis sir, tous les députés admettront que, si nous
avons en fait 4 I’heure actuelle dans cette loi et dans la loi qui
s’étend a I’échelle du pays, une période de cinq ans visant les
récoltes qui sont peut-étre un peu plus proche de ma circons-
cription que le blé de I'Ouest—si donc nous avons choisi cinq
ans, c’est parce que le gouvernement voulait que nous ayons
une période suffisamment longue pour ne pas réagir trop
rapidement aux fluctuations du marché, et déranger la formule
choisie au point de défavoriser les groupes de producteurs que
nous tentions d’aider. Je ne crois pas qu’il soit trop difficile
d’imaginer une situation ot aprés une période de trois ans la
caisse serait vide et la quatriéme année, nous nous retrouve-
rions avec peu ou pas d’argent pour répondre aux demandes
des groupes de producteurs pour lesquels en réalité le projet de
loi a été congu.
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I say that with some reservation and some concern because I
recognize there is a basic fundamental difference between the
eastern and western stabilization programs, the most impor-
tant fundamental difference being that the Western Grain
Stabilization Act is a participating program in the sense of
levies being made to the producer groups, whereas in fact,
those crops that are stabilized in the eastern part of the
country do not have that participating feature.

As a consequence, I recognize there is producer money
which could be viewed as being held in this fund in the west.
That is not the case in terms of payments being made in the
east.

But I am concerned . .. I do not know; I suppose I should
put on the record as well that I suspect—and the Minister
perhaps can assist me in this—there is no necessary identifier
or tag that is put on producer funds; nor is there a separation
in the ultimate saving. My colleagues tell me that in fact there
is a tag; there is an identifier, if we can call it that.

He may be presuming or able to tell where I am going with
this, but my concern is that if in fact you can say what global
amount was paid—and I recognize that can be done—that is
one thing. But are we able to tell whether, under the Act, the
payments made out of the stabilization account are payments
that come first from the producer levies and then from the
funds deposited by government according to the legislation; or
is it a combination thereof, paid in the same proportions as
they were paid in the initial instances? If that is the case, are
we asking only that that portion of the funds which was levied
and not paid out be paid out now, or are we somehow changing
the principle of stabilization which appears to me to be the
fundamental philosophy of all stabilization accounts, which I
thought was insurance, in effect?

I am constantly troubled, and I would hope all my col-
leagues here are constantly troubled, by the philosophical
problem we have with any program like stabilization or
unemployment insurance, or welfare at the provincial level,
where in fact, people participating in the program or making
contributions of some kind somehow take a proprietary interest
in the premium they have paid, and notwithstanding the
event’s not taking place that is supposed to trigger the
payment, view the money they put in purely as personal
savings available to them when they want it. That in my view
destroys the principle of insurance and makes it something
different.

Carried to its logical conclusion, it almost seems to me what
we are saying is that a person who pays fire insurance but does
not have a fire should have his premium come back. I am
certain that is not the intent. Although I can appreciate that
one can argue it is not insurance per se, it seems to me there is
a similarity of principle.

Again, | state that I recognize there is a substantial
fundamental difference between the stabilization programs
that would apply on greenhouse tomatoes or cucumbers in
Ontario—or other crops, be it corn or what have you, in the

[Translation)]

Je dis cela non sans réserves et sans préoccupations, car je
me rends compte qu’il existe une différence fondamentale
entre les programmes de stabilisation de I’Est et ceux de
I’Ouest, la différence la plus importante étant que la Loi sur la
stabilisation du grain de ’Ouest est un programme a participa-
tion dans la mesure ou des subventions sont accordées aux gros
producteurs, alors que les programmes de stabilisation des
récoltes de I’Est ne comportent pas cette caractéristique.

En conséquence, je me rends compte que cet argent pourrait
étre considéré comme étant détenu dans la caisse de I’Ouest.
Par contre, ce n’est pas le cas pour les paiements effectués
dans I’Est.

Mais je suis préoccupé . . . En fait, je ne sais pas; je devrais
dire également que, selon toute supposition, et le ministre peut
peut-étre m’aider, cette caisse n’est pas nécessairement
identifiée comme telle, pas plus qu’on ne fait de distinction
entre les économies réalisées. Cependant, mes collégues me
disent que cette caisse est identifiée comme telle.

Il pourra peut-étre me dire ou cela nous entraine; si en fait
on peut dire quel montant global a été versé—et je me rends
compte que cela peut se faire—c’est une chose. Mais pouvons-
nous dire si, aux termes de la Loi, les versements tirés du
compte de stabilisation sont des versements qui proviennent
tout d’abord des prélévements imposés aux producteurs et
ensuite des crédits accordés par le gouvernement selon la loi en
vigueur ou si c’est une combinaison de ces deux caisses, les
versements étant dans la méme proportion qu’au départ? Dans
ce cas, allons-nous demander a ce que cette partie des fonds
qui a été prélevée mais n’a pas été versée le soit, ou modifions-
nous d’une fagon ou d’une autre le principe de stabilisation qui
me semble étre 4 la base de tous les comptes de stabilisation, et
que je pensais étre une assurance?

Je suis constamment troublé, et j'espére que tous mes
collégues le sont également, par les questions de principe qui se
posent 4 nous lorsqu’il s’agit de créer un programme de
stabilisation, d’assurance-chdmage ou d’assistance sociale a
’échelle provinciale, programme selon lequel ceux qui
participent 4 ce programme ou qui y cotisent s’approprient en
quelque sorte la prime qu’ils ont versée, et méme si I'événe-
ment censé déclencher le versement d’indemnité n’a pas lieu,
considérent cet argent comme des économies personnelles dont
ils peuvent se prévaloir lorsqu’ils le désirent. A mon avis, ce
n’est plus une assurance, mais quelque chose de différent.

Pour pousser cet argument jusqu'a sa conclusion logique,
C’est comme si quelqu’un qui assurait son logement contre
I'incendie, mais qu’un incendie ne détruirait pas, se faisait
rembourser sa prime d’assurance. Je suis siir que ce n’est pas
Iintention. Bien que certains puissent dire qu’il ne s’agit pas
vraiment d’assurance, il me semble que le principe est le
méme.

De nouveau, je me rends compte qu'il existe une différence
fondamentale importante entre le programme de stabilisation
qui s’appliquerait aux tomates ou aux concombres cultivés en
serres en Ontario—ou a d’autres cultures, qu’il s’agisse de
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east—and that in the west, and that fundamental difference
obviously is the levy that goes onto the producer.

But I have a problem, lest in the short term, in an attempt to
assist the producer group here, we somehow modify or change
without intent the basic premises that underlie the stabilization
programs nationally and establish a precedent here which is
then going to be understandably requested and required by the
producer groups under the other program.
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Perhaps, Mr. Minister, you could assist me in my conun-
drum in assuring me that in fact that relationship is not so
close—if it is not—that it should produce that kind of
precedent, in the first instance; and if in fact it is possible that
that kind of precedent and linkage could be taking place, you
could give me some indication as to how one gets out of that
linkage safely.

Senator Argue: I am not sure whether or not the five
years—I am not going to try to pass any judgment—is the
most appropriate period for the Agricultural Stabilization Act,
which applies more in the East than it does in the West,
although it obviously does apply to commodities in the west as
well, but not covered by grain. As you have said, Mr. Daudlin,
I think it is very, very fundamental that the ASA program is a
government program. It is government money; it is not
producers’ money. So I guess the government is in a position to
be more flexible with that program of going up to 90%, I guess
you said on winter wheat—somebody said it was 100%; I do
not know if that is right or not.

But the Act before us does not carry with it that flexibility,
because we can read the Act, and the Act applies according to
the words that are in the Act. I am no economic authority on
whether a five-year moving average or a three-year moving
average is the right way to go in the fundamental way. But I
do know that this Act has been in effect for about eight years;
I do know whether the forecasts were right or whether the
forecasts were wrong. The farmers out there have been facing
a great many increases in costs, and they feel that going into
the calculations are not all of the factors that should be
considered when those calculations are being done.

One of the suggestions—and that has come out of the
advisory committee as well as from others—is that we might
look at a reduction in the base period on which it is tied from
five years to three years. I guess that is more sensitive. I guess
three years, if you take the graph and start coming down, is
more sensitive. It may be that if you have five years, it takes
you longer to get a payout. It may or may not be right that the
payouts will last longer. It may have that effect.

But the question I ask whenever the recommendation is
made for three years is is it actuarially sound, or is this just a
gimmick to get some money, as some might say, in an election
year, and are you destroying the basis of the fund? The answer
given to me—and the people who gave the answer are here
today, and if there is a different answer, we will hear it—the

[Traduction]

mais—ou d’autre chose dans I'Est—et le programme applica-
ble dans I’Ouest; cette différence fondamentale consiste a
prélever une prime aupres du producteur.

Mais cela me géne, 4 moins qu’a court terme, dans le but
d’aider les groupes de producteurs, nous ne modifions d’une
fagon ou d’une autre, et sans le vouloir, les principes fonda-
mentaux qui sont a la base des programmes de stabilisation
nationaux et établissons un précédent qui de toute évidence, et
c’est compréhensible, va étre revendiqué par les groupes de
producteurs participant d I’autre programme.

Monsieur le ministre, vous pourriez peut-étre me tirer de
mon incertitude et m’assurer que, en fait, ce lien n’est pas
suffisamment étroit pour créer ce genre de précédent; dans le
cas contraire, pourriez-vous me dire comment on pourrait se
sortir de cette situation sans danger.

Le sénateur Argue: Je ne suis pas sur que cette période de
cing ans, et je ne vais pas porter de jugement la-dessus, soit la
période qui convienne a la Loi sur la stabilisation des prix
agricoles, qui s’applique davantage a l’est qu’a 'ouest, bien
qu’elle porte de toute évidence sur certaines denrées dans
’Ouest, mais pas sur le grain. Comme vous |’avez dit, mon-
sieur Daudlin, je crois qu’il est tout a fait important que ce
programme de stabilisation de I’agriculture soit un programme
public. Cet argent est tiré des caisses du gouvernement, il ne
vient pas des producteurs. Ainsi, le gouvernement est mieux a
méme d’assouplir ce programme et d’aller jusqu’a 90 p. 100
pour le blé d’hiver, par exemple, et quelqu’un a méme dit 100
p. 100; je ne sais si ce chiffre est exact ou non.

Mais la loi 4 I’étude aujourd’hui n’est pas aussi souple, car
en la lisant, on se rend compte qu’elle ne s’applique qu’aux
dispositions qu’elle prévoit. Je ne suis pas expert en économie
et je ne pourrais pas vous dire s’il serait préférable d’avoir une
moyenne mobile sur cing ans ou sur trois ans. Mais je sais par
contre que cette loi existe depuis environ huit ans et je puis
vous dire si les prévisions ont été justes ou non. Les agricul-
teurs ont di faire face 4 de nombreuses augmentations de leurs
frais et ils estiment que d’autres facteurs devraient entrer en
considération lorsque ces calculs sont effectués.

Certains ont proposé avec le Comité consultatif, de ramener
la période de référence de cinq a trois ans. Je pense que c’est
mieux. Si on examine le graphique de haut en bas, trois ans
semblent plus sir. Si cette période demeurait a cinq ans, les
versements seraient plus longs. Il se peut que ce soit plus long.
Cela pourrait avoir cet effet.

Mais chaque fois qu’on me recommande une période de trois
ans, je me demande toujours si elle est orthodoxe sur le plan
actuariel ou bien s’il s’agit simplement d’'une manoeuvre pour
obtenir davantage d’argent, comme certains le diraient, alors
que nous sommes en période d’élections, et si on ne détruit pas
les principes fondamentaux de cette caisse? La réponse qui m’a
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answer that was given to me was that on the basis of all the
information they have and the best judgment they can apply
and with their economic training and all the computers and
everything else that is used, they say it could be done on a
three-year basis and still remain actuarially sound over a
projection of 20 years. I suppose after 20 years none of us
knows what may happen, so that is not a bad projection.

I think that is an important consideration; and I would
certainly want to know from Dr. Hedley whether my interpre-
tation of the work that has been done is accurate or it is not
accurate, and if a three-year period can be considered without
it jeopardizing the fund on a long-term basis.

Mr. Hedley: Our assessment of looking at a three-year
option is that it would be actuarially sound if you look at it
over the period from 1961 to 1981, which was used for the
data for analysis.

I would also like to take the opportunity to respond to Mr.
Daudlin and indicate some of the advantages and disadvan-
tages of going to that, so you can think about what both the
pros and cons are. We have concluded that if you shorten the
base to a three-year average from a five-year average it would
enable the program to respond more rapidly to a drop in net
cashflow, principally because the three-year averages immedi-
ately prior to a downturn tend to be at a higher level than if
you look over a five-year period, based on the statistics that are
available. If you look at the mid-1970s, the three-year basis of
support would have triggered larger payments in earlier years
and would have had the effect of putting cash in the farmers’
hands earlier in the downturn.

Under the current program, the large payments in respect of
the 1978 year were not paid until 1979, when the net cashflow
had started to recover. On a three-year basis the payments for
1977 would have been paid out in 1978, when the farmers
needed it the most. On the other hand, you have to look at the
disadvantages, and the three-year basis for support and pay-
outs tends to taper off more quickly if there is a prolonged
depression in that cashflow. As you pointed out, the three-year
average basis is affected more so by one abnormal year than
the five-year average would be. Some would argue that that
tends to suggest that the basis for support is then less stable
than it is under a five-year plan.
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Mr. Mayer: Thank you very much, Madam Chairman.
With regard to some of the questions that Mr. Daudlin
raises—and he certainly raises some interesting ones and some
proper ones—it is my understanding from statistics that you
can stabilize, if you can handle it, something that is set up to
be actuarily sound on five years. You could literally, from a
statistical point of view, have something that we stabilize in a
ten-minute period, because if it is actuarily sound over five
years, you can simply, if you do your standard deviations and
your chi squares on... What we have here is global data,
which is a contradiction I guess, because if you have global

[Translation)

été donnée, et ceux qui me I'ont donnée sont ici aujourd’hui et
si leur réponse est différente, nous I’entendrons, était que,
compte tenu de tous les renseignements qu’ils possédaient, de
la logique, de leur formation économique, des calculs d’ordina-
teurs et ainsi de suite, cela pouvait se faire sur trois ans tout en
demeurant orthodoxe sur la plan actuariel pendant 20 ans. Je
suppose que, aprés 20 ans, personne ici ne peut dire ce qui
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